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SEC FORM 17-A




SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 17-A, AS ’AMENDED

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES

1. For the fiscal year ended: December 31, 2008
2. SEC Identification Number: 34001 3. BIR Tax [dentification No. _000-708-174-000
4, Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter; - BANCO DE ORO UNIBANK, INC.
5, Manila (SEC Use Only)
Province, Country or other jurisdiction of Industry Classification Code: .
incorporation or organization ‘
7. BDO Corporate Center 7899 Makati Avenue, Makati City 0726
Address. of principal office Postal Code

8, (632) 840-7000 .
Issuer's telephone number, including area code

9. Banco de Oro-EPCT, Inc., 12 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City
Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report.

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of Each Class. ‘ Number of Shares of Common Stock
' Qutstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding

Title of Each Class - ' Number of Shares
Common Stock, Php10.00 par value - 2,302,032,661
Preferred Stock, Php10.00 par value 525,000,000

11. Are any or all of these securities listed on'a Stock Exchange.

Yes{X] No [ ]



If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange Common

12. Check whether the issuer:

(a)} has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1
thereunder or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of
The Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12} months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to file such reports); :

Yes [ X] No [ ]

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.

Yes [X] No [ ]



TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART| - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Itemn 1
ltem 2
ltem 3
ltem 4

Business

Properties

Legal Proceedings

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

PARTIl - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ltem 5
[tem 6
ltem 7
ltem 8

Market for Registrant's Equity and Related Stockholders Matters
Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operations
Financial Statements

Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accountmg
and Financial Disclosures

PARTIll - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ltem 9
Item 10
ltemn 11

ltem 12

Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
Executive Compensation

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

PARTIV - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ltem 13

Corporate Governance

PARTV .- EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

ltem 14

SIGNATURES

Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C

EXHIBITS & ANNEXES

Page No.

14
44
46
46
46

- 49
55
55
55
55
73
74
75
76
76
77

77



ltem 1;

1)

PARTI - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION
Business
Business..Deveiopmsnt
Form and Year of Organization

Banco De Oro Unibank Inc. (BDO) originally known as Acme Savings Bank, was acquired by
the SM Group in 1976. The SM Group is one of the largest conglomerates in the Philippines,
with substantial interests in financial services, real estate development, and tourism and
entertainment, founded around its core business in commercial centers and retailing. BDO
listed its shares on the Phifippine Stock Exchange (PSE) on 21 May 2002.

BDO is now among the market leaders in its core business lines following its merger with
Equitable PCI Bank (EPCI) in May 2007. The Bank offers a complete array of products and
services, i.e. Retall Banking, Lending (Corporate, Commercial, Consumer, and SME),
Treasury, Trust, Credit Cards, Corporate Cash Management and Remittances. Through its
subsidiaries, the bank offers Leasing and Financing, Investment Banking, Private Banking,
Bancassurance, Insurance Brokerage and Stock Brokerage services. It has one of the
largest branch networks, with 664 branches and more than 1,200 ATMs nationwide.

As of May 2008, BDO has already completed the integration of its business units and the
conversion of the former EPCI branches. The Bank also successfully embarked on a re-
branding campaign to establish “one-bank, one-face, one-consistent service” to customers.
The Bank is now implementing the second phase of integration, aimed at generating
operational efficiency and capitalizing on the scale and synergies from the merger. This is
expected to enhance customer service, product delivery efficiency and shareholder value.

Based on published Statements of Condition of Philippine universal and commercial banks as
of end-December 2008, BDO ranked first in terms of total resources, trust assets, loans and
receivables, and deposits, and third in terms of total capital accounts. BDO's market shares of
the commercial banking sector are as follows:

. Assets — 15.1% -

. Assets under Management (Trust) — 26%
' Loans and receivables - 17.5%

. Deposits — 16.1%, and

. Total Capital Accounts — 12.5%.

BDO registered a net income of P2.2 billion for the year 2008. Net Interest Income grew 7.5%
to P23 billion primarily due to the expansion in the Bank's eaming assets and customer loan
portfolio. Total resources grew 30% year-on-year to P802 billion from an expansion in both the
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Bank’s liquid assets and customer receivables. Net Loans and Other Receivables surged 58%
with gross customer receivables expanding by 32% from an expansion in corporate as well as
consumer loans. Total Deposit Liabilities expanded 43%, supported by aggressive market
efforts. Trust Assets under Management also increased 24% year-on-year to P338.2 bilfion. A
P5 billion preferred share issuance in September boosted Total Equity to P57.8 billion

BDO's diverse stibsidiaries and investments in allied undertakings provide an extensive range
of banking and other financial services. The Bank’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Philippine-based Firms

BDO Private Bank, Inc. (BDO Private)

BDO Leasing & Finance, Inc.

EBC Strategic Holdings Corporation (ESHC)

EBC Investments, Inc. (EBCII)

PCIB Properties, Inc.

BDO Capital & Investment Corporation (BDO Capital)

BDO Financial Services, Inc.

i~ |~IW || —

BDO Technology Center, Inc. (BDO Technology)

w

Equimark - NFC Development Corp.

—
=

- BDO Realty Corporation .

—
—_

PCIB Securities, Inc.

—
[

PCI Realty Corporation

BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc. {BDO Insurance)

—a
(o]

—
e

PCI Insurance Brokers, Inc. (PCl Insurance}

Philippine-based Affiliates

SM Keppel Land, Inc.

Generali Pilipinas Holdings, Inc.

Northpine Land Incorporated

N —

Taal Lan_d

Foreign-based Firms

PC| Express Padala (HK) Ltd.

PCIB Europe, S.P.A.

Express Padala HK Ltd.

BDO Remittance (USA), Inc

Express Padala Frankfurt GmbH

|| mlwira|—]

Equitable PCI Express Padala (Nederland) B.V.



2)

Business of Issuer — Description of the Business and its Significant Subsidiaries

(i) Principal Products and Setvices

BANK PRODUCTS & SERVICES

Peso Deposits: Regular CA, Smart Checking, Super Checking, Peso CA Payro!! Automatic
(ATF) Accounts, Peso Passbook SA, Peso ATM, Peso SA Payroll, Optimum, Super Savings,
Junior Savers Club, Power Teens Club, Club 60 Peso, Smart Guarantor Peso Time Deposst
Premium Flexi Earner :

Foreign Currency Deposits: Dollar SA Club 60 Dollar, Dollar Super Saver. Mega Savings
Dollar, Dollar Time Deposit, US Dollar PRA Time Deposit, Two-Year Dollar Time Deposit,
Three-Year Dollar Time Deposit; Five-Year Dollar Time Deposit, Third Currency Deposit '

Deposit-related Services: Manager's Checks, Gift Checks, Customized Checks, Demand
Drafts, Telegraphic Transfers, Inter-branch Deposits, Deposit Pick-Up Serwce Night Depository
Service, Safe Deposit Box

Remittance Services: Credit to BDO Account, Cash Pick Up Anywhere {at BDO Branches,
SM Forex Counters, and Accredited Rural Banks and Financial Service Partners) BDO Remit
Cash Card, BDO Kabayan Savings Account (USD & PHP), BDO Kabayan Time Deposit
Account, Joflibee Padalang Langhap Sarap, Direct Deposit, Other Services (Credit to Other
Local Banks, Cash Doot-to-Door, Global Money Transfers,) Asenso Kabayan Program

Trust Services: Unit Investment Trust Funds, Customized Portfolio Management (Living Trust
Account, Investment Management Accounts, Employee Benefit/Retirement Accounts, Personal
Pension/Retirement Accounts, Pre-Need Trust Funds, Institutional/Corporate. Trust Funds,
Dollar Trust Funds), Special Trust Services (Mortgage or Collateral Trust, Facility/l.oan Agency,
Escrow Agency Services, Registry and Transfer Agency, Paying Agency, Collection Agency,
Receiving Bank, Safekeeping, Life Insurance Trust, Court Trusts, Non-Voting Trusts, Special
Purpose Trust), Investment Management Advisory Services o

Treasury Dealership and Brokering Services: Treasury Bills & Bonds, Fixed Rate Treasury
Notes, Commercial Papers, Foreign Currency Denominated Bonds, FX Forwards and Swaps,
Interest Rate Swaps

Transaction Banking: Cash Management Services: Integrated Collection solutions — Bills .
Payment and Auto Debit Arrangements; Institutional Payment collections — Corporate
Collections, PDC Warehousing, Armored Car Cash Deposit Pick-up, Motorized Check Pick-Up;
Integrated Disbursement Solutions — Direct Credit, Check Printing, Payables Warehousing,
Regular Payroll, Check Disburse; Government Colflections - BIR e-Payment, SSS EC Link,
Philhealth, HDMF, NHMFC; Liquidity Management — Account Sweeping Facility, Warehouse &
Discounting Facility; Account and Information Services — Infolink.  Electronic Banking:
Expressnet, Megalink, Bancnet, Visa/Plus, Mastercard, Cirrus/Maestro;. Internet Banking — my
BDO Internet Banking, Corporate Internet Banklng, Phone Banking; Moblle Banking; Point-of-
Sale (POS)

Card Products: Debit Cards BDO Smarteller ATM Card, BDO ATM Debit Card Mastercard
BDO ATM Debit Card Paypass. Fasteller, Speedteller; Pre-paid-Cards: BDO Cash Card, BDO
Cash Card International, BDO Asenso Kabayan Cash Card, Smart Money, Fast Card




Consumer Loans & Credit Cards: BDO Home Loan, BDO Home Equity, BDO Contract-to-Sell
Financing, BDO Auto Loan, BDO Personal Loan, BDO Credit Cards: BDO Mastercard, BDO
American Express Card, BDO Visa Card, and BDO JCB Card

Commercial & Industrial Loans: Credit Lines, Bills Purchase Lines, Check Discounting Lines,
Term Loans, Trust Loans, US Dollar Denominated Loans, LC/TR Financing, Stand-by-LC, CTS
Financing, Export Bills Purchase, Export Packaging Credit, FX Settlement, Sugar Quedan
Financing, Receivables Purchase Facility ‘

Special Loan & Guarantee Facilities: Funding Facilities - Countryside Loan Fund (CLF i},
Credit Support for the Environment, Agribusiness and Small and Medium Enterprises (CREAM), |
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME), Industrial Guarantee & Loan Fund (IGLF),
Sustainable Logistics Development Program (SLDP), Environmental Development Program,
Industry Support Loan Project {ISLP-JBIC 6), Industrial and Large Projects, BSP Rediscounting
Facility, SBGFC-SME Funding for Investments in Regional Markets (FIRM),. SBGFC-SME
Funding Access for Short-Term Loans (FAST), SSS Special Financing Program, §8S Industry
Loan Program and SSS Financing Programs for Hospitals, Schools, and Tourism Projects.
Guarantee Faciliies — SBGFC Clean Loan Guarantee Facility,” SBGFC Collateral-Short -
Guarantee Facility, SBGFC Collateral-Sharing Guarantee Facility, PhilExim Pre-Shipment &
Post-Shipment ‘Export Finance Guarantee Program, PhilExim Term Loan Guarantee Program
(TLGP), PhilExim General Facility Program (GFP), PhilExim Omnibus Guarantee Line Under
the General Facility Program PhilExim Programs for Large Projects in Priority Sectors of the
Government

Foreign Exchange: Over-the-Counter Purchase/Sale of FX, Purchase/SaIe of Tfavelers
Checks

Investment Banking.: BDO Capital and Investment Corp.. Debt, Equity and Quasi-Equity
Underwriting; Loan Syndication; Project Finance; Securitization; Private Placement of Debt and
Equity, Financial Advisory, Mergers and Acquisitions, Direct Investments, Off-Balance Sheet
Facilities. BDO Securities Corp: Equity Securities Brokering and Dealership

Insurance Brokerage.: Industrial/Commercial All Risk, Fire & Lightning with Allied Perils
(Residential/Commercial), Business Interruption, Personal/Comprehensive General/Product
Liability, Contractors’ All Risks, Erection All Risk, Machinery Breakdown, Electronic Eguipment,
Motor Vehicle, Marine Cargo Insurance/Marine Hull/Aviation, Surety Bonds, Money Securities
and Payroll, Group Life, Individual/Group Personal Accident, Travel Personal Accident, Group
Health/Hospitalization/ HMO

Trade Services: Import/Export Letters of Credit, Domestic Letters of Cradit, Standby Letters. of
Credit, Documents Against Payment, Documents Against Acceptance, Open Account
Agreements, Export Negotiations, Shipping Guarantees, Trust Rece|pt Inventory Financing,
BSP TR Rediscounting

Cross Border and Wholesale Financing: Structured Trade Finance

Private Banking: Peso and Foreign Currency Settlement Accounts, Securities Custody and
Safekeeping Accounts, Deposits, Securities Broking, Foreign Exchange, Derivatives,
Consolidated Cash and Securities Statement, Wealth Advisory (Financial Planning, Financial
Asset Consolidation, Investment Advisory and Management, Purpose Trust), Tax and Estate
Advisory




Securities Brokerage: Dealership & Brokering of Equity Securities

BDO Asénso Kabayan Program: BDO Kabayan Savings Account (USD & PHP), BDO

“Kabayan Time Deposit Account, BDO Remit Services (Credit toe BDO Account, Cash Pick-Upin -

any BDO Branch, BDO Onsite Outet, SM Forex Counters, & Rural Banks), BDO Remit Cash
Card (Peso Only), Kabayan Bills Bayad, Kabayan College Secure, Kabayan Loans (Kabayan
Auto Loan, Kabayan Home Loan, Kabayan Personal Loan)

Collection Services for major corporations:

Of the foregoing, the Bank derives its income (10% or more of total revenue) as
follows: :

income Accounts : : % to Total Income
1. Interest Income on Loans & Other Receivables 49.8%
2. Interest Income on Investment & Trading Securities 19.9%
3. Service Charges, Fees and Commissions 13.2%

(i)

(i

Distribution Methods of Products or Services.

The Bank's services are distributed and accessed primarily through branches, but
select services are also accessible through other channels such as kiosks, call
centers, mobile and landline telephones, internet, and point-of-sale terminals. The
Bank's extensive distribution network provides it good market coverage that is
superior to many of its competitors. Aside from 1,253 ATM machines and a branch in
Hong Kong, the Bank has a consolidated domestic branch network of 664 in operation
as of December 31, 2008.

‘Status of Publicly Announced New Products or Service

Aside from a 5-year US Dollar Time deposit product, no other new product was.
launched in-2008. Instead, a number of products were relaunched during the year as
the Bank concentrated its efforts in harmonizing, consolidating and improving its
existing product lines.

C_omipetition

As of December 2008, the Philippine commercial banking sector consisted of 38
commercial banks, 18 of which are private domestic banks, 17 are
branches/subsidiaries of foreign commercial banks and 3 are government- -controlled
banks. Of the 38 commercial banks, 17 are universal banks, of which 3 are branches
of foreign banks.



(vi)

(vil)

(vii)

Based on published statements of condition, the total assets of the commercial
banking system as of December 31, 2008 reached P4.8 trillion. Domestic banks
accounted for approximately 88% of the total while foreign banks contributed the
remaining 12%. The five largest banks, namely, BDO, Metropolitan Bank and Trust
Company, Bank of the Philippine lIslands, Land Bank of the Philippines, and
Development Bank of the Philippines, accounted for 55% of total assets.

As of December 31, 2008, the loans and receivables (net) of the commercial banking
system amounted to P2.6 trillion, while total deposits was at P3.9 trillion. The total
capital accounts of the commercial banking system amounted to P451 billion as of
December 2008. Among the commercial banks, BDO ranks 1st in terms of total

assets, deposits, loans and receivables and frust, and 3rd in terms of total capital,

Transactions with and/or Dependence on Related Parties.

There has been no transaction or proposed transaction during the last 2 years to
which the Bank was or is to be a party, and in which any of its directors, officers,
director-nominees, significant record or beneficial owner of the Bank’s securities have
any interest other than those arising from the regular loan transactions granted in the
ordinary course of business, approved by the Board of Directors and reported to the
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas, subject to certain limitations prowded by law and existing
banking regulations.

Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, Franchises, Concession, Reyelty Agreement or labor
contracts including duration : ‘

The Bank has registered the following trademarks with the Inteflectual Property Office
of the Philippines: -

Trademark Duration )

Express Padala March 17, 2008 to March 17, 2018
We find ways . April 7, 2008 {o April 7, 2018

Governmental Approval of Principal Products or Services

None. -

Effect of Existing or Probable Gevemmental Regulations on the Business

Beieg a banking institution subject to the General Banking Law and banking

regulations, the Bank is under the supervision of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas, -
whose approval BDO requires to undertake certain activities.



(i)

Estimate of Amount Spent for Research and Development Activities

No expenses have been incurred by the Bank for research and‘de‘velbpm.ent for the
past three (3) years. ‘

(x) Total Number of Employees
“The Bank has a total of 18,515 employees as of 31 December 2008 broken down as
follows: - ‘ _
"Non- .' Officers Executives Consultants  TOTAL
Officers ‘
Total Head Offices 3,511 3,262 520 : 55 7,348
Metro Manila Branches 4,555 1,600 95 0 6,250
Provincial Branches
Luzon 2,128 . 670 13 0 2,811
Visayas 875 277 4 0 1,156
Mindanao 759 187 0 950
Total Provincial 3,762 1,134 21 0 4,917
Branches :
TOTAL EMPLOYEES 1-1,828 5,996 636 55 - 18,515

The Bank has an existing collective bargaining agreement (CBA) with the Banco De
Oro National Union of Bank Employees covering substantially all of the Bank's staff
level employees, other than those expressly excluded under the new CBA. This
agreement is effective for a period of five (5) years from 1 November 2005 to 31
October 2010, in so far as the representation aspect is concemed. All other
provisions of the agreement shall be in effect for a period of three (3) years until 31
October 2008. The economic provisions of the CBA are under negotiation for the
remaining period of 1 November 2008 to 31 October 2010. The Bank's has not
suffered any strike in the past 20 years, and the Bank considers its relations with its
employees and the Union to be good.
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(i)

Risk Management

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank operates an integrated risk management system to address the risks it .
faces in its banking activities, including market, liquidity, credit and cperational risks.

The Bank's Risk Management Commitiee has overall responsibility for the Bank's risk

management systems and sets risk management policies across the full range of risks

to which the Bank is exposed. The Risk Management Cormmittee is a Board-Level
committee composed of three members of the Board of Directors including the

President.

Within the Bank's overall risk management system, the- Asset-Liability Committee
(ALCO) is responsible for managing the Bank's balance sheet, including the Bank's
liquidity, interest rate and foreign exchange related risks. In.addition, ALCO formulates
investment and financiat policies by determining the asset allocation and funding mix
strategies that are likely to yield the targeted balance sheet results. ALCO includes the
President of the Bank and the respective heads of the Bank's Treasury, Lending,
Comptrollership, Branches, Trust, and Risk Management Group (RMG).

Separately, the RMG is tasked with managing credit risk, which is the risk that the
counterpart in a transaction may default, and market risk, which is the risk of future
loss from changes in the pricing of financial instruments. See “Credit Risk
Management” and “Market Risk Management’ below.

Liquidity Risk Management

The Bank takes a multi-tiered approach to maintaining liquid assets. BSP regulations
require the Bank to maintain minimum cash reserves and liquid assets as a proportion
of its overall deposits. The Bank's principal source of liquidity is comprised of R21.8
billion of cash and short-term deposits with maturities of less than one year amounting
fo 2130.9 hillion as at 31 December 2008. In addition to regulatory reserves, the Bank
maintains what it believes to be a sufficient level of secondary reserves in the form of -
liquid assets such as short-term trading and investment securities that can -be
converted to cash quickly. Of a net portfolio of trading and investment securities of
2156.2 billion as at 31 December 2008, B14.1 billion, or 9.1%, comprised trading and

“investment securities with remaining maturities of one year or less. The Bank also

uses the interbank market as a means of maintaining a sufficient leve! of liquid assets.
It had interbank loan receivables of R29.2 billion as at 31 December 2008. In addition,
the Bank manages liquidity by maintaining a loan portfolio with a sufficient proportion
of short-term loans. As at 31 December 2008, R281.1 billion, or 57.2 %, of the Bank's
loans and other receivables were comprised of loans with remaining maturities of less
than one year, including past due loans.
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Interest Rate Ris'k Management

A critical efement of the Bank's risk management program consists of measuring and
monitoring the risks associated with fluctuations in market interest rates on the Bank's
net interest income. The Bank employs “gap analysis" to measure the interest rate
sensitivity of its assets and liabilities. The asset/liability gap analysis measures, for any
given, period, any mismatch between the amounts of interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities, which would mature, or re-price, during that period. If there
is a positive gap, there is asset sensitivity, which generally means that an increase in
interest rates would have a positive effect on the Bank's net interest income. If there is
a negative gap, this generally means that an increase in interest rates would have a
negative effect on the Bank's net interest income.

Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk that the counterpart in a transaction may default and arises from
lending, trade finance, treasury, derivatives and other activities undertaken by the
Bank. The Bank manages its credit risk and loan portfolio through the RMG, which
undertakes several functions with respect to credit risk management.

The RMG undertakes credit analysis and review to ensure consistency in the Bank's
risk assessment process. The RMG performs risk ratings for corporate accounts and
risk scoring for consumer accounts. It also ensures that the Bank's credit policies and
procedures are adequate to meet the demands of the business. The RMG is also
responsible for developing procedures to streamline and expedite the processing of
credit applications.

The RMG's portfolio management function involves the review of the Bank's loan
portfolio, including the portfolio risks associated with particular industry sectors,
regions, loan size and maturity, and development of a strategy for the Bank to achieve
its desired portfolio mix and risk profile.

The RMG reviews the Bank's loan portfolio in line with the Bank's policy of not having
significant unwarranted concentrations of exposure to individual counterparties, in
accordance with the BSP's prohibition on maintaining a financial exposure to any
single person or group-of connected persons in excess of 25% of its net worth. See
“Loan Portfolio — Size and concentration of loans” above.

Finally, the RMG has a remedial management function which includes handling the

collection and servicing of loan accounts encountering repayment difficulties and

overseeing “watchlisted” accounts which are -accounts expected fo encounter
difficulties due to adverse economic or business conditions. As a matter of policy, the
Bank extends as much assistance as necessary to restructure remedial accounts
before taking steps to enforce legal proceedings.

12



Market Risk Mahagement

The Bank's exposure to market risk, the risk of future loss from changes in the price of -
a financial instrument, relates primarily to its holdings in foreign exchange instruments,

debt securities and derivatives. The RMG's role in managing market risk is to identify,

analyze and measure relevant or likely market risks. It recommends various limits

based on activity indicators to the Bank's Risk Management Committee. The Risk

Management. Committee in tum passes its recommendations to the Board, which

reviews and approves these limits. The Bank's market risk management limits are

generally categorized as limits on: ' | :

. Aggregate control limits would include permitted instruments and currencies,
volume or notional limits, intra-day position limits, and other similar limits.
Aggregate control limits are intended to prevent over-trading, excessive
concentration, and to limit financial loss supplementing -other already
established limits. o

" Management Action Triggers'("MATs"). These limits establish management's
tolerance for accepting market risk losses, actual and- unrealized, on a
cumulative basis.

- Value-at-risk — the RMG computes the VAR benchmarked at a level of target
trading income and as a percentage of capital; and

n Eamings-at-risk — the RMG computes the earnings-at-risk based on a |
percentage of projected earnings and capital.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Bank manages its exposure to foreign exchange risk by maintaining foreign
currency exposure within existing regulatory guidefines and at a level that it believes
to be relatively conservative fora financial institution engaged in that type of business.

The Bank's net foreign exchange exposure is computed as its foreign currency assets
less foreign currency liabilities. BSP regulations impose a cap of 20% of unimpaired
capital, or U.S. $50 million, whichever is lower, on the consolidated excess foreign
exchange holding of banks in the Philippines. In the case of the Bank, its foreign
exchange exposure is primarily limited to the day-to-day, over-the-counter buying and
selling of foreign exchange in the Bank's branches as well as foreign exchange
trading with corporate accounts and other financial institutions. The Bank, being a
major market participant in the Philippine Dealing System, may engage in proprietary
frading to take advantage of foreign exchange fluctuations. ‘
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The Bank's foreign exchange exposure during the day is guided by the limits set forth

in the Bank's Risk Management Manual. These limits are within the prescribed ceilings
mandated by the BSP. At the end of each day, the Bank reports to the BSP on its
compliance with the mandated foreign currency exposure limits. In addition, it also
reports to the BSP on the respective foreign currency positions of its subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2008, the Bank's net foreign exchange exposure was a positive
U.S. $43.4 million, inclusive of the foreign exchange position of the Bank's
subsidiaries.

Operational Risk Man'agement

The Bank manages its operational risks by having policies to minimize its expected
losses, allocating capital for the unexpected losses, and having insurance and/for a
business continuity plan to prepare for catastrophic losses.

Under the Bank's Operational Risk Management (ORM) framework, the Board is
responsible for providing leadership in the management of risk. The business and -
service unit heads, as risk owners, are rasponsible for identifying, assessing and

limiting the impact of risk in their businesses. RMG provides the common risk

language and management tools and monitors the implementation of the ORM
framework and policies. ‘

ltem 2. Properties

Description of Property

1)

Principal Properties Owned

Presented below is a list of the Bank's real propertles as of 31 December 2008 owned by the
Bank and utilized as branches.

BDO BANK-OWNED PROPERTIES UTILIZED AS BRANCHES

BRANCH

ADDRESS

ADB Avenue - Ortigas

Rehinson's PCIBank Towér ADB Avenue, Ortigas Center, 1600 PaS|g

City
2 | Airport Road Quirino Avenue corner Airport Road, Baclaran District, Parafiaque City
3 | Alfaro Unit # 2, GF Chatham House, Herrera St. cor. Valero and San Agustin
_ Sts., Salcedo Village., Makati City .
4 | Alfaro - Salcedo Village GF PDCP Bank Center, LP Leviste corner Herrera St. , Salcedo
Village, Makati City
5 | Angeles City-Miranda PCIB Bldg., Miranda St., 2009 Angeles City, Pampanga
6 | Antique ' Cormer Gov. Villavert St. and Gov. Gella $t., San Jose, Antique 5700
7 | Aparri- Rizal Street Rizal St. cor. R.F. Balisi $t., Aparri, Cagayan
8 | Arranque-T. Alonzo 733 T. Alonzo St., Manila
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BDO BANK-OWNED PROPERTIES UTILIZED AS BRANCHES

BRANCH ADDRESS
9 | Asia Tower - Paseo G/F Asia Tower cor, Paseo De Roxas & Benavides Sts.,1229 Makatl
City
10 | Aurora Blvd Aurora Boulevard comer Yale Street, Cubao, Quezon City
11 | Aurora Bivd-Notre Dame Aurora Blvd. corner Notre Dame 8t., Cubao, 1110 Quezon City
12 | A. Santos-St. James | 8406 A. Santos Ave., Sucat, Parafiaque City 1700
13 | Baclaran-Redemptorist Road | Redemptorist Road, Baclaran, Parafiaque, M:M..
14 | Bacolod Plaza Araneta cor.Gonzaga Sts., 6100 Bacoled City- Negros Occidental
15 | Bacolod - Capitol Shoppzng Benigno Aquino Drive, Capxto[ Shoppmg 6100 Bacolod City, Negros
Occidental
16 Bacolod - Gatuslao 26 & 28-Gov. V. Gatuslao St Bacolod City, Negros Occidental
17 | Bacolod - Lacson Lacson cor.Galo Sts., 6100 Bacolod City, Negros Occidental
18 | Bacolod - Rosario Lacson Lot 296-B-7, Lacson St. cor, Rosario St., Bacolod City, Negros
Occidental
19 | Bagtican-Pasong Tamo Unit 102 G/F Pryce Center Condo 1179 Chino Roces Ave. car.
Bagtican St. , San Antonio Village, Makati City
- 20 | Balanga - A. Banzon A. Banzon St., City of Balanga, 2100 Bataan
21 | Balivag - J.P. Rizal J.P. Rizal St., San Jose, Baliuag, Bulacan
22 | Batangas City - Rizal Avenue | Rizal Avenue corner P. Burgos St,, Batangas, Batangas City
23 | Batangas - Sto. Tomas Maharlika Highway, San Antonio Sto.Tomas, Batangas
24 | Bel Air-Gil Puyat | Country Space 1 Condo. Building, Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Bel-air
Village, 1209 Makati City .
25 | Binondo 411 Quintin Paredes Street, Binondo, Manila
26 | Bifan - A. Bonifacio Street, Barrio Canlalay, Bifian, Laguna
27 | Blumentritt Rizal Avenue corner Antipolo Street, Manila
28 | Blumentritt - San Juan Lot 11-B, Blk. 127 Blumentritt cor. Sto.. Toribio Sts San Juan, Metro
Manila
29 | Boni Avenue #74 Maysilo Circle corner Boni Avenue, Mandaluyong Clty
30 | Bukidnon - Valencia M. L. Quezon St. cor. G. Lavifia Ave., Valencia City, Bukidnon 8709
31 | Cabanatuan - Maharlika Maharlika Road near cor. Sanciangco St., Cabanatuan City
Road
32 | Cagayande Oro-Lapasan | CM Recto Highway, Lapasan, 9000 Cagayan de Oro City, Misamis
. Criental
33 | Cagayan de Qro - Velez Velez Road comner Abejuela Strest, Cagayande Oro
34 | Calamba Crossing - Notth Calamba Crossing; National Highway, 4027 Calamba, Laguna
35 | Caloocan - Sangandaan No. 628 A. Mabini St., 1408 Sangandaan, Caloocan City
36 | Capitol-Pasig #125 Shaw Blvd. cor. Danny Floro St., Pasig City
37 | Cavite - Dasmarifias Governor's Drive, Brgy. Paliparan |, Dasmarinas, Cavite
Technopark ' :
38 | Cavite City - P. Burgos Cor.. P. Burgos & P. Julio Sts., Caridad, 4100 Cavite City
39 | Cebu Borromeo Magallanes cor., Borromeo Sts., Cebu City
40 | Cebu-F. Gonzales F. Gonzales cor. Magallanes Sts., Cebu City
41 | Cebu Fuente Circle Fuente Osmefia Rotunda, Cebu City
42 - | Cebu- Gorordo 1 Gorordo Ave., Lahug, 6000 Cebu City, Cebu
43 | Cebu-Magallanes Plaridel Magallanes cor., Plaridel Sts., 6000 Cebu City
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BDO BANK-OWNED PROPERTIES UTILIZED AS BRANCHES

BRANCH ADDRESS
44 | Cebu - North Mandaue National Highway, Mandaue City
45 | Cebu North Reclamation Blk.20-A cor. Port Centre Ave. and Juan Luna Ave., Narth
‘ Reclamation Area, Cebu City
46 | Cebu South Mandaue National Highway, 6014 Mandaue City, Cebu
47 | Corinthian Gardens BDO Leasing Center, Ortigas Ave., Quezon City
48 | Cotabato Kidapawan Quezon Bivd., 9400 Kidapawan, North Cotabato
49 | Cotabato - Makakua -Makakua St., 9600 Cotabato City, Maguindanao
50 | C. Palanca-Quiapo 132 Carlos Palanca St., Quiapo, Manila ‘
51 | C.M. Reclo Nicanor Reyes Street cormner Claro M. Recto Avenue, Sampaldc,
Manila
52 | C.M. Recto- San Sebastian 2070 C.M. Recto St., 1008 Sampaloc, Manila
53 | Dagupan - Fernandez A B. Fernandez Ave., 2400 Dagupan City, Pangasinan
54 | Dasmarifias St.-Binondo PCIBank Bldg., Dasmarinas St. Binondo, 1006 Manila
55 | Davao - C.M. Recto 383 Claro M. Recto St,, Davac City
56 | Davao Digos Rizal Avenue, Zone Il, Digos, Davao del Sur
57 | Davag- Mati Rizal cor.Mahini Sts., 8200 Mati, Davao Criental
58 | Davao - Tagum - B77 Rizal St., 8100 Tagum, Davao Def Norte
59 | Dian - Gil Puyat GIF EPCIB Bldg., Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue cor. Dian St., Makati City
60 | Dipolog Quezon Ave, 7100 Dipolog City, Zamboanga Del Norte
61 | Dumaguete Colon St. fronting Bldg. V of City Public Market, Poblacion 003,
Dumaguete City |
62 | E. Rodriguez 1162 E. Rodriguez Sr. Avenue, New Manita, Quezon city
63 | Fairview Don Mariano Marcos Avenue, Barangay Fairview, Quezon City
64 | General Santos.- Pendatun GF Sydney Hotel, Pioneer St. and Pendatun Avenue, General Santos
| City, 9500 _ : , s
65 | General Santos - Pioneer National Highway cor. Roxas Ave., 9500 Gen. Santos City, S.
_ Cotabato
66 | General Santos - Santiago Ireneo Santiago Blvd., 9500 Gen. Santos St., South Cotabato
67 | General Trias - Gateway Gateway Business Park, C. Delos Reyes Ave., 4107 Gen. Trias,
Cavite
68 | Grace Park- 8th Avenue Rizal Avenue Extension, Grace Park, Caloocan city
69 | Grace Park - 9th Avenue 414 Rizal Avenue Extension, Grace Park, 1400 Caloocan City
70 | Greenhills-Roosevelt EBC Bldg., Ortigas Avenue corner Roosevelt Ave., Greenhills, San
Juan, Metro Manila
71 | llaya- M. De Santos 632-M. De Santos Street, Manila ‘
72 | ligan-Del Pilar B.C. Labao comer Del Pilar Street, lligan City
73 | lloilo - Iznart [znart:St., 5000 loilo City, Hoilo
74 | lloilo - Valeria Valeria Street, lloilo City
75 | Imus Gen. Aguinaldo Road, Anabu |, Imus, Cavite
76 | Isabela - Roxas #23 Osmefia Rd., Bantug, Maliig Plain, 3320 Roxas, Isabela
- 77 | Juan Luna 262 Juan Luna Street, Binondo, Manila
78 | Kalentong MRDC Bldg., Shaw Boulevard corner Kalentong Street, Mandaluyong

City :

16
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BRANCH ADDRESS

79 | Laoag - Balintawak Cor.Rizal & Balintawak Sts., 2900 Laoag City, llocos Norte

80 | Las Pifias - Philamlife Alabang-Zapote Road, Pamplona Tres, 1740 Las Pinas, Metr¢ Manila

81 | Legaspi Village - Salcedo St. | EBC Bldg., 203 Salcedo Street, Legaspi Village, Makatl Clty

82 i Leveriza-Libertad 212 Libertad St., Pasay City, Metro Manila

83 : Leyte - Ormoc Burgos St. cor. Rizal St.,, 6541 Ormoc City, Leyte

84 | Lipa- C.M. Recto 131 C. M. Recto St, 4217 Lipa City, Batangas '

85 | Lipa- Rotonda C.M. Recto Avenus, Lipa City

86 | Luneta- TM Kalaw 707 T.M. Kalaw St. corner Churruca St,, Ermita, Manila

87 | Main Office BDO South Tower, Makati Avenue comer H. V. Dela Costa St., 1227
Makati City

88 | Makati Avenue - Ayala L.V. Locsin Bldg., Ayala Avenue corner Makati Avenue, 1228 Makatl City

89 | Makati Cinema Square Makati Cinema Square, Pasong Tamo, 1229 Makati City

- 90 | Malabon - Rizal Ave 694 Rizal Ave., 1470 Malabon, Metro Manila

91 | Malolos-Congreso Paseo Del Congrese, San Agustin 3000 Malolos, Bufacan

92 | Manggahan Amang Rodrigusz Avenue, Barangay Manggahan, Pasig City

93 | Marikina # 17 Bayan-bayanan Avenue, Barangay Concepcion 1, Marikina City

94 | Marikina- Sumulong Highway | Comer E. Dela Paz Street Amang Rodriguez Avenue, Sto. Nino,
Marikina City

95 | Marulas-McArthur Highway | Lot 16 & 17 McArthur Highway, Valenzuela, Metro Manila

96 | Mayon GF, Alpha Building, 174 Mayon Street, La Loma, Quezon City

97 | Medical Plaza-Legaspi Unit 101, G/F Medical Plaza M’akati Amorsolo St. cor.. Dela Rosa St.

Village Legaspi Village, Makati City .

98 | Meycauayan - Zamora Zarnora St., Barrio Calvario, Meycauayan, Bulacan

99 | Naga-PlazaRizal - Gen. Luna St., 4400 Naga City, Camarines Sur

100 | Negros Occidental - Cadiz Cabahug St,, 6121 Cadiz, Negros Occidental

101 | Negros Occidental Escalante | National Highway, Escalante City, 6124 Negros Occidental

102 | Negros Occidental- Guanzon St., Kabankalan, 6111 Negros Occidental

Kabankalan -

103 | Novaliches - Forest Hills | Lot 2 D1 Quirino Ave., Novaliches, Quezon City

104 | Nueva Ecija - Gapan " Tinio St., 3105 Gapan, Nueva Ecija

105 | Nueva Ecija - Guimba Afan Salvador St., 3115 Guimba, Nueva Ecija

106 | Nueva Ecija - Munoz T. Delos Santos St., Science City of Munoz, Nueva Ecija

107 | Ortigas Avenue Ortigas Avenue, Greenhills, San Juan, Metro Manila

108 | Ortigas Exchange Road GIF, PSE Center, Exchange Road, Ortigas Comntercial Complex,
Pasig City

109 | Ortigas-SanJuan Units 102-103 Sunrise Condo., Ortigas Ave., 1500 San Juan, MM

110 | Ozamiz City Cebedo St., comer Gallardo St., Centro, Ozamiz City, Misamis
Occidental

111 | Paco- A. Linao 1635-1641 A. Linao St., Paco, Manila

112 | Padre Faura-A. Mabini A Mabini Cor. Padre Faura Sts., 1000 Ermita, Manila

113 | Pagadian F. S. Pajaras Ave., Pagadian City, 7016 Zamboanga Del Sur ‘

114 | Pamplona Alabang-Zapote Road, Barangay Pamplona Uno, Las Pifias City

115 | Pasay Libertad corner Colayco Streets, Pasay City

116 | Pasay Read G/F, One Corporate Plaza, #845 Antonic S. Amaiz Avenug, Makati City
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~ BDO BANK-OWNED PROPERTIES UTILIZED AS BRANCHES-

BRANCH ADDRESS
117 | Paseo - Tower - Makati Equitable Bank Tower, # 8751 Paseo De Roxas, Makati Clty
118 | Perea - Paseo’ G/F Universal Re Bldg., 106 Paseo De Roxas, 1228 Makati City

119

Paseo-Gil Puyat

EBC Bldg., Paseo De Roxas carner Gil Puyat Ave., Makati City

120

Plaza Sta. Cruz-Dasmarifias |
St.

377 Plaza Sta. Cruz, 1003 Sta. Cruz, Manila

121

Pitimini Roosevelt

EBC Bldg., Roosevelt Ave., cor.Pitimini St., San Francisco Del Monte,
Quezon City

122 | Potrero #110 MacArthur Highway corner Riverside Street Barangay Potrero,
_ , | Malabon
123 | Presidents. Ave.-BF President's Ave. cor. J. Elizalde St., BF Homes Paranaque Metro
‘ 1 Manila
124 | Puerto Princesa 261 Rizal Ave., 5300 Puerto Princesa City, Palawan
125. | Quezon Avenue - Heroes Hill | 1052 Quezon Avenue, 1103 Quezon City
126 | Quezon Candelaria Rizal Ave cor. Valle St., 4323 Candelaria, Quezon

127

Reliance St.- EDSA

G/F Peragaon Plaza, cor. Reliance St., Mandaluyong City

128

Reposo-Makati

EBC Bldg., JP Rizal cor. N. Garcia {formerly Reposo), Makati City

129

Rizal Avenue

#2502 -2504 Rizal Avenue corner Cavite Street, Sta. Cruz District,
Manila

130

Rockwell Center—MakatE

Lot 3, Block 7, Rockwell Drive, Rockwell Center, Poblamon IVIakatl
City

| 131

Roxas, Roxas Avenue

Roxas Avenue, Roxas City, Capiz

132

San Fernando-La Union-Q.
Ave,

Quezon Ave., 2500 San Fernando, La Union

133

San Pablo - Rizal St

2nd Floor, Equitable PCI Bldg., Rizal St. cor. P, Alcantara, San Pablo
City, Laguna

134

Shaw Blvd-Stanford

EBC Bldg., Shaw Blvd. Cor.. Stanford St., Mandaluyong City

135

Silay - Figueroa

Figueroa cor. Rizal St Silay City, 6116 Negros Occidental

136 | South Cotabato - Koronadal | R. Alunan Ave. cor. Osmefia St., 9506 Koronadal, South Cotabato
137 | Sta. Rosa-South Expressway | National Road, Pulong Sta. Cruz, 4026 Sta Rosa, Laguna

138 | Strata 100-Ortigas GiF Strata 100 Bldg., Emerald Avenue, Pasig City

139 | Sultan Kudarat isulan #075 National Highway, Kalawag 2 Isulan, Sultan Kudarat

140

Sultan Kudarat Tacurong

Alunan Highway, 9800 Tacurong, Sultan Kudarat

141 | Taft- Vito Cruz Bankard Bldg., 2422 Taft Ave., 1004 Malate, Manila
142 | Tarlac 27 F. Tafiedo Street, Tarlac, Tarlac City

143 | Tarlac J. Luna J. Luna $t. near corner Mc Arthur, Tarlac, Tarlac
144 | Tomas Morato- Kamuning Comer Kamuning & Tomas Morato, Quezon City

145

Tuguegarao - Bonifacio St.

Bonifacio Street, Tuguegarao, Cagayan

146 | U.N. Avenue-J, Bocobo EBC Bldg., UN Avenue cor. J. Bocobo St., Ermita Manila
147 | Urdaneta-Alexander Alexander St., Urdaneta City, Pangasinan :
148 | West Trade Center-West Unit# 1, GIF West Trade Center, West Avenue, Quezon City
Avenue ‘ ,
149 | Vigan - Quezon Avenue Corner Bonifacio St. & Quezon Ave., 2900 Vigan, llocos Sur

150

BDO Zamboanga - Rizal St.

Rizal St., Zamboanga City, 7000, Zamboanga Del Sur
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2) Leased Properties
The Group leases a majority of its banking premises for periods ranging from 1 to 15 years
from the date of the contracts; terms are renewable upon the mutual agreement of the parties.
Rent expense, reported as part of Occupancy under Other Operating Expense account in the
income statement, amounted to P1,462,996 in 2008, P1,390,711 in 2007 and P866,867 in
2006 in the Group financial statements and P1,386,351 in 2008, P1,253,088 in 2007 and
P697,984 in 2006 in the Parent Bank financial statements. '
Alist-of these leased properties is as follows:
(a) Metro Manila branches
Lease ;
BRANCH ADDRESS Effectivity Lease Expiry
1 | ABS CBN - Mother | Stall no. 25 South Wing, GF ELICC
Ignacia-St. Bldg., Sgt. E. A. Esguerra Avenue ’
corner Mother lgnacia St. Quezon City 08/05/07 08/04/12
2 | Acropolis - E. (F ACO Bldg., 191 E. Rodriguez Jr.,
' Rodriguez Jr. Avenue, Bagumbayan, Quezon City 05/01/08 04/30/13
3 | Agno —Banawe 202-204 Banawe corner Agno St., 1100
Quezon City ' 03/01/95 03/01/40
4 | Alabang West Service Road, Alabang, o
' Muntinlupa City 11/06/06 10/31/11
5 | Alabang Hills RBC Corporate Center, Don Jesus
Blvd., Barangay Cupang, Muntinlupa . 08/01/04 07/31114
6 | Amorsolo GF Queensway Bldg., #118 Amorsclo ‘,
' Street, Legaspi Village, Makati City 02/04/06 02/03/11
7 | Angono - M.L. GF AB Commercial Plaza, ML. Quezon
Quezon Avenue ‘Avenue, Brgy. San Isidro, Angono, ,
Rizal 11/01/06 10/31/16
8 1 Anonas Manahan Bldg., Aurora Blvd. corner
Anonas Avenue, Quezon City 12/01/08 11/30/18
9 | Anonas - Kamias Security Bank Bldg., Anonas St. corner .
K-6 St., East Kamias, 1102 QC 09/01/06 08/31111
10 | Antipolo Masinag Tripolee Building, Marcos Highway near
corner Sumulong Highway, Antipolo
City : 08/01/03 08/31/13
11 | Antipolo Plaza | Gatsby Building || M. L. Quezon Strest, ‘
Antipolo City 08/15/96 08/14/16
12 | Antipolo - Circumferential Road corer F. Manalo’
Circumferential St., Antipolo City, Rizal
Road ° ‘ 06/15/05 06/14115
13 | Antipolo - Sumulong | BDO Bldg. Sumulong Highway,
Highway Masinag Highway, Mayamot, Antipolo ~ (5/01/08 - 04/30/09
14 | Arranque 1359 -1361 Soler St., Sta. Cruz, Manila | ‘
09/01/05 _ 08/31111
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Lease

BRANCH ADDRESS | Effectivity Lease Expiry
15 | Ayala- Rufino GF Rufino Bldg., Ayala Avenue Center .
| corner Herrera St., 1226 Makati City 02/01/07 01/31/12
16 | Ayala Alabang GF Condominium C Unioil Center
Bidg., Acacia Ave. corer Commerce .
Ave., Muntinlupa City 08/01/01 07/3111
17 | Ayala Alabang - Richville Center, 1314 Commercial
Richville Center Ave., Ext. Madrigal Business Park,
‘Ayala Alabang, Muntinlupa 07/01/97 07101113
18 | Ayala Avenue GF Unit G People Support Center, '
Amorsolo Street corner Ayala Avenue, |
_ - Makati City ' 02/01/05 0173110
19 | Ayala Triangle 1 (GM-B GF Tower 1, Ayala Triangle, .
Ayala Avenue, Makati City (5/01/06 04/30/11
20 | A. Arnaiz - San L & R Bldg., 1018 A. Arnaiz Avenue, - _ '
Lorenzo Village Makati City \ 11/13/08 1111213
21 | A Santos - South Units E & F, 8365, Dr. A Santos o
Expressway Avenue., Parafiaque, M. M. 02/01/05 - 01/31/15
22 | Baclaran 2987 Taft Avenue Extension, Pasay
: City 10/01/02 09/30/17
23 | Banawe - Amoranto -| 650 N. S, Amoranto Avenue corner
Banawe St., Quezon City 01/01/01 1213110
24 | Banawe - Kitantad 23-25 Banawe corner Kitanlad, Quezon .
City 02/16/07 - 09/15/12
25 | Banawe - N. Roxas | 71-F Banawe corner N. Roxas St., ‘
Quezen City 12/01/02 11/30/112
26 | Beacon Plaza - UG 105-UG 1-6 Beacon Plaza, Shaw N
Shaw Blvd. | Bldg. comer Ideal St, Mandaluyong City 10/15/03 10/14/13
27 | Bel-Air GF, SM Makati Cyberzone 1, Sen Git J.
Puyat Avenue, Makati City 08/16/08 08/15/13
28 | Better Living Dofia Soledad Avenue comer France
Street, Better Living, Parafiaque City 12/01/06 11/30/26
29 | BetterLiving- - - | 43 Dofla Soledad Avenue, Betterliving .
Bicutan Subd., Don Bosco, Parafiaque City 03/24/07 03/23/17
30 | BF Homes - Aguirre | RGM Building, 326 Aguirre Avenue, BF
_ | Homes, Parafiaque City 02/16/08 02/15/18
31 | BF Homes-. 65 Presidents :Avenue Plaza, near
Parafiaque corner Aguirre Avehue, BF Homes,
Parafiaque City 12/01/06 11/30M11
32 | Bicutan - South Columbian Mators Cmpd., KM 16 West
Super Highway Service Road, South Super Highway,
Bicutan, 1700 Parafiaque, Metro Manifa 06/22/30 06/21/10
33 | Big R-Robinson's - - | Level- 1 Big R. Lobby, Robinson's
Novaliches ' Place Novaliches, Quirino Highway, QC 03/23/06 03/22/09
34 | Bonifacio Global Space No. 101 Market Market, ‘
City Banifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig, MM 10/01/06 09/30/08
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Lease

BRANCH _ ADDRESS | Effectivity - Lease Expiry
35 | Brixton Hill - G. GF ILO Bldg., 195 G. Araneta Avenue, 07/01/05 06/30/15
Araneta Quezon City I :
36 | Broadway Centrum - | Broadway Centrum Cond., Aurora Blvd.
Aurora Blvd. cor. Dona Juan Rodriguez St.,
_ Valencia, QC 01/01/06 12131110
37 | Buendia-Taft 317 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Pasay City 09/01/06 08/31/12
38 | C5 - Taguig Ridgewood Square, Ch Avenue, _
Ususan, Taguig City, Metro Manila _ 12/15/08 02/14/13
39 | Cainta Hipolito Bldg., Ortigas Avenue
.Extension, Cainta Junction, Cainta,
‘ Rizal 02/01/04 01/31/14
40 | Cainta - A. Bonifacio | Ledor Commercial Center, A. Bonifacio : '
' Avenue, corner Samente Street, Brgy.
San Juan, Cainta, Rizal 12/09/06 12/08/11
41 | Caloocan Rizal Avenue Extension near 11%
Avenue, Grace Park, Caloocan City 09/01/08 08/31/18
42 | Caloocan - A. GF Corazon Bldg., 432 - A. Mabini St.,
Mabini " Poblacion, Caloocan City 10/15/05 10/14/15
43 | Caloocan-7th Rizal Avenue Extension near 7th
Avenue Avenue, Grace Park, Caloocan City 05/01/06 04/30/11
44 | Carmen Planas 812 O' Racca Bldg., Carmen-Planas
Street, Divisoria, Manila Manth to month
45 | Carmen Planas - 1033-1035 C. Palanca St., 1012 Tondo, _ :
Padre Rada Manila 07/14/03 07/13/18
48 | Carmen Planas - 921 Carmen Planas St. corner ' '
Zaragosa Zaragosa St., Tondo, Manila 08/01/05 07/15/10
47 | Cash & Carry GF Unit# GO1A, Cash & Carry Mall, '
South Super Highway & Filmore Street,
: : Makati City 10/01/07 09/30M12
48 | Central Market- V. | 1711 V. Fugoso St. corner Sulu St., ,
Fugoso Sta. Cruz, Manila 04/04/08 04/03/13
49 | Century Park - Century Park Hotel comer Adriatico &
Adriatico Vito Cruz St., 1004 Malate, Manila 09/01/05 08/31/10
50 | Chino Roces Unit 3 & 4 La Fuerza Plaza, Chino
Avenue Roces, Makati City 05/01/08 04/30/18
51 | Commonwealth GF Teresita Bldg., Holy Spirit Drive,
Don Antonio Heights, Quezon City 11/01/05 10/31/15
52 | Commonwealth - Don Antonio Sports Center, Don
Don Antonio Antonio, Don Antonio Heights
' : Subdivision, QC 11/03/04 11/02/09
53 | Congressional - Congressional Avenue Ext. corner '
Mindanao Avenue Mindanao Avenue, Quezon City 10/01/04 04/30/12
54 | Congressional The Excelland System1, Congressional ,
Avenue Avenue, Quezon City 05/15/98 Q7/1513
55 | Connecticut | 53 Connecticut-Street, Fox Square
Bldg., East Greenhills, San Juan 11/01/08 10/31113
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Lease

BRANCH ADDRESS Effectivity Lease Expiry
56 | Cordillera- Quezon | Quezon Avenue corner Cordillera St.,
Avenue Quezon City 04/15/00 04/14/15
57 | Cubao - General Anapolis St. corner Aurora Blvd, Cubao
Araneta " Quezon City 02/01/08 01/31/18
58 | C.M. Recto-Reina | 1059 CM Recto Avenue corner Reigna ‘
Regente Regente St., Binondo, Manila 08/01/05 07/31/10
50 | Del Monte - Sienna | 409 Del Monte Avenue, Quezon City ‘
' 1105 10/16/07 10/15/17
60 | Del Monte Avenue | 63 Del Monte Avenue, Barangay ‘
Manresa, Quezon City 03/01/08 02/28/18
61 | Dela Rosa - Rada Ace Bldg., corner Dela Rosa & Rada
Street, Legaspi Village, 1229 Makati
L City ‘ 05/01/08 04/30/13
62 | Diliman - Capitol Hill | # 16 Capitols Hills Drive, Old Balara,
, Diliman, Quezon City _12/01/08 11730118
63 | Diliman - Matalino GF J & L Bldg., Matalino Street,
Diliman, Quezon City . 01/01/08 12/31/12
64 | Divisoria 744-748 Ylaya Street, Tondo, Manila 04/01/03 0313113
85 | DPC Place - Chino | GF Unit #102 of DPC Place, 2322 ‘
Roces Chino Roces Avenue, Makati City 01/31/01 01/31/11
66 | Dr. A Santos L T Bkdg., Dr. A. Santos Avenue,
Avenue Parafiaque City . 06/01/03 05/31/13
67 | E.Rodriguez - GF AEK Building, 40 E. Rodriguez Sr.
Welcome Rotunda | Avenue, Don Manuel, Quezon City 11/01/08 . 10/30/18
68 | Eastwoed City-E. | Magnitude Commercial Arcade, E.
Rodriguez Jr. Rodriguez Jr. Avenus, Quezon City J
Avenue 06/16/02 06/15/12
69 | Fastwood City - IBM | GF IBM Plaza, Eastwood City, E. :
Plaza Rodriguez Jr. Avenug, Libis, Quezon
: City 07/01/05 06/30/10
70 | Eastwood City - GF Techo Plaza, One Orchard Road.,
TechnoPlaza Eastwood City, Libis, Quezon City 03/29/05 03/38/10
71 | Echague No. 116- 120 C. Palanca St., Quiapo,
‘ Manila _ 03/16/05 03/15/15
72 | EDSA Cubao #596 Simeon Medailla Bldg., Gen.
MacArthur Highway, EDSA, Quezon
City 02/01/06 0173111
73 | EDSA- A. De Jesus | 474 EDSA comer B. Serrano & A. De .
‘ Jesus Sts., 1403 -Caloocan City (3/01/02 02/29/12
74 | EDSA - Balintawak | Unit 17-19 ANPN Plaza, KM 12 EDSA,
' Balintawak, Quezon City 0315/07 03/15/12
75  EDSA - East L & E Bldg., EDSA corner Gen.
Caloocan Concepcion St., Caloocan City 09/01/07 11/30/14
76 | EDSA - New 3rd Floor Concourse Area, New
Farmers Plaza Farmers Plaza, EDSA Araneta Center,
Quezon City 04/01/08 03/31/09
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BRANCH ADDRESS ‘ Effectivity Lease Expiry
77 | EDSA - Pasay 507 EDSA corner B, Garcia St., 1300 :
Pasay City 04/16/93 - 041513
78 | EDSA-POEA POEA Bldg., Edsa comer Ortigas 07/01/08 06/30/13
Avenue, Mandaluyong o
79 | EDSA- Taft EDSA corner Zamora St., Pasay Clty 01/16/03 01/1513
80 | Elcano SHC Tower, 619 Elcano St., San .
. Nicolas, Manila. 11/01/08 10/31/13
81 | Emerald Avenue GF 101 Taipan Place Emerald Avenue ‘
{ Ortigas Center, Pasig 07/16/06 Q7115109
82 | Enterprise Center- 1.3rd Level Tower 1, The Enterprise
Ayala Avenue Center 67686, Ayala Avenue, Makati
City 02/16/08 02/15/13
83 | Ermita - Adriatico Adriatico Executive Center, Adriatico
Street, Ermita, Manila 03/16/08- 03/15/13
84 | Espafia Carmen Bldg., Espaiia comer G.
Tolentino Street, Sampaloc, Manila 07/03/08 07/02/13
85 | Espafia - Blumentritt | 2101-2103 Espafia Avenue corner :
Blumentritt St.,, 1008 Sampaloc, Manila 02/01/02 01/31/12
86 | Evangelista - Makati | 1695 Evangelista Street comer Lacuna
' 8t., Bangkal, 1233 Makati City 04/01/08 1213112
87 | Filinvest - Alabang | GF Insular Life Corporate Center,
Corporate Avenue, Filinvest Corporate
. City, Alabang 03/15/08 05/14/18
88 | Fort Bonifacio - MC | GF (CS 183) Mc Home Depot Fort '
Home Depot Bonifacio, 32nd Street corner Bonifacio
Avenue, Fort Bonifacio, Global City,
Taguig Month - To — Month
89 | Gandara 811-813 Sabino Padilla St,, Sta. Cruz, _
Manila ‘ 02/01/07 0173112
90 | Gandara - Soler 1268 Soler St. corner S, Padilla St.,
10086, Binondo, Manila 03/01/98 02/28/13
91 | General Luis 297 Gen. Luis Street, Bo. Kaybiga,
Caloocan City 08/15/97 08/14/12
92 | GilJ. Puyat Union Ajinomoto Building Sen. Gil _
Puyat Avenue, Makati City 01/01/06 12/31110
93 | Glori - Del Monte 627 Del Monte Avenue, San Francisco,
| Del Monte, Quezon City ‘ 02/06/08 02/05/11
94 | Grace Park GF A &R Bldg., 213 Rizal Avenue
Extension, Grace Park, Caloocan City 02/11/04 02/10/09
95 | Grace Park - 11th 1618 Rizal Avenue, Extension cormer '
Avenue 11th Avenue, 1400 Caloocan City 12/18/03 12/15/13
96 | Greenbelt 108 Paseo De Roxas, Legaspi Village, ~
Makati City - 11/01/08 10/31/11
97 | Greenhills Greenhills Shopping Complex, Ortigas
Avenue, San Juan 01/01/06 12/31/08
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98 | Greenhills Shopping | Shoppesville, Greenhills, San Juan _
Center , : 01/01/08 12/31/09
89 | Greenhills-West 101 Limketkai Bldg., Ortigas Avenue, :
' San Juan, Metro Manila 02/11/06 - 02/10/09
100 | Greenhills-Wilson ESB Bldg., Wilson Sireet corner Don -
Miguel, Greenhills, San Juan, Metro
, _ Manifa ‘ ‘ - 05/27/05 05/25/15
101 | Harrison Plaza Unit R-5 URDI Building, Harrison Plaza :
Shopping Complex, F. B. Harrison, o _
Malate, Manila 03/01/07 03/01/12
102 | Head Office #12 ADB Avenug, Ortigas Center, '
. . Mandaluyong City 01/01/08 12/31/08
103 | Hemady - Aurora 708 Aurora Blvd. corner Hemady St., ‘ ‘
Blvd. New Manila, 1110 Quezon City 05/17/94 05/16/09
104 | Herrera VA Rufino Street-corner Sotto Street, ‘
Legaspi Village, Makati City 05/15/07 05/14/12
105 | llaya 1049-1051 llaya Street, Divisoria,
Manila 06/01/07 05/31112
106 | llaya - Padre Rada | 940-942 llaya St., Tondo, Manila (03/01/90 02/28/15
107 | Intramuros GF Chamber of Commerce Bldg., #3
Magallanes Drive, !ntramuros, Manila 12/16/07 12/15/17
108 | Isidora Hills BDO Bldg., Pook Ligaya,
Interneighborhood Road, Isadora Hills, :
Brgy Holy Spirit, QC 05/07/98 05/06/18
109 | J Abad Santos GF Ching Leong Temple, J. Abad
Santos Avenue, Tondo Manila 09/01/05 08/31/15
110 | Jaka |l - Legaspi St. | GF 150 GC Corporate Plaza, Legaspi
St., Legaspi Village, Makati City 12/16/05 1211510
111 | JAS-Antipolo GF Intercast Corp., Tower, Jose Abad ‘
Santos Avenue, Tondo, Manila 06/01/06 07/3116
112 | JAS-Reclo 1174 J. Abad Santos Avenue, Tondo,
‘ Manila 10/01/95 09/30/20
113 | JP Rizal 872 J. P. Rizal Street, Brgy, Poblacion, ‘
Makati City 06/15/98 . 06/14/13
114 | Julia Vargas IBP Building, Julia Vargas Avenue,
Ortigas, Pasig City 01/01/07 12/31/11
115 | Kamagong 2567 P. Ocampao (Vito Cruz Ext. ) '
corner Madre Peria Street, City of
Manila . 11/05/08 _11/04/11
116 | Kamias Road ‘Trinidad Bldg., Kamias Road corner K.
J 8t., Quezon City 08/01/07 07131117
117 | Karuhatan - KM. 13 MacArthur Highway, 1441
MagcArthur Highway | Karuhatan, Valenzuela, Metro Manila 04/24/02 04/23/12
118 | Katipunan GF Olalia Building, No. 327 corner F.
Dela Rosa, Loyola Heights, Quezon .
09/01/04 - 08/31/09

City
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119 | Las Pifias - Almanza | Alabang Zapote Road, Almanza Uno,
Las Pifias, Metro Manila 08/16/06 08/15/16
120 | Las Pifias - BF BDO Bldg. , BF Resort Drive, Phase 4,
Resort BF Resort Village, Las Pifias City 05/15/03 05/14/18
121 | Lavezares 321-325 Garden City Condominium
corner Lavezares & Camba Street,,
Binondo, Mla . 01/16/99 01/15/09
122 | Ligaya - Boni 854 Boni Avenue, 1550 Mandaluyong
Avenue City 04/01/97 04/01/112
123 | Loyola Heights - 331 SMRC Bldg. 3, Katipunan Avenue
Katipunan corner B. Gomez St., Loyola Heights, ‘
Quezon City 07/15/03 07/15/13
124 | Mabini A. Mabini comer Soldada Street, :
Ermita, Manila 08/16/02 08/15M12 .
125 | Magallanes Village | Unit 104, The Gate Way Center, Paseo '
de Magallanes, Magallanes Village, ,
Makati City 08/01/03 07/31/13
126 | Makati Shangrila Unit 191 Shangri-la Hotel Manila, Ayala
Hotel Center, Makati City 05/01/06 04/30/10
127 | Makro - Cainta Makro Cainta, Felix Avenue, Cainta
Rizal : 10/09/07 - 10/08/12
128 | Makro Cubao " EDSA corner Main Street, Cubac, ‘
Quezon City 07/15/05 0714110
129 ! Malabon 685 JP Rizal St.,, Brgy. San Agustin, ‘ ,
Malabon City 10/01/08 09/3013
130 | Malabon - Gov. GF MGC Veranda Bldg., 31 Gov. .
Pascual Pascual Avenuge, Tenejeros, Malabon
City 08/16/08 08/15/18
131 | Malanday - KM 17 MacArthur Highway, Malanday, ,
McArthur Highway | Valenzuela, Mefro Manila. . 04/02/99 04/02/19
132 | Manuela Metropolis | Unit G33 Manuela Metropolis, South 12/01/96 12/01/16
- Alabang Super Highway, Alabang Interchange,
Muntinlupa City '
133 | Marcos - Sumulong | Kingsville Commercial Arcade, Marcos '
Highway Highway, 1870 Antipolo, Rizal 07/07/92 07/07/17
134 | Marcos Highway Town & Country Commercial Arcade, :
‘ Marcos Highway corner Narra, Cainta
Rizal 10/01/08 09/30/18
135 | Marikina - Bayan- BDO Bldg., Bayan-Bayanan Avenue
Bayanan “hear corner Molave Avenue, Marikina -
City ‘ 07/01/98 06/30/13
136 | Marikina - Florida 1 Bldg., JP Rizal corner M. A. .
Calumpang Roxas Sts., Calumpang, Marikina City 07/16/08 07/15/18
137 | Marikina - Gil Gil Fernando Avenue corner Dragon
Fernando Avenue | Street, Marikina City 09/30/17
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138 | Marikina - J.P. Rizal | 265 Jose Rizal St., Sta. Elena 1800, _
_ Marikina City 03/01/08 02/28/18
139 | Masangkay Lung Hong Townmates Association
Bldg., 1226 Masangkay, Sta. Cruz, Mla. 05/01/04 04/3014
140 | Masangkay - CM 1029-1031 JP. Bldg., Masangkay 03/01/96 02/28/11
Recto corner Tronqued St., Sta. Cruz, Manila
141 | Masangkay - Luzon | 907 Luzon St., corner Masangkay St.,
St. Tondo Manila ‘ 06/01/07 05/31/12
142 | Mayon - Amoranto | 489 Units A & B, Mayon Street, Sta. o
_ Mesa Heights, Quezon City 10/15/08 10/14/18
143 | Mayon - N. Roxas No. 241 Mayon Avenue corner Nicanor
Roxas St., 1111, Quezon City 08/01/04 07/31/14
144 | Meraico-Ortigas .GF Corporate Wellness Center, '
Meralco Corporate, Ortigas Avenue,
Pasig City 06/01/06 05/31/09
145 | Meralco - Ortigas B | Meralco Compound, Ortigas Avenue, o
1804 Pasig City Manth - To - Month
146 | Metropolitan Avenue | GF Metropolitan Terraces, Metropolitan
Avenue corner Dao St., Makati City 07/01/06 06/30/11
147 | Monumento MacArthur Highway comer Calle Uno,
| Caloocan City 10/01/92 . 09/30/12
148 | Mufioz Roosevelt No. 328 Mesa Holding Bldg., Roosevelt -
Avenue, SFDM, Quezon City 0412105 04/20/15
149 | Muntinlupa GF Elizabeth Center Bldg., National -
Poblacion Road Poblacion, Muntinlupa City 09/02/08 09/01/18
180 | Nagtahan GF SM Nagtahan, Magsaysay Blvd. :
corner Nagtahan Road, Sampaloc
| Manila 08/28/08 10/31/113
151 | NAIA Ninoy Aquing Infl. Airport, Arrival Area, ‘
' 1705 Parafiaque City Month to month
152 | Navotas Seafront Commercial Bldg., North Bay
Blvd., Navotas, Metro Manila 09/01/04 08/31/14
153 | Neptune - Makati 101 Neptune Street corner Makati
Avenue, 1209 Makati City _ 0501795 04/30/10
154 | New Manila - E. Unit 1G & 2E 284 Dona Anita Bldg., E. .
Rodriguez Sr. Rodriguez Sr. Avenue, Quezon City 03/01/06 . (2/28/11
155 | New York - EDSA. | Edsa comer New York St., Cubao,
1111 Quezon City 09/01/08 08/31/13
156 | Northbay - Virgo Melandrea il Bldg., Northbay Blvd. -
Crive near cor. Virgo Drive, Navotas, Metro :
Manila 03/31/08 03/30/13
157 | Novaliches 1016 Quirino Highway Town Proper,
Brgy., Monica, Novaliches, Quezon City 09/01/91 08/31/16
158 | Novaliches-Bayan 233 Karen Building, Gen. Luis, :
Novaliches, Quezon City 01/01/06 12/31110
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159 | OneE-comCenter - | GF OneE-comCenter-Palm Coast ' '
Avenue, Mall of Asia Complex, Pasay .
City - : 08/01/07 07131110
160. | Ongpin Unit ABC Imperial Sky Garden, Ongpin
Street corner T, Pinpin, Manila 10/01/07 09/30M12
161 | Ongpin - T. Alonzo | Unit 564 and 566 Gel Tower, T. Alonzo
S8t,, Sta. Cruz, Manila 01/01/05 12131009
162 | Ongpin-Tomas 1004-1006 Ongpin Street, Sta. Cruz
Mapua Manila City 03/04/06 (03/03/11
163 | Ortigas Avenue - Along Ortigas Avenue Extension,
Pasig Rosario, Pasig City 07/16/08 07/15/18
164 | Ortigas Avenue Ext. | Unit 7-9 Philfoam Furnishing Bldg., KM
- Cainta 23 Crtigas Avenue Extension, Cainta,
' Rizal ‘ . 11/28/03 11/27/13
165 | Ortigas Avenue Ext. | 15 A Ortigas Avenue Extension corner _
- St. Joseph Monaco St., Pasig City 01/01/08 12/31/17
166 | Pacific Star - Makati | GF Pacific Star Bldg., Sen. Gil Puyat :
Avenue comer Makati Avenue, Makati
City 03/01/08 02/28/11
167 | Padre Rada’ Gosiupo Bldg., 480-482 Padre Rada
Cormer Elcano St., Tondo, Manila (1/01/03 1231112
168 | Parafiaque-Pascor | Sky Freight Bidg., Ninoy Aquino
Drive Avenue near comer Pascor Drive, Sto.
‘ Nifio, Parafiaque City - 03/01/08 02/28/18
169 : Paranaque - La 0422 Quirino Avenue corner J. Ferrer ' :
Huerta St., La Huerta, Parafiaque City 1700 04/26/05 04/25/15
170 | Parafiaque - GF Seal 1 Bldg., Amstrong Avenue
Moonwalk corner Yosemite St., Moonwalk
Subdivision, Parafiaque City 04/01/99 . 03/31/09
171 | Parafiaque - N. JIM Bldg., 2'N. Aguino Ave., Sto. Nifio,
Aguino Avenue Parafiaque City 06/16/98 06/15/13
172 | Pasay - Domestic Caltex Compound (PDSC/Park ‘N Fly
Road Bldg.), NAIA comer Domestic Road,
1300, Pasay City ' 10/01/05 09/30/10
173 | Paseode Roxas 2 | GF BDO Plaza, 8737 Paseo de Roxas
St., Makati City _ 12/16/07 12115117
174 | Pasig Mariposa Arcade, A. Mabini cor. Dr. R
Pilapil St., Pasig City 01/01/04 12131113
175 | Pasig A. Mabini GF CFM Bldg., No. 97 A. Mabini St,,
‘ Pasig City 06/01/08 03/31/09
176 | Pasig Blvd. | Along Pasig Blvd. Extension, Rosario,
Extension - Rosario | Pasig City 09/01/04 08/31/14
177 | Pasig East Capito] | GF Cabarrus Bldg., No. 9 East :
Drive Kapitolyo, Barrio Kapitolyo, Pasig City 08/01/01 07/31/11
178 | Pasig-Kapitolyo AB Sandoval Bldg., Shaw Blvd. cormner _
Orambo Drive, Pasig City 10/01/02 09/30/12
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179 | Paso.De Blas - .97 Paso De Blas, 1442 Valenzuela, '
North Expressway Metro Manila ' 09/01/97 08/3112
180 | Pasong Tamo Ext. GF Allegra Center, Pasong Tamo ' -
. .| Extension, Makati City 12/01/06 11/30/111
181 | Pateros East Mansion Homes, Phase 1, Eliseo ‘
. Road, Sto, Rosario, Pateros (8/01/08 07/3113
182 | Pateros - Poblacion | GF Milaor Bldg., No. 509 M. Almeda
' St., Poblagion, Pateros 11/01/08 09/30/18
183 | Pedro Gil - A. Mabini | 1567-1571 Salud Bldg., Pedro Gil
' comer A. Mabini St;, Ermita, Manila - 02/16/08 02/15/11
184 | Pedro Gil - 1080 cor. Pedro Gil & Singalong Sts.,
Singalong 1007 Paco, Manila 09/01/04 08/31/09
185 | Plaza Calderon - GF Unit C, Harmonic Seven Bldg., 01/21/02 01/20/12
Pedro Gil 2332- 2334 Pedro Gil corner Vesta St.,
_ Sta. Ana, Manila '
186 | Pioneer Highfands - | Unit 01 (facing Madison-St.) Lower
Madison Ground Floor of Globe Telecom Plaza
1 Building, Picneer St. corner Madison ‘
St, Mandaluyong 10/09/07 10/08/12
187 | Port Area - South GF Velco Centre, RS Oca Corner A. C. _
- Harbor Delgado Streets, Port Area, Manila (5/01/08 04/30/16
188 | Project 8 - Shorthorn | BDO Bldg., No. 41 Shorthhorn Street,
Brgy Toro, Project 8, Quezon City 10/01/99 09/30/19
189 | Q.1.-E.Rodriguez | GF Ablaza Bldg., 117 E. Rodriguez
Sr. Ave., Quezon City 05/01/07 04/3012
190 | Quezon Avenue 103 Aries Building, Quezon Avenue, ‘
' Q.C 04/13/08 - 04/12/11
191 | Quiapo-Quezon Quezon Blvd., 1001 Quiape, Manila :
Blvd. 4 _ 05/22/07 05121112
192 | Quiapo - Quinta Don Juan Santos Bivd., No. 313
Market Palanca St. cormner Quezon Bhvd., ‘ :
Quiapo, Mia. 01/16/08 01/15/18
193 | Quintin Paredes 524 Enterprise Bldg., Quintin Paredes ' _
St.corner Carvajal, Manila 07/01/07 06/30/17
194 | Quirino Paco CRS Tower Center, Perdigon Street, '
Pres. Quirino Avenue, Paco, Manila 10/01/96 09/30/11
195 | Rada GF One Legaspi Place, Rada Street,
Legaspi Village, Makati City 09/01/06 08/31/11
196 | Rizal Avenue - 1607 Alvarez St. corner Rizal Avenue, _
Bambang Sta. Cruz, 1003 Manila 11/04/06 1103111
197 | Rizal Avenue - 2200 Rizal Avenue corner Batangas
Batangas St. St., Sta, Cruz, Manila 09/01/98 08/31/13
198 | Robinson's - Metro | Level 1 ( L1, 160, 162)Rabmsons
East Metro Manila East, Marcos Hrghway, 10115/07 101412
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199 | Robinsons Galleria- | Robinson's Galleria, Ortigas Avenue,
Ortigas 1602 Quezon City 11/01/08 10/31113
200 | Robinson's Place - | Level 1 Space No. 080 & Level 2 Space
Manila no. 047, Robinsons Place Manila, M. ,
Adriatico corner Pedro Gil, Malate, 08/16/08 08/15/13
Manila
201 | Rockwell GF Power Plant Mall, Rockwell Centre-
_i, Amapola Centre, Makati City 10/29/05 10/28/10
202 | Roxas Blvd. - R. S & L Bldg., Roxas Blvd. 3t., corner
Salas ' Romero Salas St,, Ermita, Manila . 03/01/05 02/28/15
203 | Rustan's Cubao RC-01A, Times Square Ave. near
corner Gen. Roxas St., Araneta Center,
1100 QC ' 12/01/04 11/30/09
204 | Salcedo Golden Rock Bldg., 168 Salcedo St., '
Legaspi Village, Makati City 01/01/04 12/31/08
205 | Sales St.-Raon | 545 Sales St. cor. G. Puyat St. (Raon), _
1016 Sta. Cruz, Manila 05/21/01 05/20111
206 | Sampaloc Dapitan. | Dapitan cor. Ma. Cristina Street,
Sampaloc, Manila 02/01/03 01731113
207 | Samson Road GF Unit G Ma. Cristina Bldg., Samson
_ Road corner UE Tech, Caloocan City 08/01/07 07/31/17
208 | San Andres San Andres corner Linao St., Malate,
Manila . - 07/01/02 06/30/12
209 | SanJuan 88 N, Domingo Street, San Juan 09/61/07 08/31/12
210 | San Miguel Center- | G/IF SMPPI Corporate Centre Bldg., St.
Ortigas Francis-Avenue, 1554 Mandaluyong
City 05/01/07 04/30/10
211 | Scout Albano - 1488 Quezon Ave. , 1103 South
Quezon Avenue Triangle, Quezon City _ 04/01/93 03/31/09
212 | Scout Limbaga-T. | 102 & 103 The Forum, Tomas Morato |
Morato Avenue corner Sct. Limbaga Street, QC 12/03/03 12102113
213 | Shangri-la Plaza Unit#129-A Level 1 Shangrila Plaza
Mall - EDSA Mall, Edsa corner Shaw Blvd.,
Mandaluyong City 04/01/07 03/31/10
214 | Shaw Bivd 555 Shaw Boulevard, Mandaluyong
. City 01/01/07 1213111
215 | Shaw Blvd.-Yuio 285 Shaw Blvd. corner L. Cruz Street, ‘
Mandaluyong Gity 01/01/06 1213112
216 | Sitver City - Pasig 11-012, L1-013 & L1-014, Level 1, Auto
' Mall, Frontera Verde Drive comer Julia
Vargas St Ortigas, Pasig City 09/08/06 09/0711
217 | Sixto Antanio - Sixto Antonio Ave. cor. R. Bedafia St., :
Pasig Pasig City . 10/27/04 10/26/14
218 | SM City Bicutan LGF SM City Bicutan, Dofia Soledad
02/01/08 01/31/10

| corner West Service, Parafiaque City
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219 | SM City Fairview UGF Unit 183, 184, 185, Quirino :
Highway comer Regalado Street, o
’ _ Fairview, GC 08/16/07 07/31/09
220 | SM City Fairview B | SM City Fairview, Qumno Hway cor.
- Regalado Ave., Fairview, Quezon City 11/01/08 07/31110
221 | SMCity Manila LGF SM City Manila Concepcion corner
~ Arroceros, Manila 08/01/08 07/31110
222 | SM City Marikina | GF SM City Marikina, Calumpang, ’
Marikina City 09/05/08 07/31/13
223 | SM City North EDSA | GF The Block SM City North, EDSA
A corner North Avenue, Quezon GCity 08/01/08 07/31/13
224 | SM City North EDSA | Upper Ground Floor, Units 125-127, '
B SM City North EDSA Annex 1 Bldg.,
_ North Edsa 11/01/08 10/31/13
225 | SMCity North EDSA | SM City Center Complex, North EDSA, : _
C Quezon City 02/01/07 01/31110
226 | SM City San Lazaro | Felix Huertas cor. A. H. Lacson St,, Sta. ‘ : ‘
| Cruz Manila 08/01/07 07/31110
227 | SMCity Sta. Mesa | SM City Sta. Mesa Annex Bldg., '
Aurora Boulevard, Quezon City 02/01/07 . 01/31/09
228 | SM City Sucat A GF SM Supercenter, Sucat Parafiaque
' City 08/01/06 07/31/09
229 | SMCity Sucat B GF Annex Bidg. B SM City Sucat, Dr. A
“Santos Avenue, Parafiaque City 11/1108 10/31/13
230 | SM City Taytay GF Building A SM City Taytay, Manila :
East Road, Brgy. Dolores, Taytay, Rizal 11/08/07 - 10/31112
231 | SM Corporate Bldg. 104 D.J.W Diokno Blvd., Mall of
Offices Asia Complex, Pasay City Month to Month
232 | SM Cubao SM Cubao Department Store (Gen.
‘Aguinaldo Avenue Side) Cubao, QC 10/31/08 10/3113
233 | SM Makati Shoemart Annex Building, Ayala o
: Center, Makati City 08/01/07 0773112
234 | SM Mall Of AsiaA | GF Main Mall, SM Mal! of Asia, JW :
Dickno Blvd., Mall of Asia Complex,
‘Pasay City 05/01/08 04/30/10
235 | SMMall Of AsiaB | GF Entertainment Mall, SM Mall of
‘ Asia, J.W. Diokno Blvd., Mall of Asia
Complex, Pasay City ' 05/01/08 04/30110
236 | SM Megamall A GF SM Megamall Bldg. A, Ortigas
Center, Mandaluyong City 11/01/08 10/3110
237 | SM Megamall B UGF & LGF SM Megamall Bldg. B, )
| Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City 08/01/08 07/31110
238 | SM Southmall 2 UGF SM Southmall, Alabang - Zapote
Road, Las Pifias City 11/01/08 10/31/09 -
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239 | SM Supercenter UGF Supercenter Muntinlupa,
Muntinlupa . Barangay Tunasan, National Road,
Muntinlupa City 11/16/07 01/3113
240 | SM Supercenter GF SM Supercenter Pasig, Frontera
Pasig Verde, Ortigas Centre, Pasig ' 08/01/08 07/31/09
241 | SM Supercenter GF Unit 126 SM City Valenzuela,
Valenzusla MacArthur Highway, Karuhatan,
Valenzuela City 11/01/07 10/31/12
242 | Soler U-1118 & 1120 Gracetown Building
| comer Soler & Alvarado Sts., Binondo,
Manila _ 03/15/97 03/14/17
243 | Soler- Reina 1087 Solet St., Binondo, Manila
Regente ' 12/31/08 12/31/41
244 | Southmall 1 | UGF & LGF SM Southmall, ‘Alabang -
Zapote Road, Las Pifias City .08/01/06 07/31/09
245 | St ignatius - GF & 2F 134 Katipunan Avenue, St.
Katipunan (GF) Ignatius Village, Quezon City 08/10/03 09/09/13
246 | Sta. Cruz - Ronquilto | Unit |, G/F Carmen Bldg., Ronquillo St., .
Sta. Cruz, Manila Month to Month
247 | Sta. Lucia East-Felix | GF Phase 1, Sta. Lucia Grand Mall,
Avenue Marcos Highway comer Felix Avenue, :
Cainta 03/01/08 03/31/10
248 | Sta. Lucia East - Sta. Lucia East Grand Mall, Marcos
Cainta Highway corner Felix Avenue, 1900
Cainta 01/01/08 12/3110
249 | Sto, Cristo 475-477 Kim Siu Ching Foundation
Building, Sto. Cristo St., Binondea,
Manifa ‘ _ 03/01/06 (2/28/09
250 | Sto. Cristo- #686 Sto Cristo St. Binondo, Manila
Commercip 03/01/06 . 04/30110
251 | Sto Domingo 6 Sto. Domingo Avenue, Quezon City 03/01/06 02/28/11
252 | Sto. Nifio St. - 284 Roosevelt Avenue, San Francisco
Roosevelt Del Monte, 1105 San Andres, 1105 10/16/08 10/15/18
San Antonio, Quezon City
253 | Sucat Parafiaque Cable TV Bldg., # 8210 Dr.
A Santos Avenue, Parafiaque City 10/01/97 09/30/12
254 | Tabora 859-861.L & J Building, Tabora Strest,
Divisoria, Manila 04/01/08 03/31/13
255 | Taft - Libertad MCF Building, 2250 Taft Avenue corner
College Road, Pasay City ' 05/25/04 05/24/14
256 | Taft - Pedro Gil 1430 Taft Avenue, Manila 02/16/07 02/15112
257 | Taft Avenue - J. 1747 Taft Avenue Comer J. Nakpil
Nakpil Street, Manila 02/01/04 01/31/14
258 | Taft Avenue - Pres. | Ground Floor, FFW Bldg., #1943 Taft :
Quirino Avenue, Malate, Manila 08/17/06. 08/16/11
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259 | Talon, Las Pifias GF Moticn Trade Bldg, Alabang-
' Zapote Road, Pamplona Las Pifias
_ City 01/01/06 12131115
260 | Tandang Sora Tandang Sora Avenue, corner Marcel
Road, Quezon City 10/01/07 09/30117
261 | Tandang Sora - M & J Bldg., 578 Tandang Sora Avenue :
Tagumpay corner Tagumpay, Brgy. New Era, .
Quezon City 01/01/09 12/31118
262 | Taytay Metro East | BDO Bldg., East Road, Taytay, Rizal
Road 07/09/98 07/08/18
263 | Taytay National Korte Rosario Restaurant, Taytay. ’
Highway National Highway, llog Pugad, Brgy.
San Juan, Taytay, Rizal 10/27/04 10/26/14
264 | Tayuman GF Delton Bldg., 1808 Rizal Avenue
Sta. Cruz Manila 04/01/96 03/31/16
265 | Teacher's Village - | GF Luisa 2 Bldg., 107 Maginhawa _
Street, Teachers Village, Quezon Gity 08/12/99 08/11/14
266 | Tierra Nueva - Sycamore Arcads, Alabang-Zapote '
Alabang Nat'l. Road, 1702 Alabang, Muntintupa L
City 04/01/04 . 03/31/09
267 | Timog 26 Cedar Executive Building, Timog
Avenue comer Scout Tobias St., - ,
Quezon City 01/01/98 12/31/09
268 | Timog - EDSA No. 134 Timog Avenue, 1103 Quezon
- ' City 04/20/92 -~ 041912
269 | Timog - Rotonda GF 102 Imperial Palace, Tomas ,
Morato, Quezon City - 01/16/03 09/15/14
270 | Timog - Victoria Unit F-2 & F-3 Victoria Towers, Timog
Towers Avenue corner Panay Avenue, Quezon ‘
_ City 06/15/08 06/14/13
271 | Tondo - Pritil 1815 N. Zamora St 1012 Tondo,
' Manifa 12/02/05 12/01/115
272 | Tordesillas 3 Salcedo Place, Tordesnl!as Street,
Salcedo Village, Makati City 10/01/07 09/3012
273 | Tutuban . DS-17-18 Tutuban Prime Block, '
' Tutuban Center, CM Recto, Manita City 09/17/96 08/22/14
274 | Tutuban Centermall | M1-B055 B, Ground Floor, Centermall
Bldg. Tutuban Center, CM Recto :
Avenue, Manila 10/22/04 10721113
275 | UN Avenue Puso ng Maynila Bldg., UN Avenue -
corner A, Mabini Street, Ermita, Manila (07/01/92 06/30112_".
276 | UN Avenue - GF & MF Philamlife U. N. Ave. Bldg.,
Philamlife U.N. Avenue comner Orosa St., Ermita,
Manila 02/01/08 01/31/18
277 | Valenzuela KM. 15 MacArthur Highway,
Dalandanan, Valenzuela 03/06/90 - 03/05110
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278 | Valerizuela - Gen. T. | Along Gen. T. De Leon Street,
De Leon Valenzuela City 09/20/06 09/19/16
279 | Valero GF Pearl Center, 145 Valero Street,
Salcedo Village, Makati City ' 11/16/06 11/16/11
280 | Valle Verde - E. Unit 1077 & 108 Cathay Builder's Corp. -
Rodriguez, Jr. Bldg., E. Rodriguez Jr. Ave. corner Carlo -
J. Caparas 5t., Bo. Ugong, Pasig City 03/16/08 03/15/13
281 | VillaMendoza - A. Cor. Villa Mendoza Subd. Road & Dr. A
Santos Santos Avenue, 1700 Parafiaque City 10/01/07 09/30/17
282 | Villar - Salcedo Eurovilla 1l Cond, 154 Villar St. corner
Village L.P. Leviste St., Salcedo Village, _
| Makati City 06/15/05 06/14/10
283 | V-Mall GF New V. Mall, Greenhills Shopping _
' Center, San Juan, Metro Manita 01/16/06 01/15/11
284 | Visayas Avenue M & L Bldg. , Visayas Avenue comer
Road 1 Brgy., Vasra, Quezon City 10/01/02 09/30/12
285 | Visayas Avenue - 57 Visayas Avenue (Near Sanville }
| Project6 Subdivision), Quezon City 09/01/98 . 08/31/13
286 | Walter Mart - North | GF Walter Mart Center - North EDSA, '
EDSA ’ Dangay St., Veterans Village, Quezon
) City 02/08/08 02/07M13
287 | Washington Gil G/F Keystone Bldg., 220 Git Puyat ' .
Puyat Avenue, Makati City ' 05/05/08 05/04/18
288 | West Avenue 68 Carbal Bldg., West Avenue, Quezon
_ | City 04/01/05 03/31/10
289 | West Avenue-Baler | No. 118 Jafer Bldg., West Avenue,
Quezon City ' 02/11/06 02/10/11
290 | West Avenue -Del | No. 40 West Ave., 1104 West Triangle,
Monte _|Qc 01/02/07 01/0112
291 | West Avenue-East | 160 West Avenue corner East- Maya
Maya | Drive, Quezon City ' 07/01/04 06/30/11
202 | Xavierville Avenue | Xavierville Square Condominium, No. -
, 38 Xavierville Avenue, QC 11/01/08 10/31/18
293 | Zurbaran Rizal Avenue comer Fugoso Street,
» Sta. Cruz, Manila 11/16/05 1115/10
{b) Provincial branches
BRANCH ADDRESS Lease Effectivity | Lease Expiry
1 | Abra - Bangued Unit 12 the Rosario Bldg., Taft St, cor. |
Magallanes St., 2800 Benguet, Abra 01/18/06 0117/11
2 | Aklan - Kalibo Along XIX Martyrs Street, Kalibo,
Aklan “ 02/01/06 01/31/16
3 | Albay - Daraga Rizal St., 4501 Daraga, Albay 05/08/92 05/07/12
4 | Albay - Tabaco Along Ziga Avenue, Tabaco, Albay 09/16/05 09/15/15
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5 | Angeles - Balibago | GF Lawrence Plaza, Macarthur
Highway near cor. Charlot St. '
Balibago, Angeles City, Pampanga 06/10/00 06/09/15
6 | Angeles - MacArthur | GF Excelsior Bidg., 314 Macarthur
Highway Highway, Brgy. CM Recto, Angeles
City, Pampanga ' 11/16/06 11/15/11
7 | Angeles City - Nepo | GF Angeles Business Center, Teresa
Mart Avenue, Nepo Mart Complex, Angeles -
City, Pampanga 12/01/98 1113013
8. | Angeles Sto. Plaza Rafael 1, 1151- D. Sto. Rosario
Rosario St., Sto. Domingo, Angeles City 05/16/08 05/15/18
9 | Apalit- Pampanga | GF Quintos Bldg., Macarthur Highway,
San Vicente, Apalit, Pampanga 08/28/01 08/27/21
10 | Bacolod - Araneta Cineplex Complex Araneta St.,
Bacolod City _ (08/15/99 08/14/14
11 | Bacolod - Goldenfield Comm| Complex, Sincang
Goldenfield Araneta St., Bacolod City 6100 05/01/04 04/30/14
12 | Bacolod - Gonzaga | Gonzaga - Lopez Enterprise Building
Gonzaga Street, Bacolod City 05/01/07 04/30/12
13 | Bacolod - Hilado Hilado cor. F/ Y Manalo Sts., 6100 ‘
Bacolod City, Negros Occidental 1101407 10/31117
14 | Bacolod - Lopue's Unit 24 & 25 Lopue's East Center,
East Annex Bldg., Carlos Hilado, National
Highway Brgy. Villamonte, Bacolod ‘
City ] 10/01/06 09/30/11
15 | Bacolod - GF Sta. Clara Estate Building, Lacson
Mandalagan St., Mandalagan, Bacolod City. 10/06/00 10/05/10
16 | Bacoor FRC Mall Gen. Evangelista Street
comner Zapote Road, Bacoor Cavite 07/16/02 07/15/12
17 | Bacoor - Aguinaldo | Gén. Aguinaldo Highway Panapaan, :
Highway Bacoor, Cavite 10/21/94 07/31/09
18 | Baguio Luneta Hifl corner, Governor Pack ‘
Road, Session Road, Baguio City 05/01/07 04/30/10
19 | Baguio - Abanao Abanao Square, Abanao comner ,
Square Zandueta Sts., Baguio City 08/01/07 07/31/14
20 | Baguio - Legarda Qur Lady of Fatima Building, Yandac
' st., Kayang Extension, Baguio City 02/01/06 00/30/18
21 | Baguio - Session GF National Life Bldg., Session Road,
Road Baguio City 04/01/04 03/31/09
22 | Baliuag Corner Rizal & Tagle St., Baliuag, .
Bulacan , 02/18/06 09/30/16
23 | Batac - Washington | Aoigan Bldg., Washington St. Batac
2906, liocos Norte 10/01/07 (09/30/17
24 | Batangas - Balayan | Antorcha St., Balayan Batangas 09/12/03 - 0911113
25 | Batangas - Bauan Kap. Ponso St Bauan Batangas_ 07/01/94 06/30/14

34



BRANCH ADDRESS Lease Effectivity | Lease Expiry
26 | Batangas- Along National Highway, Brgy
Kumintang Kumintang llaya, Batangas City 08/01/08 05/31/18
27 | Batangas - Lemery | llustre Avenue corner Lakandufa St.,
Lemery, Batangas : 01/01/08 1213117
28 | Batangas - Pallocan | Manue! Pastor Avenue, Pallocan :
West, Batangas City 05/05/05 05/04/15
29 | Batangas - San Marasigan corer Kalayaan Sts., San '
Juan Juan, Batangas 05/02/98 05/01/13
30 | Batangas - P. CM llagan Building P. Burgos St ‘
Burgos Batangas City’ 10/05/05 09/30/10
31 | Benguet- La S & Bldg. KM 4 Balili 2601 La )
Trinidad Trinidad, Benguet 10/11/06 101111
32 | Bifian - A. Mabini Rey Bldg., A. Mabini St. Poblacion,
, N 4024 Binan, Laguna 01/01/05 12131114
33 | Bifian - San Antonio | KM 35 National, San Antonic Binan,
Laguna 12/28/005 12127115
34 | Bocaue Macarthur Highway, Brgy. Bifiang 1st, ,
"Bocaus, Bulacan 04/01/07 033117
35 | Bohel - Tagbitaran CP Garcia Avenue,, 6300, Tagbilaran :
: City, Boho! 06/25/06 (06/24/16
36 | Bulacan- Balagtas | Macarthur Highway, Brgy. San Juan
3016 Batangas, Bulacan 09/29/92 09/28/12
37 | Bulacan - Hagonoy | GF Ang Puso ng Hagonoy Shopping
Center Plaza, Hagonoy, Bulacan 12/01/99 11/30/09
38 | Bulacan - Pulilan Dofia Remedios Trinidad Highway, '
Junction Sto. Cristo, Pulilan, Bulacan (6/30/04 06/29/14
39 | Bulacan - San KM 60, Cagayan Valley Road, Cruz na 04/05/06 04/04/11
Rafael Daan, San Rafael, Bulacan
40 | Bulacan - Sta. Maria | M. De Leon St., Poblacion, 3022 Sta.
Maria, Bulacan 03/15/93 03/14/13
41 | Butuan - J.C. Aquino | D &V Plaza 11 Bldg. JC Aquino A
Avenue Avenue, Butuan City 02/18/18 021712
42 | Butuan - Montilla Montilla Blvd. near comer Lopez
Jaena St., Butuan City, Agusan Del
Norte ' : 12/01/07 11/30/12
43 | Cabanatuan Melencio cor. Paco Roman Street,
Cabanatuan City 12/16/07 12/15/10
44 | Cabanatuan - Unit 49- B upper-Grd. Flr. Megacenter,
Megacenter Mall The Mall, Gen. Tinio & Melericio Sts. .
_ Cabanatuan City 10/01/98 09/30/18
- 45 | Cabanatuan - NE GF, Unit CM-2 (Mall Entrance 2) NE
Pacific Mall Pacific Mall, KM 111 Maharlika Hway,
Cabanatuan City, Nueva Ecija 05/21/07 04/30/09
46 | Cabanatuan - Maharlika Road, near comer ,
Sanciangco Sanciangco St., Cabanatuan City 04/30/01 04/29/21

- 35



Lease Effectivity

Lease Expiry

BRANCH ADDRESS
47 | Cagayan de Oro - Max Y. Suriel St., comer V. Neri St,, :
Carmen Carmen, Cagayan-de Oro 07/01/08 06/30/18
48 | Cagayan de Oro - BDO Bldg. Claro M. Recto Avenue, : :
CM Recto Cagayan de Oro, 9000 ' 12/01/05 11430110
49 | Cagayan De Oro- J. R Borja Street, Cagayan De Oro .
Cogon . City 05/01/04 04/30/14
50 | Cagayan de Oro - GF Trendline Dept. Store, Arch James
Hayes Hayes. St., Cogon, Cagayan de. Oro
. City 09/01/08: 08/31/18
51 | Cagayan.de Oro - Pres. S. Osmena corner Ramon
Osmefia Chavez Sts., Cogon 9000, Cagayan ' :
de Qro Misamis Oriental 10/01/89- 10/01/09
52 | Cagayan De Oro- Library Annex Building Corrales
Xavier Avenue, Cagayan de Oro City Month - to - Month
53 | Calamba J. Alcasid Business Center Bldg.,
National Highway, Crossing, Calamba,
Laguna 02/15/98 02/14110
54 | Calamba-Parian Old National nghway Sts., Cecilia
| Village, Parian, Calamba, Laguna 12/16/07 12/15/12
55 | Camarines Norte - | J. Lukban Street, corner Moreno ' -
Daet Street Poblacion, Daet, Camarines
Norte 03/07/05 03/06/15
56 | Camarines Sur- Pili | Along National Highway, Poblacion :
' Pili; Camarines Sur 10/01/08 09/30/18
57 | Carmona-. Govemor's Drive, Bo. Maduja 4116
Governor's Drive Carmona, Cavite’ 12/15/96 12/14113
58 | Catanduanes - Virac | San Juan comer Rizal Sts 4800 .
L Virac, Catanduanes 05/15/05 05/14/10
59 | Cavite - EPZA Cavite EPZA Compound, 4106 08/14/07 081317
Rosario, Cavite
60 | Cavite - Trece E! Paseo Arcade, Indang, Trece Road,
Martires near Corner Gov. Drive, Trece
. Martires City (06/16/08 07/15/118
61 | Cebu-A.S. Fortuna | GF Tanaka Bldg., 869 A. S. Fortuna
Banilad, Mandaue City 01/01/06 06/02/20
62 | Cebu-Ayala Cebu Towers, Mindahao, comer Bohol :
Business Park Avenue, Cebu Business Park; Cebu
City 06/15/07 06/14/14
63 | Cebu - Ayala Center | Stall 286A Level 2, West Entry, Ayala
Center Mali Cebu, Cebu Business ‘
Park, Cebu City 09/01/08 08/31110
64 | Cebu - Banilad GF PDI Condominium, Gov. Cuenco , ,
Avenue, Banilad, Cebu City 07/17/00 07/16/10
65 | Cebu - Banilad Govemor M. Cuenco, Banilad, Cebu ’ . :
Tambalan City 04/18/06 .04/17/16
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66 | Cebu - Bogo P. Rodriguez corner San Vicente Sts., ' :
6010 Bogo Cebu City, Cebl 06/18/07 08/17/17
67 | Cebu - Capitol Osmefia Blvd., cor. Ma. Crisfina St., : '
6000 Cebu City, Cebu 12/16/05 12115110
68 | Cebu - Consolacion | Fooda Saversmart {annex Building) , :
Consolacion, Cehu ' . 07/23/08 07/22/13
69 | Cebu-F.Ramos 134 Borromeo Bldg., F. Ramos core
~ | Arlington Pond, Cebu City 6000 01/01/05 12/31/14
70 | Cebu-JuanLuna . | Gokongwei Bldg., Osmefia Blvd., :
comer Lapu-Lapu Street., Cebu City 04/01/89 03/31/09
71 | Cebu - Magallanes | Plaridel Street corner Magaltanes St.,
, 6000, Cebu City 06/01/06 05/31/11
72 | Cebu-MEZII Unit 203 - 204 NGA Building 2, Pueblo :
Verde MEZ 11, Basak, Lapu Lapu City 09/01/08 08/31/18
73 | Cebu - North Road | National Highway, Labogon, Mandaue
City, Cebu 01/01/08 1213117
74 | Cebu - Parkmall Unit 29, 30, 31 Parkmall, No. 168
Ouano Avenue, Mandaue
Reclamation Road, Mandaue City, ‘
Cebu 03/15/08 03/14/13
75 | Cebu - Safinas Drive | 117 Gorordo Avenue, Lahug, Cebu , '
City ' : 11/01/05 10/31115
76 | Cebu - Tabo-an T. Abelia St., San Nicolas Central,
‘ - 6000, Cebu City 05/01/07 04/30/12
77 | Cebu Cuenco NSLC Building, M. J. Cuenco Avenue, -
Cebu City 11/01/06 10/31/111
78 | Cebu Elizabeth Mall | GF Elizabeth Mall, Leon Kilat corner, ‘ \
' South, Express Way, Cebu City 12/05/08 12/04/13
79 | Cebu Escario Cebu Escario Street, Cebu City 07/01/06 06/30/09
80 | Cebu Fuente J. Rodriguez St., Fuente Osmefia
L Rotonda, Cebu City ~ 01/01/06 . 1213114
81 | Cebu Legaspi Legaspi corner Zamora Street, Cebu
City 12/16/07 12115112
82 | Cebu Mandaue La Fuerza Building, Subangdaku, ,
Mandaue City 00/01/06 08/31/21
83 | Cebu Osmefia Osmefia Blvd., corner Urgello Street, -
‘ Cebu City 01/01/04 12/31/08
84 | Cebu.Tabunok PBS Bldg., 2668, National Highway
, Tabunok, Talisay, Cebu City - 10/16/03 10/15/13
85 | Clark SEZ- Centennial Rd., Clark Special Eco. _
.| Centennial Zone Clarkfield, Pampanga 010107 01/01/22
86 | Clarkfield SEZ - Puregold Duty Free (Expansicn) Bldg.,
Puregold Claro M. Recto Highway {formerly
Dyess Hway) Clark Special Economic 09/17/05 09/16/110

Zone, Clarkfield, Pampanga
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87 | Cotabato - Kabacan | Rizal Avenue, National Highway 9407,
Kabacan, North Cotabato 04/28/07 04/27/12
88 | Cotabato - Midsayap | Jaycee St., 9410 Midsayap, North -
Cotabato | 05/01/08 - 04/30/18
89 | Dagupan 386 Perez Boulevard, Dagupan City 07/01/05 06/30/10
90 | Dagupan - Tapuac | Unit 8-10 Mother Goose Play House
 Bidg., Macarthur Highway, Tapuac
District, Dagupan City, Pangasinan 02/09/06 02/08/16.
91 | Dasmarifias - GF Digital Bldg., Gen Emilio Aguinaldo |-
Aguinaldo Highway | H-way, Dasmarinas, Cavite 10/01/98 - 09/306/13
92 | Dasmarifias - Cavite | El Toledo Bldg., Sampaloc 1,
Dasmarinas, Cavite 02/04/06 02/03/11
93 | Davao Buhangin’ Carlos P. Garcid Highway, Buhangin,
. Davao City _ 12/01/08 11/30/18
94 | Davao JP Laurel Landco-PDCP Corporate Center, JP
Laurel Avenue, Davao City Month -to- Month
95 | Davao Magsaysay | R. Magsaysay Avenue, Davao City 12/16/07 1211517
96 | Davao Narra Tomas Monteverde Avenue corner :
Narra St., Davao City 11/01/08 10/31/18
97 | Davao - Agdao Lapu- Lapu St., 8000 Agdao, Davao .
: City 08/22/03 08/21113
98 | Davao - Bangoy R. Magsaysay Avenue corner C.
Bangoy St., 8000 Davao City 07/01/02 06/30/12
99 | Davao - Lanang SJRDC Building, Insular Village 1
Commercial Area, Lanang, Davao Gity 05/01/07 04730117
100 | Davao - Lizada Ramon Magsaysay Avenue, cor.
’ Lizada St., 8000 Davao City, Davao ‘
del Sur 08/07/03 - 08/06/13
101 ! Davao - Monteverde | GF Sequoia Inn., Monteverde Avenue,
Davao City 09/01/08 08/31/18
102 | Davao - Quirino Nicolas 1 Bldg. Quirinc Ave.,
Avenue 8000,Davao City 09/01/02 08/3112
103 | Davao - Rizal Caritas Building comner Pelayo Street
and Rizal Street, Davao City (6/16/06 06/15/16
104 | Davao - San Pedro | GF KDG, Bldg., San Pedro Street,
Davao City, Davao Del Sur 06/03/02 06/02/12
105 | Davao - Sta. Ana Monteverde cor. F. Bangoy Sts., 8000 _
Davao City, Davao del Sur 10/01/06 09/30/11
106 | Davao - Toril Agton St., Toril, Davao City 10/01/97 1001117
107 | Dumaguete - Sta. Sta. Rosa St., Dumaguete City, _
Rosa Negros Qriental 12/01/05 11730115
108 | FCIE Dasmarifias - | Govemor's Drive, Brgy. Langkaan, '
Cavite Dasmarifias, Cavite , 12/16/97 12/15/12
109 | General Santos Santiago Boulevard corner JP Laurel '
‘ Street, General Santos City 12116107 12/15/10
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110 | General Santos - Unit 018 Lower Ground Floor, KCC '
KCC Mall Mall of Gensan, Jose Catolico Sr.
Avenue, General Santes, South
Cotabato ' 09/08/05 09/07110
111 | Guagua- Yabut Bldg., Plaza Burgos 2003,
Pampanga Guagua, Pampanga 02/12/02 021112
112 | lligan - Quezon Quezon Avenue, 9200 lligan City, ‘
Avenue Lanao, Del Norte 03/01/08 (2/28/18
113 | Hlocos Sur- Candon | National Highway corner Abaya St., _
- 2710 Candon, llocos Sur 04/15/97 04/15/12
114 | lloilo - Central Iznart St., Lot 317- B - 2- A-1, 5000, ' _
lloilo City, lloilo 05/29/02 . 05/28/22
115 | lloilo-Jaro NB Bldg., Lopez Jaena Street, Jaro, A
. lloilo City , 07/15/98 07/14/13
116 | lloilo-JM Basa JM Basa Street, lloilo City 03/01/08 02/29/18
117 | lloilo-Ledesma GF Esther Building, Ledesma Streef,
Hoilo City : _ 04/01/08 03/31118
118 | lloilo-Molo Escoto - Natividad Building, M. H. Del
‘ ’ Pilar Street corner Lopez Jaena Molo,

: lioilo City 01/01/97 12131711
119 | lloilo - Quezon St. | Lots 3 & 5, Quezon St., lloiilo City 01/01/08 12131117
120 | lloilo - Tabuc Suba | Roger's Bldg., MacArthur Highway, _

Tabuc Suba, lloilo City 07/14/05 07/13/15
121 | Imus - Aguinaldo GF DCR Building, Aguinaldo Highway, , '
Highway 4103 Imus, Cavite - 11/18/08 10/31/18
- 122 | Imus-Nueno Avenue | 358 Exodus Building, Nueno, Imus, )
Cavite 02/01/06 01/31/11
123 | Ipil - Zamboanga National Highway, Ipil, 7001, ,
Zamboanga Del Sur 04/01/90 04/01/10
124 | Iriga Iriga Plaza Hotel, Msgr. Lanuza St, :
San Francisco, Iriga City, Camarines :
‘ ’ Sur ‘ 04/21/08 04/20/18
125 | Isabela - Cauayan Along National Highway, Cauayan, '
, Isabela 01/01/08 - 12131122
126 | Isabela - liagan Along Maharlika Highway, Calamagui
2nd, llagan, Isabela 03/28/01 03/27/11
127 | Isabela - Santiago Maharlika Highway comer Quezaon
Avenue, Victory Norte, Santiago City, :
Isabela 09/01/07 08/31/12
128 | Kawit- Binakayan 1497 National Road, Binakayan, 4104, :
Kawit, Cavite Month - to - Month
129 | La Union Rizal Avenue corner Ortega Street,
. San Fernando, La Union 12/16/07 1211517
130 | Laguna- Cabuyao | GF Lim-Bell Business Center, JP Rizal 09/18/00 09/17/10
St., Cabuyao, Laguna
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131 | Laguna- Sta. Cruz | Along Regidor Street, Sta. Cruz, 07/01/08 06/30/18
L.aguna :
132 | Laguna - GF, Rustan's Sta, Rosa Bldg, (North
Technopark Wing), Laguna Technopark, Ayala
Land, Brgy. Don Joss, Sta. Rosa, :
B Laguna 03/01/08 01/31/09
133 | Lacag - Castro Pichay Bidg., JP Rizal corner A. -
Castro St., Laoag City 11/01/07 10/31/112
134 | Legaspi City Rizal corner Gov. Imperial Street,
Legaspi City, Albay 05/01/03 04/30/13
135 | Legaspi City - Rizat St., 4500 Legaspi City, Albay -
Rotonda 07/01/95 06/30/15
136 | Leyte - Maasin Tomas Cppus Street, 6600 Maasin,
: Southern Leyte 07/17/08 Q711611
137 | Lipa Casa Esparanza Building, Pres. JP '
Laurel Highway, Mataas na lupa, Lipa ‘
City 10/01/03 - 09/30/13
138 | Los Bafios Olivarez Plaza Cinema & Supermarket
Complex, along National Highway, - , w
, Brgy. Batong Malake, Los Bafios 04/15/99 04/15/14
139 | Lucena Merchan Street corner San Fernando
Street, Lucena City 04/02/03 04/01/13
140 | Lucena - Enriquez Enriquez corner Evangelista St.,
Quezon 11/20/02 11/19/12
141 | Lucena- Gulang No . 505 Quezon Avenue Ext. Brgy.
Gulang Gulang Gulang, Lucena City 08/01/08 07/31/18
142 | Lucena - Quezon Quezon Avenue corner Profugo St.,
Avenue Lucena City, Quezon 09/20/05 08/19/10
143 | Mactan - EPZA Mactan - EPZA Compound, 6000
Lapu-Lapu City, Cebu 05127107 05/26/17
144 | Malolos - MacArthur | S1 Cabana Space A, The Cabanas
Highway Mall, MacArthur Highway, Malolos City 09/01/08 08/31/18
145 | Marilao - MacArthur | Unit 1-3 Cecila Comml. Complex, ‘
Highway Abangan Norte, MacArthur Highway
: 3019, Marilao, Bulacan - 03/115/03 03114113
146 | Meycauayan Liberty Building, MacArthur Highway,
Calvario, Meycauayan, Bulacan 06/01/06 .~ 05/31/11
147 | Meycauayan - Brgy. Northem Hills, Malhacan,
Malhacan Meycauayan, Bulacan ‘ 10/01/08 09/30/13
148 | Mindoro - Calapan | JP Rizal St., 5200 Calapan, Oriental . .
Mindoro 07/15/07 07114112
149 | Misamis Oce. - Mayor A. Enerio St., Oroquieta City,
Oroguieta 7207 Misamis Occidental 08/01/07 07131147
150 | Misamis Oriental - National Highway, Gingoog City,
Gingoog Misamis Oriental 09/01/08 08/31/18
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151 | Naga Brgy. San Francisco Pefiafrancia
Avenue, Naga City 12/01/03 11130113
152 | Naga-General Luna | 80-82 Gen. Luna Street, Dinaga, Naga
City 02/15/06 02/14/16
1563 | Naga - Magsaysay | Magsaysay Avenue, Naga City o '
Avenue 05/12/08 05/11/18
154 | Negros Occ - Biscom Compound Binalbagan,
~_ | Binalbagan Negros Occidental 12/01/05 11/36/20
155 | Negros Occ - | Aguinaldo corner Rizal St., Hinigaran
Hinigaran 6106, Negros Occidental 06/23/08 06/22/18
186 | Negros Occ - San S. Carmona St. corer Rizal St.,, San
Carlos Carlos City, Negros Qccidental 03/01/05 02/28/15
157 | Negros Occ - Osmefia Ave., Victorias City, Negros
Victorias. Occidental, 6119 03/01/89 02/28/09
158 | Nueva Ecija - Sta. Along Maharlika Highway, Sta. Rosa,
Rosa Nueva Ecija 12/01/08 11/30/18
159 | Nueva Ecija - Maharlika Highway, Marcos District, ;
Talavera Talavera, Nueva Ecija- 00/16/07 09/15/17
160 | Nueva Vizcaya - National Highway, Solano, Nueva
Solano Vizcaya 09/15/98 09/14/13
161 | Obando - J.P. Rizal | JP Rizal St,, Barangay Catanghalan,
3021 Obando, Bulacan 09/01/97 09/01/12 -
162 | Qlongapo GF & 2F KT Tower, Rizal Avenue East :
cormer 18th St., Bajac, Olongapo City 01/16/08 01/15/18
163 | Pangasinan - Marcos Avenue, Palamis, 2404 7
Alaminos - Alaminos, Pangasinan ' 06/01/00 05/31/10
164 | Pangasinan - GF Serior Tesoro Academy Bldg., San
Calasiao Miguel, Calasiao, Pangasinan 06/01/08 03/31/18
165 | Pangasinan - Macarthur Highway, Carmen East, ‘
Carmen 2441 Rosales, Pangasinan 06/11/99 06/10/14
166 | Pangasinan - 80 Avenida Rizal East, Lingayen, \
Lingayen Pangasinan 04/06/01 04/05/16
- 167 | Pangasinan - San Polaris St., 2420 San Carlos Clty,
Carlos Pangasinan 03/22/83 03/21113
168 | Robinson's Place - | Level 1, Space L1-177, Robmsons
Lipa Place-Lipa, Lipa Highway, Lipa City, ‘
Batangas 10/29/08 10/28/13
169 | Samar - Catbalogan | Del Rosario St. cor. Allen Ave,, 6700 :
Catbalogan, Samar 06/17/08 06/16/18
170 | San Fernando - McArthur Highway, Dolores, 2000 City
: Dolores. of San Fernando, Pampanga 07/01/04 06/30/09
171 1 SanFernando - GF Dofia [saFel Building II, Dolores,
MacArthur Highway | City of San Fernando, Pampanga 10/01/07 09/30/17
172 | San Fernando- Gen. Hizon Extension, Sn. Fernando, _
Pampanga Pampanga 02/18/06 02117111
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Lease Effectivity

BRANCH ADDRESS . Lease Expiry
) .
173 | San Fernando - San | McArthur Highway, Bgy. San Agustin, ‘
Agustin San Fernando, Pampanga 05/15/02: 05/15/12
174 | San Fernando - Palm Building, McArthur Highway,
Sindalan Sindalan, San Fernando City,
_ Pampanga 12/16/02 12/15/12
175 | San Jose-Nueva Mahariika Road, 3121 San Jose City, ‘
Ecija Nueva Ecija 06/19/81 06/18/11
176 | San Pablo Mary Grace Bldg., Colago Avenue, -
cormer ML. Quezon Street, San Pablo (08/16/04 08/15/19
177 | San Pablo - GF Bien Paz Arcade, Maharlika
Maharlika Highway | Highway Junction, San Rafael, San
Pablo City 06/01/08 05/31/18
178 | San Pedro Tayao Bus. Ctr. Bldg., A Mabini St.,
| San Pedro, Laguna 05/01/97 04/30/09
179 | San Pedro-National | Mega Building, National H-way San -
Highway Pedro, Laguna 02/25/06 02124111
180 | San Pedro - Pacita | GF M. Allen Bldg., Km 31, Oid ‘
National, National Highway, San
Pedro, Laguna 01/16/08 01/15/20
181 | Silang - M. Belen 194 J. Rizal comer M. Belen Street,
' Silang, Cavite 07/14/00 07113110
182 | SM City Bacolod GF Bldg. Southwing, SM City Bacolod
Poblacion Reclamation Area, Bacolod .
City . 03/02/07 01/31/0%
183 | SM City Bacoor UGF SM Bacoor, Gen. Aguinaldo
Highway comer Tirona, Bacoor, Cavite 09/01/07 07/31/09
184 | SM City Baguio UGF SM City Baguio, upper Session
' Road, Baguio City ‘ 02/01/08 _ 01/31/09
185 | SM City Baliwag GF SM City Baliwag, Brgy Sto: Cristo,-
Baliuag, Bulacan  ° 12/12/08 10/3113
186 | SM City Batangas GF SM City Batangas, Barangay , ,
Pallocan West, Batangas City 11/01/06 10/31/09
187 | SM City Cagayan GF SM City Cagayan de Oro, Pueblo
De Cro de Oro Business Park, Cagayan de
Oro 04/01/08 01/31/13
188 | SM City Cebu SM City Cebu North Reclamation
Area, Cebu City 05/01/08 04/30/10
189 | SM City Cebu B UGF, The North wing - SM City Cebu
North Reclamation Area, San Jose
dela Montafia corner M.J. Cuenco
Avenue, Cebu City 11/30/07 10/31/09
190 | SM City Clark GF SM City Clark, Clark Field, 08/01/08 07/31110
Pampanga -
191 | SM City Dasmarifias | SM City Dasmarinas , Bo. Pala-Pala, o
Dasmarinas, Cavite 08/01/08 07/31/09
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Tagaytay - Rotonda

Emilio Aguinaldo Highway, Tagaytay

BRANCH ADDRESS Lease Effectivity | Lease Expiry
-192 | SMCity Pavao UGF SM City Davao, Brgy., Matina,
Davao City 11/01/086 - 10/31/09
193 | SM City lloilo UGF SM City floilo, Benigno Aquino
Avenug, Mandurriao. lloilo City 09/01/07 07/31/10
194 | SM City lloilo B Lower Ground FloorUnit No. 73, SM :
City Hoilo, Benigno Aquino Ave., Jaro-
West Diversion, Mandurriao. lloilo
City 11/01/06 10/31/09
195 | SM City Lipa GF SM City Lipa, Ayala Highway, Lipa ‘ ' -
| City Batangas 08/01/08 - 0731111
196 | SM City Lucena GF SM City Lucena (LC - 177- 178), ,
Paghilao National Road, Lucena City 07/01/08 0713113
197 | SM City Marilao GF SM City Marilao, MacArthur o
' Highway, Marilao, Bulacan 02/01/08 01/31/13
198 | SM City Pampanga | GF SM City Pampanga, San Fernando
Mexico, Pampanga 08/01/07 07/3112
199 | SM City Pampanga | GF SM City Pampanga Annex Bldg. 4,
B San Fernando Pampanga 10/19/07 10/30012
200 | SMCity Rosales SM City Rosales, Carmen East,
Rosales, Pangasinan ‘ 11/28/08 01/30/14
201 | SMCity Sta. Rosa | GF SM City Sta. Rosa, Barrio Tagapo,
Sta, Rosa, Laguna _ 05/01/08 04/30/11
202 | SM Delgado SM Delgado Building, Valeria Street,
lloite City _ 02/01/07 01/31/09
203 | SM Supercenter GF SM Supercenter Molino, Molino
Molino Road, Bacoor, Cavite 02/01/08 01/3111
204 | Sorsogon Son Bldg., R. Magsaysay Avenue,
. Sorsogon City 02/14/07 0211317
205 | Sta. Maria - NEM Bldg., Gov. F. Halili Avenue,
Baghaguin Bagbaguin, Sta. Maria, Bulacan 02/01/03 01/31/13
206 | Subic - Times 420 Rizal Highway, Subic Bay
Square Freeport Zone, 2200 Olongapo City
Zambales 03/16/99 03/15/09
207 | Surigao Magallanes corner San Nicolas St.,
8400 Surigao City 03/01/08 02/28/13
208 | Tacloban Carlos Chan Bldg. P.Zamora Street,
Tacloban City 08/02/04 08/01/14
209 | Tacloban - Justice Philamlife Bldg., Justice, Romualdez
Romualdez St., corner P. Paterno St., Tacloban
City : 07/01/07 06/30/12
210 | Tacloban - Rizal Rogson Building, Rizal Avenue corner '
Avenue P. Burgos St., 6500 Tacloban City, ‘
Leyte 07/01/02 07/30/12
211 Frablyn Tower (Tolentino Bldg.), 10/24/05 10/23/15
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BRANCH ADDRESS Lease Effectivity | Lease Expiry
212 | Tanauan - A. Mabini | A. Mabini St., Tanauan, 4232
Batangas 04/01/08 03/3118
213 | Tanauan - JP Laurel | Pres. J. P. Laurel Highway cor. Sixto ‘ '
Highway Castillo St., Poblacion, Tanauan,
Batangas 12/16/07 12115117
214 | Tarlac - Concepcion | L. Jaena cor. L. Cortes Sts., San
' Nicolas, 2316 Concepcion, Tarlac 08/01/98 07/3113
215 | Tarlac- F. Tafiedo | F. Tanedo cor. Juan Luna St., Tarlac
City , : 07/01/04 . 06/30/14
216 | Tarlac - Paniqui M. H. Del Pilar St. McArthur H-way
2307, Paniqui, Tarlac 10/09/97 10/08/17
217 | Urdaneta 182 LIS Bldg., McArthur Highway, San
Vicente, Urdaneta (06/01/08 05/31/18
218 | Vigan - Plaza GF Plaza Maestro Commercial
Maestro Complex, Burgos & Florentino Sts.,
Vigan City, llocos Sur 04/01/03 03/31/13
219 | Waltermart- Sta. San Lorenzo Drive Cor. Balibago Rd., ’
Rosa Brgy. Balibago, 4026 Sta. Rosa,
Laguna 10/01/07 09/30/12
220 | Zamboanga Grand Astoria Hotel, Annex Building, . _
Mayor Jaldon Street, Zamboanga City 06/01/06 05/31/11
221 | Zamboanga - Mayor | Mayor Jaldon Avenue, Brgy. Canelar,
Jaldon Zamboanga City 11/01/06 10/31/16
3) Limitations: on Property

Other than the properties owned by the Bank, the other properties utilized by the Bank are
subject to the respective terms of lease above enumerated.

4) Properties to be acquired

The Bank does not have any current plans to acquire any property within the next twelve (12)
months.
ltem 3. Legal Proceedings
The. Bank is party to various legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of its operations. No
such legal proceedings, either individually or in.the aggregate, are expected to have a material

adverse effect on the Bank or its consolidated financial condition, except to the extent qualified below.

The Bank is a respondent in two arbitration proceedings under the International Chamber of
Commerce (ICC) arising from isolated transactions, i.e., the sale of its equity investments.
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Sale of Bankard

The case involves the sale of the Group's ownership in Bankard, a former subsidiary of then EPCIB.

Dispute on the. said sale is under arbitration with the ICC, which recently ruled in favor of the claimant

(the Partial Award of September 27, 2007), stating among others that the claimant is enfitled to
damages, subject to proof of loss. The Group has filed a motion for reconsideration to vacate the

ruling at the Regional Trial Court (RTC} level. On January 8, 2008, the RTC issued a decision

affirming the ruling of the ICC. Subsequently, the Group filed a Petition for Review on Certiorari with

the Supreme Court {Second Division) to vacate the ruling issued by the RTC. The Supreme Court.
(Second Division) issued a decision denying the Group’s pefition and upholding the ruling of the RTC.

On January 27, 2009, the Group filed an Omnibus Motion: (i) to urge the Honorable Second Division to

glevate the case to the Supreme Court en banc in view of the novelty of the legal issues and the

resolution thereof demands for the Honorable Court en banc's exercise of its constitutional power in

respect to the promulgation of rules and regulations concerning court procedure, andfor (if) to move for

the reconsideration of the Decision on grounds of being contrary to law and established jurisprudence, .
and (iii) to clarify certain portions of the Decision, which have caused confusion in the application of the

pertinent laws governing arbitration. '

The Partial Award sustained by the Second Division of the Supreme Court concluded that the Group is
liable to the claimant but did not adjudicate the amount of damages for which the Group is liable to the
claimant as the same shall still be proven by the claimant in the second phase of the arbitration.
- {quantum phase); the hearing of which has been tentatively set by the Tribunal Chairman on October -
26, 2009. However, in view of the Decision and the Omnibus Motion, as well as the continuing
objection the Group raised against the procedure being followed by the Tribunal, the Group has
requested for the suspension of the arbitration proceeding until the matters and issues are resolved.

As of December 31, 2008, management believes that the above claim is without merit or that the
resulting liability if any, resulting from such claim, will not have material adverse effect on the Group’s
financial position and financial performance and will be taken up if and when a final resolution by the
courts is made on the claim. '

Sale of Maxicare

The Group is a defendant/respondent in legal proceedings arising from the sale of its 60% stake in
Maxicare in 2007. Claimants have filed an Intra-Corporate Dispute with the Regional Trial Court of
Makati (RTC). The claimants filed a Petition for Issuance of Writ of Preliminary Injunction in Support of
Arbitration proceedings with Prayer for Temporary Restraining Order (TRO) and Writ of Replevin to
enjoin the conduct of business of Maxicare, and if afready executed, for annulment of sale of the
Maxicare shares. The RTC has since denied the TRO and Writ of Replevin on the ground that the
petitioners have no clear and unmistakable right over the shares, as there was no perfected contract of
sale between the Bank and the claimants. Moreover, the RTC also ruled that the Bank's sale of the
shares to Pin-An Holdings is valid. The Petitioners filed a Motion for Reconsideration (MR) which was
denied since an MR is a prohibited pleading under the Interim Rules on Intra-Corporate Dispute. The
RTC ruled further that its order declaring the validity of the sale of the Maxicare shares has become
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final under said Interim Rules. The claimants have since filed a Petition for Certiorari with the Court of
* Appeals, where the case is pending.

The claimants have also filed a Request for Arbitration with the International Chamber of Commerce
(ICC) - International Court of Arbitration, where arbitration is currentfy ongoing on the same issue of -
the petitioners’ right to buy the shares.

As of December 31, 2008, management believes that the above claim is baseless and without merit or
that the resulting liability if any, resulting from such a claim, will not have a material adverse effect on
the Group’s financial position and financial performance.

Others

The Group is also a defendant in various cases pending in courts for alleged claims against the Group,
the outcome of which are not fully determinable at present. As of December 31, 2008, management
believes that, liabilities or losses, if any, arising from these claims would not have a material effect on
the financial position ‘and results of operations of the Group and wil! be taken up if and when a final
resolution by the courts is made on each claim.

ltem 4. Submissioh of Matters to 'a Vote of Security Holders

At the scheduled 2009 annual shareholders’ meeting of BDO, among the subjects to be submitted to
its shareholders for approval/confirmation is retention of the schedule for BDO's annual shareholders'
meetings on the last Friday of May of each year as provided in Section 14 of the By-laws.

PART li - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ltem 5. Market for Issuers Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
1) Stock Prices |

* The Bank’s common shares are traded at the Philippine Stock Excha'nge, Inc. The high and’
low sales prices for each quarter within the last two (2} fiscal years are as follows:

(in Philippine pesos) High Low

First Quarter 2007 85.50 44.00
Second Quarter 2007 71.50 58.00

Third Quarter 2007 - 73.00 52.00
Fourth Quarter 2007 67.50 49.50
First Quarter 2008 61.50 43.50
Second Quarter 2008 55.00 43.00
Third Quarter 2008 45,00 31.50
Fourth Quarter 2008 38.00 21.00

Source: Bloomberg
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2)

3)

Hold‘ers of Se.curities

The number of common shareholders of record as of 31 December 2008 was 14,275.
Common shares outstanding as of 31 December 2008 stood at 2,302,032,661. The top twenty
(20) common shareholders are as follows:

- % to total

Name Holdings
1 8M Investrnents Corporation 639,130,302 27.76%
2 PCD Nominee Corp. (Non-Filipino} 470,939,545 20.46%
3 DBMN OT-024 Sybase Equity Investment Corporation 338,129,257 14.69%
4 DBMN OT-024 SM Investments Corporation 208,097,814 9.04%
5 DBMN OT-024 Multi Realty Development Corp. 133,686,766 5.81%
6 Trans Middle East Philippines Equities, Inc. 93,289,752 4.05%
7 PCD Nominee Corp. {Filipino) 88,238,427 3.83%
8 SM Land (formerly Shoemart, Inc.) 65,996,135 2.87% -
9 Multi Realty Development Corporation 64,035,334 2.78%
10 SM Development Corporation ' 33,825,063 1.47%
. 11 International Finance Corporation 31,403,592 1.36%
12 United Overseas Bank Philippines 22,429,906 0.97%
13 Primebridge Holdings, Ing. 19,506,000 0.85%
14 Henry Sy, Sr.. 8,063,274 0.35%
15 * Sysmart Corporation 3,279,963 - 0.14%
16 Antonio C. Chua 2,619,750° 0.11%
17 Edilberto Narciso 2,539,274 0.11%
18 DHS Investment 2,269,679 0.10%
19 Keng Koc Co &for Mary D. Co 1,981,656 0.09%
20 Sybase Equity Investment Corporation 1,976,100 0.08%
Sub-Total 2,231,437,589 96.93%
Others - 70,595,072 3.07%
Total Outstanding Shares 2,302,032,661 100.00%
Dividends

The Bank’s- Board of Directors is authorized to declare dividends annually. Stock Dividend
declarations require the further approval of stockholders representing not less than two-thirds
(2/3) of all stock then outstanding and entitled to vote. Such stockholders” approval may be
given at a general or special meeting duly called for the purpose. Dividends may be declared
only ‘from surplus profits after making proper provisions for the necessary reserves in
accordance with applicable laws and the regulations of the BSP. The declaration of dividends
by Philippine banks also requires BSP approval. '
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On Aprit 30, 2008 and July 26, 2007, the Bank's Board of Directors approved the declaration
of cash dividends amounting to R0.80 per common share or a total of 81,841,626 and
R1,841,626, respectively, payable to stockholders of record as of August 18, 2008 and March
11, 2008, respectively. The cash dividends were approved by the BSP on July 18, 2008 and
February 14, 2008, respectively, and were paid by the Bank on September 11, 2008 and April
8, 2008, respectively. -

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities (within 3 yéars)

On November 21, 2007, the Bank issued P10 billion unsecured subordinated notes efigible as
Lower Tier 2 Capital due on 2017, callable with step-up in 2012 {the "notes”) pursuant to the
authority granted by the BSP to the Bank on October 8, 2007 and BSP Circular No. 280 Series
of 2001, as amended. The issuance was approved by the BOD, in its special meeting held on
June 1, 2007. ' :

- On May 20, 2008, the Bank issued another tranche of P10 biflion unsecured subordinated

notes eligible as Lower Tier 2 Capital due on 2018, callable with step-up in 2013 pursuant to
the authority granted. by the BSP to the Bank on April 3, 2008 and BSP Circular No. 280
Series of 2001, as amended, This issuance was approved by the BOD, in its special meeting '
held on February 23, 2008. : o

The Notes represent direct, unconditional unsecured and subordinated peso-denominated
obligations of the Bank, issued in accordance with the Terms and Conditions under the Master
Note. The Notes, like other subordinated indebtedness of the Bank, are subordinated to the
claims of depositors and ordinary creditors, are not a deposit, and are not guaranteed nor
insured by the Bank or any party related to the Bank, such as its subsidiaries and effiliates, or
the PDIC, or any other person. The Notes shall not be used as collateral for any loan made by

- the Bank or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates. The Notes carry interest rates based on
- prevailing market rates, with a step-up provision if not called on the fifth year from issue date.

The Bank has the option to call the Notes on the fith year, subject to prior notice to
Noteholders. The Notes were used to further expand BDO's consumer foan portfolio and to
increase and strengthen BDO's capital base, in anticipation of continued growth in the coming -
years. ' ‘

As of December 31, 2008, the cutstanding balance of the Notes amounted to P20,145,977.

48



Item 6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operations .

1)

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Balance Sheet - 2008 vs. 2007

Total Resources expanded by 30% to P802.0 billion, owing to a 32%'-increa3'e in both liguid
assets and Customer Receivables. ‘

Cash and Other Cash ltems as well as Due from BSP went up by 18% and 27% to P21.8
biflion and P62.7 billion, respectively, on account of higher deposit levels. Due from Other -
Banks went down by 17% to P17.1 billion from lower placements and working balances with
foreign banks. : '

Investment securities slightly declined by 5% to P156.2 billion. Financial Assets at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss and Avallable for Sale Securities went down by 67% and 53% to P6.8
billion and P35.2 billion, respectively, portions of which were reclassified to Held-to-Maturity
Securities. Consequently, HTM Securities increased by 68% to P114.1 billion. The full details
of the reclassification of securities are discussed in Note 9.4 in the Bank's Notes to Audited -
Financial Statements.

Net Loans and-Other Receivables surged by 58% to P492.0 billien. Gross customer
receivables expanded by 32% to P392.8 billion owing to the Bank’s aggressive marketing
efforts for corporate as well as consumer loans. Interbank Loans, Securities Purchased Under
Reverse Repurchase Agreements and Unquoted Debt Securities Classified as Loans, likewise
grew to P29.2 billion, P60.8 billion and P20.4 billion, respectively, as these instruments served
as investment outlets for the Bank's excess liquidity. ' ‘

Bank Premises rose by 29% to P14.7 billion owing to head office renovations, the conversion
of former EPCI and ESB branches into BDO outlets, as well as investments in new equipment
to support expansion in business volumes.

Investment Properties contfacted 15% to P15.2 billion on account of continued ROPA disposal
programs.

Other Resources dropped 3% to P22.4 billion, from a reduction in deferred charges and a
lower level of returned checks as of the cut-off date.

Total Deposits surged by 43% to P636.8 billion owing to aggressive deposit marketing effofts.
Savings Deposits dropped 17% as funds shifted to Time Deposits, which increased
substantially by 232%.

Subordinated Notes Payable increased by 8% to P20.1 billion as the Bank issued P10.0 billion
worth of Lower Tier 2 Capital fo refinance a previous $200 million Lower Tier 2 issue.
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Other Liabilities went down 11% to P35.9 billion from lower levels of Accounts Payable as well
as outstanding checks and acceptances as of the cut-off date.

Contingent Accounts — 2008 vs. 2007
Total Contingent Accounts grew 22% to P851.6 billion on account of the following:

. Trust Departnﬂ'ent Accounts expanded by 23% to P338.2 billion from a larger portfolio
of assets managed. :

- Spot, fdrward and swap transactions grew 16% to P199.9 bilion owing to increased
treasury foreign exchange activities. |

. Bills for Collection increased by 17% to P10.6 billion due fo higher levels of bills, drafts
and checks sent for collection.

. Late Deposit / Payments Received went up 175% to P5.3 billon as more transactions
were received from clients after clearing cut-off time.

. Other Contingent Accounts expanded 54% to P78.7 billion due to an expansion in
committed credit card lines as well as ROP warrants obtained during the year.

" - Unused L/Cs, Quistanding Guarantees Issued and Export L/Cs Confirmed declined by
29%, 49% and 35% to P18.0 billion, P724 million and P49 million, respectively, owing
to lower levels of outstanding trade transactions on the cut-off date.

Income Statément—'For the years Ended December 31, 2008 vs. 2007

Net Income for 2008 registered at P2.2 bilion, down from the previous year, due fo
unfavorable revaluation of the Bank's trading porifolios as well as incremental impairment
provisions for securities portfolio.

Inerest Income climbed 13% fto P42.4 bilion owing to the expansion in liquid assets and
customer receivables. Interest Expense likewise went up 20% to P19:3 billion primarify due to
the increase in total deposit level. The Bank set aside P5.2 billion as provisions for
impairment Losses to cover general reserves on the incremental loan portfolio as well as
additional reserves for a portion of the Bank's securities portfofio.

Other Income decreased by 19% year-on-year to P13,7 biltion. The Bank recorded a Trading
Loss of P2.9 billion, vis-a-vis the previous year's gain of P3.9 bilion. This is owing to market
volatility resulting in unfavorable revaluation of the Bank’s trading portfolio. Service Charges.
and Fees also declined 15% to P7.4 billion after substantial investment banking fees in 2007.
Trust fees, on the other hand, climbed 35% to P1.2 billion on a higher level of funds managed.
Foreign Exchange Gain surged 477% to P4.6 billion due to higher levels of interbank swaps,
trade transactions and OFW remittances as well as increased treasury foreign exchange

50



activities, Miscellaneous Income also went up by 33% to P3.4 billion on account of one time
gains on the Bank’s sale of its Vtsa and Mastercard shares.

Operating Expenses increased 12% to P27.9 billion in 2008. Employee Benefits climbed 21%
to P10.1 billion on account of a higher manpower count brought about by business expansion.
Other Operating Expenses likewise. rose by 13% to P11.7 billion primarily owing to business
growth as well as rebranding and advertising campaigns.

Tax Expense fell 49% to P1.4 billion after the Bank wrote-off a portion of its deferred tax
assets and settled previous years' assessments in 2007.

Key Performance Indicators — 2008 vs. 2007

2008 2007 Inc/(Dec)

Return on Average Equity 3.8% 11.7% ‘ (7.9%)
Return on Average Assets 0.3% 11% (O 8%}
Net Interest Margin 3.7% 4.0% (0.3%)
Capital to Risk Assets 13.8% 14.6% (0.8%]
Basic Earnings Per Share 0.91 2.86 - {1.95)

Return on Average Eqwty and Return on Average Assets fell to 3.8% and 0.3%, respectively,
from lower bottomiine profits.

Net Interest Margin went down to 3.7% primarily owing to spread compression.

Capital to Risk Assets decreased by .8% as risk-weighted assets expanded at a faster rate
than qualifying capital. -

- Basic Earnings per Share declined to P1.95 owing to the lower Net Income.
Balance Sheet - 2007 vs. 2006
Total Resources slightly declined by 2% to P617.2 billion owing to a 12% drop in liquid assets.

Due from BSP increased by 17% to P49.5 billion on account of the Bank’'s Reserve Deposit
Account with BSP. Due from Other Banks surged by 61% to P20.7 billion from higher foreign
currency denominated placements and working balances with foreign banks.

Investment Securities contracted by 8% to fund the settlement of a portion of the Bank's high
cost funding. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss and Held-to- -Maturity
" Investments dropped by 32% and 20% to P21.0 bilion and P67.9 billion, respectively.
Available-for-Sale Securities, on the other hand, increased by 19% to P75.6 billion.

Net Loans and Other Receivables remained steadfast at P311.7 billion, despite a 68% and
47% decline in Interbank Loans and Securities Purchased Under Reverse Repurchase
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Agreements, respectively. Gross Receivables from Customers climbed 15% to P297.0 billion”
owing to aggressive marketing efforts for both corporate and consumer loans.

Deferred Tax Assets declined by 9% to P5.7 billion due to the de-recognition of a portion of
the Bank's tax assets, which may not be realized in the future.

Other Resources went down by 40% primarily due to the sale of the Bank’s special purpose
subsidiary, Onshore Strategic Assets, Inc.

Total Deposit Liabi!itfes contracted by 5% to P445.4 billion as the Bank reduced dependence .
on high cost deposits. Bills Payable also decfined by 10% to P52.5 billion primarily due to the
reduction in peso-denominated short-term borrowings.

Subordinated Notes Payable went up by 83% to P18.6 billion due to the issuance of P10.0
billion worth of Unsegured Subordinated Notes in November 2007, ,

Other Liabilities grew by 7% to P40.4 billion on account of higher levels of derivative Iiabi!éties,
as well as outstanding checks and acceptances payable. .

Total Equlty increased by 15% to P60.3 billion due to Net Income for 2007, the exercise by '
IFC of its conversion option under its loan agreement with the Bank, and the sale of EPCIB.
shares previously held by BDO.

Income Statement - For the years Ended December 31, 2007 vs. 2006 -(Pro-forma)

The income statement for 2006, as presented in the Audited Financial Statements, combined
the full-year resuft for BDO and the 4t quarter resuft of EPCIB. As explained by the external
auditors in Note 1.2, the income statements for 2006 were combined from the time common
control was established by the SM Group over both BDO and EPCIB. To facilitate year-on-
year comparability between the income statement accounts, this section discusses the 2007
full year performance of the combined entity vis-a-vis the pro-forma 2006 full year performance
of both BDO and EPCIB.

Net Income remained at around P8.6 billion as non-recurring expenses partially offset an 11%
- improvement in Net Interest Income. Interest Income was slightly down by 3% to P37.6 billion
on account of a lower interest rate environment. Interest Expense dropped 18% to P16.2
billion from improved-funding mix as well as the generally lower interest rate environment. The
Bank set aside a P4.1 billion as Impairment Losses to cover required general reserves on the
incremental loan portfolio, Non-Performing Loans and Receivables from SPVs,

Other Operating Income contracted by 4% to P16.9 billion. Trading Gain fell 27% to P3.9
billion from a reduced investment securities portfolio. FX Gain decreased by 14% owing to
lower margins brought about by a more competitive environment and a peso appreciation.
Trust Fees dropped by 20% on account of realignment in pricing and product mix for trust
services. Miscellaneous Income also dropped by 12% from reduced gains on disposal of
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investment properties. Serwce Charges and Fees, on the other-hand, went up by 18%, due to
increased business volume from the Bank's other business lines.

Operating Expenses went up by 9% to P24.8 billion primarily owing to integration expenses.
Employee Benefits grew 16% from a higher manpower count while Qccupancy Expenses
increased by 6% from the depreciation of integration-related capital expenditures.

Tax Expense rose by 17% to P2.8 billion due to the Bank write-off of & portion of its deferred
tax assets as well as the settlement of previous years' assessments.

Past and Future Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The Bank posted an audited Net Income of P2.2 billion in 2008, lower than that of the previous
year, primarily owing to unfavorable revaluation as well as. additional provisions set up for its
trading and investment portfolios. Even so, the Bank's core business of financial
intermediation remained strong with a 32% growth in customer loans and 43% expansion in
deposits.  Leasing, credit cards, asset management, cash management, remittances,
bancassurance, private banking and investment banking likewise recorded increases in
business volumes, contributing to the Bank's dominant market positions in core and anmllary
business lines.

Alongside business development were integration activities such as branch conversions and .
rationalization of subsidiaries. During the year, the Bank completed the conversion of all EPCI
and ESB branches into BDO outlets. Total branch network as of year-end stood at 665
branches complemented by 1,253 Automated Teller Machines. Subsidiaries were rationalized
to simplify the Group’s corporate structure, consolidate operations and- provide ease of
management. A number of subsidiaries were either sold, merged or dissolved last year,
including PCI Capital Corporation, Equitable Savings Bank and BDO Elite Savmgs Bank,
which were combined with the Parent Bank.

In 2008, the Bank also settled the following borrowings:

a.  $100 million 3-year Senior Debt issued by EPCI in 2005,

b. the remaining $114 million Senior Notes issued by BDO in 2003,
c.  $200 million Lower Tier 2 Unsecured Subordinated Notes.

These were refinanced with an issue of P10.0 billion unsecured subordinated debt eligible as
Lower Tier 2 Capital. In September, the Bank issued P5.0 billion worth of perpetual, voting,
convertible, non-participating Preferred Shares. Both the unsecured subordinated debt and
the preferred share issues were meant to boost the Bank's capita! position and allow it to take
advantage of potential investment opportunities.
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Prospects for the Future/Plans of Operation

3)

The Philippine economy, though resilient owing to strong economic fundamentals, is still -
expected: to feel the effects of the global ‘economic slowdown via expected declines in
investments and capital inflows, deceleration in exports as well as & potential slowdown in
OFW remittances. Expectedly, this would adversely impact the financial sector’s asset quality
and at the same time limit its growth pofential. This, together with continued market volatility
and spread compression, will create a more challenging en\nronment for the banking industry
in 2009. :

The bank will be facing this challenge head on, aiming for sustained above-average business
growth in its core business lines. The Bank’s loans, deposits and service fee income targets
will create a more sustainable income mix, allowing for continued profitability and increased
market share. Additionally, the Bank will also look at improving operational efficiency now that
the major integration activities have been completed.

Capital management initiatives are also planned for 2009. The Bank has recenfly issued a
third tranche of Unsecured Subordinated Debt qualifying as Tier 2 Capital, with a face amount
of P3.0 billion. The Bank also announced a Rights Offering of common shares to existing
shareholders of the Bank. The Rights Offering is expected to generate proceeds of up to P7.0
to P8.0 billion, in the first half of 2009. Both the Tier 2 lssue and the Rights Offering will be

. carried out by the Bank, in anticipation of business growth, network expansion and strategic

investment opportunities during the year.
Material Changes
(a) Any Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties (material impact on Liquidity)

Any known trends, events or uncertainties, which have a material impact on liguidity,
are explained under item 6(2) of SEC 17-A of the Bank.

(b) Internal and External Sources of Liquidity

" The internal and external sources of liquidity are herein discussed under item 8(2) of
SEC Form 17-A of the Bank.

(c) Any Material Commitments for Capital Expenditure and Expec‘ied Funds .
None.
(d) Any Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties (material impact on sales)
Any known trends, events or uncertainties, which have a material impact on sales, are

explained under item 6(2) of SEC 17-A of the Bank.
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(e) Causes for any Material Chanées from Period to Period of Financial Statements -

~ The causes for any material changes from 2007-2008 are explained in item 6(1) of
SEC Form 17-A of the Bank. :

(f Seasonal Aspects that has material Effect on the Financial Statements

None.

Iltem 7. Financial Statements

“The consolidated financial statements and schedules are filed as part of this Form 17-A

!

ltem 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

The financial statements of the Bank for the year ending 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2008
have been audited by Punongbayan and Araullo, in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The Bank has not had any disagreements with any of its former or present accountants on
any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or
procedure which led to a change in external auditors and it not resolved to the satisfaction of any of
these accountants, would have caused the latter to make reference to the subject matter of the
disagreement in connection with its report. :

PART il - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

item 9. Directors and Executive Officers. of the Issuer

1)

Directors and Executive Officers

The Board of Directors is empowered to direct, manage and supervise, under its collective
responsibility, the affairs of the Bank. It is also responsible for the proper administration and
management of the Bank's trust business. The following is the list-of the members of the
Board: ' '

Henry Sy, Sr., 84, Filipino, founder and Chairman of the SM Group of Companies is Chairman
Emeritus of BDO. He is known as a visionary in Philippine retail because of his innovations in
the industry. The shoe store he founded in 1958 has since evolved into a dynamic group of
companies with retail merchandising and shopping centers as core businesses and
complementary ventures in banking, real estate, and leisure tourism development. He
remains active in the Group as Chairman of its key businesses: SM Investments Corp., the
Group’s holding company; SM Prime Holdings, the country’s leading owner and developer of

shapping centers; and SM Development Corp., its real estate and development arm. ‘
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Teresita T. Sy, 58, Filipino, is Chairperson of BDO. Concurrently, she sits as Chairperson
and/or Director of various BDO subsidiaries such as BDO Private Bank, BDO Leasing &
Finance, Inc. (formerly PCl Leasing and Finance, Inc), BDO Capital & Investment
Corporation, BDO Realty Corporation, BDO Foundatien, Inc., Equitable Card Network, Inc.,
Strategic Property Holdings, Inc., PCIB Properties, Inc., EBC Management, Inc. and Property
Care, Inc. She is also Chairperson of Supervalue, Inc., Morrison Corporation, Pilipinas Makro,
Inc., Sodexho Pass, Inc. and Supervalue, Inc. Furthermore, she is the Chairperson and
President of MH Holding, and the President of SM Mart, Inc., SM.Retail, Inc., SM Land, [nc.,
Super Shopping Market, Inc., Premier Southern, Meridien Business Leader, inc. and Tangiers
Resources Corporation; and the Vice Chairperson of Generali Pilipinas Holding Co., Inc. and
SM Investments Corporation. She also holds a directorship position in SM Prime Holdings,
Inc., Multi-Realty Development Corporation, and First Asia Realty Development Corporation;
and Treasurer of Forsyth Equity Holdings, Inc. and Watsons Personal Care Stores, Inc. Prior
to the merger of BDO and Equitable PCI Bank, Inc. (EPCIB), she. served as Chairperson of
BDO (1996-2005) and Vice-Chairperson of EPCIB (2005-2007). She was first elected to the
Board of BDO in 1977. A graduate of Assumption College, she brings to the Board varied
experiences in retail merchandising, mall development, and banking.

Corazon S. De la Paz-Bernardo, 67, Filipino, assumed the post of Vice Chairperson of BDO

in July 2007. Prior to that, she served as Chairperson of Equitable PCI Bank from February

2006 to June 2007. She also served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Social

- Security System from August 2001 up to July 2008. She is currently the President of the
International Social Security Association, a Geneva-based organization for the triennium 2008-
2010, where she is the first non-European to occupy the position. She is also a Director of
Ayala Land Inc., Equitable Card Network, inc., and Republic Glass Ho[dmgs She is also in the

"Board of Trustees of Meralco Foundation, Inc. and the University of the East as well as in the
Board of Advisors of Ramon V. Del Rosario-AIM Center for Corporate Social Respansibility.
She is a member of the Management Association of the Philippines, the Financial Executive
Institute of the Philippines, and the Asia Society (Philippine Chapter).

Jesus A. Jacinto, Jr., 61, Filipino, was elected Vice Chairman of the Bank in May 1996, and
is concurrently the Chairman and President of BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc. Mr. Jacinto is
currently a Director and Vice President of the Bankers Association of the Philippines. He also
heads Jaces Corp. as Chairman and President; and Janit Realty, Inc., JAJ Realty, Inc., and
M.R. Knitwear Specialist, Inc. as Presidenit. He is likewise a Director of Philam-Equitable Life
Assurance Company (PELAC). Bayer Phil., Inc., and TFS Inc. Formerly, he was Director and
Executive Vice President of CityTrust Banking Corp., Director of CityTrust Investments Phil.
and CityTrust Finance Corp., and Vice President and Managing Partner of Citibank N.A. Mr.
Jacinto holds a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from Fordham University-in New
York City and an MBA (International Business} from Columbia University, New York.
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Christopher A. Bell-Knight, 64, Canadian, was elected Director of BDO in May 2005. He
was formerly a Director of Solidbank Corp. from 1990 to 1998, and Vice President and Country
Head of the Bank of Nova Scotia. He has had over 40 years of banking experience in
England, Canada, and Asia. Educated in universities in England and Canada, he is an
Associate of the Chartered Institute of Bankers (UK), Associate of the Institute of Canadian
Bankers, and fellow of the Institute of Corporate Directors. ‘

Antonio C. Pacis, 68, was elected Director of BDO in May 2008, He is currently Chairman of
ISS Philippines, Inc., and Asian Silver Estate Inc., He was also appointed Chairman and
President of Amigo Holdings, Inc., Asian Waterfront Holdings, Inc., Mantle Holdings Inc., and
Vertical Ventures Inc. - He serves .as Director of Armstrong Pacific Co., Inc., Technology
Investment Co., Inc., Legisforum, Inc., BDO Capital & Investment Corporation and Seawood
Holdings, Inc. He is currently the Corporate Secretary of EBC Strategic Holdings, Inc. and
Ammstrong Securities, Inc., and a Director and Corporate Secretary of Paluwagan ng Bayan
Savings Bank. He is also a member of the Board of Trustees of Central Colleges of the
Philippines. Atty. Pacis is the Managing Partner of Pacis & Reyes Attorneys at Law. Prior to
the merger of BDO and Equitable PC! Bank, Inc. (EPCIB), he served as Director and
Corporate Secretary of Banco De Oro Universal Bank (2004-2007). Atty. Pacis obtained his
law degree from the Ateneo de Manila University and his Master of Laws degree from Harvard
Law School. '

Lee Wai Fai, 48, Singaporean, was appointed Director of BDO in June 2008, and is
concurrently the Executive Vice President of United Overseas Bank Singapore. He also
serves as Director and Chairman of United Overseas Bank Philippines. He is a Director of
Asfinco Singapore Limited, Chung Khiaw Realty Limited, CKB (2000) Limited, FEB Realty
Company PTE Ltd., ICB {2002) Ltd., Industrial & Commercial Property (S) PTE Ltd., Sunwise
PTE Ltd, Unicom Databank Private Ltd., United Facilities Private Ltd, United General
Services (PTE) Ltd., United Overseas Bank Trustee Ltd, UOB Bullion and Futures Ltd., UCB
Capital Investments PTE Ltd., UOB Capital Management PTE Ltd., UOB Developments
Private Ltd., UOB Equity Holdings (PTE) Lid., UOB Hermes Asia Management PTE Limited,
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc., UOB Holdings Private Ltd., UOB International Investment Private
Ltd., UOB Property Investments PTE Ltd., UOB Towers PTE Ltd., UOBGC General Partners

Ltd: and UOF (2000} Ltd.

Henry T. Sy, Jr. 55, Filipino, was elected BDO Director in July 2007. He is the Vice
Chairman of SM Investments Corporation, SM Development Corporation, Highlands Prime,
Inc. and Pico De Loto, Inc., and a Director of SM Prime Holdings, Inc. He is also the Vice
Chairman and President of SM Land, Inc. He is chiefly responsible for the real estate
acquisitions and development activities of the SM Group of Companies and holds Board
nositions in several companies within the SM Group. Prior to his election to the board of BDO,
he served as a Director of China, Banking Corporation. He graduated with a management
degree from the De La Salle University.
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Josefina N. Tan, 63, Filipino, is a Director of BDO. Concurrently, she serves as Director and
President of BDO Private Bank and a Director of BDO Realty-Corp. Ms. Tan is the Treasurer
and Secretary of Regal Properties, Inc., PP & P Insurance Underwriters, and East Star Realty
Corp., and a Trustee in the Development Center for Finance and Laura Vicuna Foundation.
Prior 1o joining the BDO Board in 2000, she was an Executive Vice President of the former Far
East Bank and Trust Co. where she concurrently served as Director and President of FEB
Leasing and Finance Corp., Executive Director and Trustee of FEB Foundation, Inc., and
- Executive Vice President of FEB Investments Inc. and a Director of other related companies.
Ms. Tan was a Director of EPCIB from September 2005 until |ts merger with BDO in May
2007.

Nestor V, Tan, 51, Filipino, was elected President of BDO in July 1998. He concurrently sits
as Director of various subsidiaries of BDO including BDO Securities Corporation, BDO Realty
Corp., Generali Pilipinas Insurance Corp., BDO Leasing & Finance, Inc. (formerly PCl Leasing
& Finance, Inc.), Generali Pilipinas Life Insurance, Corp., BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc.,

Strategic Property Holdings, Inc., PCIB Properties, Inc., Property Care, Inc., Equitable Card
Network, Inc. Mr. Tan is also the Chairman of BDO Financial Services, Inc. and BDO
Technology Center, fno_., and also Vice-Chairman of BDO Capital & Investment, Inc. and BDO
Private Bank, Inc. He is also the President of EBC Management, Inc. and a member of the
Board of Trustees of BDO Foundation, Inc. Mr. Tan was formerly connected with the Mellon
Bank, the Bankers Trust Company in New York, and the Barclays -Group in New York and
London. At Barclays, he served as Planning director and Head of Strategic Planning for
Corporate and Institutional Services Group and as Chief Operating Officer for Financial
Institution Services Group of BZW, the investment banking subsidiary of Barclays Group. Mr.
Tan holds a Bachelor's degree in Commerce from the De La Salle University and received his
MBA from Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania.

Teodoro B. Montecillo, 74, Filipino, was appointed as an Independent Director in August
2004, Heis currently Independent Director in PDS Holdings Corp., Philippine Dealing
Exchange Corp,, Philippines Securities & Settlement Corp., Philippine Depository & Trust
Corp., Citibank Savings, Inc., BDO Securities Corporation and PCD Nominee Corporation.
Under the Ramos Administration, he was appointed as a member of the Monetary Board;
subsequently, under the Estrada Administration, he served as Chairman of the Central Bank
Board of Liquidators. He had also worked as Chief Executive Officer and President of the
Philippine Central Depository, Inc. and held various positions in the areas of operations, credit
and external debt management in Citibank- Manila. He holds a Bachelor of Science in
Education degree from the University of the East, a Bachefor of Science in Business
Administration degree from the University of the Philippines, and an MBA from the
Northwestern University, Chicago.

Jimmy T. Tang, 73, Filipino, has served as Director of the Bank since 1984, He is also the
President of Avesco Marketing Corp. and presently the Honorary President of the Federation
of Fifipino-Chinese Chambers of Commerce & Industry, Inc. He holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Electrical Engineering from the Mapua Institute of Technology.
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Edmundo L. Tan, 83, Filipino, was appointed Corporate Secretary of BDO in July 27, 2007.
He is currently Chairman of EBC Investments, Inc. On September 19, 2007, he was likewise
appointed Chairman and President of EBC Strategic Holdings Corp. He serves as Director
and Corporate Secretary of APC Group, Inc.,, Philippine Global Communications, Inc.,
PhilCom Corp., Aragorn Power & Energy Corp. and Aragorn Coal Resources, Inc. He
concurrently holds directorships in BDO Leasing & Finance, Inc. and Sinophil Corp., and
serves as Corporate Secretary of APC Mining Corp Atty Tan is the Managing Partner of Tan
Acut & Lopez Law Offices.

The independent‘directors of the Bank are Teodoro B. Montecillo and Jimmy T. Tang.
' Senior Executive Officers of the Bank
The members of Senior Management, subject to control and supervision of the Board,

collectively have direct charge of all business activities of the Bank. They are responsible for
the implementation of the policies set by the Board The following is a list of the Bank’s key

officers:
Name Age P.osition
Nestor V. Tan 54 President and Director -
Walter C. Wassmer | 52 Senior Execulive Vice President, Gréup Head - Insti{utional Banking
Antonio N. Cotoco 60 "Senior Executive Vice President, Group Head - BDO Leasing & Finance and Hong Kong
Branch
-Ador A. Abrogena 55 Executive Vice President, Group Head = Trust Banking
Juie Y. Chua : 58 * Executive Vice President, Head ~ Commercial Bariking (Metro Manila East)
Gerard Lee B. Co 50  Executive Vice President, Head - Commercial Banking Wisayas and Mirdanao)
Lucy Co Dy _ 54 Executive Vice President, Comptroller and Group Head - Comptrollership
Pedro M. Florescio [l | 54 Executive Vice President, Treasurer and Group Head — Treasury
Eduardo V. Francisco® 48 Executive Vice President, Group Head — BDO Capital & Investment Corporation
Bienvenido M. Juat, dr.* 56 Executive Vice President, Treasurer - BDO Private Bank
Ricardo V. Martin 51 Executive Vice President, Group Head - Central Legal
‘Sergio LI. Naranjilia,. Jr. 52 Executive Vice President, Portfolib Investments
‘Horacio €. Rodriguez | 83 Executive Vice President, Group Head - Asset Management
Edmundo S. Sortano 53 Executive Vice President, Head — Corporate Banki'r{g 1
Rolando C. Tanchanco 47 Executive Vice President, Group Head — Consumer Lending
Dennis B, Velasquez ' 56 | Exscutive Vice President, Group Head - Central Operations ‘
Evelyn L. Villanueva -5 Executive Vice Prasident, Group Head —Risk .Management; Chief Risk Officer
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Name : Age Position

Aristotle L. Villaraza 57 Executive Vice President, Cross Border and Wholesale Lending
Jaime C. Yu 51 - Executive Vice President, Group Head - Branch Banking
' Rambn Eduarde E. Abasolc 45 Senior Vice President, Head - [T Development
Ursula A, Alano 54 Senior Vice Presideﬁt, Head - Treasury Marketing
Beatriz L. Bagsit 65 | Senior Vice President, Region Head - Branch Banking
Melanie S. Belen 48 Senior Vice President, Risk Management
Rafael G. Besa 51 Senior Vice President, Group Head - Marketing C;)mmu'nécations
Stellé L, Cabalatungan* 45 Senlor Vice President, Relaticnship Management Head, BDO Private Bank
Antonina M. Cabuyadao 63 Serai‘or Vice President, Region Head - Brahch Banking '
Ma. Ophelia LI. Camina 56 Senior Vice President, Operations and Service Quality Head — Equitable Card Network,
Inc.
Ramon S. David 50 g Senicr Vice President, Region Head - Branch Banking
Montiel H. De los Santos 48 Senior Vice President, Head - Investments Portfolio
Geronime D. Diaz - B3 Seﬁior Vice President, Region Head - Branch Banking
[smael G. Estela, Jr. 52 Senior Vice President, Group Head ~ Transaction Banking
Marvin V., Fausto 48 - Senior Vice President, Trust Bahking |
Lesmes L, Garate 58 ° Senior Vice President, Region Head - Branch Banking
Jonathaﬁ C.B.Go 53 Senior Vice President, Asset Management Group
Marityn K. Go 56 Senior Vice President, Deputy Group Head - Treasury
L. Jerome C. Guevarra 42 Senio{.Vice President, BDO Capital & Investment Corporation
Nenita C. indiongco 58 Senior Vice President, Corporate Banking 2
Maria Elena L. Jao 60 Senior Vice President, Head - IT Standards and QA
Jeanette 8. Javellana 49 Senior Vice President, Commercial Banking (Metro Manila West)
Roberto E. Lapid 53 Senior Vice President, Head - BDO Leaéing and Finance, inc.
Les Hong Man ' 85 Senior Vice President, General Manager - Hong Kong Branch
Gabriel U. Lim 48 Senior Vice President, Investment Banking
Ruby G. Lim 61 Senior Vice President, Region Head — Branch Banking
Lilia E. Lising 57 Senior Vice President, Corperate Banking 2
Emerenciana H. Luistro 48 Senior Vice President, Head - Business Systems
Maria Corazon A. Mallillin’ 47 Senior Vice President, Branch Banking
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Name

Age

Position

Ramon T. Militar
Annie H. Ngo
Virgilio C. Panﬁatmat
Domingo A. Ramos, Jr.
Francisco P. Ramos
Luis S. Reyes, Jr.
Charles M. Rodriguez
Shirley M. Saﬁgalang
Arsenio L. Severing
Erlaster C. Sotto
Grace A. Sumalpong
Robert W. Sy
Arthur L. Tan
Perla F. Toledo
Rebecca S. Torres

_ Edel Mary D. Vegamora
‘Ma. Lourdes T. de Vera

Edward G. Wencesiac

Ma, Teresita Susana L. Yap

50 Senior Vice President, Region Head - Branch Banking

54 Senior Vice President, Region Head — Branch Baﬁking .

56 Senior Vice President, Consumer Lending (Home Loans)

GO Senior Vice President, Region Head — Branch Banking

45 Senior Vice President, General Manager - BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc..

52 Senior Vice President, Head - Investor Relations and Corporate:Planning

45 Senior Vice President, Corporate Banking 1 '

50 Senicr Vice President, Adviser to the Board Audit Committee

53 Senior Vice President, Head - Remedial Management and Collection, Risk Management

51 Senior Vice President, COO - BDO Capital

53 Senior Vice President, Head - Asset Recovery and Litigation, Risk‘Management
| 49 Senior Vice President, Region He_ad — Branch Banking 7

44 Senior Vice Président, Head - IT Cperations

63 Senior Vice Prasident, Group Head - Hurﬁan Resources

56 Senior Vice President, Chief of Staff o the President

49 Senior Vice President, Head - Internal Audit

53 - Senior Vice President, Trust Banking

53  Senior Vice President, Head - Corporate Banking 2

57 Senior Vice President, Commercial Banking (Metro Manila South}

* Seconded to BDO Capital
** Seconded to BDO Private

Walter C. Wassmer, 52, is Senior Executive Vice President of the Bank's Institutional Banking
Group. He is also a Director of BDO Leasing. He is also currently the President of L.P.
- Wassmer Trading, Inc. and Treasurer of WT&T, Inc.

Antonio N. Cotoco, 60, is Senior Executive Vice President and is a member of the Executive
Committee. He supetvises the Bank's Hong Kong Branch and is Vice Chairman and Managing
Director of BDO Leasing. He is also Director of BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc., Express Padala
(HK), Ltd., Express Padala Frankfurt GmbH, BDO Remittance {USA}, PCI Express Padala
(Macau)., as well as of BDO Realty Corporation, of which he is also the Treasurer. He has
been involved in investment banking, corporate finance, treasury, consumer banking, credit,
business and development and account management over the past 29 years. He currently
also serves as a Director of Criental Assurance Corporation and OAC Realty & Development
Corporation.
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Ador A. Abrogena, 55, is Executive Vice President and Head of Trust Banking. He is also a
Director of EBC Management, Inc. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Chemical Engineering
from De La Salle University. He was previously connected with First Pacific Securities,
Philippines, Inc. as Vice President and with Private Development Corporation of the
Phifippines as Assistant Vice President. : :

Julie Y. Chua, 58, Executive Vice President, holds a Bachelor's degree in Commerce, major
in Banking and Finance, cum laude, from the University of Santo Tomas. She has more than
25 years of experience in branch banking and lending business. Previous to her assignment,
she was connected with Far Fast Bank & Trust Company and Producers Bank. She is
currently Unit Head on Commercial Banking Metro Manila East

Gerard Lee B. Co, 50, is Executive Vice President and Unit 'Head for Commercial Banking
(Visayas, Mindanao). He is a Director of Agencia de Calidad, Inc. He served as Director of PCI
Leasing and Finance, Inc. and PCI Capital Corporation from 2002-2005. He graduated from
the University of San Carlos with a Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce Major in
Banking and Finance. He attended the Advanced Management Program for International
Bankers at the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania, U.S.A. He likewise
completed the program for Executive Development at IMD in Lausanne, Switzertand. He
joined the Bank in October 1993 as Vice President for Visayas Division.

Lucy Co Dy, 54, is Executive Vice President and Comptroller. She is also Director and
Treasurer of BDO Financial Services, Inc., and Director of BDO Technology Center, EBC
Strategic Holdings Com., BDO Remittance (HK), Express Padala (HK), BDO Remittance
(itafia), S.p.A., and, Express Padala Frankfurt GmbH. She holds a Bachelor's degree in
Accounting from the University of Santo Tomas. Before joining the Bank as Assistant
Comptroller in March 1985, she was Officer-in-Charge of PBP Financing and Leasing
Corporation from 1983 to 1985. She became the Comptroller in 1986 and was promoted to her
present position as EVP in 2007. ‘

Pedro M. Florescio Ill, 54, Executive Vice President and Treasurer. He is also a Qirector'-of
BDO Financial Services, Inc. and EBC Management, Inc. He holds a Bachelor's degree in
Business Administration from the University of the East and finished the Executive
Development Program at the Asian Institute of Management. He has more than 25 years of
experience in treasury functions within and outside the country. He was previously connected
with DHBL (Hong Kong), International Bank of Asia (Hong Kong), Chemical Bank (Manila),
Societe Generale (Manila), European Asian Bank (Manila), PCIBank, Far East Bank & Trust
Company, and EPCIB. :
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Eduardo V. Francisco, 48, Executive Vice President. He holds a Bachelor's degree in
Business Administration from the University. of the Philippines. He obtained his MBA from the -
Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania, He has extensive banking experience in
corporate finance, investment banking, credit and risk management, strategic planning,
treasury, and business development. He worked in the U:S. and Hong Kong and: was
previously with Standard Chartered Bank, Bank of America, SGV/Arthur Andersen, World
Bank, Citibank, and Barclays. He is currently seconded as President of the Bank's wholly
owned investment house, BDO Capital and is also Director and Treasurer of BDO Securities.

Bienvenido M. Juat, Jr., 56, is Executive Vice President and currently seconded as Treasurer
of BDO Private Bank. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from Ateneo de
Manila University. He joined the Bank in August 2001 as Executive Vice President —
Treasurer. Prior to joining the Bank, he was an EVP — Treasurer of Dao Heng Bank, Inc.

Ricardo V. Martin, 51, Executive Vice PreSIdent for Central Legal and administratively
oversees Corsec AMLA, Compliance, and Internal Audit. He is also Director and Treasurer of
Armstrong Securities, Inc. and Director of BDO Technology Center, and BDO Remittance
(talia). Prior to joining EPCIB, he served as Chief Finance Officer & Senior Vice President for
Philippine Savings Bank. Earlier, he was the Chief Finance Controller of Sclidbank
Corporation.

Horacio C. Rodriguez, Jr., 63, Executive Vice President for Asset Management, holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration and a Bachelor of Arts degree in
History-Political Science from De La Salle University. He obtained his MBA degree from the
Asian Institute of Management. Mr. Rodriguez is concurrently the President of BDO Realty and
Head of the BDO Property Management Department. He is also the President of Strategic
Property Holdings, Inc. and PCIB Properties, Inc. He also holds the following positions:
Director of Chamber of Real Estate and Builders' Associations, Inc. and Director/Stockholder
of Rodriguez Hermanos, Inc. He was formerly connected with Jardine- Property/Land, Inc. as
Executive Vice President & Chief Operating Officer/Director. He was also connected with
Frigate Realty Development Corporation as President and with Frigate Holdings and
Management Corporation as Executive Vice President.

Edmundo S. Soriano, 53, Senior Vice President and Unit Head for Corporate Banking 1,
holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics (Honors) from ‘Ateneo de Manila University. He
finished his MBA (with distinction) from Adelphi University, New York, USA. Prior to joining the
Bank, Mr, Soriano was President of Lightspeed Holdings, Inc., a private equity firm. He was
also Vice President at JP Morgan Chase where his last assignment gave him Asia-Pacific
regional responsibility for corporate and investment banking based in Hong Kong. Prior to this,
he was an Assistant Vice President at First Chicago Leasing and Equipment Credit Corp., an
affiliate of First National Bank of Chicago. He holds directorships in various companies. He
attended continuing education programs at Euro-Insead, University of California at Berkeley
and Amencan Institute of Banking.
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Rolando C. Tanchanco, 47, Executive Vice President for Consumer Lending. He holds a
Bachelor's degree in Business Economics from the University of the Philippines. He acquired
his MBM at the Asian Institute of Management. Mr. Tanchanco joined the Bank to head the
Bank's Consumer Lending. Prior to his joining the Bank, Mr. Tanchanco was President of
Philam Savings Bank and head of AIG Credit Card. He was also head of credit card
operations of Citibank and Citytrust before his stint at AlG Credit' Card. He is currently a
Director of ECN. He is also President of BDO Financial Services, Inc.

Dennis B. Velasquez, 56, is Executive Vice President for Central Operations. He is-aiso
Director of BDQ Technology Center, Inc. He served in 2000 as the Integration Manager for
‘Retail Banking. Prior to the EPCIB merger in 1999, he was First Vice President In-charge of
Operations for Branch Banking of EPCIB. He has been with the Bank since August 1995.

Evelyn L. Villanueva, 51, Executive Vice President of the Bank's Credit and Risk
Management Group, and is the Bank's Chief Risk Officer. She is also Director of Strategic
Property Holdings, Inc. and PCIB Properties, Inc. She holds a Bachelor's degree in Statistics
from the University of the Philippines. She obtained her Master in Business Management
(“MBM”) degree from the Asian Institute of Management. She has over 20 years of banking
experience in credit, risk and account management. She started out as a management trainee
in Citytrust Banking Corporation and was connected with HSBC as Senior Vice President for

Credit Risk Management before joining the Bank. ‘

Aristotle L. Villaraza, 57, is Executive Vice President for Cross Border and Wholesale
Financing. He joined the former PCIBank in September 1994 as Vice President and Head of
Corporate: Finance Division and became concurrent head for Corporate Banking 3 until
November 1998.

Jaime C. Yu, 51, Executive Vice President. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics
from De La Salle University and is an MBA graduate from the Ateneo De Manila University.
Mr. Yu has extensive experience in commercial, corporate and investment banking from the
International Corporate Bank and Union Bank of the Philippines, where he held various
positions up to his appointment as First Vice President and Region Head for the Manila-Pasay
area, He joined the Bank in December 1997 and is currently the group head of Branch
Banking where he manages the entire branch network.

Ramon Eduardo E. Abasolo, 45 is Senior Vice President of the Information Technology
Group. He graduated from Ateneo de Manila with a Bachelor of -Science degree in
Management Engineering. He joined the Bank in October 2007. Prior to joining the Bank, he
was a Vice President at Citibank, N.A, '

Ursula A. Alano, 54, is Senior Vice President and Head of Treasury Marketing Unit. She is
also a Director of Albutario and Sons, Inc. She holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Psychology
from St. Theresa’s Collége. She joined the Bank in January 2001 as Senior Vice president for
Treasury Marketing Unit. Prior fo joining the Bank, she was a First Vice President & Head of
Treasury Marketing Group at Far East Bank & Trust Company.
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Beatriz L. Bagsit, 65, Senior Vice President, is a graduate of the University of the East with
the degree of Bachelor of Science in Business Administration major in Banking and Finance.
She was formerly a First Vice President of EPCIB where she was connected from 1995 to
2001, She was also an Assistant Vice President with Far East Bank & Trust Company where
she served from 1964 to 1994. She first joined the Bank in 2002 as a Consultant and
thereafter assumed the position of First Vice President with Branch Banking as Region Head.

Melanie S. Belen, 48, is Senior Vice President and Head of Special Recovery Unit of the
Bank. She graduated from University of Sto. Tomas with a Bachelor of Science in Commerce,
Major in Accounting and obtained her master's degree in Management from -Asian [nstitute of
Management.  She joined the Bank in July 2008 and prior to joining the Bank, she was a
Country Head at Scholastic Inc., Philippines/Grolier International.

Rafael G, Besa, 51, Sénior Vice President, is Head of Marketing Communications. He is a
graduate of De La Salle University with double degree majors in Communication Arts and

Marketing Management. Mr. Besa was formerly the General Manager of Pfizer, Inc. -

Consumer Healthcare Division where he was connected from 2004 to 2006. He also served as
Marketing Director of Abbot Laboratories. from 2002 to 2004 and as Vice President and
General Manager of Zuellig Pharma Corporation from 2001 to 2002.

Stella L. Cabalatungan, 45, Senior Vice President, holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Marketing Management from De La Salle University. Prior to joining the Bank, she was Vice
President of BSPI, and Head of the Personal Investment Banking Group from 2000 to 2005.
She was also Vice President of Citibank, N.A. from 1985 to 2000 where she spent 15 years in
retail and priority banking in Singapore and the Philippines, her last assignment being Citigold
Priority Banking Head. She is presently seconded to BDO Private as Senior Vice President -
Relationship Management Head.

Antonina M. Cabuyadao, 63, is Senior Vice President and Region Head of the Branch
Banking. She was hired as Assistant Vice President of PCIBank in 1992. She was Division
Head of Network Distribution, Branch Manager of Main Office Branch and Division Head of
Metro Manila Division |l until the merger of Equitable Banking Corporation and PCIBank in
1999.

Ma. Ophelia LI. Camifa, 56, is Senior Vice President and Division Head of CLG-Card Issuing
and Operations Unit of the Bank. She graduated Magna Cum Laude from the University of
San Carlos in Cebu with a Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce major in Accounting and
obtained her Master's dégree in Business Administration from the De La Salle University. She
ranked 8th in the CPA Licensure Examinations. She joined the Bank in October 2005 as First
Vice President and Comptroller for Equitable Card Network, Inc. Prior fo joining the Bank, she
was Executive Vice President of SM Equicom Computer Services Inc.

Ramon 8. David, 50, Filipino, is Senior Vice President and currently with Branch Banking as -
Region Head. He joined the Bank as Vice President in 1893,
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Montiel H. de los Santos, 48, is Senior Vice President and Head of Treasury's Investment
Portfolio. He is a graduate of De La Salle University Manila with a Bachelor's degree major in
Management of Financial Institutions. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. de los Santos was the
Head of the Bond Trading Desk with Bank of the Philippine Islands from 1996 to 1997. Prior to
this, he has also worked with CityTrust Banking Corporation as Senior Foreign Currency
Money Market/Asset Dealer from 1994 to 1996. He joined the Bank in 1997 as Vice President
of the Treasury Department

Geronimo D. Diaz, 53, Senior Vice President, holds a Bachelors degree in Accounting,
Magna Cum Laude, from the University of the East. He was previously connected with
PCIBank as Vice President from 1975 to 1995. He was part of the management team that set-
up DHBI in 1995 and held the position of First Vice President until 1998. Thereafter, he joined '
the Bank in April 1998 as head of the Corporate Planning & Marketing Support of the Bank.
He is presently with Branch Banking as Region Head.

[smael G. Estela, Jr., 52, Senior Vice-President and Head of Transaction Banking. He is the
Chairman and President of Express Padala Intemational, Inc. and is a Director of BDO
Financial Services, Inc. He is a certified public accountant (“CPA") and holds a Bachelor's
degree in Accounting from the University: of San Carlos. He has more than -24 years, of
combined experience in commercial and development banking. Prior to joining the Bank, he
was involved in electronic commerce servicing the small and medium enterprises. Aside from
commercial and development banking, he has extensive experience in product development,
cash management services, marketing, lending administration, IT, pro;ect management and

bank operations and processes.

Marvin V. Fausto, 48, is Senior Vice President and Chief Investment Officer of Trust Banking.
Prior to joining the Bank in 1996, he worked as Head of Investments for Citytrust Banking
Comporation and as Credit Officer at Far East Bank & Trust Company. He is the Founding
President & Director of the Fund Managers Association of the Philippines. He was Director
and Treasurer of the Trust Officers Association of the Philippines.

Lesmes L. Garate, 58, is Senior Vice President and Region Head of Branch Bankmg
Administration. He was a financial consultant of Grand Lending, and Unity Lending Investors,
Inc. from 1996 to 2000. He is presently a member of Bankers’ Club of Cebu, Bayanihan Lions
Club International, and Phifippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Jonathan C. B. Go, 53, is Senior Vice President of the Asset Management Group. He
graduated from De La Salle University with a BSBA degree and earned an MBA degres at
Pepperdine University. He joined the Bank in 1995 as Assistant Vice President for Credit &
Facilities Department of former Equitable Banking Corporation.
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Marilyn K. Go, 56, Senior Vice President and Assistant Treasurer of the Bank, holds a
- Bachelor of Arts degree in Mathematics from St. Paul's College of Manila. Prior to joining the
Bank, she worked for Producers Finance in Hong Kong for three years. She joined the Bank in
1087 as Manager of the Treasury Department. '

L. Jerome C. Guevarra, 42, Senior Vice President. Mr. Guevarra is currently seconded to
BDO Capital where he heads the Advisory and Mergers and Acquisition practice. He joined
the Bank in 2001. With over 13 years of investment banking experience, he was previously
connected with Far East Bank & Trust Company, FEB Investments, Inc. and EBCL Mr.
Guevarra holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics from the University of the Philippines.

Nenita C. Indiongco, 58, is Senior Vice President and Team 4 Head for Corporate Banking 2.
She has been involved with the Corporate Banking for the majority of her 32 years stint with
the Bank. She has also.served as member of the Bank’s various credit committees and special
projects.

Maria Elena L. Jao, 80, Senior Vice President and Head for IT Standards and Control, is a
Bachelor of Science Chemistry graduate from the University of the Philippines. She joined the
Philippine Commercial and International Bank (PCIB) in 1985 as Project Manager for
application systems development. When PCIB was merged with: Equitable Banking
Corporation in 1999, she was one of the Application Development Division Heads. Prior to the
merger of EPCIB with BDO, Ms. Jao was EPCIB's Chief Technology Officer, Currently, she is
head of the IT Standards and Control department, and spearheading the Bank's information
security initiatives. ' B

Jeanette S. Javellana, 49, is Senior Vice President and Unit Head for Commercial Banking
Metro Manila West. She joined the Bank in September 2001.

Roberto E. Lapid, 53, President and Director of BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc. is a Bachelor’
of Science in Business Administration graduate from the University of the Philippines. He
completed the Management Strategy Course and the Senior Bank Managers Course from the
Asian Institute of Management. He joined BDOLF in 1993 as Senior Manager/Account Officer
and became Marketing Head for the Metro Manila Division. He is also the President of BDO
Rental Inc., a post he has held since August 2007. Mr. Lapid’s. professional career covers 30
years of banking experience with stints in Banco de Oro Savings & Mortgage Bank (Treasury
Manager), UCPB Savings Bank (Private Banking Officer) and AB Leasing/Asian Bank
Corporation (Senior Manager). He served as the Vice-Chairman of EBC Investments from
April 2002 until, 2005. Prior to his appointment as Acting President of BDOLF in September
2007, Mr. Lapid was the President of Equitable Exchange, Inc. from August 2003 to July 2007,
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Norman Lee Hong Man, 55, is Senior Vice President and General Manager of Banco De Oro
Unibank, Inc., Hong Kong Branch. He finished his high school from Wah Yan College Hong
Kong in 1972 and immediately joined Dao Heng Bank Limited. He was the former Senior Vice
President of Dao Heng Bank (Philippines) Inc. in charge of Credit, Branches and Commercial
Lending from 1996 and 2001 until the bank was. merged with Banco De Oro in 2001. He joined
the Bank as consultant for HK Branch in March 2006 and assumed the present position in
October of the same year. '

Gabrlel U. Lim, 48, is Senior Vice President and Unit Head. for Equities Practice of BDO
Capital Inc. He is also Director and President of PCIB Securities, Inc. Mr. Lim's exterisive
banking experience includes key participation in the Philippine Government's privatization
~programs on behalf of both the Government and private institutions. Prior to joining PCI
Capital, Mr. Lim was associated with the Development Bank of the Philippines for seven years
“ where he held various positions. He aiso served as Chief of Staff to the Secretary of the
Department. of Finance in 1994. Mr. Lim is MBM candidate from the Asian Institute of
Management and holds a B.S. in Commerce from San Beda College. :

Ruby G. Lim, 61, Senior Vice President, is a holder of a Bachelor of Science in Commerce
degree major in Accounting from Assumption College. She joined the Bank in 2001 as a
Consultant and assumed the position of First Vice President with Branch Banking as Region
Head based in Cebu. She was formerly with Solidbank Corporation as First Vice President
where she worked from 1993 to 2000. She also worked with Citibank from 1970 to 1987 where
she last held the position of Assistant Vice President. Ms. Lim is currently the President of
Rainbow Tours, and sits in the boards of Mango Park Hotel and July Marketing.

Lilia E. Lising, 57, Senior Vice President, graduated from the University of the Philippines
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Political Science. She obtained her MBA from Ateneo. de
Manila University. She was connected with Far East Bank & Trust Company from 1982 to
1996. She then joined Bank of the Philippine Istands in 2000 as Vice President. She was First
Vice President of EPCIB before joining the Bank in 2005. She is currently Team 6 Head of
Corporate Banking 2.

Emerenciana H. Luistro, 48, is Senior Vice President and Division Head of Business
Systems of the Bank. She joined the Bank in November 1995 as Assistant Vice President for
Operations. Prior to joining the Bank, she was a Senior Manager at Far East Bank & Trust
Company.

Maria Corazon A. Mallillin, 47, Senior Vice President, graduated from the University of the
Philippines with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics as well as a Bachelor of Laws degree.
She last worked with Maybank as Senior Vice President from 2002 to 2005. She also had
working stints as First Vice President with Asiatrust Bank from 1998 to 2002 and with PCIBank
from 1982 to 1998 as an Assistant Vice President. She joined Banco De Oro in March of 2005
as Region Head of Branch Banking.
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Ramon T. Militar, 50, Senior Vice President, is a CPA and holds a Bachelor's degree in
Business Administration, major in Accounting, from the University of the Philippines. He is also
a graduate of the Advanced Bank Management Program (Superior Performance Awardee) of
the Asian Institute of Management. Prior to joining the Bank, he served as President and CEO
of Ecology Bank. Other significant work experiences include the following. President of
Ecology Insurance Brokers, Inc., President of Fidelity Insurance Company, Inc., Executive
Vice president for Branch Banking of Monte de Piedad, Branch Manager of SGV & Co. He is
currently with Branch Banking as Region Head.

Annie H. Ngo, 54, is Senior Vice President and Region Head of MM West Region under the
Bank’s Branch Banking Group of the Bank. She graduated Magna Cum Laude from the
College of the Holy Spirit and took up MBA units at the Ateneo Graduate School of Business.
She joined the Bank in October 1988, '

Virgilio C. Pamatmat, 56, is Senior Vice President for Consumer Finance. He joined the Bank
in 1994 as Vice President and became First Vice President and Head of Consumer Finance
Division in 2001. Previously, he served as Assistant Vice President of Solidbank Corporation
under the Consumer Banking Group in 1990 and became Vice President in 1992. Likewise, he
was the Vice President of MB Finance in 1987 after serving the company as Assistant Vice
President since 1980. He was also a Senior Corporate Finance Officer of Bancom Finance
Corp. in 1979 and was a Sales Officer of FNCB Finance in 1975 up to 1979.

Domingo A. Ramos Jr., 60, is Senior Vice President and Region Head for Region 10
{(Mindanao Region) of Branch Banking Group. He is a CPA and graduated from the University
of the East with a degree in Business Administration (Accounting). He joined the former
PCIBank in 1971 as an Examiner of the bank's Internal Audit Group. In 1977, he was
transferred to PCIBank's Retail Banking Group as Assistant Manager for Davao Branch, and
eventually became the Branch Manager of Cotabato Branch and Cagayan de Oro Branch. He
assumed the positions of Area Head for Southern Mindanao in 1988, Division Head for
Southern Mindanao for EPCIB in 1999, and his latest post as BDO's Region Head for Region
10 (Mindanao) on 1 July 2007.

Francisco P. Ramos, 45, Senior Vice President, is an MBA graduate from the Ateneo de
Manila Graduate School of Business. Mr. Ramos was the Chief Operating Officer of Jardine
Lloyd Thompson Insurance Brokers, Inc. from 2004 to 2006 and also served as Director from
2005 to 2006. He also worked with Zurich General Insurance Co. Inc., from 2000 to 2003
where he last held the position of Vice President. He is presently seconded to BDOI, the
Bank's wholly-owned insurance brokerage business.

Luis S. Reyes, Jr., 52, Senior Vice President for Investor Refations and Corporate Planning,
holds a Bachelor's degree in Business Economics from the University of the Philippines. He
was First Vice President of Far East Bank & Trust Company, Trust Banking Group before
joining the Bank in 2003. ' :
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Charles M. Rodriguez, 45, Senior Vice President, is Team Head of Corporate Banking Unit 1.
He obtained his MBA degree, major in Finance in 1991 from the University of Cincinnati (Ohio,
USA) and his BS Mariagement Engineering degree in 1985 from the Ateneo de Manila
University. Mr. Rodriguez has twenty three years of corporate and investment banking
experience. Prior to joining the Bank in January 2002 as Vice President and Unit Head for
Corporate Banking Group, Mr. Rodriguez was connected with ABN AMRO Bank, FEB

Investments, Inc. and Far East Bank and Trust Company. :

Shirley M. Sangalang, 50, is Senior Vice President and Adviser to the Board Audit
Committee. She has a Bachelor's degree in Accounting from the University of the East and is
a CPA. She was connected with audit firm SGV & Co. from 1979 to 1982, She then went to
Summa International Bank in 1982 as Budget and Systems Officer. She joined the Bank in
1984 as Senior Manager and Head of Intemnal Audit and was promoted Vice President in
1994. Y :

Arsenio L. Severino, 53, is Senior Vice President and Head of Remedial Management under
Risk Management. He is the Bank's representative to the Board of Victoria's Quality
Packaging Corporation. Prior to joining the Bank, he worked with several financial institutions
in various capacities in the areas of branch operations, treasury and corporate banking before
joining the Bank in December 1996. I

Erlaster C. Sotto, 51, Senior Vice President, is seconded as the Chief Operating Officer of
BDO Capital. He was with the investment banking group of EPCIB for .20 years. He was
President of the IHAP from 2001 to 2002 and Director from 2000 to 2007. Mr. Sotto is also a
member of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines. He is a Bachelor of Arts and Laws graduate
of Ateneo de Manila University and a graduate of Philippine Trust Institute on Trust and
Investment Management. He completed all the units under the Senfor Business. Economic
Program of the University of Asia and the Pacific.

Grace A. Sumalpong, 53, is Senior Vice President and Head of Asset Recovetry Litiga'tion
under Risk Management. She is a member of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines. She has
been serving the Bank for over 25 years. '

Robert "Sui Gui” W. Sy, 49, is Senior Vice President and Region Head of the Bank's‘Branch
Banking Group. He has been serving the Bank for more than 12 years.

Arthur L. Tan, 44, is Senior Vice President and Head of IT Operations. He graduated from the
University of the Philippines with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics, cum laude. He
joined the. Bank in November 2002 as Vice-President for IT Applications Development. Prior to
joining the Bank, he was an Associate Partner at Accenture.
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Perla F. Toledo, 63, is Senior Vice President and Head of the Bank's Human Resources. She
is a CPA and holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from the University of Santo
Tomas. Formerly with Banco Filipino and Security Bank, she joined the Bank in 1988 as Vice
President of the Bank's Human Resource Management. She also heads the Administrative
and General Services. Ms. Toledo was promoted to her present position as Senior Vice
President of the Bank in April 1998.

Rebecca S. Torres, 56, is Senior Vice President and Chief of Staff to the President. She
graduated from St. Theresa’s College with a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting and
has completed the Advanced Bank Management Program from the Asian Institute of
Management. A CPA, she has extensive experience in banking having been assigned to
Computer Audit, Sales and Service Quality, Information Resource Management, and
Comptrollership. She headed the Merger Office, Customer Care, and Human Resources
Management at Equitable PCI Bank. Prior to joining the Bank, she was connected with SGY
& Co. She is a Past President of the Banker's Institute of the Philippines (BAIPhil).

Edel Mary D. Vegamora, 49, is Senior Vice President and Head of Internal Audit Division
(Chief Internal Auditor) of the Bank. She graduated magna cum laude from the University of
the East with a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration, major in Accountancy.
She is a Certified Public Accountant and subsequently earned the global designation of
Certified Internal Auditor. Prior to joining the Bank in 2008, she was Chief Financial Officer of
Sun Life Assurance Company of Canada (Philippines) Inc. and of its subsidiaries, Sun Life
Asset Management Company and Sun Life Financial Plans, Inc. She was also a member of
the Board of Directors for Sun Life Asset Management Company and for four of ten companies
comprising the Sun Life Prosperity Funds. Her earlier senior management positions include
that of being the location CFO of ING Bank N.V.-Manila Branch, Director of Assurance at
KPMG' Laya Mananghaya & Co., AVP - Head of Regional Finance/Asia Pacific Internal Audit
Director at Sun Life of Canada-Philippiné Branch, Vice President/Controller at Philippine -
Savings Bank/Senior Audit Manager at PSBank/Metrobank, and Tax Compliance
Manager/Auditor-In-Charge at SGV & Co.

Ma. Lourdes T. de Vera, 53, Senior Vice President, holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics
from the Ateneo de Manila University. She is also a graduate of the Masters in Business
Management Program of the Asian Institute of Management and an Executive Development
Program of the Research Institute of Management Science, Delft, Netherlands. Prior to joining
BDO, she worked for the Private Development Corporation of the Philippines, holding various
positions in the Trust and Investments Department, Investment Banking Group, and Economic.
and Corporate Research. She currently heads the Business Development Group 1 of the
Bank’s Trust Banking Group. She is the President of the Trust Officers Association of the
Philippines and is a Governor of the Market Governance Board of Philippine Dealing and
Exchange Corporation (PDEX). '
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4)

Edward G. Wenceslao, 53, is Senior Vice President of Corporate Banking and Unit Head of
Corporate Banking 2. He has been with the Bank for the past 28 years and has been involved
in Corporate Banking for majority of that time. He earned his college degree at the Ateneo de
Manila and pursued his post-graduate studies at the Ateneo Graduate School of Business.

Ma. Teresita Susana L. Yap, 57, is Senior Vice President and Unit Head of Commercial
Banking Metro Manila South. She joined the Bank in August 2003 and is presently Unit Head .
of Commercial Banking Metro Manila South. Prior to joining the Bank, she was connected with
two universal banks, and has had over 30 years of experience in lending to the corporate and
commercial markets.

NOTE: The Bank is not dependent on the services of any particular employee and does not
have any special arrangements to ensure that any employee erl remain with the Bank and will
not compete upon termination. :

Significant Employees

The Bank's senior executives have been enumerated above under item 9 (1.

Family Relationships -

The Chairperson of the Board of Directors, Ms. Teresita T. Sy, and Mr. Henry'T. Sy, Jr. are
siblings.

Involvement of directorsléxecutive officers In legal proceedings

None of the directors or executive officers is named or is mvo§ved in any legal proceedings
which will have any material effect on the Bank, its operations, reputation, or financial .
condition.- , ‘

To the knowledge of the Bank, none of its directors and senior executives has been subject of
the following:

(a) bankruptcy petition by or against any business of which such director was a general
partner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two (2) years prior
to that time;

(b) a conviction by final judgment, in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or being
subject to a pending criminal proceedzng, domestic or foreign;

(c) to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of
any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of
business, securities, commodities or banking activities;

(d) being found by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action); the
Commission or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign Exchange or other
organized frading, market or self-regulatory organization, to have. violated the securities or
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commodities law or regulatlon and the ;udgment has not been reversed, suspended or

vacated. .

ltem 10. Executive Compensation

1)

2)

President and four (4) most highly compensated executive officers:

in million pesos Year Salary Bonuses Other Anmgal
Compensation -
President and four (4) 2009 (estimate) 61.27 30.55 n.a.
most highty 2008 55.70 27.77 n.a.
compensated ‘
executive officers 2007 49.58 22.84 na.
Year Name Pasition/Title
Nestor V. Tan President
Antonio C. Cotoco SEVP
2008 Walter C. Wassmer SEVP
Eduardo V. Francisco EVP
Rolando C. Tanchanco EVP
Nestor V. Tan President
Antanio C. Cotoco: SEVP
2007 Walter C. Wassmer SEVP
Eduardo V. Francisco EVP
Rolando C. Tanchanco EVP

The above compensation includes the usual bonus paid to bank officers. Except for salaries,
allowances, retirement benefits provided under the Bank’s refirement plan, and company-wide
benefit extendad to all qualified employees under the Bank's stock option plan, there is no
separate stock option, stock wairant or other security compensation arrangement between the

Bank and its individual officers.

Compensation of Directors and Officers-as a Group -

in million pesos, Year . Salary Bonhuses é)ot ;;reﬁ!;gtl;z;
Aggregate Officers. (from 2009 (estimate) 302.63 150.81 n.a.
senior vice presidents) & 2008 275.12 137.10 n.a.
Directors 2007 250.14 118.01 n.a.

Each director shall receive a reasonable per diem for attendance in every Board meeting.
Furthermore, every member of the Board may receive as compensation such amount as may
be determined by the President. As provided by law, the total compensation of directors shall
not exceed ten percent (10%) of the net income before income tax of the Bank during the

preceding year.
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Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control
Arrangements . ‘ ‘

There are no special contracts of employment between the Bank and the named directors and
executive officers, as welf as special compensatory plans or arrangements, including payment
to be received from the Bank with respect to any named director or executive officer.

ltem 11, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficlal Owners and Management

1)

2)

Security Ownership of Certain Record/Beneficial Owners

As of December 31, 2008, the following are known to the Bank to be directly or indirec%ly the
record andfor beneficial owners of more than 5% of the Bank’s voting Securities: '

Name of Beneficial Owner

Class No. of Shares Percentage
Common  SM Investments Corp. _ 639,130,302 27.76%
Common  PCD Nominee Corp. (Non-Filipino) 470,939,545 20.46%
Common  DBMN OT-024 Sybase Equity Investment 338,129,257 14.69%

Corp. : ‘
Common  DBMN OT-024 SM Investments Corp. 208,097.814. 9.04%
~ Common  DBMN OT-024 Multi Realty Corp. 133,686,766 5.81%
Total 1,789,983,684 71.76%

Security Ownership of Management

As of December 31, 2008, the total number of shares owned by the directors and
management of the registrant as a group unnamed is 1,126,149 common shares, which is
equivalent to 0.0483% of the total outstanding common capital stock of the registrant. The
Bank's directors and officers own the following common shares of the. Bank:

Name of Beneficial

Title of Position - Citizenship No. of Percent of
- Class Owner Shares Class

Common Teresita T. Sy Chairperson Filipino 240,400 0.0104%
Common Corazon S. dela Paz Vice Chairperson  Filipino . 270 0.0000%
Common Jesus A Jacinto Jr. . Director Filipino - 255,000 0.0111%
Common:  Christopher Bell-Knight  Director Canadian 100 0.0000%
Common  Teodoro B. Montecillo ~ . Director Filipino 640 0.0000%
Common Henry 7. Sy, Jr. Director Filipino 132,300 0.0057%
Common JosefinaN. Tan - Director Filipino 154,786 0.0067%
Common Nestor V. Tan Director * Filipino 200,000 0.0087%
Common Jimmy T. Tang Director Filipino 13,602  0.0006%
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No.of -

Title of Name of Beneficial ~ Position Citizenship Percent of
Class Owner ‘ Shares Class

Common  Antonio C. Pacis Director Filipino 4,108 0.0002%
Common Lee Wai Fai Director Filipino - 1 0.0000%

Common Pedro M. Florescio Il EVP{Treasurer Filipino 4,000 0.0002%
Common Eduardo V. Francisco EVP Filipino 48,000 .0.0021%
Common Aristotle L. Villaraza EVP Filipino 10,000 0.0004%
Common. L. Jerome C. Guevarra.  SVP Filipino 2,495 0.0001%
Common Francisco P. Ramos SVP Filinino 1,873 0.0001%
Common Beatriz L. Bagsit SVP Filipino 1,350 0.0001%
Common. Ma. Ophelia Ll Camifia  SVP Filivino 1,207 0.0001%
Common Ma. Lourdes De Vera SVP Filipino 5,147 0.0002%
Common Ruby G. Lim SVYP Filipino 10,000 0.0004%
Common. Lesmes L. Garate SVP Filipino. 723 0.0000%
Common Nenita C. Indiongco SVP Filipino 558 0.0000%
Common Ma. Elena L. Jao SVP Filipino. 723 - 0.0000%
Common Jeanette S. Javellana SVP Filipino 414 0.0000%
Common Emerenciana H. Luistro  SVP Filipino 3,726 0,0002%
Common Domingo A Ramos SVP Fifipinc. 93 0.0000%
. Common Erlaster C. Sotto SVP Filipino 723 0.0000%
Common Grace A. Sumalpong SVP | Filipino 162 0.0000%
Common Rebecca S. Torres SVP Filipino 16,340 0.0007%
Common  Edmundo L. Tan FyP Filipino 828 0.0000%
Common Victor C. Arboleda FVP Filipino 4,140 0.0002%
1,113,799 0.0484%

{Note: Thers are no voting trust shares or shares issued pursuant to & Voting Trust
Agreement registered with the Bank nor has there been any- change in controf of the Bank.
The Bank is also not aware of any confractual arrangement or otherwise between its
shareholders and/or third parties, which may result in change in control of the Bank.)

ltem 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has loan transactions with its affiliates and with certain
directors, officers, stockholders and refated interests (DOSRI). Under existing policies of the Bank
these loans are made on substantially the same terms as loans to other individuals and businesses of
comparable risks. Under the General Banking Act and BSP regulations, the total outstanding loans,
other credit accommodations and guarantees to each of the Bank's DOSRI shalf be limited to an
amount equivalent to their respective unencumbered deposits and book value of their paid-in capital
contribution in the Bank. Unsecured loans, other credit accommodations and guarantees to each of
the Bank's DOSRI shall not exceed thirty percent (30%). of their respective total loans, other credit
accommodations and guarantees.

75



Except .with the prior approval of the Monetary Board, the total ocutstanding loans, other credit
accommodations and guarantees to the Bank's DOSRI shali not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the
total loan portfolio of the Bank or one hundred percent (100%) of net worth whichever is lower. The
" total unsecured loans, other credit accommodations and guarantees to the Bank's DOSRI shall not
exceed thirty percent (30%) of the aggregate cefling or the outstanding loans, other credit
accommodations and guarantees, whichever is lower. For the purpose of determining compliance with
the ceiling on unsecured loans, Banks shall be allowed to average their ceiling on unsecured loans,
other credit accommodations and guarantees every quarter.

PART IV - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ltem 13. Cbrp_orafe Governance

a)

Evaluation System

The Bank has required in its Manual of Corporate Governance that all Board-created
committees shall report regularly to. the Board of Directors on compliance with the Manual's
policies and procedures. The Bank’s Board of Directors is directed to designate a responsible
officer of the Bank to establish an evaluation system to determine and measure compliance
with the Manual. -

As part of its increasing focus on corporate governance, the Bank established its Audit
Committes and Corporate Governance Committee. The Audit Committee provides oversight of
the Bank's internal and external auditors. It is responsible for the setting up of the internal audit
department and for the appointment of the internal auditor as well as the independent external
auditor: It monitors and evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank's internal
control systems. The audit committee is chaired by Teodoro B. Montecillo. Its other members
are Corazon de la Paz; Henry T, Sy, Jr., Jimmy T. Tang, Christopher A. Bell-Knight, Nazario S.
Cabuquit, Jr., (Adviser), Jesus G. Tirona (Adviser), and Shirley M. Sangalang (Adviser).

The Corporate Governance Committee assists the Board of Directors in shaping the bank’s
corporate governance policies and practices, recommending -applicable guidelines and
monitoring compliance with said policies and practices. It monitors the Board of Directors’
offectiveness and due observance of governance principles and guidelines. It also oversees
the annual performance self-evaluation of the Board of Directors, its committees, and
executive’ management. The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Teodoro B.
Montecillo. Its other members are Christopher A. Bell-Knight, Jesus A. Jacinto Jr., Nazario S
Cabuquit, Jr., Jimmy T. Tang, and Antonio C. Pacis (Adviser). A
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b)

d)

Measures on leading practices of good-corporate governance

The Bank is constantly examihing: leading practices on good corporate governance,
particularly by taking advantage of its partnership with the International Finance Corporation,
the private arm of the World Bank, and where appropriate, adopts said practices in its Manual.

| Any deviation from the Manual

None
Improvement
The Bank has adopted the policy of reviewing its Manual on an annual basis at the Board level

with the ‘aim of constantly improving its corporate governance.

PART V- EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

ftem 14. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C

a)  Exhibits
The following exhibits are filed as a separate section of this report;
Exhibit 1. Subsidiaries of the Registrant
Exhibit 2. Branches as of December 31, 2008
b) The summary of reports on SEC Form 17-C (Current Reporf) filed in 2008 is as follows:
Date o ~ Subject
31 January 2008 Statement of Condition of BDO, consolidated statement of condition
of BDO and its financial subsidiaries, and the statement of condition
of Equitable Savings Bank, all as of December 31, 2007
12 February 2008 Clarification on the news article “Banco de Oro name Switch Ok'd by
the SEC”
13 February 2008 Holding of annual shareholders’ meeting of BDO on May 9, 2008
' with March 31, 2008 as the Record Date for the meeting; fixing:
March 26, 2008 as the last day for submission of nominations for
_ directors _ |
28 February 2008 Results of Board Meeting: (1) public issuance of unsecured
Subordinated debt eligible as Lower Tier 2 capital; (2) merger of
Equitable Savings Bank with BDO; and (3) record and payment
dates for the P0.80 per share Cash Dividend Fixed
24 April 2008 Change of name of American Express Bank Philippines (A Savings
Bank), Inc. to BDO Elite Savings Bank, Inc.
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24 April 2008

Clarification on news article entitled “Banco De Oro Targets Higher
Growth in ‘08"

30 April 2008

Declaration of cash dividend of PQ.80 per common shares of BDO

7 May 2008

Submission of statement of Condition of Banco De Cro Unibank,
Inc. as of 31 March 2008 fo be published in a newspaperof ger;eral
circulation

9 May 2008 .

Release of press statement on results of operatlon for the first
quarter of 2008.

9 May 2008

2008 Income Statement Guidance

16 May 2008

Redemption Notice for Equitable PCI Bank, Inc. US$200 million
9.375% Subordinated Notes due 203 Callable Wit Step-up in 2008

1SIN: X50168267580

12 May 2008

Results of annual shareholders’ meeting and orgamzatlonal meeting
of the Board of Directors

30 June 2008

Resignation of Mr. Terence Ong Sea Eng, Director, effectwe June
28, 2008: election of Mr. Lee Wai Fai as Director effective June 28,
2008; appointment of Ms. Melanie S. Belen as Senior Vice
President, Credit Risk Management, effective July 16, 2008;
designation of Ms. Maria Elena Jao, Senior Vice President as
Information Security Officer; Promotion of Mr. Norman Lee as Senfor
Vice President, Hong Kong branch, effective Juty 1, 2008;
appointment of Mr. Roberto E. Lapid as President of BDO Leasing
and Finance, Inc.

Authority of Management to raise dollar funding fro international |
capital markets to address balance sheet position including
refinancing of maturing senior notes

1 July 2008

Clarification on the news article “BDO éyes $150M fresh capital’

1 August 2008

Submission of Statement of Condition of Banco De Oro Unibank,
inc. as of 30 June 2008 to be published in a newspaper of general
circulation

4 August 2008

Resignation of Ms. Marili M. Tioseco, Senior Vice President,
Consumer Lending Group — Merchant Support, effective August 1,
2008, and Mr. Emesto T. Uy, Senior Vice President, Institutional
Banking Group — Commercial Banksﬂg Metro Manila, effective
August 15, 2008

Fixing of record date and payment date of the P0.80 per share cash
dividends declared on April 30, 2008 to common shareholders on
August 18, 2008 and September 11, 2008, respectively

Approval of the declaration of the semi-annual cash dividends on
Preferred Shares Series B at the rate of 6.5% per annum payable in
U.S. dollars
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22 August 2008

Amendments to Article Seven of the Articles of Incorporation of BDO |

(creation of Series A Preferred Shares); amendment to Section 17
of BDO's By-laws (adiustment in the nomination period)

1 September 2008

Board approval of the issuance of up to 500 miffion Series A
Preferred Shares and the terms and conditions of the issuance

Merger of BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc. and EBC Insurance -
Brokerage, Inc.

1 September 2008

Resignation of Ms. Judy S. Tan Senior Vice PreSIdent !nforma’uon
Technology Development, effective August 16, 2008; appoiniment
of Ms. Edel Mary D. Vegamora as Senior Vice President and Head
of Internal Audit, effective September 10, 2008, extension of
services of Ms, Antonina M. Cabuyadao, Senior Vice President, in
her capacity as Division Head for Branch Banking Group — Region
Head Office — Region 6 — Metro Manila South, from August 1, 2008
to July 31, 2009

2 September 2008 Additional Information on the approval by he Board of Directors of
the issuance of up fo 500 million Series A Preferred Shares

9 September 2008 Approval of the merger of Equitable Data Center, Inc. and PCI
Automation Center, Inc.

15 September 2008 Setting aside of provisions totaling P3. 8 Billion to cover exposure to
Lehman Brothers

19 September 2008 Gross Exposure of US$134 Million to Lehman Brothers Holdings,
Inc.

30 September 2008 Issuance of 500,000,000 'pe:petual, votlng, non-cumulative,
convertible, non-participating, Peso-denominated Series A Preferred
Shares with par value of P10.00 per share

10 October 2008 Appraval by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas of the 4-way merger of
Banco De Oro Unibank, and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, thrift
banks, Equitable Savings Bank and BDO Elite Savings Bank and

' investment house, PCI Capital Corporation

13 Qctober 2008 Clarification of the news article “SMIC confirms inferest in Phllamllfe”

24 October 2008 Submission of Statement of Condition of Banco De Oro Unibank,
Inc. as of 30 September 30, 2008 fo be publlshed ina newspaper of
general circulation

27 October 2008 Resignation of Mr. Jose Emmanuel U. Hilado, Semor Vice

President, Treasury Group (Portfolio Management) effective
October 10, 2008

11 December 2008

Clarification on the news article “BDO positicns for Phitamlife
through General®

12 January 2009 Results of Board Meeting - Setting of the Bank's Annual
Shareholders’ Meeting for May 29, 2009
27 January 2009 Clarification on the news article "BDO Capital eyes debt-raising”

29 January 2009

Clarification on the news article “BDO faces gloomy eammgs
prospects’ '
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2 February 2009

Results of Board Meeting - Fixing April 3, 2009 as record date for
BDO's 2009 Annual Shareholders' Meeting; Issuance of 349 franche
of Unsecured Subordinated Debt qualifying as Tier 2 Capital; Rights
Offering; Listing of the underlying common shares of the Bank's

' outstanding convertible Series A Preferred Shares

2 February 2009

Release of press statement on the offer of new shares, Tier 2 Notes
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Exhibit 1. SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Philippine Subsidiaries

% Interest Held

BDO Private Bank, Inc. (BDO Private) 100%
BDO Leasing and Finance, Inc. 85%
EBC Strategic Holdings Corporation (ESHC) . 100%
EBC Investments, Inc. (EBCID) 100%
PCIB Properties, Inc. 100%
BDO Capital & Investment Corporation (BDO Capital) 100%
BDO Financial Services, Inc. 100%
BDO Technology Center, Inc. (BDO Technology}- 100%
Equimark - NFC Development Corp. 60%
BDO Realty Corporation 100%
- PCIB Securities, Inc. 100%
PCI Realty Corporation 100%
BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc. (BDO Insurance} 100%
PCI Insurance Brokers, Inc. (PCl Insurance) - 100%

Foreign Subsidiaries

% Interest Held

PC| Express Padala (HK) Lid. 100%
PCIB Europe, SP.A 100%
Express Padala HK Lid. 100%
Express Padala (USA)}, Inc. -100%
Express Padala Frankfurt GbmH _ 100%
Equitable PCI Express Padala (Nederland) B.V. 100%

82



Exhibit 2. BRANCHES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2008

BRANCH NAME

BRANCH ADDRESS

A. Amaiz - San Lorenzo Village

'L&RBldg., 1018 A. Amaiz Avenue, Makati City

A. Santos — South Expressway

Units E & F, 8385 Dr. A. Santos Avenue, Parafiaque, MM

A Santos — St. James

8405 A. Santos Avenue, Sucat, Parafiague City 1700

B ooipo—

Abra ~ Bangued

Unit 12, The Rosario Bldg., Taft St. comer Magallanes St., 2800
Bagued, Abra

ABS CBN - Mother Ignacia St

Stall No. 25 South Wing, G/F ELJCC Bldg. Sgt. E. A Esguerra Avenue
corner Mother Ignacia St., Quezon City

Acropolis - E. Rodriguez

G/F ACO Bldg., 191 E. Rodriguez Jr. Avenue, Bagumbayan, Quezon
City

7 ADB Avenue Ortigas ‘Robinson's PCIBank Tower, ADB Avenue Ortigas Center, 1600 Pasig
Gty
8 Agno - Banawe 202-204 Banawe corner Agno ST., 1103 Quezon City

9  Airport Road Airport Road corner Quirino Avenue, Baclaran, Parafague City
10 Aklan - Kalibo Along XIX Martyrs St., Kalibo, Aklan '
11 Alabang West Service Road, Alabang, Muntinlupa
12 Alabang Hills RBC Corporate Centre, Don Jesus Blvd. Barangay Cupang, Muntinfupa
13 Aibay — Daraga Rizal St., 4501 Daraga, Albay
14  Albay - Tabaco . Along Ziga Avenue, Tabaco, Albay
15  Alfaro - Unit#2 G/F Chatham House, Herrera St. corner Valero & San Agustin

) ‘ 8t,, Salcedo Village, Makati City

16 Alfaro — Salcedo Village GIF PCCI Bldg., 118 Leviste St. (formerly Alfaro St.), Salcedo Village,

Makati City

17 Amorsolo G/F Queensway Bldg No. 118 Amorsolo St. Legaspi Vlglage Makati |
‘ City
18  Angeles — Balibago GIF Lawrence Plaza, McArthur. H!ghway near corner Charlot St.,
‘ Balibago, Angeles City
19 Angeles - Sto. Rosario Plaza Rafael |, 151-D Sto. Rosario St., Sto. Domingo, Angeles City
20 Angeles City - Nepo Mart GIF Angeles Business Center, Teresa Avenue, Nepo Mart Complex,
_ Angeles City ‘
21 Angeles City — Miranda PCIB Bldg., Miranda St. 2009 Angeles City, Pampanga
22 Angeles-MacArthur Highway GIF Excelsior Bldg. 314 MacArthur Highway, Barangay Claro M. Recto,
_ Angeles City
23 Angono - M.L. Quezon Avenue GF AB Commercial Bldg., M.L. Quezon Avenue, Barangay San Isidro,
Angono, Rizal
24 Anonas Manahan Bldg. Aurora Blvd. comer Anonas Avenue, Quezon City
25 Anonas - Kamias Security Bank Bldg., Anonas St. comer K-6 St. East Kamias, 1102
“““ ' Quezon City
26 Antipolo - Circumferential Road Circumferential Road comer F. Manalo St., Antipolo City
27 _ Antipolo - Sumuleng Highway BDO Bldg., Sumulong Highway, Masinag, Mayamot, Antipolo
28  Antipolo Masinag Trinolee Bldg. Marcos Highway near corner Sumulong Highway,

Mayamot, Antipolo




29 Antinolo Plaza

Gatsby Bidg. Il M. L. Quazon St. Antipolo

30 Anfique

Corner Gov. Villavert St. & Gov. Gella St.,, San Jose, Antique 5700

31 Apalit—Pampanga

G/F Quintos Bldg., McArthur Highway, San Vicente, Apalit, Pampanga

32 Aparrl - Rizal St.

Rizal St. corner R.F Balisi St., Aparri, Cagayan

33 Aranque

1359-1361 Soler St. Sta. Cruz, Manila_

34 Arranque - T. Alonzo

733 T. Alonizo 8t., Manila

35 Asia Tower — Paseo

G/F Asia Tower corner Paseo de Roxas & Bena\ndez St., 1229 Makati
City

36 Aurora Blvd,

Aurora Blvd. corner Yale St. Cubao, Quezon City

37 Aurora Blvd. - Notre Dame

0137 Aurora Bivd. corer Notre Dame St. Cubao, 1110 Quezon City

38 Ayala- Rufino

G/F Rufino Bldg. Ayala Avenue corner Herrera St., 1226 Makati City

39 Ayala Alabang

G/F Condominium C Unioil Center ‘Bldg. Acacia Avenue cormer
Commerce Avenue, Ayala Alabang, Muntinlupa

40  Ayala Alabang ~ Richville

Richville Center 1314 Commerce Avenus Extensmn Madrigal Business

Park, Ayala Alabang, Muntunlipa__

41  Ayala Avenue

GIF People Support Center, Amorsolo St. comer Ayala Avenue, Makati
City

42  Ayala Triangle 1

GM-B G/F Tower 1, Ayala Tr;angle Ayala Avenue, Makati ity

43 Baclaran

2987 Taft Avenue Extension, Pasay City

44 Baclaran - Redemptorist Road

Redemptorist Road, Baclaran, Parafiaque, MM

45  Bacolod — Capitol Shopping

Benigno Aquino Drive, Capitol Shopping, 6100 Bacolod City, Negros
Occidental

46 Bacolod — Gatuslao

" 26 & 28 Gov. V. Gatuslac St., Bacolod City, Negros Occidental

47 Bacolod — Hilado

Hilado comer F.Y. Manalo St. 6100 Bacolod Clty Negros Occidental

48 Bacolod - Lacson

Lacson comer Galo St., 6100 Bacolod City, Negros Occidental

49 Bacolod - Lopues's East

Unit 24 & 25 Lopue's East Center, Carlos Hilado National Highway,

Barangay Villamonte, Bacolod City

50 Bacolod - Mandalagan

GIF Sta, Clara estate Bldg., Lacson St Mandalagan, Bacolod City

51 Bacolod - Rosario Lacson

Lot 296-B-7, Lacson St. corner Rosario St., Bacolod City, Negros
Occidental-

52 Bacolod Araneta

-Cineplex Complex Araneta St. Bacolod City

53 Bacolod Gonzaga

Gonzaga-Lopez Enterprise Bldg. Gonzaga St. Bacolod City

54 Bacolod Plaza

Araneta corer Gonzaga St., 6100 Bacolod City, Negros Occidental

55 Bacoor

_Cavite

FRC Mall Gen. Evangelista St. near corner Zapote-Rotonda, Bacoor,

56 Bacoor — Aguinaldo Highway

" Gen. E. Aguinaldo Highway, Panapaan, Bacoor, Cavite

57 Bagtican — Pasong Tamo

Unit 102 GfF Pryce Center Condominium 1179 Chine Roces Avenue
corner Bagtican St. San Antonio Village, Makati City

58 Baguio

Luneta Hill comer Gov. Pack Road, Session Road, Baguio City

59. Baguio — Abanao Square’

Abanao Square, Abanao corner Zandueta St., Baguio City

60 Baguio - Legarda

Our Lady-of Fatima Bldg. Yandoc-St. Kayang Extension, Baguio City
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61

Baguio — Session Road

GIF National Life Bldg., Session Road, Baguio City

62 Balanga - A. Banzon - A. Banzon St,, City of Balanga, 2100 Bataan

63 Baliuag Corner Rizal & Tagle St. Baliuag, Bulacan

64 Baliwag - J.P. Rizal J.P. Rizal St San Jose, Baliwag, Bulacan

85 Banawe — Amoranto 650 N, S. Amoranto Avenue coner Banawe St,, Quezon City

66 Banawe — N. Roxas 71 Nicanor Roxas St. corner Banawe St., Quezon City

67 Banawe-Kitanlad - 23-25 Banawe comer Kitanlad, Quezon City

68 Batac —Washington Aoigan Bldg., Washington St,, Batac 2906 llocos Norte

69 Batangas - Balayan . Antorcha St., Balayan, Batangas o

70 Batangas — Bauan Kapitan Ponso St., Bauan, Batangas

71 Batangas — Kumintang Along National nghway, Barangay Kumintang, llaya, Batangas Clty,

‘ Bafangas

72 Batangas — Lemery llustre Avenue corner Lakandula St., Lemery, Batangas

73 Batangas - Pallocan West Manuela Pastor Avenue, Pallocan West, Batangas City

74 Batangas- San Juan Marasigan corner Kalayaan St.,, San Juan, Batangas

75 Batangas — Sto. Tomas ~ Maharlika Highway, San Antonio, Sto. Tomas, Batangas

76 Batangas City — Rizal Avenue Rizal Avenue cormer P. Burgos St., 4200 Batangas, Batangas City

77 Batangas-P. Burgos CM llagan Bldg. P. Burgos St. Batangas Clty

78 Bcaolod - Goldenfield Goldenﬂeld Commercial Complex, Smgcang, Araneta St., Bacolod City

79 Beacon Plaza — Shaw Blvd. UG 105-UG 106 Beacon Plaza, Shaw Blvd. Comner Ideal St.,

- Mandaluyong City
80 Bel-Air G/F SM Makati Cyberzone 1 a!ong Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati Clty
81 Bel-Air- Gil Puyat Country Space | Condominium Bldg., Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Bel-Air
I Village, 1209, Makati City

82 Benguet - La Trinidad S & B Bldg., Km. 4 Balilli, 2601 La Triniciad, Benguet

83 Better Living Dofia Soledad Avenue cormer France St., Better Living, Parafiaque City

84 Better Living — Bicutan 43 Dofia Soledad Avenue, Better Living Subdivision, Don Bosco,

_Parafiaque, Metro Manila
85 BF Homes - Aguirre: RGM Bldg., 326 Agulrre Avenue, BF Homes, Paranaque
86 BF Homes-Parahaque 65 President's Avenue Plaza near corner Aguirre Avenus, BF Homes
' ' Parafiaque City
" 87 Bicutan — South Super Highway Columbian Motars Compound, K 16 West Service Road, South Super
Highway, '
Bicutan 1700 Parafiague, MM

88 Big R-Robinson's — Novaliches Level 1 Big R Lobby, Robinson's Place, Novaiiches, Quirino Highway,
Quezon City

89 Bifian A, Bonifacio St. Barrio Canlalay, Bifian, i:gguna

90 Bifian - A. Mabini Rey Bldg., A. Mabini St., Poblacion, 4024 Bifian, Laguna

91 Bifan- San Antonio Km. 35 National Highway, San Antonio, Bifian , Laguna

92 Binondo 411 Quintin Paredes St. Bihondo, Manila

93  Blumentritt - 2325 Rizal Avenue corner Antipolo St. Sta. Cruz, Manila

94  Blumentritt — San Juan Lot 11-B, Block 127 Blumentritt corner Sto. Toribio St. San Juan, Metro
Manila

95 Bocaue MacArthur Highway, Barangay Bifiang 1st, Bocaue, Butacan
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129

9% Bohol - Taghilaran CP Garcia Avenue, 56300 Taghilaran City, Bohol
97 Boni Avenue - 74 Maysilo Circle corner Boni Avenue, Mandaluyong City -
98 Bonifacio Globai City Space No. 101 Market Market, Bonifacio Global C:ty, Fort Bomfamo
' Taguig, MM
99 Brixton Hill - G. Araneta G/F 1LO Bldg. 195 G. Araneta Avenue, Quezon City
100 Broadway Centrum — Aurora Blvd. ~ Broadway Centrum Condominfum, Aurora bivd comer Dofia Juana
Rodriquez St., 1112 Valencia, Quezon Clty '
101 Buendia-Taft 317 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Pasay City
102 Bukidnon - Valencia M.L. Quezon St. comer G. Lavifa Avenue, Valencia City, Bukldnon
‘ 8709
103 Bulacan - Balagtas McArthur Highway, Barangay San Juan, 3016 Balagtas, Bulacan
104 Bulacan - Hagonoy. GIF Ang Puso ng Hagonoy Shopping Center Plaza, Hagonoy, Bulacan
105 Bulacan - Pulilan Junction Dofia Remedios Trinidad Highway, Sto. Cristo, Pulilan, Bulacan
106 Bulacan - San Rafael Km. 60, Cagayan Valley Road, Cruz na Daan, San Rafael, Bulacan
107 Bulacan ~ Sta. Maria M. D¢ Leon St., Pablacion,, 3022 Sta. Maria, Bufacan
108 . Butuan - J.C. Aquino Avenue D & V Plaza 1l Bldg. J. C. Aquino Avenue, Butuann City
109  Butuan - Montilla Montilla Bivd. near comer Lopez Jaena St Butuan City, Agusan Del -
Norte '
110 C. Palanca — Quiapo 132 Carlos Palanca St. Quiapo, Manila
111 C.M. Recto CM Recto Avenue comer Nicanor Reyes St. Manila
112 C.M. Recto— Reina Regente 1059 CM Recto Avenue corner Reina Regente St., Binondo, Manila
113 C.M. Recto — San Sebastian 2070 C.M. Récto St., 1008 Sampaloc, Manila
114 C5 - Taguig G/F Rldgewood Square, C-5 Avenue, Ususan, Taguig City
115 Cabanatuan “Melencio corner Paco Roman St. Cabanatuan City
~ 116 Cabanatuan — Maharlika Road Maharlika Road, near comer Sanciangco St., Cabanatuan City
117  Cabanatuan — Megacenter Mall Unit 49-B UGIF Megacenter The Mall Gen. Tinio & Melencio St.,
Cabanatuan City
118 Cabanatuan — NE Pacific Mall Ground Level, Unit CM-2 {Mall Entrance 2}, NE Pacific Mall, Km.111,
' ‘ ; Maharlika Highway, Cabanatuan City, Nueva Eczja
119 Cabanatuan — Sanciangco __ Sanciangeo St,, Cabantuan City
120 Cagayan de Oro — Carmen Max Y. Suniel St. comer V. Neri St., Carmen, Cagayan de Oro
121 Cagayan De Oro - CM Recto  BDO Bldg., Claro M. Recto Avenue, Cagayan de Oro City, 9000
122 Cagayan de Oro —Hayes GIF Trendline Dept. Store., Arch. James Hayes St,, Cogon, Cagayan
de Oro City
123 Cagayan de Oro - Lapasan. C.M. Reclo H|ghway, Lapasan, 9000 cagayan de Oro Clty, Misamis
‘ ' COriental
124 Cagayan de Oro — Osmefia Pres. S. Osmefia corner Ramon Chavez St., Cogon, 0G0 Cagayan de
Oro, Misamis Oriental
125 Cagayan de Oro - Velez Velez Road corner Abejuela 8t, Cagayan de Oro
126 Cagayan de Oro-Cogon J.R. Borja St, Cogon, Cagayan de Oro City
127 Cagayan de Oro-Xavier Library Annex Bldg. Corrales Avenue, Cagayan de Oro City
128 Cainta ' Hipolito Bldg. Ortigas Avenus Extension, Cainta Junctlon Cainta, Rizal
Cainta - A. Bonifacio Ave. Ledor Commercial Center. A. Bonifcaio Avenue corner Samonte St,,

‘Barangay San Juan, Cainta, Rizal
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- 130 Calamba J. Alcasid Business Center Bldg. National Highway, Crossing,
_ Calamba, Laguna
131 Calamba Crossing = North Calamba Crossing National nghway, 4027 Calamba, Laguna
132 Calamba-Parian Old National Highway, Sta. Cecilia Village, Parian, Calamba, Laguna
133 Caloocan Rizal Avenue Extension near corner 11th Avenue, Grace Park,
‘ Caloocan City

134 Caloocan - Sangandaan No. 628 A. Mabini St., 1408 Sangandaan Caloocan Clty

135 Caloocan-7th Avenue Rizal Avenue Extension corner 7th Avenue, Caloocan City
136 Caloocan-A. Mabhini G/F Corazon Bldg. 432 A. Mabini St. Poblacion Caloocan City
137 Camarines Norte — Daet J. Lukban St. corner Moreno St., Pobalcion, Daet, Camarines Norte
138 Camarines-Sur - Pili Santiago, Pili, Camarines Sur
139 Capitol - Pasig 125 Shaw Blvd. Corner Danny Floro St., Pa3|g City
140 _Carmen Planas _ 812 O' Racca Bldg. Carmen Planas St. Divisoria, Manila
141 Carmen Planas — Padre Rada 1033-1035 C, Planas St. 1012 Tondo, Manila -
142 Carmen Planas — Zaragosa 921 Carmen Planas St. corner Zaragosa St., Tondo, Manila
143  Carmona — Governor's Drive Motorola Philippines, Inc. Compound, Carmona National Road, Barrio

_ Maduya, 4116 Carmona, Cavite

144 Cash & Canry GIF Unit No. GO1A, Cash & Carry Mall, South Super Highway &

________ , Filmore St.,, Makati City
145 Catanduanes — Virac San Juan corner Rizal St., 4800 Virac; Catanduanes
146 Cavite ~ Dasmarifias Techno Park  Govemar's Drive, Barangay Paliparan 1, Dasmarifas, Cavite
147 Cavite—EPZA Cavite EPZA Compound, 4106 Rosario, Cavite
148  Cavite ~ Trece Martires El Paseo Arcade, Indang-Trece Road near corner Governor's Drive,

Trece Martires City, Cavite
149 Cavite City — P. Burgos “Corner P. Burgos & P. Julic St,, Caridad, 4100 Cavite City _
150 Cebu = Ayala Business Park Cebu Towers, Mindanao corner Bohol Avenue,. Cebu Business Park,
e ' _Cebu City
151  Cebu - Ayala Center Stall 286A, Level 2, West Entry, Ayala Center Mall, Cebu, Cebu
Business Park, Cebu City 6000 ,

152 Cehu - Banilad GIF PDI Condominium, Gov. Cuenco Avenue, Banilad, Cebu City
153 Cebu - Bogo P. Rodriquez comer San Vicente St 6010 Bogo, Cebu City
154 Cebu - Borromeo Borromeo corner Magallanes St,, Cebu City -
155 Cebu - Capitol Osmefia Blvd Corner Ma. Cristina $t., 6000 Cebu City, Cebu
156 Cebu - Conpsolacion GIF Annex Bldg., Fooda Saversmart, Consolacion, Cebu
157 Cebu~F. Gonzales F. Gonzales corner Magallanes St., Cebu City
158 Cebu - F. Ramos 134 Borromeo Bldg., F. Ramos cormer Arfington Pond, Cebu-City

" 159 Cebu~—Fuente Circle Fuente Osmefia Rotunda, Cebu City
160 Cebu - Gorordo Gorordo Avenue, Lahug 6000, cebu City, Cebu
161 Cebu - Juan Luna Gokongwei Bldg., Osmefia Blvd, Comer Lapu-apu St, Cebu City
162 Cebu — Magallanes Plaridel Magallanes corner Plaridel St., 8000 Cebu City
163 Cebu-MEZ Il Unit 204 NGA Bidg. 2, Pueblo Verde MEZ |1, Basak, Lapu lapu City
164 Cebu - North Mandaue National H|ghway, Mandaue Clty
165 Cebu - North Reclamation Block 20-A corner Port Centre Avenue & Juan Luna Avenue, North

' Reclamation Area, cebu City

166 Cebu - North Road National Highway, labogon Mandaue City, Cebu
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167

Cebu - Parkmall

Units 29-31 Parkmall No. 168 Quano Avenue, Mandaue Reclamation
Road, Mandaue City, Cebu

168

Cebu - Salinas Drive

117 Gorordo Avenue, Lahug, Gebu City

169

National Highway, 6014 Mandaue City, Cebu

170

Cebu - South Mandaue
Cebu - Tabo-an '

T. Abella St., San Nicolas centrat 6000 Cebu City

171

Cebu Banilad - Talamban

GovernorM Cuenco Banilad, Cebu Clty

172

Cebu Cuenco

173

Cehu Elizabeth Mall

GIF EI;zabeth Mall Leon Kilat comer South Expressway, Cebu City

174

Cebu Escario

- Cebu Escario St. Cebu City

175

Cebu Legaspi

Legaspi corner Zamora St. Cebu City

176

Cebu Magallanes

Plaridel St. corner Magallanes St. Cebu City’

177

Cebu Mandaue

La Fuerza Compound, Subangdaku, Mandaue City

178

Cebu Osmefia

Osmefia Blvd. Cormer Urgello St. Cebu City

179

Cebu Tabunok

PBS Bldg. 2688 National Highway, Tabunok, Talisay, Cebu City

180 Cebu-A. S, Fortuna G/F Tanaka Bldg. 869 A. S. Fortuna St. Banilad, Mandaue City
181 Cebu-Fuente ~_J.Rodriguez St. Fuente Osmefia, Rotonda, Cebu City
182 Central Market ~ V. Fugoso 1711V, Fugoso St. comer Sulu St., Sta. Cruz, Manila
183  Century Park — Adriatico Century Park Hotel, comer-Adriatico St. & Vito Cruz St., 1004 Malate
Manila ‘
184 Chino Roces / Avenue " Units 3 & 4 La Fuerza Plaza, Chino Roces, Makati City
185 Clark SEZ - Centennial Centennial Road, Clark Specia! Economic Zone Clarkfi eld Pampanga
186  Clarkfield SEZ - Puregold Puregold Duty Free (Expansion) Bldg. Claro M. Recto nghway
(formerly Dyess Highway) Clark Special Economic Zone, Clarkfield,
_ Pampanga
187 Commonwealth G/IF Teresita Bldg. Holy Spmt Drive, Don Antonio Heights, Quezon Ctty
7188 Commonwealth — Don Antonio ~ Don Antonio Sports Center, Don Antonio (former Holy Spirit Drive), Don

Antonio Heights Subdivision, Quezon City

Congressional - Mindanao Avenue

Congressional Avenue Extension comer Mindanao Avenue, Quezon
City

190 Con_gl*es'sional Avenue The Excelland System | Congressional Avenue, Quezon City
191 Connecticut 53 Connecticut St., Fox Square Bidg., National East Greenhills, San
Juan
192 Cordillera — Quezon Avenue No. 37 Quezon Avenue corrier Cordillera St., Guezon City

193

Corinthian Gardens

BDO:Leasing Center Crtigas Avenue,-Quezon City

194 Cotabato - Kabacan Rizal Avenue, National Highway, 9407 Kabacan, North Cotabato

195 Cotabato — Kidapawan Quezon Blvd., 9400 Kidapawan, North Cotabato

196 Cotabato — Makakua ~ Makakua St., 9600 Cotabato City, Maguindanao .~

197 Cotabato — Midsayap Jaycee St., 9410 Midsayap, North Cotabato

198 Cubao - General Araneta G/F Philamlife Cubao Bldg., Aurora Blvd. Corner Gen, Araneta Malvar

Avenue, Cubao, Quezon City

199

Dagupan

386 Perez Bivd. Dagupan City

200

Dagupan - Fernandez

A.B.Fernandez Avenue, 2400 Dagupan City, Pangasman

201

Dagupan - Tapuac

Units 8,9,10 Mother Goose Play School Bldg., MacArthur Highway,
Tapuac District, Dagupan City, Pangasinan
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G/F 'lf)tiévital-Bldg., Gen. Emilio Aguinaldo Highwe\fﬁersmariﬁas, Cavite

202 Dasmarifias— Aguinaldo Highway
203 _Dasmarifias-Cavite E. L. Toledo Bldg. Sampaloc |, Dasmarifias, Cavite
204 Dasmrifias St. - Binondo _ PCIBank Bldg., Dasmarifias St., Binondo, 1006 Manila
205 Davao - Agdao Lapu-lapu St., 8000 Agdao, Davao City
206 Davao - Bangoy R. Magsaysay Avenue comer C. bangoy St., 8000 Davag City
207 Davao - Buhangin Carlos P. Garcia Highway, Buhangin Diversion Road, Davao Clty
208 Davao - C.M. Recto 383 Claro M. Recto St., Davao City
209 Davao -Digos Rizal Avenue, Zone |}, Digos, Davao Del Sur
210 Davao - Lanang SJRDC Bldg. Insular Village 1 Commercial Area, Lanang, Davao City
211 Davao - Lizada ~ Ramon Magsaysay Avenue comer Lizada St., 8000 Davao City, Davao
del Sur '
212 Davao— Mati Rizal corner Mabini St., 8200 Matl Davao Oriental
213 Davao - Narra Tomas Monteverde Avenue comer Narra St., Davao City
214 Davao - Quirino Avenue Nicolas | Bldg., Quirino Avenue, 8000 Davao City
215 Davao — San Pedro G/F KDC Bldg. San Pedro St., Davao City, Davao del Sur
216 Davao - Sta. Ana Monteverde comer F. Bangoy St,, 8000 Davao City, Davao del Sur
217 Davao - Tagum 577 Rizal St., 8100 Tagum, Davao Def Norte -
218 Davao - Toril Agton St., Toril, Davao City :
219 Davao JP Laurel Landco-PDCP Corporate Center, JP Laurel Avenue Bajada, Davao
‘ City
220 Davao Magsaysay Ramon Magsaysay Avenue, Davao City
221 Davao-Monteverde G/F Sequoia Inn, Monteverde Avenue, Davao City
222 Davao-Rizal Caritas Bidg. Rizal St. corner Pelayo St,, Davao_City
223  Del Monte — Sienna 409 Del Monte Avenue, Quezon City 1105
224  Del Monte Avenue 63 Del Mante Aveeue Barangay Manresa, Quezon City
225 DelaRosa - Rada Ace Bldg., comer Dela Rosa & Rada St,, Legaspi Village, 1229 Makati
‘ ' City
226 Dian - Gil Puyat G/F EPCIB Bldg., Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue comer Dian St., Makai City
227 Diliman - Capitol Hills 18 Capitol Hills Drive, Old Balara, Diliman, Quezon City
| 228 Diliman - Matalino- G/F J &L bldg., Matalino St., Diliman, Quezon City
229 D!polog Quezon Avenue, 7100 Dlpolog City, Zamboanga Del Norte
230 Divisoria 744-746 Haya St. Tondo, Manila
- 23t DPC Place — Chino Roces GIF (unit 102) of DPC Place, 2322 Chino Roces Avenue, Makati City
232 Dr A Santos Avenue LT Bldg. Dr. A. Santos Avenue, Parafiaque City
233 Dumaguete Colon St., fronting Bldg. V of City, Public, Market, Poblacion 003
Dumaguete City
234 Dumaguete - Sta. Rosa Sta. Rosa St., Dumaguete City, Negros. Oriental
235 E Rodrigusz 1162 E. Rodriguez Sr. Avenue, New Manila, Quezon City
236 E. Rodriguez - Welcome Rotonda  GIF AEK Bldg., 40 E. Rodriguez Sr. Avenue, Don Manuel, Quezon City
237 Eastwood City ~ Libis G/F Techno Plaza One, Orchard Road, Eastwood City, Libis
238 Echague ' Nos. 116-120 C. Palanca St. Quiapo, Manila
239 EDSA-A.De Jesus

474 EDSA comer B. Serrano and A. De Jesus St., 1403 Caloocan City
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Unit 17-19 ANPN Plaza KM. 12 EDSA, Balintawak, Quezon City

240 EDSA - Balintawak
241 EDSA - East Galoocan L & E Bldg. EDSA comer Gen. Concepcion St, Caloocan City
242 ' EDSA —New Farmers Plaza 3F Concourse Area, New Farmers Plaza EDSA, Araneta Center,
_ : Quezon City
243 EDSA - Pasay 507 EDSA corner B. Garcia St., 1300 Pasay City
244 EDSA - POEA POEA Bldg., EDSA comer Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City
245 EDSA Cubao 596 Simeon Medalla Bldg. comer Gen. McArthur Avenue, EDSA,
‘ o ~ Quezon City
246 EDSA-Taft EDSA corner Zamora St. Pasay City
247 Elcano SHC Tower 619 Elcano St. San Nicolas, Manila
248 Emerald Avenue G/F Unit 101 Taipan Place, Don Francisco Ortigas Jr. Road, Pasig
249 Enterprise Center — Ayala Avenue 3 Level, Tower 1, The Enterprise Center, 6766 Ayala Avenue, Makati
City
250 Ermita — Adriatico Adriatico Executive Center, Adriatico St., Ermlta Manila
251 Espafa ' ~_Carmen Bldg. Espaia corner G. Tolenting St. Sampaloc, Manila
252 Espafia - Blumentritt 2101-2103 Espana Ave Cor. Blumentritt St. 1008 Sampaloc, Manila
253  Evangelista — Makati 1695 Evangelista St. corner Gen. Lacuna St. Bangkal, Makati City 1233
254 Fairview " Don Mariano Marcos Avenue, Fairview, Quezon City
255 FCIE Dasmarifias — Cavite Governor's Drive, Barangay |.angkaan, Dasmarifias, Cavite
256 Filinvest — Alabang 'G/F Insular Life Corporate Centre, Corporate Avenue, Filinvest
_ Corporate City, Alabang, 1781 Muntinlupa City
257  Fort Bonifacio — MC Home Depot  G/F MC Home Depot-Fort Bonifacio, 32nd St. corner Bonifacio Avenue,
o Fort Bonifacio Global City
258 Gandara 811-813 Sabino Padilla St. {formerly Gandara St. Sta. Cruz, Manila
259 Gandara - Soler 1268 Soler St. corner S, Padilla St. 1006 Binondo, Manila
260 General Luis 297 General Luis St. Barrio Kaybiga, Caloocan City
261 General Santos Santiago Blvd. corner JP Laure! St. Gen. Santos City
262 General Santos - KCC Mall Unit 018 LG/F KCC Mall of Gensan, Jose Catolico Sr. Avenue, General
Santos City, South Cotabato
263 General Santos - Pendatun ‘GIF Sydney Hotel, corner Pioneer and Pendatun Avenue, General
: Santos City 9500
264 General Santos - Pioneer National Highway comer Roxas Avenue, 9500 Gen. Santos City, South
Cotabato
265 General Santos — Santiago St. Ireneo Santiago Blvd., 9500 General Santos St,, South Cotabato
266 General Trias — Gateway Gateway Business Park, C. Delos Reyes Avenue, 4107 Gen, Trias,
Cavite
267  Gil J. Puyat Union Ajinomoto Bldg. Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati City
268 Glori — Del Monte 627 Del Monte Avenue San Francisco Del Monte, Quezon City:
269  Grace Park GIFA& R Bldg. 213 Rizal Avenue Extension, Grace Park, Caloocan
City :
270  Grace Park - 11th Avenue 1619 Rizal Avenue Extension corner 11th Avenue, 1400 Caloocan City
271 Grace Park - 8th Avenue Rizal Avenue Extension Grace Park, Caloocan City
972 Grace Park - 9th Avenue 414 Rizal Avenue Extension, Grace Park, 1400 Caloocan City
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273 Greenbelt GIF 108 Legaspi St. corner Paseo de Roxas, Pioneer House Bldg.,
Legaspi Village, Makati City
274  Greenhills o Greenhills Shopping Complex, Ortigas Avenue, San Juan, MM
275 Greenhills - Roosevelt EBC Bldg., Ortigas Avenue corner Roosvelt Avenue, Greenthills, San
: Juan, MM
276  Greenhills - Wilson 227 Wilson St., carner Don Mzguei St., San Juan, MM
277 Greenhills Shopping Center Shopesville Greenhills, San Juan, MV
278 Greenhills- West ' 101 Limketkai Bidg. Ortigas Avenue, San Juan, MM
279 Guagua - Pampanga Yabut Bldg., Plaza Burgos, 2003 Guagua, Pampanga L
280 Harrison Plaza Unit R-5 URDI Bldg. Harrison Plaza Sh‘opping Complex, F. B. Harrison,
. Malate, Manila
281 Head Office - 12 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City
282 Hemady - Aurora Blvd. 708 Aurora Blvd. Corner Hemady St., New Manila, 1110 Quezon City
283 Herrera _ V.A. Rufino comer Sotto St. Legaspi Villlage, Makati City
284 IBM Plaza ~ Libis GJF IBM Plaza Eastwood City, E. Rodriguez Jr. Avenue, Libis, Quezon
City
285 llaya 1049-1051 llaya St. Divisoria, Manila
286 llaya - M. de Santos 632 M. de Santos St., Manila
287 llaya—PadreRada 940-942 Itaya St,, Tondo, Manila
288 lligan — Del Pilar BC Labao corner Del Pilar 8t lligan City
289 lligan - Quezon Avenue ~ Quezon Avenue, 9200 Higan City, Lanao Del Norte
VVVVVV 290 llocos Sur ~ Candon National Highway corner Abaya St,, 2710 Candon, llocos Sur
291 lloilo - Central |znart St. Lot.317-B-2-A-1, 5000 Hoilo City, loilo
292 Hoilo — Iznart |znart St., 5000 llailo City, lloilo
293 floilo ~Quezon St. Lots 3 & 5 Quezon St, lloilo City o
294 lloilo - Tabuc Suba Roger's Bldg., McArthur Highway, Tabuc Suba, Jaro, liailo Clty
295 lloilo - Valeria Valeria St., loilo City
| 296 lloilo-Jaro NB Bidg, 'Lop’ez Jaena St. Jaro, lioilo City
297 lloilo-JM Basa JM Basa St. lloilo City '
298 lloilo:Ledesma GIF Esther Bldg. Ledesma St. lloilo Clty
299  lloilo-Molo " Escoto-Natividad Bldg. M.H. del Pilar corner Lopez Jaena St. Molo,
....lloilo City :
300 Imus Gen. Aguinaldo comer Ambrosia Road, Anabu |, Imus, Cavite
301 fmus — Aguinaldo Highway GIF DCR Bldg., Aguinaldo Highway, 4103 Imus, Cavite
302 Imus-Nueno Avenue 358 Exodus Bldg. Nueno Avenue, Imus, Cavite
303  Intramuros GIF Chamber of Commerce Bldg. #3 Magallanes drive, Intramuros,
Manila :
304  |pil - Zamboanga National Highway, Ipil, 7001 Zamboanga Del Sur
305 lIriga Iriga Plaza Hotel Msgr. Lanuza St., San Francisco, Iriga City,
‘ Camarines Sur
306 Isabela - Cauayan Along National H|ghway, Cauayan C|ty, Isabela _
307 . Isabela - llagan Along Maharlika Highway, Catamagui 2nd, flagan, Isabela
308 Isabela— Roxas 23 Osmefia Road, Bantug, Mallig Plain, 3320 Roxas, Isabela
309 lIsabela - Santiago Maharlika Highway corner Quezon Avenue, Victory Norte, Santiago
= City, Isabela
310 Isidora Hills BDO Bldg., Pook Ligaya Riding Ground, Interneighborhood Road,

sidora Hills Subdivision, Barangay Holy Spirit, Quezon City
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3N

J Abad Santos

GIF 'Chihg Leong Temple, J. Abad Santos Avenue, Tondd, Manila

312

Jaka Il - Legaspi St.

GIF 150 GC Corporate Plaza, Legaspi St., Legaspi Village, 1229
Makati City

326

313 JAS-Antipolo GIF Intercast Corporate Tower, 2230 J. Abad Santos Avenue, Tondo, ;
o Manila
314 JAS-Recto 1174 J. Abad Santos Avenue, Tondo ‘Manila
315 JPRizal 872 JP Rizal St. Barangay Poblacion, Makati City
316 Juan Luna 262 Juan Luna St, Binondo, Manila
317 Julia Vargas IBP Bldg. Julia Vargas Avenue, Ortigas, Pasig City
318 Kalentong MRDC Bldg. Shaw Blvd. corner Gen. Kalentong St. Mandaluyong City
319 Kamagong 2567 P. Ocampo {Vito Cruz Extension) corner Madre Perla St. Manila
320 Kamias Road Trinidad Bldg., Kamias Road corner K-J St., Quezon City
321 Karuhatan - MacArthur Highway KM. 13 MacArthur Highway, 1440 Karuhatan, Valenzuela, Metro Manila
322 Katipunan G/F Olalia Bidg. No. 327 Katipunan Avenue comer F. dela Rosa St
Loyola Heights, Quezon City .
323 Kawit — Binakayan 1497 National Road, Binakayan, 4104 Kawit, Cavite
324 LaUnion ‘ Rizal Avenue corner Ortega St. San Fernando, La Union
325 laguna - Cabuyao GJF Lim-Bell Business Center, J.P. Rizal St., Cabuyao, Laguna

Laguna — Sta, Cruz

Along Regidor St., Sta, Cruz, Laguna

327

Laguna — Technopark

GIF Rustan's Sta. Rosa Bldg., (North Wing), Laguna Technopark, Ayala
Land, Barangay Don Jose, Sta. Rosa, Laguna

o328

329

Laoag — Balintawak

Corner Rizal & Balintawak St., 2000 Laoag City, llocos Norte

Laoag — Castro

Pichay Bidg., J.P. Rizal corner A. Castro St,, Laoag City

330 Las Pifias — Aimanza Alabang-Zapote Road, Almanza Uno, Las Pifias, Metro Manila

331 Las Pifias - BF Resort " BDO Bldg., Blk 4 Lot 9 BF Resort Drive Phase 4, BF Resott Village,
o ~ LasPifias B

332 Las Pifias — Philamlife Avenue Alabang- Zapote Road, Pamplona Tres, 1740 Las Pifias, MM

333 Llavezares ' 321-325 Garden City Condominium corner Lavezares & Camba St. San

Nicolas, Manila

334

Legasbi City

Rizal corner Gov. Imperial St. Legaspi Clty

335

Legaspi City — Rotonda

Rizal St., 4500 Legaspi City, Albay

336 Legaspi Village ~ Salcedo St. EBC Bldg., 203 Salcedo St., Legaspi Village, Makati City
337 Leveriza - Libertad 212 Libertad St,, Pasay City, Metro Manila

338 Leyté — Maasin Tomas Oppus St., 6600 Maasin, Southern Leyte

339 Leyte - Ormoc Corner Burgos & Rizal St., 6541 Ormoc City, Leyte

340 Libis Magnitude Commercial Arcade, E. Rodriguez Jr. Avenue,
_ . Bagumbayan, Quezon City :
341 Ligaya - Boni Avenue 654 Boni Avenue, 1550 Mandaluyong Gity

342 Lipa Casa Esperanza Bldg. Pres. J.P. Laurel Highway, Barangay Mataas na -
_ Lupa, Lipa City
343 Lipa-CMRecto 131 C.M. Recto St., 4217 Lipa City, Batangas

344

Lipa — Rotonda

CM Recto Avenue, Lipa City

345

Los Bafios

QOlivarez Plaza Cinema & Supermarket Complex, Along National
Highway, Barangay Batong Malake, Los Bafios
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Loyola Heights — Katipunan

331 SMRC BldidiB, Katipunan Avenue comer B. Gonzales St., Loyola

‘Heights, Quezon City

Lucena

Merchan St. corner San Fernando St. Lucena City

Lucena — Enriquez

‘Enriquez corner Evangelista St., Lucena City

~ Lucena - Gulang-Gulang

505 Quezoh Avenue Extension, Barangay Gulang-gulang. Lucena City

Lucena — Quezon Avenue

350 Quezon Avenue corer Profuge St., Lucena City, Quezon
351 Luneta—TM Kalaw 707 T.M. Kalaw St. comer Churruca St, Ermiita, Manila
352 Mabini A. Mabini corner Calle Soldado St, Ermita, Manila
353 Mactan - EPZA Magtan-EPZA Compound, 6000 Lapu-lapu City, Gebu
354 Magallanes Village " Unit 104 The Gate Way Center, Paseo de Magallanes, Magallanes
- _ Village, Makati City
355 Main Office BDO South Tower, Makati Avenue comer HV Dela Costa St., 1227
_ _ Makati City -
356 Makati Avenue — Ayala L.V. Locsin Bldg., Ayala Avenue corner Makati Avenue, 1228 Makati
- City
357 Makati Cinema Square ' Makati Cinema Square, Pasong Tamo, 1229 Makati City
358 Makati Shangrila Hotel Unit 191 Shangrila Hotel Manila, Ayala Center, Makati City '
359 - Makro ~ Cainta Makro-Cainta, Felix Huerta Avenue, Cainta, Rizal
360 Makro Cubao EDSA comer Main St. Cubao, Quezon City
361 Malabon 685 JP Rizal St. Barangay San Agustin, Malabon City
362 Malabon = Gov. Pascual GIF MGC Veranda Bldg., 31 Gov. Pascual Avenue, Tingjeros, Malabon
City
363 Malabon - Rizal Avenue 694 Rizal Avenue, 1404 Malabon, Metro Manila_
364 Malanday - McArthur Highway KM 17 McArthur Hi- Way, Malanday, 1405 Valenzuela, Metro Manila
365 Malolos — Congreso Paseo Del Congreso, San Agustin 3000 Malolos, Bulacan
366 Malolos — MagArthur Highway S1 Cabana Space A, The Cabanas Mall, MacArthur Highway, Malolos

City

367

Manggahan

Amang Rodriguez Avenue, Manggahan, Pasig City

368

Manuela Metropolis — Alabang

Unit G33, Manuela Metropolis, South Superhighway, Alabang
Interchange, Muntintupa City

369

Marcos — Sumulong Highway

~ Kingsville Commercial Arcade, Marcos Highway, 1870 Antipolo, Rizal

370 Marcos Highway Town & Country Commercial Arcade, Marcos Highway comer Narra St
‘ Cainta, Rizal

371 Marikina 17 Bayan-Bayanan Avenue, Concepcion, Marikina City

372 Marikina - Bayanbayanan BDO Bldg., Bayanbayanan Avenue cormer: Molave St., Concepcion,

Marikina

373

Marikina - Calumpang

Florida | Bldg., J.P. Rizal corner M.A. Roxas St, Calumpang, Marikina
City

374

Marikina — Gil Fernande Avenue

Gi Fernando Avenue comer Dragon St,, Marikina City

375

376

Marikina - J.P. Rizal

265 Jose Rizal St., Sta. Elena, 1800 Marikina City

Marikina - Sumulong Highway

Corner E. Dela Paz St. Amang Rodriguez Avenue, Sto Ning, Marikina
City

377

Marilao — MacArthur Highway

Unit -3 Cecilia Commercial Complex, Abangan Norte, McArthur Hi-
way, 3019 Marilao, Bulacan

378

Marulas — MacArthur Highway

Lot 16 & 17 McArthur Highway, Valenzuela, Metro Manita
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379

Masangkay

Lun Hong Townmates Association Bldg.‘ 1226 Masangkay St. Sta.
Cruz, Manila

380

Masangkay — CM.Recto

1029-1031 JP Bldg., Masangkay comer Tronqued St., Sta. Cruz,
Manila

381

Masangkay — Luzon St

907 Luzon St, corner Masangkay St,, Tondo, Manila _

382

Mayon

G/F Alpha Bldg. 174 Mayon St. La Loma, Quezon City

383

Mayon - Amoranto

489 Units A & B Mayon St., Sta. Mesa Heights, Quezon City_ |

384

Mayon - N. Roxas

No. 241 Mayan Avenue corner Nicanor Roxas St., 1161 Quezon City

385

Medical Plaza - Legaspi Village

“Unit 101, GIF Medical Plaza Makati, Amorsolo St. comer Dela Rosa St.
Legaspi Village, Makati City

386

Meralco - Ortigas B

Meralco Compound, Ortigas Avenue, 1604 Pasig City

387  Meralco-Ortigas GIF Corporate Wellness Center Meralce Compound, Orfigas Avenue
Pasig City
388  Metropolitan Avenue G/F Metropolitan Terraces, Metropohtan Avenue corner Sacred Heart

St. (formerly Dao St.), Makati City

Meycauayan

Liberty Bldg. MacArthur Highway, Calvario, Me_ycauéyan,_BuIacan -

Meycauayan — Malhacan

~ Barangay Northem Hills, Malhacan, Meycauayan, Bulacan

Meycauayan — Zamora

Zamora St,, Barrio Calvario, Meycauayan, Bulacan

Mindoro — Calapan

J.P. Rizal St., 5200 Calapan, Criental Mindoro

Misamis Ocg. - Oroquieta

Mayor A. Enerio St., Oroquieta City, 7207 Misamis Occidental _

Misamis. Oriental - Gingoog

National H|ghway, Gingoog City, Misamis Oriental

Monumento

MacArthur Highway corner Calle Uno, Caloocan City

_Mufioz - Roosevelt

328 Mesa Holdings Bldg., San Francisco Del Monte, Quezon City

Muntinlupa - Poblacion

G/F Elizabeth Center Bldg., National Road, Poblacion, Muntinlupa

398 Naga Barangay San Francisco, Pefiafrancia Avenue, Naga City
399 Naga - Magsaysay Avenue Magsaysay Avenue, Naga City

400 Naga - Plaza Rizal Gen. Luna St., 4400 Naga City, Camarines Sur

401 Naga-General Luna Nos. 80-82 General Luna St. Dinaga, Naga City

402 - Nagtahan " GIF SM Nagtahan, Magsaysay Blvd. Comer Nagtahan Road, -

5 Sampaloc, Manila

403 NAIA Ninoy Aquino International Airport; Arrival Lobby, Pasay City

404 Navotas Seafront Commercial Bldg. North Bay Blvd., Navotas
405 Negros Occ - Binalbagan “Biscom Compound, Binalbagan, Negros Occidental

406~ Negros Occ — Cadiz ~ Cabahug St., 6121 Cadiz, Negros Occidental :

407 _Negros Occ - Escalante National Highway, Escalante City, 6124 Negros Occidental

408 Negros QOcc - Hinigaran ~ Aguinaldo corner Rizal St. Hinigaran, 6106 Negros Ocmdenta!

409 Negros Occ - Kabankalan Guanzon St., Kabankalan, 6111 Negros Occidental

410 Negros Occ — San Carlos S. Carmona St. corner Rizal St., San Carlos City, Negros Occidental
411 Negros Occ — Victorias stmena Avenue, Victorias City, Negros Occidental, 6119

412  Neptune — Makati Avenue 101 Neptune St. carner Makati Avenue 1209 Makati City .

New Manila - E. Rodriguez Sr.

Unit 1G 7 & 2E, 284 Dofia Aniota Bldg., E. Rodriguez Sr. Avenue,
Quezon City

New York - EDSA

EDSA comer New York St., Cubao 1111 Quezon City

Northbay — Virgo Drive

Melandrea |l Bldg., Northbay Blvd Near comerV!rgo Drive, Navotas,
MM
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416

Novaliches

- 1016 Quirino nghway Town Proper Barangay Monica Novaliches,

Quezon City

- 417

Novaliches — Forest Hills -

Lot 2D 1 Quirino Avenue, ovaliches, Quezon City

418

Novaliches-Bayan

233 Karen Bldg. General Luis St. Novaliches, Quezon City :

419

Nueva Ecija — Gapan

Tinio St., 3105 Gapan, Nueva Ecija

420

Nueva Ecija - Guimba

Afan Salvador St., 3115 Guimba, Nueva Ecija

421

Nueva Ecija — Mufioz

T Delos Santos St. Science City of Mufioz, Nueva Ecija

422

Nueva Ecija - Sta. Rosa

Along Maharlika Highway, Sta. Rosa, Nueva Ecija

423

Nueva Ecija - Talavera

Maharlika Highway, Marcos District, Talavera, Nueva Ecija

7777777 424  Nueva Vizcaya - Solano National Highway, Solano, Nueva Vizcaya
425 QObando - J.P. Rizal J.P. Rizal St,, Barangay Catanghala, 3021 Obando, Bulacan
426 Olongapo GIF & 2F KT Tower, Rizal Avenue east comner 18th St. Bajac,
_ Olongapoe City
427  OneE-comCenter G/F OneE-comCenter, Palm Coast Avenue, Mall of Asia Complex,
Pasay City '

428 Ongpin Unit ABC Imperial Sky Garden, Ongpin St. comer T. Pinpin St
_ Binando, Manila
429  Ongpin ~ T. Alonzo Unit 564 and 566 Gel Tower, T. Alonzo St. Sta. Cruz, Mam!a

430

Ongpin-Tomas Mapua

1004-1006 Ongpin St. Sta. Cruz, Manila

431

Ortigas ~ Exchange Road

GIF, PSE Center, Exchange Road, Ortigas Commercial Complex,
Pasig City

432

Ortigas — San Juan

Units 102-103 Sunrise Condominium, Ortigas Avenue, 1500 San Juan, '
MM

433 Ortigas Avenue 209 Ortigas Avenue, Greenhills, San Juan, MM
434 Ortigas Avenue ~ Pasig Along Ortigas Avenue Extension, Rosario, Pasig City
435 Ortigas Avenue Ext. - Cainta Units 7-9 Philfoam Furnishing Bldg., Km 23 Ortigas Avenue-Extension,
Cainta Rizal e
436 Ortigas Avenue Ext. - St. Joseph 15 A, Ortigas Avenue Extension corner Monaco St, Pasig City_
437 QOzamis Cebedo St. corner Gallardo St. Centro, Czamis City, Misamis
: Occidental _
438 Pacific Star - Makati GIF Pacific Star Bldg., Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue cormer Makati Avenue,

Makati City

438 Paco - A Linao 1635-1641 A. Linao St, Paco, Manila__ &

440  Padre Faura - A. Mabini A. Mabini corner Padre Faura St., 1000 Ermita, Manila

441 Padre Rada Gosiupo Bldg. 480-482 Padre Rada comer Elcano St. Tondo, Manila
442 Pagadian F.S. Pajares Avenue, Pagad an City, 7016 Zambonga Del Sur

443  Pamplona Alabang-Zapote Road, Pamplona, Lag Pifias City

444 Pangasinan ~ Alaminos Marcos Avenue, Palamis 2404 Alaminos, Pangasinan

445 Pangasinan - Calasiao GIF Sefior Tesoro Academy Bldg., San Miguel, Calasiao, Pangasman
445 Pangasinan- Carmen McArthur Highway, Carmen East 2441 Rosales Pangasman
447 Pangasinan — Lingayen 80 Avenida Rizal East, Lingayen, Pangasinan .

448

Pangasinan — San Carlos

Palaris St,, 2420 San Carlos City, Pangasinan

449

Parafiaque — La Huerta

0422 Quirino Avenue comerJ Ferrer St, La Ruerta, Parafiaque City
1700

450

Parafiaque - Moonwalk

G/F Seal | Bldg., Armstrong Avenue corner Yosemite St., Moonwalk
Subdivision, Parafiaque City ‘
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Parafiaque — N. Aquino Avenue

JJM Bldg., 2 N. Aquino Avenue, Sto. Nifio, Parafiaque, MM

452 Parafiague — Pascor Drive Sky Freight Bldg., Ninoy Aquino Avenue near corner Pascor Drive, St.
Nifio, Parafiaque City :
453 Pasay Libertad comer Colayco St. Pasay City
454 Pasay - Domastic Road Caltex Compound (PDSC / Park 'N Fly Bldg.) NAIA corner Domestic
Road, 1300 Pasay City
455 Pasay Road 845 Corporate Plaza Bldg. Pasay Road, Makati Clty
456 Paseo- Gil Puyat EBC Bldg., Paseo De Roxas corner Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati City -
457 Paseo de Roxas 2 G/F BDO Plaza, 8737 Paseo de Roxas St, Makati City
458 Paseo Tower — Makati Equitable Bank Tower, 8751 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City
459 Pasig _Mariposa Arcade, A. Mabini corner Dr. Pitapil St. Pasig City _
480 Pasig - - A. Mabin G/F CFM Bldg. No. 97 A. Mabini St., Pasig City
461 Pasig - East Capitol Drive G/F Cabarrus Bldg., No. 9 East Capitol Drive, Barrio Kapntolye Pasig
' City
462 PasigBlvd. Ext.-Rosario  Along Pasig Blvd. Extension, Rosario, Pasig City =
463 Pasig-Kapitolyo GIF A. B. Sandoval Bldg. Shaw Blvd. comer Oranbo Drive, Pasug Ctty
464  Paso de Blas — North Expressway 97 Paso de Blas 1400 Valenzuela, MM
465 Pasong Tamo Ext. GIF Allegro Center, Pasong Tamo Extension, Makati City
466 Pateros East Mansion Homes, Phase |, Elisco Road, Sto. Rosario East,
Pateros, MM
4687 Pateros - Poblacion GIF Milaor Bldg., Aimeda St., Poblacion, Pateros MM
468 Pedro Gil - A, Mabini 1567-1571 Salud Bidg. Pedro Gil corner A. Mabini St. Ermita Manila
469 Pedro Gil - Singalong 1080 corner Pedra Gil & Singalong St. 1007 Paco, Manila
470 Perea - Paseo _ GIF Universal Re Bldg. 106 Paseo de Roxas 1228 Makati City _
471 Pioneer Highlands — Madison ~ Unit 01 (facing Madison St.) LG/F Globe Telecom Plaza 1 Bidg.,
e Pioneer St. Corner Madison St,, Mandaluyong City
472 Pitimini - Roosevelt EBC Bldg. Roosevelt Avenue, corner Pitimini St., SFDM, Quezon City
473  Plaza Calderon - Pedro Gil " GIF Unit C, Harmonic Seven Bldg., 2332-2334 Pedro Gil corner Vesta
St., Sta. Ana, Manila
474 Plaza Sta. Cruz - Dasmarifias St. 377 Plaza Sta. Cruz 1003 Sta. Cruz, Manila
475 Port.Area— South Harbor GIF Velco Center, R.S. Oca comerA.C. Delgado St., Port Area, Manila
476  Potrero 110 MacArthur Highway corner Riverside St. Potrero Malabon
477 President's Avenue — BF  President's Avenue comer J. Elizalde St BF Homes Parafiaque, MM
Parafague _ ]
478 Project 8 - Shorthom 'BDO Bldg., No. 41 Shorthorn St., Barangay Toro, Project 8, “Quezon
Clty
479 Puerto Princesa 261 Rizal Avenue, 5300 Puerto Princesa City, Palawan
480 Q. |.-E. Rodriguez Sr. GIF Ablaza Bldg., 117 E. Rodriguez 4 Avenue, Quezon City
481 Quezon - Candelaria Rizal comer Valle St., Canglelarla Quezon 4323
482 Quezon Avenue 103 Aries Bldg. Quezon Avenue, Quezon City
483 Quezon Avenue - Heroes Hills 1052 Quezon Avenue, 1103 Quezon City
484 Quiapo — Quinta Market Quezon Blvd. corner C. Patanca St.; Quiapo, Manila
485 Quiapo-Quezon Blvd. Quezon Blvd., 1001, Quiapo, Manila
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486

Quintin Paredes

524 Enterprise Bldg. Quintin Paredes St. corner Carvajal St. Binondo,
Manila

487  Quirino Paco CRS Tower corner Perdigon St. Pres. Quirino Avenue, Paco, Manila
488 Rada & GIF One Legaspi Park, Rada St,, Legaspi Village, Makati City
489 Reliance St. - EDSA G/F Peragaon Plaza corner Reliance St. Mandaluyong City

490 Reposo - Makati EBC Bldg. JP Rizal comer N. Garcia (formerly Reposo), Makati City
491 Rizal Avenue - Bambang 1607 Alvarez St. corner Rizal Avenue, Sta. Cruz, 1003 Manila

492 Rizal Avenue 2502-2504 Rizal Avenue corner Cavite St. Sta: Cruz, Manila

493 Rizal Avenue — Batangas St. 2200 Rizal Avenue corner Batangas St., Sta. Cruz, Manila

494 Robinson's — Metro East Level 1(L1 160 & 162), Robinsons Metro east, Marcos Highway, Pasig

Oty

495

Robinsons Galleria - Ortigas

Robinson’s Galleria, Ortlgas Avenue, 1602 Quezon City

496

Robinson's Place - Lipa

Level 1, Space L1-177, Robinson's Place - Lipa, Lipa Highway, Lipa
City, Batangas

497 Robinson's Place - Manila " GIF Robinson's Manila comer Pedro Gil M Orosa St., Ermita, Manila

498 Rockwell " GIF Power Plant Mall, Rockwell Center, Amapola corner Estrella St.
Makati City

499 Rockwsl! Center - Makati

Lot 3, Block 7, Rockwell Drive. Rockwell Center, Pobiacion, Makati City |

500

Roxas - Roxas Avenue

" Roxas Avenue, Roxas City, Capiz

501

Roxas Blvd. - R. Salas

S &1L Bldg., Roxas Blvd. St. corner Romero Salas St., Ermita, Manila

502

Rustan's Cubao

RC-01A Times Square Avenue near corner Gen. Roxas St. Araneta
Center, 1109 Quezon City

503 Salcedo Golden Rock Bldg. 168 Salcedo_St. Legaspi Village, Makati City
504 Sales St. - Raon 545-Sales St. comer G. Puyat St. (Raon) 1016 Sta. Cruz, Manifa
505 Samar— Cathalogan _Del Rosario St. corner Allen Avenue, 6700 Catbalogan, Samar

506

Sampaloc - Dapitan

Dapitan comer Cristina St,, Sampaloc Manila

507

Samson Road

GJF Ma. Cristina Bldg. Samson Road corner UE Tech,, Caloocan City |

508

San Andres

San Andres cofnerA. Linao St. Malate, Manila

509

San Ferando — Dolores

MeArthur Highway, Dolores 2000 City of San Femando, {Pampanga)

e

San Fernando Z MacArthur-
Highway

" GIF Dofia Isa Fel Bldg. Il, MacArthur Highway, Dolores, San Fernando

City, Pampanga

511

San Fernando — San Agustin

McArthur Highway, Barangay San Agustin, San Fernando, Pampanga

512

San Femnando— Sindalan

* Palm Bidg., MacArthur Highway, Sindalan, San Fernando City,

Pampanga

513

San Fernando La Union — Quezon
Avenus

Quezon AVenue 2500 San Fernando, La Union

514

San Fernando-Pampanga

Gen. Hizon Extension, San Fernando, Pampanga

515

San Jose-Nueva Ecija

Maharlika Road, 3121 San Jose City, Nueva Ecija

516

‘San Juan

88 N. Domingo St. San Juan, MM

517

San Miguel Center - Ortigas

GIF SMPPI Corporate Centre Bldg., St. Francis Avenue, 1554
Mandaluyong City
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518

San Pablo

Mary Grace Bldg. Colago Avenue comer M. L. Quezon St. San Pablo

. 519

San Pablo - Mahartika Highway

G/ BienPaz Arcade, Maharlika High‘way Junction, San Rafael, San
Pablo City

520

San Pablo - Rizal St.

2F Equitable PCI Bldg., Rizal St. comer P. Alcantara, San Pablo City,

S ~ Laguna
521 San Pedro Tayao Business Center Bldg. A. Mabini St San Pedro, Laguna
522 San Pedro - Pacita G/F M. Allen Bldg., Km31, Old National, National Highway, San Pedro,

Laguna

523

Mega Bldg. National Highway, San Pedro, Laguna

54

Scout Albano Quezon Avenue

1488 Quezon Avenue, 1103 South Triangle, Quezon City

525

Scout Limbaga - T. Morato

102 & 103, The Forum, Tomas Morato Avenue corner Sct. Limbaga St.,
1103 -Quezon City

526  Shangri-la Plaza Mall - EDSA Unit#129-A, Level 1, Shangri-la Plaza Mall, EDSA comer Shaw Blvd.,
_ Mandaluyong City

527 Shaw Blvd. 555 Shaw Blvd. Mandaluycng City

528 Shaw Blvd. - Stanford EBC Bldg. Shaw Blvd. Corner Stanford St. Mandaluyong City

529

Shaw Blvd.-Yulo

285 A. Shaw Blvd. corner L. Cruz St. Mandaluyong City

530

Sitang — M. Belen

194 J. Rizal corner M. Belen St., Silang, Cavite

531

Silay - Figueroa

Figueroa corner Rizal St., Silay City, 6116 Negros Occidental

532

Silver City - Pasig

L1012, L1-013 & L1-014, Level 1, Auto Mall, Frontera Verde Drive.

corner Julia Vargas St., Crtigas, Pasig City

533

Sixto Antonio — Pasig

Sixto Antonio Avenue cormer R. Bedafia St., Pasig City

534

SM City Bacolod

G/F South Wing Bldg. SM City Bacolod, Pablacion, Reclamation Area,
Bacolod City

535 SM City Bacoor UGIF SM City Bacoor, Gen, Aguinaldo Highway corner Tirona Highway,
- Bacoor, Cavite

536 SM City Baguio UG/F SM City Baguio, Upper- Session Road, Baguio City

537 SM City Baliwag G/F SM City Baliwag, Barangay Sto. Cristo, Baliwag, Bulacan -

538 SM City Batangas ~ GJF SM City Batangas, Barangay Pallocan West, Batangas City

539 SMCity Bicutan LG_/F SM City Bicutan, Dofia Soledad Avenue corner West Service
Road, Parafiaque City _

540 SM City Cagayan de Oro G/F SM City Cagayan de Oro, Pueblo de Oro Business Park, Upper
Canituan, Cagayan de Oro, Misamis Oriental

| 541 SM City Cebu SM City Cebu, North Reclamation Area, Cebu City

542 SM City Cebu B "UGIF The Northwing - SM City Cebu, North Reclamation Area, San
Jose dela Montafia corner M.J. Cuenco Avenue, Cebu City

543 SMCity Clark G/F SM City Clark, Clark Field, Pampanga

544 SM City Dasmarifias ~ SM City Dasmarifias, Barrio Pala-Pala, Dasmarifias, Cavite

545 SM City Davao UG/F SM City Davao, Barangay Matina, Davao City

546 SM City Fairview Quirino Highway corner Regalado St Fairview, Quezon Gity

547  SMCity Fairview B SM City Fairview, Quirino Highway comer Regalado Avenue, Fairview,

i Quezon City

548  SM City lloilo UG/F SM City lloilo, Benigno Aquino Avenue, Mandurriao, lloilo City

549 SM City lloilo B LGF'Unit No, 73 SM City lloilo, Benigno Aquino Avenue, Jaro-West
Diversion, Mandurriao, lloilo City

550 SM City Lipa

GIF SM City Lipa, Ayala Highway, Lipa City, Batangas
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GIF SM City Lucena, (LC 181-183) Pagbilac National Road, Lucena

571

- 551  SM City Lucena
: ity
552 SM City Manila LG/F SM City Manila, Concepcion cornerArrocefos and San Marcelrno
' St. Manila
553 SM City Marikina_ G/F SM City Marikina, Barangay Calumpang, Marikina City
554 SM City Marilao G/F SM City Marilao, MacArthur Highway, Marilao, Bulacan
555 SM City North EDSA A GIF The Block SM City North EDSA corner North AvenUé ‘Quezon City
556 SM City North EDSA B SM City North EDSA Annex | Bldg., North Avenue corher EDSA,
B Quezon City
557 SM City North EDSAC SM Center Complex North EDSA, 1105 Quezon City
558 SM City Pampanga GIF M City Pampanga, San_Fernando, Pampanga
559 SM City Pampanga B G/F SM City Pampanga Annex Bldg. 4, San Fernando, Pampanga
560 SM City Rosales SM City Rosales, Carmen East, Rosales Pangasinan
561 SM City San Lazaro Felix Huertas comer A. H. Lacson St. Sta. Cruz, Manifa
562 SM City Sta. Mesa SM City Sta. Mesa Annex Bldg. Aurora Blvd, Quezon City
563 SM City Sta. Rosa G/F SM City Sta. Rosa, Barrio Tagapo, Sta. Rosa, Laguna
564 SM City SucatA G/F SM Supercenter Sucat, Parafiaque City
565 SM City Sucat B G/F Annex Bldg B. SM City Sucat, Dr. A. Santas Avenue, Parafiaque
City
566 SM City Taytay G/F Bldg. A, SM City Taytay, Manlla East Road, Barangay Dolores,
Taytay, Rizal
567 _SM Corporate Offices Bldg 104 J.W., Dickno Blvd., Mall of Asia Complex, Pasay City
568 __SM.Cubao GIF SM Cubao, Cubao, Quezon City -
569 SM Delgado GIF SM Delgado Bldg Valeria St. lloilo City -
570 SM Makati Shoemart Annex Bldg. Ayala Center, Makati City o
SM Mall of Asia A G/F Main Mall, SM Mall of Asia, J.W. Diokno Blvd., Mall of Asia

Complex, Pasay City

572

SM Mall of Asia B

G/F Entettainment Mall, SM Mall of Asia, JW Diokno B!vd . Mall of

Asia Complex, Pasay City

573 SM Megamall A G/F SM Megamall Bldg. A Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City

574 SM Megamall B . Upper & Lower Ground Floors, SM Megamall Bldg B, Julia Vargas cor
' EDSA, Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City

575 SM Southmall 2° UG/F SM Southmall, Alabang-Zapote Road, Las Pifias City

576

SM Supercenter Molino

577

- SM Supercenter Muntinlupa

_ GIF SM Supercenter Molino, Molino Road, Bacoor, Cavite

UGIF SM Supercenter Muntinlupa, Barangay Tunasan, Natlonal Road,
Muntintupa City

578

SM Supercenter Pasig

GIF SM Supercenter Pasig, Frontera Verde, Ortigas Center, Pasig City

579

SM Supercenter Valenzuela

Unit 126 G/F SM Supercenter Valenzuela, McArthur Highway,
Karuhatan, Valenzuela City

580 = Soler - U-1118 & 1120 Gracetown Bidg. cornerSoIer&AIvarado St. Binondo,
_ Manfla
" 581 Soler - Reina Regente 1087 Soler St., Binondo, Manila_

582

Sorsogen

Son Bldg., R. Magsaysay Avenue, Sorsogon City

583 .

South Cotabato —Keronadal

R. Alunan Avenue corner Osmefia St., 9506 Koronadal, South
Cotabato
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584  Southmall 1 UG/F SM Southmall, Alabang- Zapote Road, Las Pifias City

585 St Ignatius - Katipunan 134 Katipunan Avenue, St. Ignatius Village, Quezon City
586 Sta. Cruz—Ronguillo - Unit 1, G/F Carmen Bldg., Ronquillo St., Sta, Cruz, Manila
587 Sta. Lucia East Grand Mall, Marcos Hi-Way corner Feltx Avenue, 1900

Sta, Lucia East - Cainta

Cainta, Rizal

Sta. Lucia East — Felix Avenue

G/F Phase 1, Sta. Lucia Grand Mall Marcos Highway corner Felix
Avenue, Cainta

Sta. Maria — Bagbaguin

NEM Bldg., Gov. F. Halili Avenue, Bagbaguin, Sta; Maria, Bulacan

Sta. Rosa — South Expressway

National Road Pulong Sta. Cruz, 4206 Sta. Rosa, Laguna

Sto. Cristo

475-477 Kim Siu Ching Foundation Bldg. Sto Cristo St. Binondo,
Manila

592 Sto. Cristo-Commercio No. 686 Sto. Cristo St Binondo, Manila

593 Sto. Domingo 6 Sto. Domingo Avenue, Quezon City

594  Sto. Nifio St. - Roosevelt 284 Roosevelt Avenue, San Francisco Del Monte, 1105 San Aritonio,
Quezon City

595 Strata 100 - - Ortigas GJF Strata 100 Bldg., Emerald Avenue Pasig C:ty

Subic - Times Square

420 Rizal Highway Subic Bay Freeport Zone, 2200 Olongapo City,
Zambales

Tacloban - Justice Romualdez

597 Sugcat Parafiaque cable TV bldg., #8210 Dr. A, Santos Avenue, Parafiaque
598  Sultan Kudarat - Isulan #075 National Highway, Kalawag 2, Isulan, Sultan Kudarat
599  Sultan Kudarat - Tacurong Alunan Highway, 9800 Tacurong, Sultan Kudarat '
600 Surigao Magallanes corner San Nicolas St., 8400 Surigao City
601 Tabora 859-861 L. & J Bldg. Tabora St Divisoria, Manila
802 Tacloban Carlos Chan Bldg. P. Zamora St. Tacloban City
603 Philamlife Bldg., Rizal Avenue comner P. Burgos St., 6500 Tacloban

City

604

Tacloban - Rizal Avenue

Rogson Bldg., Rizal Avenue corner P Burgos St., 6500 Tacloban City,
Leyte ‘

605 Taft - Libertad MCF Bldg. 2250 Taft Avenue corner College Road, Pasay City

606 Taft - Vito Cruz Bankard Bidg., 2422 Taft Avenue, 1004 Malate, Manila

607 Taft Avenue — Pres. Quirino G/F FFW Bldg. 1943 Taft Avenue, Malate, Manita =
608 Taft Avenue-J. Nakpil 1747 Taft Avenue corer J. Nakpll St. Manila

609

Taft-Pedro Gil

1430 Taft Avenue, Manila

610

Tagaytay - Rotorida

Frablyn Tower (Tolentino Bidg.), Emilio Aguinaldo Highway, Tagaytay

(Near Tagaytay Rotonda)

" 611 Talon, Las Pifias GIF Motiontrade Bldg. Alabang-Zapote Road, Talon, Las Pifias City
612 Tanauan - A. Mabini __A Mabini St Tanauan 4232 Batangas.
613 Tanauan - JP Laurel Highway President J.P. Laurel Highway comner Sixto Castilio St., Pobalcion,

Tanauan, Batangas

614

Tandang Sora

Tandang Sora Avenue comer Marcel Road, Quezon City

615

Tandang Sora - Tagumpay

M & J Bldg., 578 Tandang Sora Avenue corner Tagumpay St.,

| _Barangay New Era, Quezon City

616

Tarlac

27 F. Tafiedo St. Tarlac City

617

Tarlac — Concepcion

L. Jaena comer L. Cortes St., San Nicolas, 2316 Concepcion, Tarlac
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F. Tafiedo comer Juan Luna St,, Tarlac City

618 Tarlac~F. Tafledo
619 Tarlac—J. Luna J. Luna St. near corner MacArthur Tarlac, Tarlac
620 Tarlac — Paniqui M.H. Del Pilar St.,, McArthur Highway, 2307 Paniqui, Tarlac
621 Taytay - Manila East Road BDO Bldg., East Road, Taytay, Rizal
622 Taytay~- National Highway Korte Rosario Restaurant, Taytay National Highway, log. F’ugad
- Barangay San Juan, Taytay Rizal
623  Tayuman GJF Delton Bldg. 1808 Rizal Avenue, Sta. Cruz, Manrla
624 Teacher's Village GIF Luisa 2 Bldg., 107 Maginhawa St., Teacher's Village, Quezon City

625

Tierra Nueva — Alabang

Sycamore Arcade, Alabang-Zapote Road, Natlonal Road, 1702
Alabang, Muntiniupa City

626 Timog 26 Cedar Executive Bldg. Timog Avenue corner Scout Tobias St.
3 " Quezon City
627 Timog — EDSA No. 134 Timog Avenue, 1103 Quezon City
628 Timog — Victoria Towers Unit F-2 & F-3 Victoria Towers, Timog Avenue corner Panay Avenue,

Quezon City

629

Timog-Rotonda

GIF Imperial Palace Suites Tomas Morato corner Tlmog Avenue, South

Triangle, Quezon City

630

Tomas Morato — Kamuning

Corner Kamuning & Tomas Morato, Quezon. City

631 Tondo - Pritil 1815 N. Zamora St. 1012 Tondo, Manila

632 _Tordesillas 3 Salcedo Place, Tordesillas St. Salcedo Village, Makatl Cty -
833 Tuguegarao — Bonifacio St. . Bonifacio St., Tuguegarao Cagayan

634 Tutuban DS 17-18 Tutuban Prime Block, Tutuban Center, CM Recto, Manila

635 Tutub'an'CentermaI'! M1- 8055 GIF Centermall Bldg Tutuban Center, CM Recta Avenue,

Manila

636

U.N. Avenue - J. Bocobo

EBC Bldg., UN Avenue corner J. Bocobo St., Ermita, Manila

637

UN Avenue

Puso ng Maynila Bldg. UN Avenue comer A. Mabini St. Ermita, Manita

638

UN Avenue — Philamiife

Unit G-2b (Sec. B) Times Plaza Bldg., Taft Avenue corner United
Nations Avenue, Ermita, Manila '

639 Urdaneta 182 LIS Bidg McArthur Highway, San Vicente, Urdaneta
640 Urdaneta - Alexander Alexander St., Urdaneta City, Pangasinan

641 Valenzuela  Km.15 MacArthur Highway, Dalandanan, Valenzuela
642 Valenzuela- Gen T.Deleon Gen. T. De Leon St,, Valenzuela City

643

Valero

G/F Pearlbank Center 146 Valero St. Salcedo Vitlage, Makati City

644

Valle Verde - E. Rodriguez, Jr.

Unit 7 & 8 Cathay Builder's Corp. Bldg. E. Rodriguez Jr. Avenue comer

Carlo J. Caparas St., Barrio Ugong, Pasig City .

645

Vigan — Plaza Maestro

 G/F Plaza MAestro  Commercial Complex, Burgos & Florentino St.,

Vigan City, llocos Sur

646

Vigan - Quezon Avenue _

Corner Bonifacio St. & Quezon Avenue, 2900 Vigan, llocos Sur

647

Villa Mendoza - A. Santos

“Corner Villa Mendoza Subdivision Road & Dr. A, Santos Avenue, 1700

Parafiaque City

648

Vilar - Salcedo Vilage

Eurovilla 11l Condominium 154 Villar St., comner L.P. Leviste St.,
Salcedo Village, Makati City

649 Visayas Avenue M & L Bidg. Visayas Avenue corner Road 1, Barangay Vasra, Quezon
_ City |
650 Visayas Avenue — Project 6 - 57 Visayas Avenue (near Sanvillie Subdivision), Quezon City
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V-Mall

" GJF New V-Mall, Greenhills Shopping Center, San Juan, MM

Walter Mart — North EDSA

G/F Walter Mart Center - North EDSA, Dangay St., Veterans Village,
Quezon City

Waltermart - Sta. Rosa

San Lorenzo drive corner Balibago Road, Barangay Balibago, 4026
Sta. Rosa, Laguna

. Washington — Gil Puyat

G/F Keystone Bldg., 220 Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati City

West Avenue

68 Carbal Bidg. West Avenue, Quezon City

~ West Avenue - Del Monte

No. 40 West Avenue, 1104 West Triangle, Quezon City

West Avenue-Baler

GIF Jafer Bldg. 118 West Avenue, Quezon City

West Avenue-East Maya

160 West Avenue corner East Maya Drive, Quezon City

" West Trade Center — West Avenue

Unit #1, G/IF West Trade Center, West Avenue, Quezon City

Xaviervilla Avenue

GIF Xavierville Square Condominium, 38 Xavierville Avenue, Loyola
Heights Quezon City

Zamboanga.

Grand Astoria Hotel Annex Bldg. M. D. Jaldon St. Zamboanga City

Zamboanga - Mayor Jalden

~ Mayor Jaldon Avenue, Barangay Canelar, Zamboanga Clty

Zamboanga ~ Rizal St.

Rizal St., Zamboanga City, 7000 Zamboanga Del Sur

Zurbaran

__R:_zal Avenue comer Fugoso St. Sta. Cruz, Manila .
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S
RESPONSIBILITY




STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY -
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B

The management of Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. and Subsidiaries is responsible for all
information and representations contained in the financial statements for the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, The financial statements have been pxepared in conformity
with geneially accepted accounting principles in the Philippines and teflect amounts that are
based on the best estimates and informed judgment of management with an appropriate
consideration to imateriality.

In this regard, management maintains a system of accounting and reporting which provides

" for the necessary internal controls to ensure that transactions are propetly authotized and
tecorded, assets are safepuarded against unauthorized use ot disposition and liabilities are
recognized. The management likewise discloses to the Bank’s audit committee and to its
external auditor: (i) all significant deficiencies in the design or opetation of internal controls
that could adversely affect its ability to record, process; and report financial data; (if) material
weaknesses in the internal controls; and (iif) any ffaud that involves management ot other
employees who exercise significant roles in internal controls.

The Boatd of Ditectors reviews the financial statements before such statements are
approved and submitted to the stockholders of the Bank.

Punongbayan & Araullo, the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has

* exarbined the financial statements of the Bank in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards in the Philippines and has expressed its opinion. on the fairness of
presentation upen completion of such examination, in its report to the Board of Directors
and stockholders. :

i Rer
Chairman of the Board : %{/L%D
TERESITAT. 5Y \{\

President

NESTOR V. TAN

BEVP and Comptroller
Banco De Cro
12 ADB Avenug, Orfigas Center
fiandaluyong Gity 1552, Metro Manile, Phifippines
PO Box 132-80:0rtiges Post{Iffica




SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 14* day of Aptil 2009, affiants exhlbmng '
to me theit Competent Evidence of Identity (CEL} No., as follows: ,

Name | CEI Number
Tere;ita T. Sy TIN 139-336-978
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Punongbayan & Araullo

Report of Independent
Certified Public Accountants
to Accompany Income Tax Return

The Board of Directors

Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc.
Benguet Center, 12 ADB Avenue
Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City

20tk Floor, Tower 1

. The Enterprise Center

G766 Ayala Avenue
1200 Makatj Cily
Phiippines

T +63 2 886-5511
F +63 2 886-5508; +62 2 BEE-0507
www. punongbayan-araulln,.com

We have audited the financial statements of Banco de Oro Unitbank, Inc. for the
year ended December 31, 2008, on which we have tendered the attached report dated

Match 2, 2009.

In compliance with Revenue Regulations V-20, we are stating the following:

1. The taxes paid and accrued by the above Bank for the year ended

December 31, 2008 are shown in the Schedule of Taxes and Licenses.

2. No partner of our Firm is related by consanguinity or affinity to the

president, manager or principal stockholders of the Banlk.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLOC

By: Benjamin P, Valdez
Partner
CPA Reg. No. 0028485
TIN 136-619-880

PTR No. 1566055, Januaty 5, 2009, Makati City
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Punongbayan & Araullo

Report of Independent Auditors

20th Floor, Tower 1
The £nterprise Center
6766 Ayala Avenus
1200 Makati City
Philippines

T +63 2 886-5511
F +63 2 886-5506; +63 ¥ 886-5507,
www.punongbayan-araufic,com

To the Board of Directors and the Stockhalders
Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc.

Benguet Center, 12 ADB Avenue

Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Banco de Oro Unibanrk,
Inc. and subsidiaries (together hereinafter referred to as the Group) and Banco de
Oro Unibank, Inc. (the Patent Bank), which comprise the statements of condition as
at December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the incomie statements, statements of changes in
equity and cash flow statements for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2008, and notes to financial statements comprising of 2 summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Starements : - i

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the financial reporting standards in the Philippines for
basks as described in Note 2 to the financial statements. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation,
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying approptiate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors® Responsibility

Out responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based oz our

audits, We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on

Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requitements and plan ‘
and petform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements i

are free from material misstatement.
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B is & member fem within Grant Thomtan Intesnational Ld

Oflces In Cehu, Davao, Cavite

BOAPRE Sert. of Reg, No. D002
SEC Acereditation No. 0002-F




1 Punongbayqn & Araullo

-2-

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedutes selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the dsks of material tnisstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those sk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to desigr audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. '

We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 'appropriéte to
provide a basis for our audit opinion..

Opinion’

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present faitly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Group and of the Parent Bank as of

December 31, 2008 and 2007, and their financial performance and their cash flows for
each of the three years'in the period ended December 31, 2008, in accordance with
the financial reporting standards in the Philippines for banks as described in Note 2 to
the financial statements. _

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

By: Benjamin P. Vaidez
Partner
CPA Reg. No. 0028485
TIN 136-619-880
PTR No. 1566055, January 5, 2009, Makati City -
SEC Accreditation No. 0009-AR-2
BIR AN 08-002511-11-2008 (Nov. 25, 2008 to 2011)

March 2, 2009
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BANCO DE ORO UNIBANK, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2007 AIND 2006
@ﬂmawzte in Thousands Except Per Share Data)

CORPORATE MATTERS
11 Incorporation and Operarions

Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. (the Bank, BDO Unibank orthe Parent Bank) was
incorporated in the Philippines on August 16, 1967 to engage in the business of
banking. It was authorized to engage in trust operations on September 18, 1987 and in
foreign currency deposit operations on November 23, 1990. The Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas {BSP) granted approval to the Bank to operate as an expanded commercial
bank on August 5, 1996. The Bank commenced operations as such in September of the
same year. The Baak and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Group) offer a
wide range of commercial, investment, private and other banking services. These
services include traditional loan and deposit products, as well as treasury, asset
tmanagement, realty management, leasmg and finance, remittance, trade services, retail
cash cards, insurance, credit card services, stockbrokerage, trust and others.

. As a banking institution, the Bank’s operations ate regulated and supervised by the BSP.
In this regard, the Bank is required to comply with the rules and regulations of the BSP
such as those relating to maintenance of reserve requirements on deposit liabilities and
deposit substitutes and those relating to the adoption and use of safe and sound
banking practices among others, as promulgared by the BSP. The Bank is subject to
the prowsxons of the General Banking Law of 2000 (Republic Act No. 8791).

BDO Unibank recently completed a mezger, effective May 31, 2007, with Equitable PCI
Bank, Inc. (EPCIB), with BDO Unibank as the sutviving entity (see Note 26.1).

‘The Bank’s common shares are listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). As of
December 31, 2008, the Bank has 664 branches, and 749 on-site and 504 off-site
automated teller machines, all located nationwide. The Bank’s registered address is at .
Benguet Center, 12 ADB Avenue, Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City.

The Group operates mainly within the Philippines with a banking branch in Hong
Kong and various remittance subsidiaries operating in Asia, Europe and the United
States. In 2008 and 2007, these foreign operations accounted for 0.8% and 0.7% of the
Group’s total revenues, and 0.1% and 0.2% of the Group’s total resources, respectively.
" The Bank’s subsidiaries and associates are shown in Note 13.5.
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12 Merger of BDO Unibank with EPCIB

As discussed more fully in Note 26.1, on March 29, 2007 and May 25, 2007, the BSP
and the Philippine Secutities and Exchange Commission (SEC), respectively, approved
the merger of BDO Unibank and EPCIB which became effective on May 31, 2007.
The metger was accounted for under the pooling-of-interests method of accounting as
approved by the SEC since BDO Unibank and EPCIB wete both under common.
control by SM Investments Corporation (SMIC) at the time of the merger. '

Under the merget, the entire assets and liabilities of EPCIB wete transferred to and
absorbed by BDO Unibank. In applying the pooling-of-interests method, the financial
statement items of BDO Unibank and EPCIB were combined at the begioning of the
year in which the merger occurred, that is, January 1, 2007. The comparative financial
data presented for 2006 have been restated to inclade the accounts of EPCIB inte BDO
Unibank’s accounts from October 2, 2006, the date the two merging entities became
under common control by the same controlling stackholder, SMIC.

The total catrying values of the resources and liabilities of EPCIB that weze absorbed
by BDO Unibank on May 31, 2007 were: :

Total resources absotbed P 305,779,401
Total Habilities assumed 274,556,992

BDO Unibank issued to EPCIB shareholders 1,308,606,021 BDO Unibank common
shares with par value of P10 a share in exchange for the net assets of EPCIB based on
an exchange ratio of 1.8 BDO Unibank shares for every EPCIB share. BDO Unibank’s
shares were quoted at P67 a share at the PSE on May 31, 2007. :

1.3 Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2008
(with comparatives for the yeats ended December 31, 2007 and 2006) wete authorized
for issue by the Bank’s Board of Directors on February 28, 2009.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these

financial statements are summarized in the succeeding pages. The policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.



2.1 Basis of Prepacation of Financial Statements '

@

Statement of Compliance with Financial Reporting Standards in the Pbiﬁpfz'm?; for Banks

The financial statements of the Group and the financial statements of the Parent
Bank have been prepared in accordance with the financial reporting standards in
the Philippines (FRSP) for banks. The Group prepared its financial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), except for the
reclassification of the embedded derivatives in credit-linked notes (CLNs) that are
linked to Republic of the Philippines (ROP) bonds from fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL) to unquoted debt securities classified as loans (UDSCL), that are
outstanding as of the effective date of reclassification, which is permitted by the
BSP for prudential regulation, and by the SEC for financial reporting purposes.

PFRSs are adopted by the Financial Repotting Standards Council (FRSC) from
the pronouncements issued by the International Accounting Standards Board

(IASB).

These financial statements have been prepated using the measurement bases
specified by FRSP for each type of resource, liability, income and expense. These
financial statements have been prepared on the historical basis, except for the
revaluation of certain financial assets. The measurement bases are more fully
described in the accounting policies in the succeeding pages.

The following reconciliations and explanatory notes thereto describe the
difference on the statement of condition under FRSP and PFRS. In 2007 and
prior years, there is no difference between the FRSP and PFRS since the
reclassification of embedded derivatives in CLNs and other similar instruments
that are linked to ROP bonds out of FVIPL is effective only in 2008.

(i) The reconciliations of the equity reported under FRSP to equity under PFRS
as of December 31, 2008 follow.

e GTOUD Paren nk
Equity under FRSP P 57774220 P . 53,259.920
Amottization of premium/discount )
due to change in effective interest rates ) { 6,950) 1,293
Matk-to-market Joss on embedded derivatives on CENs
teciassified to loans and other receivables { 1,134,697} ( 909,227)
( 11416473 (. 007,934}
Equity under PFRS B 56,632,573 "B 52,551,986
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December 31, 2008 are summarized below:

Group

Changes in resources:
Ttading and investment securities
Tozns and other recetvables

Changes in other liabilities

— FRSP |

P 156,150,941
191,986,431

o casnan

35,922,673

(i) Differences in the measurement of statement of condition items as of

. Difference PERS
P P 156,150, 941
. 194,074 648,331,446

1335721 37,258.394

E__612.214,699

P 611,073,052

Total adjustments to equity
Parent Bank
.. FRSP  _ Difference . . PERS
Changes in resources; .
Trading and invesgment securities. P 142,091,518 P - P
Loans and othet receivables — 467,590,333 i IRA4GT
609,682,251 18,407 609,760,658
. ReloB18 . 986341 _ 32997059

142,091,918
467,668,740

Changet in other liabilities

P 901934

Total adjustments to equity

(m) The reconciliations of the net income reported under FRSP to net income under
PEFRS for the year ended December 31, 2008 follow.

rou Parent Bank
Net income under FRSP P 2.237969 P 1,478,737
Amottization of premium /discount -
due to change in effective interest rates { 6,950) : 1,293
Matk-to-macket loss on embedded derivatives on CLNs N
- reclassified to Joans und othet receivables ( 1,134,697 ( 909,227}
(. 1,141,647) (. 907,934}
Net income under PFRS ' ) 1,096,322 P 570,803

(8)  Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the Group’s
functional and presentation currency, and all values represent absolute amounts,
except when otherwise indicated (see also Note 2.22).
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2.2 Impact of New Standards, Amendments and Izztcdtreta tions to Existing
Standards

(a) = Effective in 2008 that are Relevant to the Group

In 2008, the Group adopted for the first time the following new interpretations
and amended standards which are mandatory in 2008: ‘

Philippine Interprétation : The Limit on a Defined Benefit
IFRIC 14, PAS 19 Assets, Minimum Funding
Requitements-and their -
Interaction
Philippine Accounting : -PAS 39, Financial Instrumerts
Standard (PAS) 39 and Recognition and Measurements and .
PFRS 7 {Amendment) PFRS 7, Financial Insttuments :
Disclosures
Philippine Interpretation : Group and Treasury Share Transactions
IFRIC 11 '

Discussed below ate the effects in the financial statements of the new accounting
interpretations and amended standards. ‘

(i) On October 29, 2008, the FRSC approved the immediate adoption of
amendments to JAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and
IFRS 7, Financial Insiroments: Disclosures: Reclassification of Financial Assels, issued
by the JASB as amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7. Adopton of the
amendments enables Philippine entities applying PFRSs to avail of the allowed
international accounting treatments, The amendments to PAS 39 permit an

entity to, among othets:
G, g,

e  reclassify non-detivative financial assets, other than those designated at
FVTPL upon initial recognition, out of the FVTPL category:

a.  onlyin rare circumstances and if there is a change in intention
(i.e., the financial asset is no longet held for the purpose of selling or
xe_purg:hasin_g it in the near future); o,

b.  if the financial asset would have met the definition of loans and
receivables and if the financial asset had not been requited to be
classified as held-for-trading (HFT) at initial recognition and the
entity has'the intention and ability ta hold the financial asset for the
foreseeable future or until maturity.

e transfer from available for-sale (AFS) category to the loans and

receivables category a non-detivative financial asset that would have met

~ the definition of loans and recetvables i - [%igfhwiﬁpd
HeR AR ST

ability to hold that financial asset for th BELE 10n
maturity. T -y m? ‘
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Related to this, the Monetary Boazd of the BSP approved the prudential
reporting puidelines for banks governing the reclassification of investments in
debt and equity securities between categories in accordance with the provisions
of the October 2008 amendments to the PAS 39 and PFRS 7, and provided

. additional guidelines (under BSP Circular No. 628) which include; among

(%)

others, the reclassification of CLNs and other similar instruments that are
linked to ROP bonds:

e  out of the HFT into AFS/held-to-maturity (HTM,)/ UDSCL; of,

e from AFS to UDSCL or HTM, without bifurcating the embedded
derivatives from the host instruments;

Provided that these shall only apply for CLNs that ate outstanding as of, ‘the
effective date of rediassification, which shall not be on or later tharn

November 15, 2008.

On February 2, 2009, the SEC approved the adoption of BSP Circular 628 as
being compliant with generally accepted accounting principles for banls.

Pursuant to these amendments and guidelines, the Group reclassified certain
financial assets out of FVTPL and AFS categosies to HTM and loans and
receivables categories (see Note 9).

In 2008, the Group adopted for the first time the Philippine Interpretation,
International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee @FRIC} 14,

DAS 19 .- The Limit on a Defined Bengfic Asset, Mininour Funding Requirements and
their Interaction (effective from January 1, 2008). This Philippine Interpretation
provides general guidance on how to assess the limit in PAS 19, Employee
Bengfits, on the amount of the surplus that can be recognized as an asset. It
also explains how the pension asset ot liability may be affected by statutory or,
contractual minimum funding requirement. The Group’s adoption of this
interpretation does not have any impact on the Gtoup’s financial statements,
as its retirement benefit plan is still partally unfunded.

(i#) In 2008, the Group adopted for the first time the Philippine Interpretation

International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee (IFRIC) 11, Group
and Treasury Shares Transacrions (effective from Match 1, 2007). This standard
addsesses the issue relating to an entity’s obligation to ptovide its employees,
as well as other third parties, with its own equity instrument {i.e., treasury
shares) or the equity instrument of its shareholder (SMIC). The Parent Bank is
obligated to provide the Group’s employees with its equity shates and such
transaction is accounted for as equity settled in the Group financial statements.
Undet this Philippine Interpretation, the Group is required to measure the
services received from the employees in accordance with the requitements
applicable to equity-settled share-based payment transactions, with a
cotresponding inctease tecognized in the Group’s equity as a conttibution

. from the shareholders.

The first-time application of these amended sta
resulted in any prior period adjustments of cash,
conditon line items.

tions has not
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Liffective in 2008 but #of Relevant to the Gronp

Philippine Intetpretation : Service Concession Arrangements
{FRIC 12

Effective Subsequent to 2008 that are Relevant to the Group

Thete ate new and amended standards and Philippine Interpretation that are

effective for periods subsequent to 2008. The following new standards are
relevant to the Group which the Group will apply in accordance with their
transitional provisions,

PAS 1 (Revised 2007) : Presentation of Financial Statements

PAS 23 (Revised 2007) : Borrowing Costs

PAS32and PAS 1 : Financial Instruments: Presentation and
(Amendment) Presentation of Financial Staternents

. Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidaton

Vatious Standards : 2008 Annual Improvements to' PEFRS

Below is 2 discussion of the possible i}npéct of these accounting standards:

(i} PAS 1 (Revised 2007), Presentation of Financial Statements (effective from

January 1, 2009). The amendment requites an entity to present all items of
income and expense recognized in the petiod in a single statement of
comprehensive income or in two statements: a separate income statement
and a statement of comprehensive income. The income statement shall
disclose income and expense recognized in profit and loss in the same way as
the current version of PAS 1. The statement of comprehensive income shall
disclose profit or Joss for the period, plus each component of income and
expense recognized outside of profit and loss classified by nature (e.g., gains
or losses on available-for-sale assets ot translation differences related to
foteign operations). Changes in equity arising ffom transactions with owners
ate excluded from the statement of comprehensive income (e.g., dividends
and capital increase). An entity would also be required to include in its set-of
financial statements 2 statement showing its financial position {or statement
of condition) at the beginning of the previous period when the entity -
retrospectively applies an accounting policy or makes 2 tetrospective
restatement, The Group will apply PAS 1 (Revised 2007) in its 2009 financial
staterpents.

(zz) PAS 23 (Revi‘sed 2007}, Borrowing Costs (effective from January 1, 2009.

Under the revised PAS 23, all borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset shall be
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. The option of immediately. -
expensing borrowing costs that qualify for asset recognition has been
temoved. The Group has initially dctennme'izx[‘a{ O BHTRTT HRODES
standard will not have significant effects on thegneacia.geg GIRED

as well as for prior and future periods, as the {4
policy is to capitalize all interest directly relatqd

i fua



(i#) PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instraments: Presentafion and PAS 1

()

(Arnendment), Presentation of Financial Statements — Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on Liguidation (effective from January 1, 2009). The.
amendments tequire certain financial instruments that represent a residual
interest in the net assets of an entity, which would otherwise be classified as
financial liabilities, to be classified as equity, if both the financial instrument.
and the capital structure of the issiing entity meet certain conditions. The
Group does not expect any impact on its financial statements when it applies
the amendments in 2009.

2008 Annual Improvements to PFRS. The FRSC has adopted the
Inmprovements to International Financial Reporting Standards 2008. These
amendments become effective in the Philippines in annual perods beginning
on or after January 1, 2009. The Group expects the amendments to the
following standazds to be relevant to the Group’s accounting policies:

e DAS 23 (Amendment), Borrowing Costs. The amendment clarifies the
definition of borrowing costs to include interest expense determined using
the effective interest method under PAS 39. This amendment will be
applied by the Group in 2009; however, management expects its effect to
be insignificant.

® PAS1 (Amendmert), Presentation of Finandal Staterpents. The amendment
* claifies that financial instruments classified as held for trading in
" accordance with PAS 39 are not necessatily required to be presented as
current assets ot current liabilies. Instead, normal classification
ptinciples under PAS 1 should be applied. The Group detesmines that
this amendment will have no impact in the Group’s 2009 financial
statements.

o DAS 19 (Amendment), Employec Bengfits, The amendment includes the -
following: '

~  Clarification that 2 curtailfinent is considered to have occurred to the
extent that benefit promises are affected by future salary increases and
a reduction in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
results in negative past service cost.

- Change in the definition of retutn of plan assets to require the
deduction of plan administration costs in the calculation of plan assets
return only to the extent that such costs have been excluded from
measurement of the defined benefit obligation.

—  Distinction between short-term and long-term employee benefits wrill
' be based on whether benefits are due to be settled within or after
12 months of employee service being rendered.

(LY G ¥ T PROCFSERAL:
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- 'Removal of the reference to recognition in relation to contingent
Habilifies in order to be consistent with PAS 37, Provésions, Contingent
1 sabilities and Contingent Assets, which requires contingent liabilities to
be disclosed and not recognized.

The Group will apply this amendment to PAS 19 on its 2009 financial

statements.

s PAS 38 (Amendment), Inzangible Assets. The amendment clarifies when to

" recognize a prepaymment asset, including advertising or promotional
expenditures. In the case of supply of goods, the entity recognizes such
expenditure as an expense when it has a right to access the goods. For
services, an expense is recognized on receiving the service. Also,
prepayment may only be recognized in the event that payment has been
made in advance of obtaining right of access to goods or receipt of
services. The Group initially determined that adoption of this amendment
will not have a material effect on its 2009 financial statements.

e PAS 39 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
The definition of financial asset or financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss as it relates to items that are held for trading was changed. A
financial asset or liability that is part of a portfolio of financial instruments
managed together with evidence of an actual recent pattern of short-term
profit taking is included in such a portfolio on initial recognition. The
Group initially determined that adoption of this amnendment will not have
a material effect on its 2009 financial statements.

e PAS 40 (Amendment), Investment Properry. PAS 40 is amended to include
property undet construction or development for future use as investment
propetty in its definition of investment propexty. This results in such
property being within the scope of PAS 40; previously, it was within the
scope of PAS 16. Also, if an entity’s policy is to measure investment
propetty at fair value, but during construction ot development of an
investment property the entity is unable to reliably measure its fair value,
then the entity would be permitted to measure the investment property at
cost until construction ot development is complete. At such time, the.
entity would be able to measure the investment property at fair value.

Minor amendments are made to several other standards; however, those
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

2.3 Basis of Consolidation

‘The Group obtains and exercises control through voting rights. The Group’s financial
statements comptise the accounts of the Parent Bank and its subsidiaries as enumerated
in Note 13, after the elimination of material intercompany transactions. All sipnificant
intercompany balances and transactions with subsidiaries, including income, expenses
and dividends, are eliminated in full. Unrealized profits and losses from intercompany
transactions that are recognized in assets aze also elini i tercompany

. g . . . . - PO v
Josses that indicate impaitment are recognized in the G: Gﬂpxﬂwﬁtﬁtgﬁﬁ%ﬁg;ﬁ: '
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Business combinations atising from transfets of interests in entities that are under the
comimon contral of the shareholder that controls the Group aze accounted for under
the pooling-of-interests method and reflected in the financial statements as if the
husiness combination had occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative peried
presented, or if later, at the date that common control was established; for this purpose,
comparatives arc restated. The resources and liabilities acquired are recognized at the
carrying amounts recognized previously in the Group’s controlling shareholder’s
financial statements. The components of equity of the acquired entities are added to
the same components within the Group equity.

The Group accounts for its investments in subsidiaries and minority interest as follows:

@

()

Tnvestments in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries ate all entities over which the Group has the power to control the
former’s financial and operating policies. The Group obtains and exercises
control through voting rights. ‘

Subsidiaties are consolidated from the date the Group obtains control until such
time that such control ceases. '

Except as otherwise indicated, the acquisifion of subsidiaries are accounted for
using the purchase method of accounting (see Note 2.11). Purchase method
involves the revaluation at fair value of all identifiable assets and liabilities,
including contingent liabilities of the subsidiary, at the acquisition date, repardless

of whether or not they wete recorded in the financial statements of the subsidiaty

ptior to acquisition. On initial recognition, the assets and liabitities of the
subsidiary ate included in the Group statement of condition at their revalued
amounts, which are also used as bases for subsequent measurement in accordance

with the Group accounting policies.

Goodwill (positive) tepresents the excess of acquisition cost over the Group’s
shate in the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the acquired subsidiary at

acquisition date. Negative goodwill represents the excess of Group’s share in the

fait value of identifiable net assets of the subsidiary at acquisition date over
acquisition cost (see Note 2.12).

Minority Interests

Minority intetests represent the portion of the net assets and profit or loss not
attributable to the Group and ate presented separately in the Group income
statement and within equity in the Group statement of condition and changes in

equity,

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority intetests as
transactions with parties external to the Group. Disposals of equity investments
to minority interests result in gains and losses for the Group that ate recorded in
the Group income statement. Purchases of equity shares from minority interests
result in goodwill, being the difference between any consideration paid anq the

ired 1 rrying value of the b.‘;ldla.?&.__
relevant shate acquired in the carrying valus LT - DOCUMENT PROACESSEL
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the Group statement of changes in equity and in tk



24 Scgment Reporting

A business segment is 2 Group of assets and operations engaged in providing products
or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other

business segments. A geographical segment is one that provides products or services
within a particulat economic environment that is subject to risks and returns that are
different from those segments operating in other economic envitonments.

The Group’s operations are organized according to the nature of products and setvices
provided. Financial information on business segments is presented in Note 5.

25 Financial Assets

Financial assets include cash and other financial instraments, Financial assets, other
than hedging instruments, are classified into the following categories: at FVTPL, loans
and receivables, HTM and AFS. Financial assets are assigned to the different categories
by management on initial recognition, depending on the purpose for which the
investments were acquired. Except for derivative financial instruments and financial
assets designated at FVTPL, the designation of financial zssets is te-Evaluated at every
reporting date at which date a choice of classification or accounting treatment is
available; subject to compliance with specific provisions of applicable accounting
standards. -

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and non-restricted balances with the BSP and
amounts due from other banks, For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash and other cash items, amounts due from BSP aad other banks,
interbank call loans receivable and Securities Purchased Under Reverse Repurchase
Agreement (SPURRA) with otiginal maturities of three months or less from placement
date.

Regular purchase and sales of financial assets are recognized on theit settlement date.
Al financial assets that are not classified as at FVIPL are initially recognized at fait
value, plus transaction costs. Financial assets carded at FVTPL are initially recognized
at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.

The foregoing categoties of financial instruments are mote fully described below.

(a)  Financial Assets at Fair Valus Threugh Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

This category includes detivative financial instruments and financial assets that are
cither classified as held for trading or are designated by the Group to be carried at
FVTPL upon initial recognition. A financial asset is classified in this category-if
acquited principally for the purpose of selling in the neas term or if so designated
by management. Derivatives ate also categotized as “held for trading” unless they

are designated as hedges.
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Subsequent to initial recognidon, the financial assets included in this categozy are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.
Financial assets (except detivatives and financial assets originally designated as
financial assets at FVTPL) may be subsequently reclassified out of FVIPL
category effective July 1, 2008

(i) only in rare circumstances and if there is a change'in intention (i.e., the
financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling oz repurchasing it in
the near future); ‘ ‘

{if) if the financial asset would have met the definition of loans receivables and if
the financial asset had not been required to be classified as HFT at inidal
recognition and the entity has the intention and ability to hold the financial
asset for the foreseeable futute or until maturity; and,

(i#) for CLNss and detivatives embedded in CLNs linked to ROP bonds as
permitted by BSP for prudential regulation and by the SEC for financial

reporting purposes.

Loans and Recervables

Ioans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. These atise when
the Group provides money, goods or setvices directly to the debtor with no
intention of trading the receivables. Included in this category ate those atising
from direct loans to customets, interbank loans and receivables, sales contract
teceivables and all receivables from customers and other banks. Loans and
teceivables also include the aggregate rental on finance lease transactions.
Uneatned income on finance lease transactions is shown as 2 deduction from

loans and receivables.

Loans and teceivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective intetest method, less impairment losses. Any change in the value of
loans and receivables is recognized in profit or loss. -

SPURRA wherein the Group enters into short-term purchases of securities under
reverse repurchase agreements of substantially identical securities with the BSP,
ate included in this category. The difference between the sale and repurchase
price is recognized as interest and accrued over the life of ‘the agreements using
the effective interest method. .

. Impaitment losses is the estimated amount of losses in the Group’s loan portfolio,

based og the evaluation of the estimated futore cash flows discounted at the loan’s
otiginal effective interest rate oz the last repricing rate for loans issued at vatiable
rates (see Note 2.20). Impairment is established through an allowance account
which is charged to expense. Loans and receivables ate written off against the
allowance for impairment losses when management believes that the collectibility
of the principal is unlikely, subject to BSP regulati ;!x?r RO PR EESEL |
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Held-to -métwig}t Investrents (HTM)

This categoty includes non-detivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and a fixed date of matuuity. Investments are classified as HTM if the
Group has the positive intention and ability to hold them uati! maturity.
Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not included under,
this categoty. ‘

HTM investments consist of government and private debt securities. If the
Group wete to sell other than an insignificant amount of HTM assets, the entire
category of HIM securities would be tainted and would be teclassified as AFS
secutities. The tainting provision will not apply if the sales or teclagsifications of
HTM investments: (¢) are so close to maturity or the financial asset’s call date that
changes in the market rate of interest would not have a significant effect on the
financial asset’s fair value; (7} occur after the Group has collected substantially all
of the financial asset’s original principal through scheduled payments or
prepayments; ot, (#) ate attributable to an isolated event that is beyond the
control of the Group, is nonrecurring and could not have been treasonably
antcipated by the Group. :

HTM investments are subsequently measured at amozrtized cost using the effective
interest method. If there is objective evidence that the investment has been
impaired, the financial asset is measured at the present value of estimated cash
flows. Any changes to the carrying amount of the investment due to impairment
are recognized in profit or loss. ) .

Apatlable-for-sale Financial Agsets (AFS)

This category includes non-derivative financial assets that are either designated to
this categoty or do not qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of
financial assets.

Non-derivative financial asset classified as AFS may be reclassified to loans and
receivables category that would have met the definition of loans and receivables
(effective July 1, 2008) if there is an intenton and ability to hold that financial
asset for the foreseeable future or until macarity. ‘

All financial assets within this categoty are subsequently measured at fait value,
unless otherwise disclosed, with changes in value recognized in equity, net ofany
effects arising from income taxes. Gains and losses atising from secutities
classified as AFS are recognized in the income statement -when these ate sold or

‘when the investment are impaired.

Tn the case of impairment, any loss previously recognized in equity is transferred
to the income statement. Losses recognized in the income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the income statement. Losses recognized in
priot petiod income statement resﬁlti.ng from the impairment of debt instruments
are teversed through the income statement, when there is tecovery in the amount

of previously recognized impairment losses. g g [GEEY
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The fait values of quoted investments in active markets are based on current bid
ptices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities),
the Group establishes the fair value by using valuation techniques, which include .
the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option
pricing models and othet valuation techniques commonly used by market
patticipants. : :

Gains and losses atdsing from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at

fait value through profit or loss category are reported as part of Trading Gain
under Other Operating Income account in income statement in the period in
which these atise. Gains and losses atising from changes in the fair value of AFS
securities are recognized directly in equity until the financial asset is derecognized
ot impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
equity shall be recognized in profit or loss. However, interest calculated using the .
effective interest method is recognized in the income statement. Dividends on
AFS equity instruments are recognized in the income staternent whea the Group’s
right to receive payment is established. ' '

Non-compounding interest and other cash flows resulting from holding impaired
financial assets ate recognized in profit ot loss when received, regardiess of how
the related cattying amount of financial assets is measured. ‘

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the right to recetve cash flows from
the financial instruments expire or are transferted and substandally all of the risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

2.6 Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting

"The Group is & party to various foreign-currency forward and swap contracts and
CLOSS-CULTENCy and interest rate swaps. These contracts are entered into as a service to
customers and as a means of reducing or managing the Group’s foreign exchange and
interest rate exposures, as well as for trading pusposes.

Detivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which derdvative contract
is enteted into and are subsequently measured at their fait value {except for the
embedded detivatives in CLNs linked to ROP bonds which the Group reclassified to
loans). Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active marlets, including
secent market transactions, and valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow
models and option pricing models, as apptoptiate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilides when fair value is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a detivative at initial recognition is the transaction
price (the fair value of the consideration given ot received) unless the fair value of the
instrument is evidenced by comparison with other observable cutrent market ,
transactions in the same instrument ot based on 4 valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Group

recognizes profit or loss at initial recogaition.
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For more complex instruments, the Group uses proprietary models, which usually are

developed from recognized valuation models. Some or all of the inputs into these

models may not be market obsetvable, and are derived from market prices ot fates or
are estimated based on assumptions. When entering into a transaction, the financial *

instrument is recognized initially at the transaction ptice, which is the best indicator of

fait value, although the value obtained from the valuation model may differ from the
_transaction price. “This initial difference in fair value indicated by valuaton techniques is
- recognized as profit or loss depending upon the individual facts and circumstances of
ecach transaction and not later than when the market data becomes obsetvable.

The value produced by a model or othet valuation technique is adjusted to. allow for a
aumber of factors as appropriate;, because valuation techniques cannot appropriately
reflect all factors market participants take into account when entering into a transaction. -
Valuation adjustments are recorded to allow for model risks, bid-ask spreads, liquidity
risks as well as other factors, Management believes that these valuation adjustments are
necessary and approptiate to faitly state financial instruments carried at fair value on the

statement of condition.

Certain detivatives embedded in other financial instruments are considered as sepatate.
derivatives when their economic charactetistics and zisks aze not closely-related to those
of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. These embedded derivatives are bifurcated from the host contracts and ate
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the income statement
(except for the embedded derivatives in CLNs tinked to ROP boads which were not
bifurcated from the host contracts and wese reclassified to loans as permitted for

prudential rep orting).

Certain derivatives may be designated as either: (i) hedges of the fair value of recognized
assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedge); ot (%) hedges of highly
probable future cash fiows attributable to a recognized asset ot liability, or a forecasted
transaction (cash flow hedge). Changes in the fair value of detivatives are recognizedin
profit or loss. The method of recognizing the resulting fair value gain or loss on
derivatives that qualify as hedging instrument depends on the hedging refationship
designated by the Group.

7 27 Non-curtent Assets Held-for-Sale

Assets held-for-sale include real and other properties acquited through repossession ox
foreclosute that the Group intends to sell within one year from the date of classification

as held for sale.

Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts
inmediately pror to their classification as held for gale and their fair value less costs to
sell. Assets classified as held for sale are not subject to depreciation or amottizaton.
The profit or loss arsing from the sale of held-for-sale assets is included as patt of
Income from Assets Acquired under Other Operating Income account in the income

statement.
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2.8 Investment Properties

Investment properties are stated at cost. The cost of an investment property comprises
its purchase price and directly attributable cost incurred. This also includes land and
building acquired by the Group from defaulting borrowets not held for sale in the next
12 months. For these assets, the cost is recognized initially at fair value. Investment
propetties except Jand aré depreciated on a straight-line basis over a period of 10 years.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment propetty is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. -

The Group adopted the cost model in measuting its investment property, hence, is .
cartied at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Depreciation
and impairment loss ate recognized in the same manner as in Premises, Furniture,

Fixtures and Equipment.

Investment propezty is derecognized upon disposal'or when permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
on the retirement or disposal of an investment propetty is recognized in the income
statement in the year of retitement or disposal. '

2.9 Equity Investments

In the Group financial statements, investments in associates ate accounted for under
the equity method of accounting and are initially recognized at cost, less any impairment
losses (see Note 2.21).

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is zecogniz_cd in
the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognized in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an’
associate equals ‘or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Untrealized gains on tratisactions between the Group and its associates ate eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies have been changed where necessary to ensure
cousistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Subsidiaries ate all entities over which the Group has the powet to govetn the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one-half of
the voting rights. 'The existence and effect of potential voting rights that ate currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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In the Parent Bank financial statements, the investments in subsidiaries and associates
are cartied at cost, less any impairment in value. -

2.10 Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

Premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment ate catried at acquisition cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortization and any impairment in value. Property
items of the former FEPCIB stated at appraised values were included in the Group
balances at their deemed costs at date of transition to PFRS on January 1, 2005, The
revaluation increment is credited to Revaluation Increment account in the Equity
section, net of applicable deferred income tax. '

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for ifs intended use. Expenditures for
additions, major improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditutes for repairs
and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. When assets are sold, retired or
otherwise disposed of, their cost and related accumulated depreciation and amortization
and impairment losses are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is
reflected in income for the period, : )

Depreciation is computed on straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
depreciable assets as follows:

Buildings 10 to 50 yeats
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 5 years

Leasehold rights and improvements are amortized over the terms of the leases or the
estimated useful lives of the improvements, whichever is shorter.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amouat (see Note 2:21).

The residual values and estimated useful lives of premises, furniture, fixtures and .
equipment aze reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of condition
date. '

An item of premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment is derecognized upon disposat or
when no future econommic benefits are expected to atise from the continued use of the
asset. Any pain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the cartying amount of the item) is included in
the income statement in the petiod the item is detecognized.

211 Business Combination

Except as indicated otherwise, business acquisitions are accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting, :

Goodwill acquited in 2 business combination is initially measured at cost being the
excess of the cost of a business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities, Following initial
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accurmy 7[?:’. it

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or more §

¥ ifsignts of
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be .




Negative goodwill, if any, which is the excess of the Group’s; interest in the net fair
value of acquired identifiable assets, labilities and contingent liabilities over cost is
recognized directly to income.

Transfers of assets between commonly-controlled entities are accournted for under
historical cost accounting.

212 Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the net
assets acquired and branch lcenses at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is classified as
intangible asset with indefinite useful life, and thus, not subject to amortization but to

an annual test for impairment (see Note 2.21). Goodwill is subsequently carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing.
Each of those cash generating units is represented by each pritnary reporting segment.

Acquired computer softwate licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and install the specific software. These costs are amortized on straight-line basis
over the expected useful lives of five years. Costs associated with maintaining computer
software ate expensed as incurred. ‘ '

213 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Group include deposit liahilities, bills payable, desivative
liabilities, subordinated notes payable and other liabilites.

Financial lizbilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
agreements of the instrument:

Deposif Hahilities and other liabilities ate recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost less settiement payments.

Bills payable and subosdinated notes payable, except for government financial assistance
ate recognized initially at fair value, which is the issue proceeds (fair value of
consideration received), net of direct issue costs. Bills payable and subordinated notes
payable are subsequently measured at amortized cost; any difference between proceeds,
net of transaction costs, and the redemption value is recognized in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Preferred shates, which carry a mandatory coupon or are tedeemable on a specific date
ot at the option of the shareholder ate classified as financial liabilitles and are presented
as patt of Bills Payable in the statement of condition. The dividends on these preferred
shates are recognized in the income statement as interest expense on an amottized cost
basis using the effective interest method.

The fair value of the Hahility portion of a convertible bond is determined using a market
interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a
liability on an amortized cost basis until extinguished on c‘a’ﬁx&ﬂﬁ:ﬁm S TR
bond. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to th 311
recognized and included in equity, net of income tax ef’
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Derivative liabilities are recognized inidally and subséquently measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in the income statement:

Dividend distributions to shareholders are*rercognized as financial Babilities when ﬁhe,_
dividends ate approved by the BSP. ' |

Financial assistance from Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation (PDIC) is
accounted for under PAS 20, Aecounting for Governmzent Grants, whereby the loan received
is initially recorded at the amount borrowed with no re-measurement to fair value or
imputation of market interest. ' '

Financial liabilities ate derecognized in the statement of condition only when the
obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or expiration.

2.14 Ofisetting Financial Insituments

Financial assets and lishilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement
of condition when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

2.15 Terminal Valie of Leased Assets and Deposits on Finance Lease

The residual value of leased assets, which approximates the amount of guaranty deposit
paid by the lessee at the inception of the lease, is the estiniated proceeds from the

. disposal of the leased asset at the end of the lease term. At the end of the lease term,
the residual value of the leased asset is genetally applied against the guaranty deposit of
the lessee. ' ‘

2.16 Equity
Cépital stock is determined using the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Common stock option pertains to the value of the segregated equity component of the
convettible loan as required under PAS 32, Financial Instrumenis: Disclosures and Presentation

and the cumulative amount of stock option atising from the stock option plan granted
by the Group to its qualified officers. :

Treasury shates include the cost of the Group’s shares of stock which were acquired by
a subsidiary.

Additional paid-in capital includes any premiums received on the issuance of capital
stock. Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from

additional paid-in capital.

Surplus reserves pertain to a portion of the Group’s income from ttust operations
set-up on a yearly basis in compliance with BSP regulations. Surplus reserves also
consist of reserve for contingencies and self-insurance. -

Surplus free includes all current and prior petiod resulty 48 BdiE £ WS :
statement and which ate available and not restricted fo Mf) B DIvisios
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Fait value gain (loss) on available-for-sale secutities pertain to cumulative
matk-to-market valuation of AFS financial assets.

Revaluation inctement consists of gains arising from the revaluation of land.

Accumulated translation adjustment pertains to exchange differences arising on
translation of the assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries and overseas branch that

are tzken directly to equity.

‘Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets and profit or loss not
attributable to the Group and ate presented separately in the Group income statement
and within equity in the Group statements of condition and changes in equity.

217 Revenue and Cost Recognition

Revenue is tecognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific
recognition criteria of income and expenses must also be met before revenue is

recognized:

()  Interest—Interest income and expenses are recognized in the income statement for
all instruments measured 2t amortzed cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of 2
fnancial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income ot
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate 1s the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments oz receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when approptiate, a shorter petiod to
the net catrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider future.
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid oz received between
parties to the contract that ate an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discouts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down
as a tesult of an impaitment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of
interest tsed to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the

impairment loss.
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(b)) Service charges, fees and commissions — Service charges, fees and commissions ate
generally recognized when the service has been provided. Loan syndication fees
are recognized as tevenue when the syndication has been completed and the
Group retained no part of the loan package for itself or retained a part at the same.
effective interest rate for the other participants. Commission and fees arising
from negotiating, ot participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third
party — such as the arrangement of the acquisition of shares or other securities or
the purchase or sale of businesses — are recognized on the completion of the
underlying transaction. Portfolio and other management advisory and service fees
ate recognized based on the applicable service contracts, usually on a time-
propottionate basis. Asset management fees related to investment funds are
recognized ratably over the period the service is provided. The same principle is
applied for wealth management, financial planning and custedy scrvices that are
continuously provided over an extended petiod of time. ‘

(¢)  Trading gain — Trading gain is recognized when the ownetship of the securities is
transferred to the buyer (at an amount equal to the excess of the selling price over
the catrying amount of securities) and as a result of the matk-to-market valuation

of the secutities at year end.

(d)  Income from assets soid or exchanged — Income from assets sold or exchanged are
recognized when the title to the assets is transferred to the buyet or when the
collectibility of the entire sales price is reasonably assured. This is included as part

of Other Operating Income account in the income statement.

(¢f  Dividend income Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive
payment is established. ‘

{H  Rental income — Rental income adsing from leased properties is accounted for onta
straight-line basis over the lease terms on ongoing leases and is recorded in the
income statement as part of Other Operating Income.

() Commissions earned on eredss ards — Comnmissions earned on credit cards are taken up
as income upon teceipt from member establishments of charges arsing from
credit availments by credit cazdholders. These commissions are computed based
on certain agreed rates and are deducted from amounts temittable to member

establishments.

(h)  Income on direct financing leases and receivables - financed — Income on Joans and
receivables financed with short-term maturities is recognized using the effective
interest method. Interest and finance fees on finance leases on loans and
receivables financed with long-term maturities and the excess of the aggregate
lease rental plus the estimated terminal value of the leased equipment over its cost
are credited to unearned discount and amortized ovet the term of the note or
lease using the effective interest method. Unearned income ceases to be
amortized when receivables become past due.

Cost and expenses ate tecognized in the income statement upon utilization of the.assets

or services or at the date these are incurred. LT DOCUMENT PREETEEE:
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- 2.18 Provisions =

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and these can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of
the outflow may still be uncertain, A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal
or constructive commitment that has resulted from past events, for example, legal
disputes or onerous contracts.

Provisions ate measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the statement of condition
date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Any
reimbursement expected to be received in the course of settlement of the present
obligation is recognized, if virtually certain as 4 separate asset, not exceeding the amount
of the related provision. Where there ate a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the: class of
obligations as a whole. In addition, long-term provisions are discounted to their present
values, where time valie of money is material.

Provisions are reviewed at each statement of condition date and adjusted to reflect the
cutrent best estitmate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot
be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the financial statements.

Probable inflows of economic benefits that do not yet meet the recognition critetia of an
asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the financial
statements, '

219 Leases

The Group accounts for its leases as follows:

(@)  Group as Lessor

Leases wherein the Group substantially transfers to the lessee all risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item are classified as finance leases and are
presented as receivable at an amount equal to the Group’s net investment in the
lease. Finance income is recognized based on the pattern reflecting a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of

the finance lease.

Teases, which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the rsks and benefits
of ownetship of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
collections are recognized as income in the income statement on a straight-line

basis ovet the lease term,
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(8)  Group as Lessee

Leases, which do not transfer to the Group substantally all the rsks and benefits
of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Opezrating lease
payments are recognized as expense in the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the lesse term.

The Group determines whether an arrangement is, ot contains a lease based on the

substance of the arrangement. [t makes an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arfangement
conveys a Hght to use the asset.

2.20 Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each statement of condition date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset ot group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incutred if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or mote events that
occutred after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of assets is impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about certain loss events, including, among others: (7} significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or debtor; (ii) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; (i) the probability that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization; (i) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; ot, (¥} observable data indicating that
there is a measurable dectease in the estimated fature cash flows from a gtoup of
financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot
vet be identified with the individual financial assets in the group.

(a) . Assets carried at amortized oost. The Group first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually
sipnificant and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether signiftcant
or not, the Group includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them forimpairment. Assets.
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognized are not included in 2 collective assessment of
impairment. :
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If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivable ox
HTM investments carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carying amount and the.
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s originél effective
interest rate. The catrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in the income
statement. If a loan or HTM investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. When practicable, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observahble market
price. ‘

"The calculation of the present valae of the estimated future cash flows of a’
collateralized financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from _
foreclosute less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not
foreclosure is probable. '

For the purpose of # collective evaluation of impairmest, financial assets are
grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics, Le., on the basis of the
Group’s or BSP’s grading process that considers asset type, industry, collateral
type, past-due status and other relevant factoss. Those chatacteristics are relevant
to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative
of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according fo the contractual terms of
the assets being evaluated.

Futute cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for
impaiement are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets
and historical loss expetience fot assets with credit risk charactedstics similar to
those in the group, Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the
petiod on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects
of conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.

Hstimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets should reflect and
be consistent with changes in related observable data from period to period, The
methodologi¢s and assumptions used for estimating fature cash flows are
seviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates

and actual loss expetience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off, subject to BSP guidelines, against the
related allowance for loan impairment. Such loans are written off after all the
necessary procedures, including approval from the management and the Board of
Directors, have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of

the impairment loss in the incotne statement.

If in a subsequent period the amount of the impairtnent loss decreases and the

decrease can be telated objectively to an event occuttinggienthe-rppairment was
recognized (such as an improvement in the debtot’s cregi 1
recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the a§l g
amount of the reversal is recognized in the income statqif n APR '1 3 2009
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() Assets carried af fatr value with changes recognized in equity. In the case of investments
classified as AT'S financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for AFS financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in
profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognized in the income statement,
Impairment losses recognized in the income statement on equity instruments.are
not reversed through the income statement. If, in a subsequent petiod, the fair
value of a debt instrument classified as AFS increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurting after the impairment Joss was recognized
in profit ot loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

(¢) . Assets carried at cost. The Gioup assesses at each statement of condition date
whether there is objective evidence that any of the unquoted equity securities and
derivative assets linked to and required to be setiled in such unquoted equity
instruments, which are carried at cost, may be impaired. The amount of
impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount of the equity
security and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
cutrent market rate of return of a similar asset. Impairment losses on assets
carded at cost cannot be reversed. . .

Whete possible, the Group secks to restructure loans rather thdn to take
possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements
and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been ‘
renegotiated, the loan is no longer considered past due, Management
continuously reviews restructured loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that
future payments are likely to occut. The loans continue to be subject to an
individual or collective impairment assesstnent, calculated using the loans” original
effective interest tate. ‘The difference between the recorded sale of the otiginal
loan and the present value of the restructured cash flows, discounted at the
otiginal effective interest rate, is recognized as patt of Impairment Losses account
in the income statement.

2.21 Impairment of Non-financial Asscts

The Group’s equity investments, intangible assets (tecorded as pazt of Other
Resoutces), premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment and investment propertes are
subject to impairment testing. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life, such as
goodwill are tested for impairment at least annually. All other individual assets or
cash-generating units ate tested for impaittnent whenever events ot chagges in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

For purposes of assessing impaiimenf, assets ate grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identfiable cash flows {cash-genesating units).

An impairment loss is recognized fot the amoust by which the asset or cash-generating
unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, ‘The recovetable amount s the
higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell and value in use, based
on an internal discounted cash flow evaluation. Impairment loss is charged pro-rata to

the other assets in the cash generating unit.



All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist and the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted to the
recoverable amount resulting in the reversal of the impairment loss.
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2.22 Functional Currency and Foreign Currency Transactions

Functional and Presentation Curréncy

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the
cutrency of the primary economic envitonment in which the eatity operates

(the functional currency). The financial statements are presented in Philippine
peso, which is also the Group’s functional and presentation currency. The’
financial statements of the foreign currency deposit units (FCDUs) of the Group
and foreign subsidiaries are translated at the prevailing current exchange rates

(for statement of condition accounts) and average exchange rate during the pericd:
(fot income statement accounts) for consolidation purposes.

Transactions and Balances

The accounting records of the Group ate maintained in Philippine pesos except
for the FCDUs and foreign subsidiaries which are maintained in US dollars ot
Buro. BDO Remittance, an overseas branch, and Express Padala HK are
maintained in Hong Kong dollars. Foreign currency transactions during the
period ate translated into the functional currency at exchange rates which
apptoximate those prevailing on transaction dates.

Foreign exchange gains and losses tesulting from the settlement of such
transactons and from the translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabiliies denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the
income statement. '

Transiation gf Finanal Statements of Forvign §. wbsidiaries and an Ouverseas Branch

The operating results and financial position of foreign subsidiaties and an

overseas branch, which are measured using the US dollaz ot Burc and Hong
Kong dollars, respectively, their foreign currency, ate translated to Philippin
pesos, the Group’s functional curtency as follows: ‘ ‘

(i) Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of the
statement of condition; : ’

(#) Income and expenses are translated at the monthly average exchange rates
(unless this average is not reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates ptevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions), except for FCDU.
which uses the book rate or the previous month-end Philippine Dealing
System closing rate in translating income and expenses; and,

(ii) All resulting exchange differences are recognized as 2 separate component of
equity.
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On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign subsidiaries and an overseas branch is taken to equity as part
of Accumulated Translation Adjustment, When a foreign operation Is sold, such
exchange differences are recognized in the income statement as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

The translation of the financial statements into Philippine peso should not be
construed as a tepresentation that the US dollar, Euro or Hong Kong dollar
amounts could be converted into Philippine peso amounts at the translatior rates
or at any other rates of exchange. ‘

Employee Benelfits
Retirement Benefit Olilipations

Pension benefits are provided to employees through a defined benefit plan, as well
as defined contribution plan,

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit
that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or mote
factors such as age, years of service and expected rate of salary increases. The
legal obligation for any benefits from this kind of pension plan remains with the
Group, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been
acquired. Plan assets may include assets specifically designated to 2 long-term
benefit fund, as well as qualifying insurance policies. The Group’s defined benefit
pension plan covers all regular full-time employees. The pension plan is

tax-qualified, noncontributory and administered by a trustee.

The assct recognized in the statement of condition for defined benefit pension
plans is the fair value of plan assets at the statement of condition date less the
ptesent value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO, together with adjustments
for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs). The DBO is
calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit ctedit method. The
present value of the DBO is determined by discounting the estitnated future cash -
outflows using interest rates of high quality corporate bonds that are denominated
in the cutrency in which the benefits will be paid and that have tetms to matarity
apptroximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses are not recognized as an expense unless the total
untecognized gain ot 10ss exceeds 10% of the greater of the obligation and related
plan assets. The amount exceeding this 10% cotridor is charged or credited to
profit or loss over the employees’ expected average remaining working lives.
Actuarial gains and losses within the 10% corsidor ate disclosed separately. Past

" service costs are recognized immediately in the incone statement, unless the

changes to the pension plan ate condidional on the employees remaining in service
for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past service
costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting petiod.
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A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into an independent entity, such as the Social Security System (3S5).
"The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions
after payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions recognized in respect
of defined contribution plans ate expensed as they fall due. Liabifites and assets
may be recognized if underpayment or prepayment has occutred.

Termination Bengfits

Fermipation benefits ate payable when employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date, of whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either: () tetminating the
employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal; or, (#) providing tertnination benefits as 2 tesult of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than
12 months after the statement of condition date are discounted to present value.

" Bonus Plaﬁs

The Group recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses based on the
Group’s bonus policy. The Group recognizes a provision where it is contractually
obliged to pay the benefits,

Execative Stock Option Plan

The Group grants stock option plan to its senior officers {from vice-president up)
for their contribution to the Group’s performance and attainment of team goals,
‘The amount of stock option allocated to the qualified officers is based on the
performance of the individual officers as determined by the managementand is
determined based on the Group’s petformance in the preceding yeat and
amortized over five years starting from the date of the approval of the Board of
Directors, The number of officers qualified at the grant date is regularly evaluated
during the vesting petiod (at least annually} and the amount of stock option is
adjusted in case there are changes in the number of qualified employees arising
from tesignation or disqualification. The anral amortization of stock option. is
shown as part of Employee Benefits in the income statement and the cumulative.
balance is shown as Common Stock Option in the statement of changes in equity.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days
(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the statement of condition date.
These are included in Other Liabilities account at the undiscounted amount that
the Group expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement. '



2.2¢4 Income Taxes

Current tax assets or liabilities compzise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior repotting period, that are uncollected or
unpaid at the statement of condition date. They are caiculated according to the tax rates
and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, hased on the taxable
profit for the period. All changes to cutrent tax assets or labilities are recognized as a
component of tax expense in the.income statement.

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporaty
differences at the statement of conditdon date between the tax base of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Under the balance sheet liability method, with certain exceptions, deferted tax liabilittes
are recognized fot all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the carryforward of unused tax
losses and unused tax ctedits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deferred tax asset can be utilized,

The catrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of condition
date and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and Labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted ot substantively enacted at the statement of condition

date.

Most changes in deferred tax assets ot liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in the income statement. Only changes in defetred tax assets oz lizhilides that
relate to 2 change in value of resources or liabilities that is charged directly to equity are
charged or credited directly to equity. '

2.25 Eatnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic earnings pet common share is determined by dividing net income by the weighted
average number of common shares subscribed and issued during the period, after
retroactive adjustment for any stock dividend declared in the current peried.

Diluted eamings per common share is also computed by dividing net income by the
weighted average number of common shares subsctibed and issued duting the period.
However, net income attributable to common shates and the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding are adjusted to reflect the effects of potentially dilutive
convertible preferted shates, convertible loan and stock option plan granted by the
Group to the qualified officers. Convertble preferred shates are deemed to have been
converted to comtnon shares at the issuance of preferred shares. Convertible loan is
deemed to have been converted into common shares at the start of the convetsion
petiod: The stock option plan is deemed to have been converted into commen stock in

the year the stock option plan is granted.
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226 Trust Activities

The Group commonly acts as trustee and in other fiduciaty capacities that result in the
holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and
other institutions. Assets and income atising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as these are not assets nor income of the Group.

227 Subsequent Events

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information zbout the Group’s
position at the statement of condition date (adjusting event) is reflected in the financial
statements, Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, ate disclosed
when material to the financial staternents. ‘

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The Group’s financial statements prepated in accordance with FRSP for banks require.
management to make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the
financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates ate continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under circumstances.
Actual results may likely differ from these estimates and the differences could be
significant.

3.1 Critical Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies -

In the process of applying the Giroup’s accounting policies, management has made the
followinlg judgments, apatt from those involving estimation, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

(a) HIM Invesiments

The Group follows the guidance of PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, in classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed ot
detexminable payments and fized maturity as HTM. This classification requires
significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group coasiders its intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity.

If the Group fails to keep these investments at matutity (other than for the
allowed specific circumstances, e.g., selling more than an insignificant amount
close to maturity), it will be required to reclassify the entire class to AI'S securities.
The investments would therefore be measured at fair value and not at amortized
cost. However, the tainting provision will not apply if the sales or reclassifications
of H'TM investments: (i) are so close to maturity or the financial asset’s call date
that changes in the market rate of interest would not have a significant effecton
the financial asset’s fair value; (ii) occur after the Group has collected substantially
all of the financial asset’s original principal through scheduled payments ot
prepayments; or, (iif) aze attributable to an isolated event that is beyond the
control of the Group, is nonrecurring and could nof-have been reasonably
anticipated by the Group.
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If the entire class of held-to-maturity investments is tainted, the unrealized fair
value would decrease by P4,264,287 in the Group financial statements and
dectease by P4,180,887 in the Parent Bank financial statement, with a
corresponding entry in the Fair Value Loss on Available-for-sale Securities
account in the statement of changes in equity.

Impatrment of Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

The Group follows the guidance of PAS 39, Financial Insiruments: Recognition and

" Measurement, in determining when an investment is permanently impaired. This

determination requires significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to. which the fair value of
an investment is less than its cost; and the financial health of and near-term
business outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry and sector
performance, changes in technology and operational and financing cash flow. Fot -

investments issued by counterparty under bankruptey, the Group determines

permanent impairment based on the price of the most recent transaction and on
latest indications obtained from reputable counterparties (which regularly quote
prices for distressed secutities) since current bid prices are no longer available.

In 2008, the Group recognized a total of P4,440,259 provision for impairment

losses on available-for-sale secutities in the income statement {nil in 2007)
(see Note 9.2} ‘

Distinction Between Investment Properties and Owner-ocoupied Properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In
making its judgment, the Group considers whether the property generated cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Owner-occupied ptopetties generate cash flows that are attdbutable not only to
other assets used in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rental o fot capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production and supply
of goods and services or for administrative purposes. If these portions can be '
sold separately (ot leased out separately under finance lease), the Group accounts
for those portions sepazately. If the portion cannot be sold separately, the
property is accounted for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services for administrative
putposes. Judgment is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as investment property. The Group
considers each property separately in making its judgment.

Operating and Finance Leases

The Group has entered into various lease agreements either as a lessor or lessee.
Critical judgment was exercised by management to distinguish each lease
agreement as either an operating or finance lease by looking at the transfer or
retention of significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties covered
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Classtfication of Acquired Properties and Fair Valne Detormination of Non-current <Assets
Held for Sale and Investment Property '

The Group classifies its acquired propetties as Premises, Futniture, Fixtures and
Equipment if tsed in operations, as Non-curtent Assets Held-for-sale if the

Group expects that the properties will be recovered through sale rather than use,.

as Investment Property if the Group intends to hold the properties for capital
appreciation or as Financial Assets in accordance with PAS 39. At initial
recognition, the Group determines the faiz value of acquited properties through
internally and externally generated appraisal. The appraised value is determined
based on the current economic and martket conditions as well as the physical
condition of the property.

Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and
contingencies. Policies on recognition and disclosute of provision are discussed ’
in Note 2.18 and relevant disclosures are presented in Note 31.

3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the statement of condition date, that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the cartying amounts of resources and liabilities within
. the next financial year:

@

Impairment Lasses on Financial Assets (AFS Securities, HTM Investments and Loans and
Recesvables) :

The Group reviews its AFS, HTM and loans and receivables portfolios to assess
impairment at least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes judgments as
to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the portfolic before the decrease
can be identified with an individual item in that portfolic. This evidence may
include observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the
payment status of borrowers or issuers in a group, ot national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group. Management uses

. estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
~ characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the

portfolio when scheduling its futute cash flows. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual

loss expetience.

The Group carties certain financial assets at fair value, which requires the

extensive use of accounting estimates and judgment. Significant components of

fait value measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence such

as foteign exchange rates, interest rates and volatlity rates. However, the amount

of changes in fair value would differ if the Group utilizefdATHRE vaAlna DO OC L5610 |
methods and assumptions. Any change in fair value of fhe é% FL g 15300 1 :
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Total provisions for impairment losses on financial assets (reported as part of
Impairment Losses in the income statements) amounted to P4,737,204 in 2008,
P3,291,982 in 2007 and P1,259,202 in 2006 in the Group financial statements and
P4,574,719 in 2008, P3,117,441 in 2007 and P1,082,532 in 2006 in the Parent

Bank financial statements (see Note 14).
Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities
At December 31, 2008, the following table summarizes the catrying amounts

fair values of those financial resouzces and liabilities not presented in the
statement of condition at their fair value.

and

Gzroup Parent Bank

December 31, 2008:

Financial Resources:
Diue from other banks and BSP P 79,769,862 P 70,769,862 P 74820510 P
Avnilable-for-sale securines — unguoted 3,441,791 * 1,917,677
Held-to-matusity investments 114,128,667 109,779,712 108,276,055
Loans and other receivebles 491,986,431 496,493,884 467,590,333

Financial Liabilicies: -

Deposit liabilitics 636,753,566 621,401,529 612,967,087
Bills peyable ‘ 51,435,638 51,170,558 43,242,251
Subordinared notes payable 20,145,977 20,800,691 20,145,977
December 31, 2007
Financial Resources:.
Due from other banks and BEP P- 70,150,911 P 70,150,911 P 64,422338 P
Available-For-sale securities — unijuoted 5,779,707 # 2,175,282
Held-to-maturity investments 47,944,102 63,444 480 62,571.073
Loans and other receivables 311,674,939 308,426,740 207,630,778
Financial Lisbilicics:
Depuosit Liabilities 445,396,900 435,144,881 434,205,427
Bills payable ) 52,483,249 53,053,387 41,192,386
Subordinated notes payable 18,631,298 19,037,282 18,631,268

* ot avatlable

(i) Due from other banks and BSP

75,197,880
*

101,095,169
0,676,617

507,615,049
43,088,314
20,890,601

64,422,339
* .

63,741,483

301,520,554

423,058,425
40,885,485
10,037,282

Due from BSP pertains to deposits tnade by the Group to BSP for cleating

and reserve requirements. Due from other banks includes interbank

placements and items in the course of collection. The fair value of floating

raté placements and overnight deposits is their carrying amount. The

estimated fair value of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates for debts with similar

credit risk and remaining maturity, which for short-term deposits
approximates the nominal value.

() Available-for-sale securities

The fair value of available-for-sale securities is determined by direct reference
to published price quoted in an active market for traded securities. On the
other hand, unquoted available-for-sale securities are catred zt cost because

the fair value cannot be reliably determined either by reference to similar

financial instruments or through valuatig@‘:zech.m%@.__“______
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(i#) Held-to-matnrity investments

Fait value for held-to-matutity assets is based on market prices, Where this
information is not available, fait value has been estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield characteristics or
through valuation techniques using discounted cash flow analysis.

(iy) Loans and other receivables

Loans and othert receivables ate net of provisions for impairment. The
estimated fair value of loans and receivables represents the discounted amount
of estitnated future cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rates to determine fair value.

(v} Deposits and borrouings

"The estimated fair value of demand deposits with no stated maturity, which
includes non-interest-bearing deposits, is the amount repayable on demand.
The estimated fair value of long-term fixed interest-bearing deposits and other
borrowings without quoted market price is based on discounted cash flows
using interest rates for new debts with similar remaining maturity.

Fair Valne éf Derivatives

The fair value of detivative financial instruments that are not quoted in an active.

matket is determined through valuation techniques using the net present value
computation,

Valuation techniques ate used to determine fair values which are validated and
periodically reviewed. To the extent practicable, models use observable data,
however, areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities and
cotrelations require management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions
could affect reported fair value of financial instraments. The Group uses
judgment to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each statement of condition date.

Usefaud Lives of Premises, Furniturs, Fixctures and Eqmpmeﬂt and Investment Properties

The Group estimates the useful lives of premises, furnitute, fixtutes and
equipment and investment properties based on the period over which the assets
are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of premises,
furniture, fixtures and equipment and investment propezties arc reviewed
periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to
physical wear and tear, technical ot commercial obsolescence and legal or other
limits on the use of the assets. In addition, estimation of the useful lives of
premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment and investment properties is based on
collective gssessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and
expesience with similar assets.
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Itis possible, however, that future results of operations could be materially
affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned
above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be
affected by changes in these factors and circumstances. A reduction in the
estimated useful lives of premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment and
investment properties would increase recorded operating expenses and decrease
premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment and investment properties.

Realizable Amounnt of Deferred Taxe Assets

‘The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at each statement of condition date and
reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilized. ‘ : ‘

Impatrment of Non-financial Assets

Except for intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, PFRS requires that an
impairment review be performed when certain impairment indicators are present.
The Group’s policy on estimating the impairment of non-financial assets is
discussed in detail in Note 2.21. Though management believes that the
assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the financial
statements ate appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these
assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and any
resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse effect on the results of '

operations.

Provisions for impairment losses (reported as part of Impairment Losses in the.
income statements) amounted to P494,738 in 2008, P826,165 in 2007, and
P753,525 in 2006 in the Group financial staternents and P596,037 in 2008,
P684,932 in 2007 and P908,731 in 2006 in the Parent Baak financial statements

(see Note 14).

Retirement Bengfits

The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of pension and other
retirement benefits is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by
actuaries in calculating such amounts. Those assumptions are described in

Note 23 and include, among others, discount tates, expected return on plan assets
and salary increase rate. In accordance with PFRS, actual results that differ from
the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future petiods and therefore,
generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligaton in such future

petiods.

The retirement benefit asset and net unrecognized actuarial losses amounted to
P13,778 and 3,778,348 respectively, in 2008 and P55,069 and P3,627,117,
respectively, in 2007 in the Group financial statements. In the Parent Bank _
financial statements, the retitement benefit asset and net uarecognized actuarial
losses amounted to P57,976 and P3,603,468, respecﬁveiy, in 2008 and P08,697

and P3,552,697 tespectively, in 2007 (see Note 23).
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4, RISK MANAGEMENT

By their nature, the Group’s activities are ptincipally related to the use of financial
instruments including desivatives. The Group accepts deposits from customers at
fized and floating rates for various periods, and secks to earn above-average interest
margins by investing these funds in high-quality assets. The Group seeks to increase
these margins by consolidating short-term funds and lending for longer periods at
higher rates, while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.
The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions in traded and
over-the-counter instruments, including detivatives, to take advantage of short-term
market movements in equities and bonds and in currency and interest rate prices.

To manage the financial tisk for holding financial assets and liabilities, the Group
operates an integrated risk management system to address the risks it faces in its
banking activities, including liquidity, interest rate, credit and market risks. The Group’s
risk management objective is to adequately and consistently evaluate, manage, control,
and monitor the risk profile of the Group’s statement of condition to optimize the
risk-reward balance and maximize return on the Group's capital. The Group’s Risk

' Management Committee (RMC) has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management systems and sets risks management policies across the full range of tisks to
which the Group is exposed. Speclﬁcally, the Group’s RMC places trading limits on the
level of exposure that can be taken in relation to both overnight and intra-day market
positions. With the exception of specific hedging arrangements, foreign exchange and
interest rate exposures associated with these detivatives are normally offset by entering
into counterbalancing positions, thereby controlling the vatiability in the net cash
amounts required to liquidate market positions,

Within the Group’s overall risk management system, the Assets and Liabilities
Committee (ALCQ) is responsible for managing the Group’s statement of condition,
inclnding the Group’s liquidity, interest rate and foreign exchange related risks. In
addition, ALCO formulates investment and financial policies by determining the asset
allocation and funding ‘mix strategies that are likely to yield the targeted financial results.

Separately, the Risk Management Group (RMG) is mandated to adequately and
consistently evaluate, manage, control, and monitor the ovet-all risk profile of the
Banlk’s activities actoss the different risk areas (i.e., credit, market, liquidity, and
opetational) to optimize the risk-reward balaace and maximize return on capital. RMG
has responsxbﬂxty for the setting of risk policies across the fuB range of risks to which

the Group is exposed to.




In the petformance of its function, RMG obsetves the fo]lowing framework:

e Tt is responsible for policy formulation in coordination with the relevant
businesses/functions and ensures that proper approval for the manuals/policies
is obtained from the appropriate body.

@ It then disseminates down the approved policies to the relevant
businesses/ functions after which, pertinent authorities are delegated down to
the businesses/functions to guide them in the conduct of their’
businesses/functions. RMG then performs compliance momtormg and review
to ensure approved pohcles are adhered to.

» It is responsible for clarifying interpretations of risk policies/guidelines raised by
the Business Heads/ Units.

e When Iadverse trends are observed in the account/pottfolio, RMG is
responsible for flagging these trends and ensuring relevant policies for problem
accounts/portfolio management are properly applied.

® RMG is responsible for the direct management of accounts in the Group’s
Non-Performing Loan (NPL)/property-related items in ]m‘gaijons portfolio and -
ensure that appropriate strategies are formulated to maximize collection and/ or

_recovery of these assets.

® Itis also responsible for regular review and monitoring of accounts under their
supervision and ensuring that the account’s loan classtﬁcaﬂon is assessed timely
and accurately.

4.1 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that there could be insufficient funds available to adequately
meet the credit demands of the Group’s customers and repay deposits on maturity.

The Group manages liquidity risk by holding sufficient liquid assets of approptiate
quality to ensure short-term funding requirements are met and by maintaining a
balanced loan portfolio which is repriced on a regular basis. In addition, the Group
seeks to maintain sufficient liquidity to take advanﬁage of interest rate and exchange rate
opportunities when they arise.

The analysis of the maturity groupings of resources, liabilities and off-statement of
condition items as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 in accordance with dccount
classification of the BSP, are presented below (amounts in millions). The amounts
disclosed in the maturity analysis are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Such
undiscounted cash flows differ from the amounts included in the statement of
condition because the statement of condmon amounts atre based on discounted cash

flows.
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December 31, 2008:
Resources:
Cash
Loans
investments
Placements
Oth_er tesources
Total Resources
Liabilities and Equity:
Deposit liabilities
Bills payable
Gther lisbilities
Total Liahilities
Equity
Total Liabilities and Equity
On-book gap
Cumulative on-book gap
Coatingent assets
Contingent liabilities
Off-book gap
Net Periodic Gap

Cumulative Total Gap

More
One ta than three “More than More
three months to ane year to than three

..mm‘gmhs“ _oncyear  _threeyears . years =~ Total
P 21,77¢ P - P - P - P 21,770
230,390 50,656 44,846 165,994 491,986
6,129 8,000 39274 102,748 156,151
79,722 48 - - 79,770
- 10,642 177) 41,890 ... .52.335
338,111 69,346 83,043 310,632 802.032
126,210 4,598 14,960 490,926 636,754
29,909 13,423 697 27,552 71,581
3.689 29,645 2724 | 135) 35923
159,868, 47,666 18,381 518,343 744,258
. . : 57774 57,774
159,868 47,666 18381 576,117 802,032

178,243 21.680 65,562 (____265485) -

178,243 199,923 265 - -
l 63,992 6,939 11,434 5,360 87,725
55,080 12.598 10178 708 78,544
8932 { 5,65%) 1,256 4,652 9181
187,175 16,021 66818 ¢ 260,833) 9,181

p___187175 P 203195 P._270014 P 9181 P -
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December 31, 2007
Resources:
Cash
Loans
Investments
Placements
Oithet resources
Total Resources
Lisbilities and Equity:
Deposit Eabilities
Bills payable
Other liabilities
Total Liabilites
Equity
Total Lisbilities and Equity
On-bock gap
Cumulative on-book gap
Contingent assets
Contingent laliflities
~ Off-bock gap
Net Periodic Gap

Cumulative Total Gap

More

One to than three More. than More
three manths to. one year to than three
one :Egat !h:gg YERIE . VEeArs 1 le_ ——
by 18,388 P - P - P - P 18,388
134 360 46,120 38,656 98,539 311,675
13,995 6411 28,759 115,335 164,500
70:15t - - y 70,151
i3 48 - 52,434 52,495
236,907 46,579 7,415 266,308 617,200
83,468 21,189 12,253 328,487 445,397
34,955 14,261 5,070 16,829 71,115
6,931 18.622 1,808 13,008 40,369
125,354 54,072 19,131 358,324 556,381
- 1,702 - 58,626 60,328
125,354 55774 19,131 416,950 617,200
111,553 9:195) 48284 150,642) -
111,553 102,358 150,642 . )
65,251 18,006 2,796 162 87115
40,425 16,261 1,027 691 58,404
24826 2,645 1769 _529) 28,711
136379 { 6,550} 50,053 151,170 28,711
P__136379 P 129829 P 179882 P 28711 B -
S .1;"\ 3 33!“ \
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" Parent Bank

December 31, 2008:
Resoutces
Cash
Loans
Investments
Placements
‘Other tesources
Total Resources
Liﬂbﬂiﬂes and Equity
Deposit Habilities
Bills payable
Qthet liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
“Fotal Lishilities and Bquity
On-bock gap
Cumulative on-book gap
Contingent assets
Contingent Labilities
Off-book gup
Net Periodic Gap

Cumulative Total Gap

More
Oneto than three More than More

three monthe to one year to than three :
__months = __opeyear  _threeygars . years =~ Total
P 21,763 P - P - P . P 21,763
215,609 48,717 - 40,779 162,485 467,590
4900 5,851 32,420 98,921 142,092
74,821 - - - 74:821
: 10,574 - C 44786 e WEESGD
317,093 65,142 73199 306192 761,626
111,010 1,870 13,139 486,948 612,967
22,329 12,859 647 27,553 63,388
3367 27,645 1534 537) 32011
136,708 42,374 15,320 513,964 708,366
- - - 53,260 53,260
——136,708 42,374 15,320 567,224 761,626

180,385 23 57879 ¢ 261.032) -

180,385 203,153  .._..261.032 - -
57,411 6,423 7,228 5347 76,409
54,688 11,568 5674 __.. 688 72612
2723 5.142) 1,554 4,662 3797,
183,108 17,626 59432 (. 25636%) 3797

r 183108 P 200734 P _. 260. 166 b A797 P -
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D be
Resources:
Cash
Loans
Investments
_ Placements
Other resources
" Total Resources
Liabilities and Equity:
Deposit liabilities
Bills payable
Oither liahilities
Total Liahilities
Equity
Total Liabilities and Equity
On-book gap
Cumulative on-book gap
" Contingent assets
Contingent fiabilities
Off:-book gap
Net Periodic Gap

Cumuiative Total Gap

4.2 Marker Risk

More

Onpe to than three More than More
three months to one year to than three
. monthse  _ omeyear. _threeyears _ vears-  _ Total ..
P 18,437 P - P - P - P 18,437
141,909 37,127 35,087 . 85,498 297,631
11,376 5,665 25962 105,879 148,882
64,422 - - - 64,422
) ] . 57.117 57,117
236,144 42,802 61,049 246,494 586,489
89,008 . 20,236 4172 320,78.9 434,295
26,039 - 13,232 3,736 16,817 59,824
6,142 18549 1,808 10,422 36,921
121,279 52,017 9,716 348,028 531,040
- 1,7G2 - 83747 25,449
121,279 53,719 9,718 401,775 586,489
114865 (___ 10917) .____ 51333 155.281 .
114,865 133,948 155.281 - -
62574 16,480 2,388 113 81,555
39,137 14,053 448 111 54,549
22 837 2,427 1,940 2 27,206
137702 ¢ 8.490) 83275 (135279 ____ 27.206
P 137,702 I 129212 B 182 485 ju 27,2006 P -

The Group’s exposure to-market risk, the risk of future loss from changes in the price

of a financial instrument, relates primaily to its holdings in foreign exchange

instruments, debt securities and derivatives. The Group manages its risk by identifying,

analyzing and measuting relevant or likely market risks. Market Risk Management

tecommends market risk limits based on relevant activity iridicators for approval by the
Group’s RMC and Board of Directors.

4.2.1 Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group manages its exposute to effects of fluctuations in the foreign cutrency
exchange rates by maintaining foreign currency exposure within the existing regulatory
guidelines and at a level that it believes to be relatively conservative for a financial
institution engaged in that type of business.
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The Group’s net foreign exchange exposure is computed as its foreign currency assets
less foreign currency liabilities. BSP regulations impose a cap of 20% of unimpaired
capital or US$50 million, whichever is lower, on the group excess foreign exchange.
holding of banks in the Philippines. The Group’s foreign exchange exposure is .
primarily limited to the day-to-day, over-the-counter buying and selling of foreign -
exchange in the Group’s branches as well as foreign exchange trading with corporate
accounts and other financial institutions. The Group, being a major market participant
in the Philippine Dealing System, may engage in proprietary trading to take advantage of
foreign exchange fluctuations.

The Group’s foteign exchange exposute during the day is guided by the limits set forth
in the Group’s Risk Managemment Manual. These limits are within the prescribed
ceilings mandated by the BSP. At the end of each day, the Group repotts to the BSP
on its compliance with the mandated foreign currency exposure limits. In addition, it
also reports to the BSP on the respective foreign currency positions of its subsidiaries.

The breakdown of the financial resources and liabilities as to foreign and
peso-denominated balances as of Deceraber 31, 2008 and 2007 follows:

Group
2008 2007
Foreign ' Foreigh
wlurrency . _ Peso . _ Total . Chrrency Peso Total
Resources:
Cash and other cash items
and due from BSP P - P 84,438,829 P 24438829 T 0970508 P 57878615 P 47,849,123
Due from other banks 16,073,158 128,284 17,101,434 - 19,869,053 820,55? 20,689,635
Trading and investment '
secunities: i
A FYTPL 3,562,103 3,286,828 6,848,931 8,209,834 12,651,679 20,051,513
AFS securities 13,807,854 21,365,489 5173 49,280,658 26314950 75,604,608
HIM . 84,268,526 4 29,860,141 114,128,667 48,569,114 19,574,088 67,944,102
Laans and other receivables 68,815,028 ‘423,171,403 491,086,431 41,784,980 269,889,950 ?;!?,674,939
Other resources 1,132,527 13,825,051 14,966,578 1824980 13,864,902 15,68¢.808
PISS5GAIAR PA7G080.025 P T64.644213 P 179408145 - P 400JOSAT3 L SA0A0INIA
Liabilities: ) .
Diporit lighilities P-172,667,256 P 464,086,310 P 636,753,566 7 P 116,233,054 P 328,463,840 T 445,306,500
Bills payable 16,878,8'."0 34,556,768 51,435,638 27,578,701 24 904,548 52,493,249
Subordinated notes - - 20,145,977 26,145,977 18,631,298 - 18,631,298
Other liabilities _1p834.806 24987867 __35.922.67% 31,668,227 8701,174 413,309,401

P200.480937 P543776022 P744.25788% D I0481L2R0 D.AG2060.568 L.SSGRAOA4R
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2008,

2007

Ferergn

Lumency . . Peso . Tomal _

Resources:
Cash and other cash items

and due from BSP P -

Due from other banks 14,572,866
Trading and investment
secusibies:
. AtFVIPL - 3,448,302
AFS sceurities 11,887,278
HTM . 50,325,293
Loans and other receivables 68,280,789
Other resources ) 1,448,058
P.179.962,586
Linbilitics:

‘ Deposit liabilitics . P 163,338,147
Bills payable 16,878,870
Subordinated notes -
Cther Liabilitics C 10766152

B 190,983,168

4.2.2 Interest Rate Risk

Foreign

Curtency P §Q‘ Total

P 81,702,704 P 8LT02,704 D 0357380 P 57,300747 P 66,757,137

308,101

1,711,806
19,768,477
24,950,762

399,309,544
___msz,zm

£.541,134,007

P 449,628,940
26,363,381
20,145,977

21,244,667

£ 517,382,968

14,380,967

5,160,108
31,655,785
108,276,055
467,590,333
14,830,760

B 221.006.682

P 612,967,087
43,242,251

20,145,977

—J2.010,818

P 708,366,133

15,648,443

453,453 16,101,806

8,235,825 9,512,025 17,747,850
44,165,541 24,397,455 £8,562:906
45,901,054 16,670,019 62,571,073
41,158,700 256472488 207,630,778

18400566 13.717.920 15558486

P 166307100 I 378423107 D.544930.218

P 105,360,617 P 328034810 P 434,205,427
25,909,086 15283300 41,102,386
8,557,516 10075782 18,631,208
4,894,910 22026322 36,921 ’741

P 144700138 P 386318214 P 531040552

The Group prepares gap analysis to measure the sensitivity of its resources, liabilities
and off-statement of condition positions to interest rate fluctuations. The focus of
analysis is the Jmpact of changes in interest rates on accrual or reported earnings. This
artalysis would give management a glimpse of maturity and re-pricing profile of its
intetest sensitive resources and liabilities. An interest rate gap reportis prepared by
classifying all assets and liabilities into various time buckets according to contracted
maturities or anticipated repricing dates, and other applicable behavioral assumphons
The difference in the amount of resources and Habilities matuting or being repriced in
any time period category would then give the Group an indication of the extent to

which it is exposed to the zisk of potential changes in netinterest income.
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The analyses of the groupings of rescutces, liabilities and off-statement of conditon
items as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 based on the expected interest realization or
recognition are presented below (amounts in millions):

Group
More Moze
One 1o than three than cne More
three months to year to than five Non-rate
mber 31 i
Resources: . 2 ‘
Cash P 21770 P - P P P - P 21,770
Loans 387,549 42,667 36,036 21,904 3,830 491,986
Investments 20,701 8,472 54,934 72,044 - 156,151
Plscements 79,722 48 - - . 79:770
Other Resources a - - - 59 455 52,355
‘Total Resoutces 500,742 & 51,187 90,970 93,948 56,185 802,032
Liabilides and Equity: .
Depeosit lisbilities 293,705 23,150 53,563 69 266,267 636,754
]3ills payable 29,908 13,423 27,119 1,151 - 71,581
Other lisbifities 227 430 1,380 - 33,880 23,923
Total Liabilities 323,840 37,003 82,062 1,200 300,153 | 744,258
 Bquity - - - - 57.774 57774
Total Liabilities and Equity 323,840 37,003 82,062 1,200 357,927 802,032
On-book-giap 185,902 14,184 2,908 92748 ( 301742y -
Cumulative on-book gap 185,902 200,086 208,994 301,742 - -
Contmgent assets 18,628 3,042 15,648 - - 37.318 .
Contingent liabilities 15:266 2123 16,869 - - 34,258
Off-book gap 3361 920 | 12213 - - 3,060
Net Pericdic Gap 189263 . 15104 T.687 92,748 | 3017423 3060
Curnulative Total Gap P 189263 P __204367 P__212054 P__304807 D gan P -
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) Mare More
One to than three than one More
three months to year to than five Non-rate L
Resources:
Cash P 18388 P - D - P - P - B 18,388
Loans 240,3%) 13,865 20,638 6,782 - 311,675
_ Investments 39,678 11,841 45,127 67,854 - 164,500
.. Placements 61,539 249 107 8,256 - 70,151
Other Resources 13 48 16 53 52,369 52,495
Total Resources | 360008 46.003 75,882 82047 52,369 617,209
Lisbilities and Equity: )
Depuosit liabilities 167,991 24,706 28,228 1,551 222,921 445,397
Bills payabie 36,088 13,735 5,777 15,515, - 71,115
Other Habilities 1 i) - 134 43,011 40,369
Total Liabilities 2ﬁ4,230 38,514 34,005 17,200 262,932 556,881
Equity R N - N 60,378 60,328
Total Ligbilides and Equity ___ 204,230 38,514 34,005 17,200 323,260 617,209
On-book gap 155,778 7,489 41,877 65,747 | 270,891) =
Cumulative on-book gap 155,778 163,267 205144 270,891 - -
Contingent assets 34933 4553 3,666 - - 43,152
Contingent liabilities 23,318 4,597 3338 - - 41,453
Off-book gap 1,615 44) 128’ : - 1,699
Net Periodic Gap 157,393 7445 42,005 65747 ( 270,891} 1,699
P 1698 P -

Cusmnulative Total Gap P__157303 E._ 164838 P_ 206843 P__272.300
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December 31, 2008:

Resources:
Cash
Loans
Investments
Placements
(Othet Resources’

Total Resources

Liabilides and Equity:
Deposit liabilities
Bills payable
Other liabilites

Total Liabllities

Equity

Tota! Lisbilitics and Equity ___ 302119

On-book gap
Cumulative on-book gap
Contingent assets

- Contingent liabilities
Off book gap

Net Periodic Gap

Cumulative Total Gap

More More 7 .
Oreto than three than one More
three monthsto . yearto than five Non-rate
months _oneyear five years years sensitive Total
P 21,763 P - P - P - P 21,763
371,408 36,227 35,381 21,195 3,379 467,590
15,374 5,401 49,148 69,169 - 142,092
74,821 - . - - 74,821
- - - - 55300 55,360
483 366 44,628 84,529 90.364 58,739 761,62

279,790 19,201 43,160 - 265816 612,967
22,329 12,859 27,069 1,131 - - 63,388
i ) . . 32,011 32011
302,119 32,060 75,229 1,131 297,827 708,366
- - - - 53,260 53,260
32000 15,829 1131 351,087 761,626

181,247 12,568 9,299 89,233 292.348) -

181,247 193,814 203113 202347 - .
11,739 1,547 6,804 - - ) 20,151
8448 713 5,093 - - 17,254
3201 835 ( 1,228) - - 2.897
184,538 13,402 8,071 89,254 292,348 2,897

P__184538 P 197939 P_206011 P._295245 2897 P -
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Parent Bank

More More
One to than three than one More
three’ months to year to than five Non-rate
——months . _oneyear  fiveyears, __years = _ scnsitive Tetal

December 31, 2007:

Resources: : . )
Ceash P 18437 P - P - Poo- P - P 18437
Loans 239,489 26,390 26,516 5,236 _ 207 631
Investments 37,801 11,072 | 30327 60,682 - 148,882
Plzcements 56,059 107 8,250 64,422
Other Resoutces - - - - 57,117 57,117

Total Resoutces 351,786 37462 : 65,950 74,174 57117 - 536 489

Liabilides and Equity: o K

© Deposit abilities 170,811 21,920 21,881 ; 219,683 434,205
Bills payshle 26039 13,232 5,037 15,516 - 59,824
Orher Habilities - - - ; = 36921 36921,

Total Liabilities 196,850 35,152 26,918 15,516 256,604 531,040

Equity - - - s 55,445 55.449
Toud Liabilites and Equity ___196,850  __._ 35152 .. 26918 15516 12,093 ___ 586480
Cn-hook gap 154,936 . 2310 39,032 58658 (. 234937y __ - .

Comulative on-hook gap 154936 . 157246 __196278 __ 254930 - =

Contingent assets 30,328 HI 2,426 - - 33131
~ Contingent liabilides 292,380 330 2.234 " - | - 31,945
Off-book gap 948 41 192 - . - 1,186
Net Periodic Gap 155,884 2,357 39,224 58659 (__ 254936) ____ 1,186

Cumulative Total Gap  P__135884 P 158241 2 197465 P _ 256124 (P 1188) B -

The Group’s market risk management limits are generally categotized as limits on:

e Value-at-tisk — The RMG computes the value-at-tisk benchmarked at a level
which is a percentage of projected eatnings. The Group uses the value at risk
(VaR) model to estimate the daily potential loss that the Group can incur from
its trading book, based on a number of assumptions with a confideace level of
99%. The measurement is designed such that exceptions over dealing limits
should only arise in very exceptional circumstances.

¢ Stop loss - The RMG sets the amount of each risk-bearing activity at a
petcentage of the budgeted annual income for such activity.

¢ Nominal position — The RMG sets the nominal amount of US dollat
denominated instruments at the BSP-mandated US dollar ovetbought position

limit.

¢ Trading volume — The RMG sets the volume of transactions that any employee
may execute at vatious levels based on the rank of the petsonnel making the

tisk-bearing decision.



® Parnings-at-risk — The RMG computes the earnings-at-risk based on a
percentage of projected annual net interest income.

The Group uses the VaR model to estimate the daily potential loss that the Group can
incur from its trading book. VaR is one of the key measures in the Group’s
management of market tisk. VaR is defined as a statistical estimate of the maximurh
possible loss on a given position during a time horizon within a given confidence
intetval. "The Group uses a2 99% confidence level and a 260-day observation period in
VaR calculation. The Group’s VaR limit is established as a percentage of projected
earnings and is used to alert senior management whenever the potential losses in the
Group’s portfolios exceed tolerable levels, Because the VaR measure is tied to market
volatility, it therefore allows management to react quickly and adjust its portfolio
strategies in different market conditions in accordance with its tisk philosophy and
appetite. The VaR model is validated through back-testing.

Although VaR is an important tool for measuring matket tisk, the assumptions on
which the model is based do give rise to some limitations, including the following:

® A 1-day holding period assumes that it is possible to hedge or dispose of _
positions within that period. This is considered to be a realistic assumption in
~ almost all cases but may not be the case in situations in which there is severe
market illiquidity for a prolonged period.

e A 99% confidence level does not reflect losses that may occur beyond this level.
Even within the model used, there is a one percent probability that losses could
exceed the VaR. '

e VaR is calculated on an end-of-day basis and does not reflect exposures that
may atise on positions durting the trading day.

e The use of historical data as a basis for determining the possible range of future
outcomes may not always cover all possible scenarios, especially those of an
exceptional nature.

e ‘The VaR measure is depeadent upon the Bank’s position and the volatility of
market prices, The VaR of an unchanged position reduces if the market price
volatility declines and vice vetsa.
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The limitations of the VaR methodology ate recognized by supplementing VaR limits
with other position and sensitivity limit structures, inclading limits to address potential
concentration risks within each trading portfolio. In addition, the Bank uses 2 wide
range of stress tests to model the financial impact of 2 varlety of exceptional market
scenarios on individual trading portfolios and the Banl’s overall position. Stress VaR is
also performed on all portfolios as a complementary measure of risk. While VaR deals
with risk during times of normality, stress testing is used to measure the potential effect
of a crisis or low probability event:

A summary of the VaR positon of the trading portfolios at Dcccmbe:c 31, 2008 and
2007 follows {amounts in thousands):

m

2008 2007
. VaR  _SeessVaR = VaR  OStressVaR
-Foreign cutrency risk (P 25,004) (P 294,075) (P 3,046) (P 21,385)
Interest rate risk — Peso | ( 29,026) ¢ 171,391)¢ - 47612) ( 629,005)
Interest rate risk — USD ( 5,060 ( 28,397 ( 21,260) { 294,317}
Total ® 59,691) (P 493.363) (P AN P 944,707}
Parent Bagk
2008 2007
— VaR _ SwessVaR.  _ VsR  _ S;ess VaR
Foteign currency tisk *® 20,842) (P 253,993) (P 2,743) (P 20,561)
Interest rate risk — Peso ( 27,643 ( 165,054} ( 37,257 ( 591,770
Interest rate risk - USD ( 3,153) ( 18,588) ( 21,222) ( 293.918)
 Total , (P 51,638) (P____437,635) (D (1.222) (P 906.249)

The earnings-at-risk before tax in a rising and dcclirli.ﬁg intetest rate scenario for
financial assets and liabilities repticed during 2008 and 2007 is shown below:

Gronp
2008
. Change in ipterest rates (in basis points)
=100 +100 -50 +50

Change on annualized .

net interest income B 906,360) P 006,360 (P___ 453,180) P 453,180
As a percentage of the Group’s

net income for 2008 { _ 3.9%) 3.9% { 2.0%) 2.0%
‘Barnings-at-risk P 830,600
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Change on anmualized
net interest income

As 2 petcentage of the Bank’s
net income for 2007

Earmings-at-risk

Parent Bank

Change on anaualized
net interest income

As a percentage of the Bank’s
net income for 2008

Earnings-at-risk

Change on znnualized
net interest income

As 2 percentage of the Bank’s
net income for 2007

Barnings-at-risk

4.2.3 Price Risk

2007

e Chanipe in interest rates (in basis points)
-100 +100¢ -50 +50
(B R69.960) P R69.060 (B 434.980) P 434 980
( 4.1%) 4.1% ¢ 2.0%) 2.0%
B 1141440
2008
in in i i
-100 +100 -5 +50
@ 939,530) P 939,530 (P 469.760) P 469,760
[ 4.3%) 4.3% ( 2.2%) 2.2%
P £20.540
2007
o Chapgeinintercstyates {inbaslspoints)
-100 +100) -50 450
(B, 957530 P 957 530 (B 478,770 B 478 770
( 4.7%) 4.7% ( 2.4%) 2.4%
D___1200290

'The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the
Group and classified on the statement of condition either as available-for-sale or at fair
- value through profit or loss. The Group is not exposed to commodity price risk. To
manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Group diversifies
its pottfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is donc: in accordance with the limits set

by the Group.
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The table below summarizes the impact of incteases of the financial assets at FVIPL
and available-for-sale securities on the Group’s 2008 and 2007 net income after tax for
the year and on equity. The analysis is based on the assutnption that the correlated
equity indices had decreased by'46.4% in 2008 and increased by 19.2% in 2007 for
securities under fair value through profit ot loss and available-for-sale securties with all
other variables held constant and all the Group’s equity instruments moved according.
to the historical correlation with the index:

ﬁrgguu
. Impact on Impact on
—_netincome aftertax _ __ other components of equity
2008 2007 2008 : 2007
Fair value through profit ot Joss (P 27,856) P 17,606 P - P - _
Available-for-sale — - (...188,500) ° 51,152
Total (i 27.856) B 17606 (B 188,6500) P 51.15%

4.2.4 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty in a transaction may default and arises from
lending, trade finance, treasury, detivatives and other activities undertaken by the
Group. The Group manages its credit risk and loan portfolio through the RMG, which
undertakes several functions with respect to credit risk management.

The RMG undertakes credit analysis and review to ensure consistency in the Group’s
risk assessment process. The RMG performs risk ratings for corporate accounts and
assists the design and development of scorecards for consumer accounts. It also
ensures that the Group’s credit policies and procedures are adequate to meet the.
demands of the business. The RMG is also tesponsible for developing procedutes to
streamline and expedite the processing of credit applications. ‘ :

The RMG also undettakes pottfolio management by reviewing the Group’s loan
pottfolio, including the portfolio risks associated with particular industry sectots, loan
size and maturity, and development of a strategy for the Group to achieve its desired
portfolio mix and risk profile.

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the
amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrowet, ot groups of bortowers, and to

industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject to an
annual or more frequent review. Limits on the level of credit risk by product and

industry sector ate approved quarterly by the RMC.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers
and potential bortowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by
changing these lending limits when appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also managed
in part by obtaining collateral and corporate and personal guarantees.

The RMG reviews the Group’s loan portfolio in line with the Group’s policy of not
having significant unwarranted concentrations of exposure to individual counterparties,
in accordance with the BSP’s prohibitions on ‘maintain.ing 2 figa ‘rt pesy tﬁ,’"‘” g
single person ot group of connected persons in excess of 2 %@;?ﬂs,%wm Y- 1, o avas ko

' ‘ : ‘;:men,w:_} [‘
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4.2.4.1 Exposure to Credit Risk

The following tablé shows the exposure to credit risk as of December 31, 2608 and
2007 for each internal risk grade and the related allowance for impairment losses:

Group

Carrying Amount

Individually Impaired

Col]ccﬁvély Impaired

Past Due But Not Impaired

Neither Past Due Nor Impaired

Total Carrying Amount

Grade: Unclassified
Grade C: Impaited

Grade D» ImPa.iJ:ed
Grade E: Impaired

Grade F: Impaired

Gross Amount

Allowance for impairment

Cartying amount

Grade: Unclassified
Gtade C: Impaired
Grade D: Impaired
Grade E: Impaired
Grade F: Impaired
Gross Amount

Allowance for impairment

Carrying amount
Grade: Unclassified
Grade C: Impaired

Carrying amount

Grade: Unclassified

2008

Loans and Due from . Investment-
P 12,438 P 160402 P 15,600
4223707 . -
10.303,499 . 5,248,848
4,375,399 - 120,346
5,193,018 . 655,260
24,108,061 160,402 6:039,454
(___16,382,496) - ( 5,128,662}
7725 565 160,402 910,792
3,229,797 - -
7,526 . .
305,343 - -
112,069 - .
3,654,665 - -
( 2718112} - -
936,553 - .
4,498,250 - -
i . 490
4,498,250 - 450
78 6 16,941,032 152,786,531
P___17101434  P__153.697.81%
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‘The aging of past due but not impaired is presented below.

Below 30 days

30 to 60 days

61 to 90 days

91 to 180 days
More than 180 days

Ca.rrying Amount

Individually Impaired
Giade: Unclassified
Grade C: Impaired
Grade D Impaired
Grade E: Impaired
Grade F: Impaired

Gtoss amount
Allowance for impairment

Carrying amount

Collectively Impaired

Grade: Unclassified
Grade C: Impaired
Grade D: Impazired
Grade E: Impaired
Grade F: Impaired

Gross amount
Allowance for impairment

Catrying amount
Past Due But Not Impaired
Grade: Unciassified
Gtade F: Impaired

Carrying amount

Neithei Past Due Nor Impaired

Grade: Unclassified

Accounts with Negotiated Terms

Total Carrying Anrount

g g5 Pl apa? t;'
- -
= -
: 2 Zom
2008 . - £ i
Loans and Investment £ ﬁ E"-
_Receivables _..Securities | @ ") i;
< ng A
P 507,253 P . = &2
[ &
293,027 - bt L g‘
375,225 - P N
604,312 £90 L';, ’tm., B
2,718,433 - -
2007
TLoans and Due from Investment
_ Recejvables OtherBanks =~ __ Sccurities
P 311,674,939 P 20680635 P 164500223
P - P P 5530
11,159,985 - B
14,930,542 . 205,707
4,603,593 - 1,139,016
6121701 - 841,260
36,815,821 - 2,191,513
( 15067,322) - - { 1,851,790)
21,748,499 - 339,723
11,385,384 - 7,914
2,187 - .
226 - 2,590
2,103,272 - }
114,355 . -
13,605,424 10,504
( 1.650,037) - ( 1,071)
11,955,387 . 9,433
4232318 - 485
j_5 - -
4232 333 - 485
272,118,028 20,689,635 164,150,582
1,62{.692 - -

P__311,674.939

P _ 20.680.635

P 164500223
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The aging of past due but not impaired is presented below.

2007
Loans and Investment

Receivabl Securis

30 to 60 days P 2,817,542 P -
~ 61 10 90 days 857,357 58 .
91'to 180 days ' 738,061 40
Mote than 180 days 119,373 87
ol 4,232.333 ) 485
Parent Bank
2008
Loans and Due from Investment
--Receivables _Other Banks =~ __Securites
Catrying Amount . P_46759333 P 14880967 P_J140.558.339
Individually Impaired
Grade: Unclassified p - P - P 15,000
Grade C: Impaited 4,223,707 ' - ’ -
Grade I Impaired : 10,272,824 - 5,248,848
Grade E: Impaired 4,375,399 - ‘ 120,346
Grade F: Impaired . 5,193,018 - 655,260,
(Gross amount 24,064,948 - 6,039,454
Allowance for impairment ( 16,382,494 ) - ( 5,128.662)
Carrying amount 7682452 - 910,792
Collectively Impaired
Grade: Unclassified ) 3,229,737 - -
Allowance for impairment ( 2,575,182) - -
Catrying amount 654,555 - . -
Past Due But Not Impaired
Grade: Unclassified 3,863,200 - -
Grade C: Impaired - = 490
Cartrying amount 3,863,200 - ' 490
Neither Past Due Not Impaired
Grade: Unclassified __ 453390126 14,880,967 139,647,057
Total Catrying Amount - P_467,590,333 P__ 14,880,967  E_140.358.339
[T - DOCUMENT PROCTEGS M=
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The aging of past due but not impaited Is presented below.

reE

i 2008.
Loans and . Investment
—Begeivables _- Securities
Below 30 days ) P 507,253 P -
30 to 60 days 211,586 -
61 to 90 days . 349833 -
91 to 180 days 546,555 . 490
More.than 180 days 2247973 -
P 3.863.200 E___ 490
Parent Bank
2007
Loans and Due from Investment
Carrying Amount P 297630778 P 16101896 P 148881919
Individually Impaired -
Grade C: Impaired. P 11,258,550 B - P 972,104
Grade I: Impaited 14,635,677 - 170,308
Grade E: Impaired 4.348,843 - 104,957
Grade F: Impaired 6,022.217 - 726,260
Giross Amount 36,264,687 - 1,973,719
Allowance for impairment- ({ 15,726482) - ( 999,586
Carrying amount 20,538,205 - 974,123
Collectively Impaired
Grade E: Impaired 2,101,540 - -
Allowance for impairment { 1,068,350) z -
Carrying smount LG3321%0 - -
Past Due But Not Impaired
Grade: Unclassified 4,055,831 - 485
Neither Past Due Nor Impaired
Grade; Unclassified 270,382,860 16,101,856 147,907,311
Accounts with Negotiated "f'erms 1,620,692 - -

P__297,630.778

P__148881919

Total Carrying Amount

P___16101.896
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The aging of past due but not iﬁipai.red is presented below.

2007
Loans and Investment

Regeivahl Secuit

61 to 90 days P 2,815,573 P 58

91 to 180 days 549,452 : 40
More than 180 days 690,800 387
P 4055831 P 485

Exposure to credit tisk also includes unused commercial letters of credit amounting to
P17,998,121 and P25,253,893 for 2008 and 2007, tespectively, in the Group financial
statements and P17,998,121 and P25,251,893 for 2008 and 2007, respectively, in the
Parent Bank financial statements {(see Note 31.3).

4.2.4.2 Collateral Held as Security and Otlier Credit Enbancements

The Group holds collateral against loans and receivables from customers in the form of
mortgage interests over property, other registered secutities over assets, and guarantees.
Fstimates of fair value are based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of
borrowing and are updated periodically, e.g., annually for resl estate properties, as
provided in the Bank’s Credit Policy Manual. Collateral generally is not held over due
from other banks, interbank loans and investment securities, except when securities are
held as part of reverse repurchase and securities botrowing activity.

The Group holds collateral against loans and other receivables in the form of property,
debt securities, equities and others. An estimate of the fair value of collateral and other
security enhancements held against loans and other receivables as of

Decembet 31, 2008 and 2007 is shown below:

__Group Pasent Bank .
2008 2007 2008 _2007..
Against individually impaired .
Property P 49,964,130 P 67,450,338 P 49,964,130 P 67,450,338
Debt Security , 1,600 1,600 1,600 1,600
Bquity , 247,531 4,395,453, 247,531 4,395,453
Othet 24,200,305 11,636,438 24,200,305 11,636,438
__ 74413566 __ 83483820  _ 74,413,566  __ 83483829
. Against past due but not impaired _ -

Property 5,710,079 7,488,233 5,560,774 6,641,307
Debt Security 5,070 4,566 5,070 4,366
Bquity 22,700 1,141 22,700 S 2,500
Other 2167573 __ 69%583  ___1894,580 . 104438
1,'9Q5,4gg 8,187,523 7,483,133 752,511

Sub total (bruught forward) p_mamoss QU bOCT B ELI0660
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Group ParentBank

2008 2007 2008 - 2007
Sub total (rarried forward) P 82,318,988 P 91671352 P 81896699 = P 0G,230,640
Against neither past due nor impaited
Property 236,722,677 332,244,835 141,546,491 321,470,384
Debt Security 474,668 987,485 7,133 874,261
Equity ‘ 58,609,617 78,127,938 58,185,104 78,030,332
Other 70,242,886 3330692 __83,605,902 21,534,978

_ 366,049,848  _ 443,699,050  _283,345.230  _423,900,96{
Total o P 448,368,836 P 535371302  P365.241929 D514140.600
4,.2.4.3 Concentrations 01"_ Credit Risk

The Bank monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector and by geographic location.
An analysis of concentrations of ctedit risk at the reporting date is shown below:

Group

- 2008 . 2007
Cagh and Cash Loans Investment  Cash and Cash Loans Investment

“Equival Receivabl Securitics Equivalents Receivables Sectrities

Concentration by secror
Financial intermediagies P 101,840,197 P 65,451,613 P 81,036,646 P 88,350,383 P 36326281 P 533105420
Manufacroring - 82,782,873 15,470,928 . - 67,762,653 625,242
Real estate, renting and
business activitics - 30,608,567 706,782 - . 23,895,265 2,997,717
Other community,

social and personal

activides 66 213951254  __ 65,164.440 178,375 109,047,951 109235530

P 101540263 P392794307 P1624GR796 P SASIRTSR P 97050150 P 165051018

Coneentration by location:
Philippines P 84,570,847  P300,188,632 P.127,164,927 P (9283757 P 293178762 P 119531807

Others 16,960,417 2,605,678 35,303,860 19,255 001 3,851,388 46419111

PI0L5026E  PA9R794,307 PIGRAGE796 P BRSIRTSE PIO0A0450 D 16303118
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Parent Bank

2008 2007
Cash and Cash Loars Investment  Cash and Cash Loans Thvestment

Concenteation by sector:
Finaneial infermediaries P 96,583,671 P 66,401,201 P 67,906,009 P 82850033 T 35,661,132 P 47311335
Manufacturing - 79,993,631 14,966,998 - 66,433,274 638,103
Rea] estate, renting atid .
busmess activities - 30,330,523 . 43,385 - 19,600,780 2,406,309
Orther community, )

social and personal

activities . - 207,058,624 64,562,370 = 164,610,57] 9962001

P 96583671 P IASTRINTY PAMTJIST62 P §2850.031 E2BGAATES P 14008300

Coneentradon by locanon:
Philippines P 82,111,304 P 38,211,209 P 112,285,001 P 67,511,407 P 283,130,006 T 106,013,942

Othérs 14,472,367 2,572,770 38,223,761 15,347,626 3,175.670 43,360,080

P 9583671 P ISITRA079 P4TAIRT62 D B2 BS00TI PINALATE P 140083028
4.3 Operational Risk
Opetational ﬁsk is the risk of loss due to the Group’s:
s Failute to comply with defined operéﬁonal proceduzes;
+  Inability to address fraud committed internally or externally;
°‘ Inability to handle system fatlures; and,
¢ Inability to cope with the impact of external events.

The Group manages its operational risks by having policies to minimize its expected
losses, allocating capital for the unexpected losses, and having insurance and/or a
business continuity plan to prepare for catastrophic losses. -

Framework ‘ \

True to its commitment to sound managetment and cotpozate governance, the Group
considers operational risk management as a ctitical element in the conduct of its
business. Under the Group’s Operadonal Risk Management (ORM) frameworlk, the
Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for providing leadership in the management
of risk in the Group. The business and sexvice unit heads, as tisk ownets, are
responsible for identifying, assessing and limiting the impact of risk in their businesses.
The RMG provides the common risk langnage apd management tools across the Group
as well as monitors the implementation of the ORM framework and policies. .

Since 2006, RMG has been conducting workshops with management and their o
operational risk coordinators to promote risk corf¥¢ionsness; amdto ig;ﬁﬂ-thiéis;1phne
of rsk self-assessment. bty o
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In 2007, the ORM Policy Manual, which defines the Group’s minimum requiremnents
that must be strictly adhered to by all units within the Group, was officially released to
the merged Bank’s business and service units and subsidiaries. Alignment of their
respective policies to this Manual has been on-going.

In 2008, RMG continued to focus on business continuity, information security, legal
and regulatory compliance, outsourcing guidelines and complaints management, where
substantial mirigating measures have been reinforced. ‘

Operational risks are monitored to assess, measure and, eventually, manage/mitigate
tisks using approptiate management tools {e.g. identification of key sk indicators and
key controls; key controls self-assessment; building of the loss database, etc.).

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

For management purposes, the Group is otganized into four major business segments,
namely commercial banking, investment banking, private banking and others. These are

. also the basis of the Group in reporting its primary segment information.

(a) Commercial battking — handles the entire lending (corporate and consumer), '
trade financing and cash management setvices for corporate and retail customers;

(b) Investment banking — provides services to corporate clients outside the
traditional loan and deposit products. These services include loan syndications,
underwriting and placing of debt and equity securities, and financial advisory
services;

(c)  Private banking — provides traditional and non-traditional investment and
structured products to high net worth individuals and institutional accounts; and,

(d)  Others — includes asset management, insurance brokerage, realty management,
leasing, financing, remittance, accounting service, credit card setvice and computer
setvice, none of which individually constitutes a separate reportable segment.

Transactons between the business segments are o normal commercial terms and
condittons.

Funds are ordinarily allocated between segments, resulting in funding cost transfers
disclosed in operating income. Interest charged for these funds is based on the Group’s

cost of capital. Thete ate no other material items of income or expense between the

‘business segments.

Segment assets and liabilities comprise operating assets and liabilities including items
such as taxation and borrowings.

Internal charges and transfer pricing adjustments have been reflected in the
performance of each business. Revenue sharing agreements are used to allocate
externial customer revenues to a business segment on a reasonable basis.
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Primary segment information (by business segmen

December 31, 2008 and 2007 follows:

December 31, 2008
Interest Income
Fxternal
Inter-segrent
Total interest income
Interest Expense
External
Inter-segment
Tatalinterest expense
Net Interest Fncome

Investrnent Banking Fees

Profit for the Period
Before Tax

Statement of Condition
Total resources
Total tabilitiea

December 31, 2007

Interest Income
Iixternal
Inter-segment
Total interest income

Interest Expense
External
Inter-segment
Total interest expense

Net Interest Income

Investment Banking Fees

Profit for the Period
Before Tax

Statement of Condition
Total resources

Total abilitics

e,

t) as of and for the years ended

Commercial Investment Private
Banki Banki _Banking Ot Elisninati :
P 35,719,670 P 27014 P 4,562,067 P 1048026 P - P 42,359,477
13,038 18,534 28 A0BU3 72,400} -
30,732,705 46448 - 1562995 1089729 ¢ 72,400) 42,359,477
17,984,204 - 1,118,448 220,338 - 18,323,080
58,683 1,763 681, 11,273 ¢ 72,400 -
18,042,977 1,763 1.112,129 23611 { 72400 19,323,080
P 21689708 P.___ 44683 P 443866 P___ SSRME P o R.23,036307
P B 462367 P P P__. P 462,367
P_2437006 P 188751 P__ 175663 P . 849221 P 33,922 P 1682653
P 34537037 P 255827 P 1392492 P 1417951 P - P 37,603,306
— 4344 8255 1,906 58,147 ( 782,652) -
35251381 264,082 1,304,398 1,476,008 IR2457) 37,603,306
14,911,162, - 948360 307652 - 16,166,574
69,429 2445 1427 22,141 ¢ 95,443) -
14,080,591 2,445 949787 129,193 ( 95.442) 16,166,574
Poonoia7ey P 261637 P 444441 P 1146906 B - P_21436712
r__- 2 351200 B - P___- L - D 351 200
P 10304899 P 4R2507 P___ 480410 P 686401 (P..2516050 R._2416350
PaR7ERIG24 D 1087181 P 24565971 2 18428343 @ 15617417 D617,208006
PE70600 P 04978 [_2099117F P 11747790 (P T883.G0%) [P SSGABUAIE



FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

‘These consist of the following:

Group

Financial Assets:
Cash and other cash items
Due from BSP
Due from cther banks
Financial assets at FVIPL
AFS securities
HTM investments
Loans and other teceivables

Financial Lizsbitities:
Deposit Labilities
Bills payable,
Subordinated notes
Other hiabilities

Financial Assets:
Cash and other cash-items
Due from BSP
Tue from other banks
Financial zssets at FVIPL
AFS securities
HTM investments
Loans and othet receivables

2008
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Classes
At Amortized At Pair Carrying Fair
— Cost - _Vglue = _ Amount Value
P - P 21,770,401 P. 21770401 P 21,770,401
- 62,668,428 62,668,428 62,668,428
- 17,101,434 17,101,434 17,101,424
- 6,848,931 6,848,931 6,848,931
- 35,173,343 35,173,343 35,173,343
114,128,667 . 114,128,667 109,779,712
491,986,431 - 491,986,431 496,493,884
Pa06.115,008  PI43.562,537 P749.077,635  P£749.836,133
At Amortized Carrying Fair
_ Cost.  __Amount _ Valye
P 636,753,566 P G636,753,566 P 621,401,520
51,435,638 51,435,638 51,170,558
20,145,977 20,145,977 20,890,691
35922673 35922673 35922673
P744,257,854 P744,257.854  P729,385.451
2007
5E8
At Amortized At Fair Carrying Fair
_Cost . Value = _Amount = __ Value
P - P 18,387,847 P 18,387,847 P 18,387,847
- 49,461,276 49461276 - 49,461,276
- 20,689,635 20,689,635 20,689,635
N 20,951,513 20,951,513 220,951,513
- 75,604,608 75,604,608 75,604,608
67,044,102 . 67,044,102 69,444,480
311,674,939 - 311,674,939 308,426,740
pa704ion4l  P185004879  RS64713920  RAG2966.000



Financial Liabifites:
Deposit liabilities
Bills payable -
Subordinated notes
Other liabilities

Parent Bank

Financial Assets: .
Cash and other cash items
Due from BSP
Due from other banks
Financial assets at FVIPL
AFS securities
HTM investments
Loans and othet receivables

Financial Liabilities:
Deeposit liabilities
Bills payable
Suhordinated notes
Other liabilities

Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Pue from BSP
Due from other banks
Financial assets at FVIPL
AFS securities )
HTM investmerits
Loans and othet receivables

2007

At Amortized Carrying Fair,
’ Cost ‘ Amount Value
P 445,396,500 445,396,900 D 435,144,881 r
52,483,249 52,483,240 53,053,387
18,631,298 18,631,298 19,037,282
P536BROS4E  PO5GBR0RAR  RI4T.604051
2008
Classes
At Amortized At Fair " Carrying Fait
__Cost __Valne = _Amount = _ Valug
P - P 21,763,160 P 21,763,160 P 21,763,160
- 59,939,544 59,939,544 59,939,544
- 14,880,967 14,880,967 14,880,967
- 5,160,108 5,160,108 5,160,108
. 31,655,755 31,655,755 '31,655:755:
105,276,055 - 105,276,055 101,095,169
467,590,333 z 467,590,333 470,676,017
P572,866,388  P131399.534  P706.265.902  E105.171.320
At Amortized Carrying Tair
P512,067,087  P612,967,087 P 597,615,049
43,242 251 43,242251 43,088,314
20,145,977 20,145,977 20,820,691
2 18 32010818 32,010,818
P708,366,133  P708.366,133  P.G93.604.872
2007
Clasges
At Amortzed Ag:Fair Cartying Fair
Cost _ ¥alue Amount Value
P - P 18,436,694 P 18,436,694 P 18,436,694
- 48,320,443 48,320,443 48,320,443
. 16,101,896, 16,101,896 16,101,896
- 17,747,850 17,747,850 17,747,850
- 68,562,996 68,562,996 © 68,562,996
62,571,073 - 62,571,073 63,741,483
297,630,778 _297,630778 301,529,554
2360201 851
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2007

At Amortized Cartying Fair -
__GCost .. __Amount . . Valued
Financial Lizhilides: )
VDeposit liabilities. P 434,295 427 P 434,295,427 P 423,958,425
Bills payzable 41,192,386 41,192,386 - 40,885,488
Subordinated notes 18,631,208 18,631,298 19,037,282
Other liabilities 36921241 36,921,241 36,921.24
2531040352  P531.040357 2520802436
CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE BSP
‘These accounts are composed of the following:
Group. Pacent Bank
2008 2007 2008 ___ a7 .

P 21770400 P 18387847 P 20763160 P 1843G.034

Cash and other cash items
Due from BSP:

Mandatory reserves 14,978,098 41,825,598 13,505,163 40,939,808
Other than mandatory reserves 47,690,330 7,635,678 46,434,381 . TIBOG3S
62,668,428 40,461,276 50,939,544 48300443

Mandatory reserves represent the balance of the deposit account maintained with the
BSP to meet reserve requirements and to setve as clearing account for interbank claims.
Due from BSP bears annual interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.7% in 2008 and 3.0%
to 5.7% in 2007 and 2006, except for the amounts within the required resetve as
determined by BSP. Total interest income earned amounted to P1,810,838, 1,333,559,
and P544,223 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, in the Group financial statements,
and P1,789,012, P1,010,943, and P250,325, in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, in the

Parent Bank financial statements (see Note 20).

Cash and balances with the BSP are included in cash and cash equivalents for cash flow
statement putrposes. ' .

Under Section 254 of the Manual of Regulations for Banks (MORB), a bank is required
to maintain at least 25 percent of its reserve requitements in the form of deposits with
the BSP as among the allowable instruments for reserve cover. Section 254.1 of the
MORB futther provides that such deposit account with the BSP is not consideted as a
regular current account as BSP checks for drawings against such deposits shall be
limited to: () settlement of obligations with the BSP; and, (&) withdrawals to meet cash

requirements.
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'DUE FROM OTHER BANKS

The balance of this account represents regular deposits with the following:

Group Parent Bank,
2008 2007 2008 . ooy
Foreign banks P 16735380 P 18,836,797 P 14465890 P 14,707,933
Local banks 366,054 1,852,538 415,077 1393963

P__ 17005434 P 20680635 P 14,880,967 P 16101806

The breakdown of the account as to curtency follows:

Group i Parent Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
US dollar P 13817945 P 17,967,144 P 12,037,543 P ,14,393,104
Other cutrencies 3,155,205 1,901,909 2,535,323 1,255,339
Peso 128,284 820,582 308,101 453,453

P 1700143 P__ 206043 P I4880067 P 16101806

Annual interest rates on these deposits range from 0% to 5.9% in 2008, 0% to 4.8% in
2007 and 0% to 5.9% in 2006 in the Group financial statements and 0% to 4.5% in
2008, (% to 4.8% in 2007 and 0% to 5% in 2006 in the Parent Bank financial -

statements.

Due from other banks are included in cash and cash equivalents for cash flow statement
purposes. : ’

TRADING AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The components of this account are shown below:

Group ret] k
2008 2007 2008 2007
Financial assets at FVTPL P 6,848,931 P 20951513 P 560,108 P 17,747,850
AFS securities 35,173,343 75,604,608 31,655,755 68,562,996
HTM investments 114,128,667 67,944,102 105,276,055 62,571,073
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9.1 Fiauncial Assets at FVIFPL

This account 1s composed of the following:

Group Parent Bapk

2008 2007 2008 2007
Derivative financial assets P 4285865 P 4563673 P 2,910,605 P 3,915,281
quema_'ten; bonds 1,505,189 12,503,136 1,194,425 10,674,051
Other debt secutities 995,516 3,030,297 982,016 3,158,518
6,756,570 20,497,106 _ 5,087,046 17,747,850

Equity securities - Histed 92,361 454,407 . 73,062 -
P 6848931 P 20951513 P 5,160,108 I 17.747 850

All financial assets at FVTPL are held for trading. For government bonds and other
debt securities, the amounts presented have been determined directly by reference to
published prices quoted in an active market. On the other hand, the fair value of
detivative financial assets is determined through valuation technique using net present
value of future cash flows method. The Group recognized total fair value gain (loss) on
financial assets at FVIPL amounting to (P1,356,085), P104,529 and P1,452,487 in 2008,
2007 and 2006, respectively, in the Group financial statements and (P1,451,828),
(P83,458) and P1,405,200 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, in the Parent Bank
financial statements which wete included as part of Other Opezating Income in the
income statements.

Foreign carrency-denominated securities amounted fo P3,562,103 and P8,299,834 as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, in the Group financial statements and
73,448,302 and 8,235,825 as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, in the
Parent Bank financial statements.

Derivative instruments used by the Group include foreign currency and interest rate
forwards/ futures, foreign currency and interest rate swaps. Also in 2007, derivatives
included embedded credit default swaps bifurcated from CLNs or credit-linked deposits
(CLDs) (which were reclassified to loans together with theit host contracts in 2008).
Foreign currency and interest rate forwards / fatures represent commitments to
purchase/sell or are contractual obligations to receive ot pay & new amount based on
changes in currency rates ot interest rates ot a future date at a specified price. Foreign
currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for
another. The credit default swaps represent commitment of the counterparty to swap
 the note and deposit with high yielding securitics upon the occurrence of the reference.
event by the reference entity.

GCTTRTERT prod o
Ty ASSLMA™T® C sl
e . o

T

o

pvi

—_—

(-]

= ¢

ot

wr
¥

jS—




N

The aggregate conttactual or notional amount of detivative financial instruments and
the total fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities are shown below:

Cuzrency forwards/futures P 108,131,867
Credit-linked notes .

(sce Note 10} -
9,841,800

Interest rate swaps

Currency swaps 21,249,626
* Credit default swap -

Othets 8,553,600

I 147,776,293

Group
2008 i 2007
Notional i V2 Notonal - Fair Values
_Amount Asgers _Liabifities Amount Assets Ligbilities
Currency forwards/fimares P 122,635,663 P 2,104,839 P 1,342,500 P 132578639 P 3349874 P 2,922,600
CLNs ‘(see Note 10} ' - - - 12,495,704 123,708 229,393
Interest rate swaps 14,636,822 809,371 1,031,299 4,004,100 434,151 492,340
Currency swaps 26,280,795 1,270,830 1,153,512 1,571,845 645,828 130,321
Gredit default swap 818,300 - - 4,157,450 8,112 69,376
Others —_B,553,600 70,825 46,994 - - -
MM P_4 255,865 P 3574305 P 154807738 DB 4503473 E_3 8440030
Parent Bank
2007
Naotional Fair Yalues Notional Tair ¥alues

P 3040627 P 2533831

P 1483054 P 1071682 P 132467,716
- - 12,495,704 123,708 229,303
493,255 588,088 25539,100 263,900 346,819
863,372 988,082 1,117,000 486,957 97,779
- - 1,068,750 89 3,232

70824 . 46994 = - -

P_ 20900605 P PAE04gds P14068R270 P 3015281 P 3Ji103

‘The Group reclassified certain equity secutitics from FVTPL to AFS and debt securities
and embedded derivatives of CLNs from FVIPL to HTM and Loans and Other
Receivables, respectively (see Note 9.4).

Detivatives embedded in CLNs and CLDs amounting to (P183,166) and {(P69,538) in
the Group and Parent Bank financial statements, respectively, as of reclassification date,
were reclassified to Loans together with their related host contracts (see Note 9.4).

92 Available-for-Sale Securities

The Group’s available-for-sale securities consist of the following:

Note,

Government debt securities
Other debt sccurities:
Cuoted
Naot quoted
Equity securities:
Caoted
Not quoted

Allowanee for impairmient 14

Net

. Group i ParentBapk.
___zm_—— ,__ixm——-ﬂ _@-m_- ,_—mm‘-—
p 2501760 P 47871324 P 23,302,287 P 45,167,842

11,650,073 22,626,696 11,001,043 21,195,877
634,199 291,521 347,937 -

625,002 528,750 148,960 282,178

—2B07,592 2,488,186 1,569,740 2,175,280

40,818,566 74,212,477 35,369,967 48,821,179

( 5.645,223) ( G07.869) ) { 258183

p__ 35173ad3 P 75604608 P 31685755 P GRS6200
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As to currency, this account is composed of the following:

Group
2008 2007 2008 2007
Foreign currency ‘ P B,807,354 r 49,280,658 P 11,887,278 P 44,165,541
Peso ) ' 21,365,489 26,514,950 19,768,477 24.4507,455

P 35173343 P 75604608 B 31685755 P 6R56209G

Goverament debt securities issued by the Republic of the Philippines and foreign
sovereigns and other debt securities issued by resident and non-tresident corporations .
earn interest at annual rates ranging from 0% to 13% in 2008, 4.2% to 18% in 2007 and
4.2% to 22.9% in 2006 in the Group financial statements and 0% to 13% in 2008, 5.2%
to 18% in 2007 and 4.2% to 22.9% in 2006 in the Parent Bank financial statements.

Other debt securities also include investments in a foreign financial institution under
bankruptcy amounting to P5,052,967 both in the Group and Parent Bank Financial
statements, As of December 31, 2008, allowance for impairment losses on such
investments amounted to P4,440,259 in the Group and Parent Bank financial
statements. -

In 2008, all CLNs linked to ROP bonds were reclassified to loans and other receivables
together with the embedded desivative (see Note 9.4). As of December 31, 2007, other
debt securities include the host contract of CLNs with carrying value of P7,636,800
while the embedded derivatives were bifurcated and presented separately from the CLN
as FVTPL (see Note 9.1).

A CLN is an instrument under which the issuer issues a note to the investor whereby
both parties agree that upon the occurrence of 2 credit event in relation to the reference
entity, the CLN accelerates and the investor is delivered the defaulted asset of the
refetence entity, ot paid a net settlement amount equal to the market price of the
defaulted asset or reference obligation adjusted for any transaction unwind costs.

Unquoted equity securities consist of club shares, prefetred shares and common shares
of vartous unlisted local companies.

~ The fair values of government debt and quoted available-for-sale securities (other debt

secutities and equity shares) have been determined directly by refezence to published
prices generated in an active market. For unquoted available-for-sale securities, the fair
value is not reliably determinable either by reference to sitnilar financial instruments or
through valuation technique using the net present value of the future cash flows.
Accordingly, unquoted available-for-sale securities are carried at cost.

Total unrealized fair valué gain (foss) on the balance of available-for-sale securities
amounted to (P6,131,664), (P684,303) and P1,179,598 as of December 31, 2008, 2007
and 2006, respectively, in the Group financial statements and (P5,080,684), (P224,006)
and P1,052,300 as of December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, in the Parent
Bank financial statements.
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Cha'ngcs in available-for-sale securities are presented belowg -

Group. Parent Bank
008 000 2007 2008 2007
Balance at beginning of year P 75,604,608 T 56,428,325 P 68,562,996 P 49,679,449
Additions - 385,018,177 136,052,374 386,230,157 134,367,383
Disposals ( 378,020,100) {  114588942) ( . 378G43AL) (- 113930037
" Reclassification ro HTM MNote 5.4 ( 25,539,516} - ( 22,474,046) -
Reclassification to loans and .

‘other receivables MNote 5.4) ( 18,589,784) . - { 14,166,335) -
Reclassification from FVTPL (Note 9.4) 101,625 - - -
Reclassification from loans and

other receivables (Nore 10) 437,500 - 437,500

" Unrealized fair value losses in equity { 6,131,664) { ) 684,303) ( 5,080,684} ( 224,0006)
Foreign currency revaluation . 7,329,851 { 1,681,963) - 7,245,607 { 1,155,595)
Allowance for impairment Joss . { _B.037.354) (l- B2LBR3) ( 4,456,029} | 173.298)

P 3,173,343 D 75604408 P 3LGERTSE P 52540006

In 2008, the Group and Parent Bank reclassified private and sovereign debt

securities with total carrying value of P25,539,516 and P22,474,046, respectively, to
-held-to-maturity investments (see Note 9.4). In addition, the Group and the

Parent Bank reclassified all CLNs that ate linked to ROP bonds, with carrying value of
P18,589,784 and P14,166,335, respectively, to loans and other receivables

(see Note 9.4).

In 2008, the Group recognized a total of P4,440,259 provision for impairment losses .on
available-for-sale securities in the income statements (nil in 2007). .

9.3 Held-to-Maturity Investments

The balance of this account is composed of the fo].lowing_:

Group Parent Bank
Note 2008 2007 2008 I | ¥ A
Government debt securities P 92,220,475 . P 43,864,184 P 83,751,524 P 38,827,426
Qther debt secusities: .

Listed 13,388,170 6,876,605 13,388,170 6,540,335
Nonlisted 9,192,653 18.047,139 8.808,994 18,047,138
114,801,300 68,787,928 105,948,688 63,414,899

Allowanee forimpairment 14 {672,633} (. BAXE26) ( 172,633 { 843,826} .
Net P . N4128667 DB 67044107 P__105,276,088 P GRATLOTI

Government debt securities issued by the Republic of the Philippines and fozeign
sovereigns include securities deposited with BSP as secutity for the Group’s faithful
compliance of its fiduciary obligations in connection with the Group’s trust operations
(see Notes 25-and 31.3). :



Other debt securities include investments in a sinking fund set up by the Group as
required by BSP in connection with the Group’s redemption of the preferred shares it
issued to SM Prime Holdings, Inc. (SMPHI) at the original issue price five years from
the date of issue (see Note 16). The carrying balance of the sinking fund as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to P2,109,709 and P1,357,083, respectively, in
the Group and Parent Bank financial statements. '

As to currency, held-to-maturity investments comptise of the following:

Group Pa
2008 2007 2008 2007
Foreign currency ' P 84,268,526 P 48,369,114 P 80,325,293 P 45,901,054
Peso ) . 2086041 __ I9R74088 _ 24.950,762 _ 16570019

P__uaizRer P__(1944107 P MAZIG055 D 62571073

"The maturity profile of this account is presented below:

Group Parent Bank,
2008 2007 2008 2007
Less than one year P 11,677,508 P 6,526,508 P 11,025,548 © P 5,702,807
One to five years 49,079,129 37,841,571 44,671,420 35,721,017
Beyond five years 53,372,030 23,576,023 49,579,087 21,147,249

P._14128667 P 67044100 P._105.27605 P.. 02571073

Changes in the held-to-matutity account are summarized below:

Group . ._Parent Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Balznee at beginning of year P 67,944,102 7 84,730,287 P 62,571,073 P 80,609,887
Additions 82,649,709 76,518,139 75,210,494 73,517,709
" Maturities ( T6ATOAIR) (81265308 (  72,882,28) ( 79,724,500)
Reclassification from FVPTL (Note 9.4} 6,296,819 - 6,296,819 .
Reclassification from AFS (Note 9.4) 25,539,516 - 22,474,046 -
Foreign currency revaluation B,671,744 ( 12,038,926) 8,099,957 ( 11,832,023%) I
Irnpairment during the year (. 494.085) { - y o« 494,086} | - i

P___114,128667 2 67944102 P__ 105276058 I (2,571.07%

The fair values of the held-to-maturity investments are as follows:

Group i Pagent Bank ]
2008 2007 . 2008 2007 ..
Government debt securities. | P 77,204,898 P 45994312 P GE958699 P 40,646,820
Other debt secudties 32,484,814 23,450,168 32,136,470 23,094,663

P__109779.712 P (0444480 P 101005460 P S3741.48% .

The fair value is determined through valuation techniques by determining the net
present value of estimated future cash flows. Annualintetest rates on these ‘
investments range from 0% to 16.5% in 2008, 0.9% to 18% in 2007 and 4% to 18%.1n

2006 for both the Group and the Parent Bank accounts.
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9.4 Reclassification of Investment Securitics

The Group recognized the deterioration of the world’s financial markets that occarred

in the third quarter of 2008. The enormity and extent of the global credit crisis was
crystallized by the substantial government programs instituted by major economies in
tesponse to the crisis, including temporary liquidity faciliies, outright purchase of
commercial papets and mortgaged-baked securities, guarantee of new unsecured debt
issued by banks and purchase of equity stakes in financial institutions. S

Related to above in 2008, the Group chose to avail of the regulatory relief on specific.
financial assets granted by the BSP under the governing provisions of Circular No. 628,
which petmitted the reclassification of certain financial assets to help banks cope with
the adverse impact of the global financial ctisis.

Presented below are the reclassifications made by the Group and the Parent Bank in
2008:

Group
, 08
Carrying Estimated Carrying
Reclassification from FVIPL to HTM P 6296819 T 6296819 T 9174438 P 6400174 P 6218556
Reclassification of CLNs from AFS to Loans 18,589,784 18,580,784 22,501,406 19,973,139 19,231,764
Reclassification of embedded derivatives ' :
of CLNs from FVTPL to Loans ( 183,166) { 183,166) - - -
Reclassification of debt securities .
from AFS to HTM : E 25,539,516 25,539,516 ¥ 27,223,047 25,092,560
Reclassification from FVTPL to AFS 101,625 101,625 * 35,744 35,744
Barent Bank
i i At December 31,2008
Carrying Estimated Carrying
Reclassification from FYTPL to HIM P 6,296,819 P 6,296,8.19 P 9174438 P 6,400,174 P 6,218,556
Reclassification of CLMN& from AFS to Loans 14,166,335 14,166,335 18,727,623 15,210,975 14,844,881
Reclassification of embedded dertvatives
of CLNs from FVTPL te Loans (  69,538){ 69,538) - - -
Reclassification of debt securities '
from AFS o HTM 22,474,046 22,474,046 L¥ 24,181 980 . 22,172,790

* Not required to be disclosed

Trading losses of FVTPL transferred to AFS amounted to P38,547. The net trading
loss that would have been recognized in the period following the teclassification during,
2008 if the reclassification had not been made would have amounted to P65,881.

Total trading losses of FVIPL reclassified to HTM both in the Group and Parent Banle
fnancial statements which were recognized in profit ot loss amounted to P199,335.

On the other hand, the net trading loss that would have been recognized in the period
following the reclassification duting 2008 if the reclassifications had not been made
would have amounted to P125,185. Effective interest tates of FVTPL reclassified to
HTM range from 7% to 8.8% in the Group and Parent Bank financial statements.
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10.

Unrealized fair value losses in equity of debt secutities reclassified from AFS to HTM
at reclassification dates amounted to P102,100 and P45,675 in the Group and Parent
Bank financial statements, tespectively. The net trading loss that would have been
recognized in equity-duting the period following the reclassification in 2008 if the
reclassifications had ot been made would have amounted to P2,132,290.

Untealized fair value losses in equity of CLNs linked to ROP bonds reclassified from
AFS to Loans at reclassification dates amounted to P627,075 and P623,915 in the
Group and Parent Bank financial statements, xespecﬁvely Effective interest rates at
reclassification date range from 4.7% to 11.4% and 7.3% to 9.6% in the Group and
Parent Bank financial statements. Addittonal unreslized fair value losses from the
reclassification dates to December 31, 2008 that would have been recognized in equity
had the CLNs not been reclassified to loans and othet receivables would have
amounted to P494,832 and P554,552 in the Group and Parent Bank financial .
statements, respectively. Additional trading losses to be recognized in profit or loss had
the embedded detivatives not been reclassified totaled to P1,134,697 and P909,227 in -
the Group and Parent Bank financial statements, respectively.

LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This account consists of the following:

' . _Group .. Parent Bank
Notg 2008 2007 2008 - 2007

Receivables from customers:
JLoans and discounts P 322729,022 P 230,232,877 P 313,727,976 P - 229,191,311
Customers’ liabilities ’
under letters of credit

and trust receipts 40,721,896 28,861,108 40,721,896 28,861,108

Bills purchased 13,408,212 10,891,879 13,408,212 16,891,879
Others 15,935,177 12.044 280 15,625,695 11,37H3.268
392,794,307 207,030,150 381,783,979 286,314,766

Allowance forimpairment 14 (. 15,720,939) ( 16,606 495) ( 15,485,393) (. 6,269.011)

Net o ITGTAME . 2ROAZAGE _ 3RZINSES 0045
Other receivebles: '

SPURRA . 60,770,362 8,952,219 48,647,520 4,502,625,

., Interbank loans receivables 20,193,940 15,513,958 29,193,940 15,005,814
" UDSCL {see Mote 9) 20,388,255 412,800 15,626,091 412,800
Accounts receivable . 5,948,208 6,185,926 7,306,004 7,484,270
Sales contract receivables 1,981,806 1,959,794 1,891,265 L 1,920,644
Others 40,201 164,599 - (4,705

: 118,322,172 33,180.206 . 102,664,820 29,480,858
Allowance for impairment 14 ( _3,400,709) {,__._Iﬁl&.ﬂl-) ( 3373473)( . 1805855
Mat e 114,913,003 31,251,284 99,291,747 27,585,023

P 490986431 D 311674030 P 467500333 P 207630774

Included in loans and other receivables are nonaccruing loans amounting to
P23,109,959 and P24,550,908 as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, in the
Group financial statements and P22,608, 692 and P22,516,380 as of December 31, 2008
and 2007, tespectively, in the Parent Bank financial statements.

As of December 31, 2008, intetbank loans re éﬁ'ﬁ@ MktEdE lmr_tn%mmgn

finagicial institution under bankruptcy amo
for impairment of P1,308,050. '




The Group’s concentration of credit as to industry follows:

Group i . Parent Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007

Manufacturing (various industries) P 82782873 P 67,762,653 B 79,993,631 "P 66433274
Financizl intermediaties ] 65,451,613 36,326,281 . 66,401,201 35,661,132
Wholesale and retail trade : 54,794,326 44785252 B3, 398 300 43,405,135
Other community, social and .
‘ petsonal activities 31,712,284 36,455,031 31,201,574 38,448,612
Real estate, tenting and other

‘related activities 30,608,567 23,893,265 30,330,523 19,609,789
Transportation and communication 31,186,785 15,322,038 29,362,472 13,668,254
Agriculture, fishing and forestiy 5,229,037 3,728,232 5,182,269 3,670,501

(ythers ‘ 91028822 . 68757398 __ 87,914,009 _tii.ﬂ.ﬁ&ﬁﬂ

The breakdown of total loans as to secuted and unsecured follows:

Group PargngBank =
2008 2007 2008 2007
Secured:
Real estate mortgage P 74475200 P 61,779,114 P 73,502,141 P 60,809,052
Chattsl mortgage 30,851,037 19,695,515 24,458,111 13,473,738

QOther securities ___GA892.176 40181966 64821949 40102032

170,218,413 121,656,615 162,782,201 114,384,822
Unsecured 222,575.894 175373,535 221,001,778 - 171,520,944

'The breakdown of total loans as to type of interest rate follows:

Group. Parent Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007

Vatiable interest rates P 292,114,867 P 197,730, 550 P 285008870 P 196,860,435
Fixed interest rates 100,679,440 99299900 98775109 80454331

P 392794307 P 207030150 P 3BAELYTY P 2CA1ATE6

Loans and other receivables bear annual interest rates of 0.0% to 51.1% pet anoum in
2008, 1.1% to 41.7% in 2007 and 1.5% to 58.6% in 2006 in the Group and Parent Bank

financial statements.
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"The Bank’s receivables from customets amounting to P6,806,836 and P256,518 as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, were pledged as collaterals with the BSP to
secure borrowings under rediscounting privileges. In addition, recetvables from
customers amounting to P55,046 and P171,814 as of December 31, 2008 and 2007,
tespectively, have been rediscounted under the Development Bank of the Philippines,
Land Basnk of the Philippines and SSS rediscounting facilities. '

On May 30, 2008, the Bank reclassified CLDs included under other receivables with
carrying amount of P437,500 to AFS (see Note 9.2). '

In 2008, the Group reclassified to loans and receivables CLNs linked to ROPs
(classified as AFS) and the embedded derivatives (classified as FVTPL) with total fair
value, as of the date of reclassification, of P18,589,784 and (P183,166), respectively
(see Note 9.4). The related accrued interest receivables of CLNs amounting to
P1,811,915 was also transferred to loans and other receivables.

PREMISES, FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT

‘The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation and amortization at the
beginning and end of 2008 and 2007 are shown below:

Group
Leasehold Faumniture,
. Rights and Fixtures and
Deceniber 31, 2008 i .
Cost P 4955960 P 5,356,584 P 1,767,540 P 14626634 P 26,706,727

Accumulated

depreciation and
amortization - ( 1,499.148) (- 338.232) ( 10,192,957) 12030337

Net casrying amount E 4 M ol 3857436 B 1429308 B 4433677 P 14,676,390 .

Deceshes 3, 2007
Cost P 4876467 P 4481676 P 1445190 P 12506625 P 23,302,058
Accurrulated

depregiation and
amaortizadon - (. 1,618,868} { STL090) ( 9,707.581) ( 11,904,439}

Net carrying amount P 4 RIGAGT P 2862808 D 867200 P 2799044 P 11405510
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December 31, 2008
" Cost
Accumulated
depreciation and
amortization

Net carrying amount

Deceroher 31, 2007
Cost
Accumulated
" depreciation and
emortzabion

Net cacrying amount

A reconciliation of the carrying am
_ premiises, furniture, fixtures and eq

Group

Leaschold Fupniture,
Rights and Fixtures and
P 4,855,969 [P 5,237,340 P 1,644,360 P 12,629,104 P 24,466,773
- 1,438,351) (. 269,929} ( 9.872:697) 11,580,977)
B 4955969 (B 3,798,989 .P 137441 P 2156407 P 12 885 796
P 4876467 [P 4,198,289 P 1264543 P 007,117 P 20,410,816
- 1,399,547) 453 589) ( 2,621061) ( 9,474,197}
Fid 4875467 |2 2708742 2 811354 P 2480056 P 10,836,619

ounts at the beginning and end of 2008 and 2007, of

uipment is shown below:

Leasehold
Rights and

Furniture,
Fixtures and

. Zapd | Buildings  Improvements . Equipment . Total

Balance at January 1, 2008,
net of accurmulated
depreciation and
amortization

Additions

Disposals

Drepreciztion and amortization
charges for the year -

Balance at December 31,:
2008, net of accurnulated
depreciation and
amartization

Balance at Jenuary 1, 2007,
net of accurmulated
depreciation and
amerdzation

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation and amortization
charges for the year

Balance at December 31, 2007,

net of accumuiated
depreeiation and
" amortization -

P AFNG467 [P 2862808 P 867200 P 2709044 P 11405519
189,702 1,208,370 873,809 2,984,516 5,256,437

{ 110,200) 5.109) ¢ 7,790) 54,626) { 117.725)
s 208.633) { 304,001% { 1,295257) | 1,807,891)

E 4,985,969 [P 3857436 P 1429308 P 4433677 P_._14676.300
r 4,888,813 P 2,795,566 P ‘ 701,853 P 2,086,020 P 11,372,352
1,166 361,825 471,135 2,139,807 2,973,933

¢ 13,512) 23:612) ( 51,089} ( 940,533) ( 1,028,746)
L] 270,971) ( 254,692 (. 1.386.250) ¢ 1,911.920)

o 4876467 1B 2862808 P 867200 D 2700044 P 11405519
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Parent Bank

Leasehold Furniture,

Rights and Fixturcs and
__Land  _ Buildipgs . _Improvements _ .Equipment Total,
Balance at January 172008,
net of accurmulated
depreciation and
amortization P -4,876,467 P 2798742 P 811,354 P 2,450,056 P 10,936,619
Additions 189,702 1,207,856 839,615 1,503,798 3,740,071
Disposals { 110,200 { * 5,108) ( 6,600) (. 49,758) { 17,675)
Deprecation and amortization
charges for the year P { 2025013 (- 269929 ( 1147689} (_ 1,.620119)
Balance at December 31,
2008, net of accumnulated .
depreciation and
amortization P 4955960 E 3798980 P 137443 P ..2786400 P 12885706
Balance at January 1, 2007,
net of accunulated
depreciation and . '
amortization P 4,880,926 P 2698815 T 660,576, P 2,460,828 P 10,710,145
Additions - 350,690 458,631 1,706,984 2,516,305
Disposals ¢ 13,459) { 123,535) { 120,308) ¢ 644,569 ( 9(11,871)
Depreciation and amortization
charges for the year e i27gemy (L IBTSE5) (. LO7318T) (. 1387.040)
Balance at December 31, 2007,
net of accumulated
dcpreciatién and . . .
amoitization P 4376467 P 2798742 P 811,354 D 2450086 B 10,956,619

Undet BSP tules, investments in premises, furniture, fixtutes and equipment should not
exceed 50% of a bank’s unimpaired capital. As of December 31, 2008 and: 2007, the
Bank has satisfactorily complied with this requirement. - .

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties include Jand and buildings held for capital appreciation and for
rental. Tncome earned from investment properties under rental agreement amounted to
P64,213 and P56,923 in 2008 and P35,358 and P28,513 in 2007 in the Group and
Parent Bank financial statements, respectively. Direct expenses incurred from these
properties amounted to P22,358 and P11,340 in 2008 and P18,058 and P10,751 in 2007
in the Group and Parent Bank financial statements, respectively.
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The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation and impairment at the
beginning and end of 2008 and 2007 are shown below: ‘

Group

December 31, 2008
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impaitment
(see Note 14)

Net carrying amount

December 31, 2007
Cost

Accumulated depreciation ‘

Accumulated i.nipaj.tment
(see Note 14)

Net cazrying amount

Parent Bank N

CC‘ 1
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment
(see Note 14)

Net carrying amount

C 1,2
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment
(see Note-14)

Net carrying amount

Buildi

— Land —Total
P 12994210 P 4,646,857 P 17,641,067
- ( 1,378,480)  ( 1,578,480)
{ 1,018.812) ¢ 9414y ( 1,028,226)
P___1.975308 B 3258963 E__ 15234361
P 14,951,831 p 5,327,336 F 20,279,167
- ( 1,236,494)  ( 1,236,494)
( 1,056,707 22,853) [ 1.079,560)
P 138095124 b 4067989  P__ 17.063.113
Land __ Byjldings Total -
P 12,240,884 P 4,398,469 P 16,639,353
- ( 1,315,742) { 1,315,742}
( 999,945)  ( 9,415) 1,009,360)
P 14,184,639 P“ 5050376 P 19,244,015 .
- ( 1,185,574) 1,185,574)
{ 1.051,154) - ( 1,051,154)
P__ 13133485 B 3873802 B 17007287

QUAL
g h'
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts at the beginning and end of 2008 and 2007, of
investment property is shown below:

Group .

Balance at January 1, 2008,
net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment
Additions
Disposals
Reclassifications
Depreciation for the year
Impairment recovery

Balance at December 31, 2008,
net of accumulated A
depreciation and impairment

Balance at January 1, 2007,
net of accumulated )
depreciation and impai.tinent
Additions
Disposals
Impairment for the year
Depteciation for the year

Balance at December 31, 2007,
net of accumnlated
depreciation and impairment

Parent Bank

Balance at January 1, 2008,
net of acenmubated
depreciation and impairment
Addidons ’
Disposals
Reclassification
Impairment recovery
Depreciation for the year

Balance at December 31, 2008,
net of accumulated

depteciation and impairment

P 13,895,124 P 4067989 - P 17,963,113

125,616 197,096 322713
( 1,885,818) ( 457,019)  ( 2,342,836
(. 181,374) ¢ 358,815) ( 540,189
- ( 196,056)  ( 196,056 )

21,850 5.768 27,616

P__ 11975398 E 3,258,963 P__ 15234361

P 13586511 P 4,747,254 P 18,333,765

2,482,609 1,128,865 3,611,474
( 1482,122)  ( 1,562,403)  ( 3,044,525)
( 691,874) ( 691,874} -
. ( 245,727) ¢ 245,727

P 13,895,124 i 4067989 P__ 17963113

— Land . Buildings = _..Total .

P 13,133,485 P 3,873,802 P. 17,007,287

42,717 165,278 207,995

( . 1,843,869) ( 445406)  { 2,289,275)

¢ 1274220 ( 358,815) 486,237
36,028 5,768 41,796

- ( 167,315)  ( 167,315)
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Balance at January 1, 2007,
net of sccurnulated

depreciation and impairment

Additons

Disposals

Impairment for the year
Depreciation for the year

Balance at December 31, 2007,
net of accumulated

depreciation and impairment

P. 12840260 P 4566,694 P 17,406,954
2,435,102 1,080,642 3,515,744

( 1,450,595) 1,564,796) (. 3015391)

( 691,282) - ( | 691,282)
- { 208,738)  ( 208,738)

P 13133485 P 31873802 P 17007287

The fair value of investment properties as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, determined
based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current.
market rate, amounted to P23,021,247 and P19,060,600, respectively, for the Group

accounts and P22,055,410 and P17,727,894, respectively, for the Parent Bank accounts.

' Real and other properties acquited (ROPA) in settlement of loans through foreclosure
or dacion in payment are accounted for as financial assets, juvestment properties,
non-current assets held-for-sale and other resources - others. As of December 31, 2008
and 2007, ROPA gross of allowance comprise of the following: o

Investment properties

Non-curtent assets held-for-sale

Available-for-sale securities
Other tescurces - others

13. OTHER RESOURCES

The components of this account are shown below:

Deferred tax assets
Receivables from SPVs
- Deposits under esctow
Foreign cusrency notes and
coins on hand

Non-cuteent assets held for sale

Equity investments
Interoffice float items - aet

Goodwill

Balance brought forward

Group Parept Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
P 14767642 P 16203405 P 13977664 P 16277969
2,209,296 1,586,347 2,180,609 1,586,347
844,350 1,048,961 844,350 1,048,961
- 27614 - -

ML@AM

P__17002,623 P _ 18913277

Parent Bank

- OO MENTT A
QUALTTY ASSLRANCE BIVISI:

Group
Notes 2008 2007 2008 2007

a7 P 5,779,921 P 5,740,575 P 5,746,581 P 5,614,341
3,435,268 3,435,268 3,435,268 . 3,435,268
2,931,054 2,931,054 2,931,054 2,931,054
2,220,153 1,742,435 2,220,153 1,735,994
1,950,370 1.441.432 1,932,484 1,400,822
1,704,013 1,695,881 10,873,939 11,560,433
1,194,078 1,103,331 1,618,929 1,108,013

26 747,217 747217 747,217 147,217

)
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Parent Banlk

Group
_Note 2008 2007 2008 . 2067

Balanee carried forward P 19,962,074 P 18837193 P_ 29,505,625 P.. 28533142
Returned checks and . .

other cash items 464,631 2,742,664 464,631 2,739,791 .
Deferted chatges - net

of amortization 456,037 1,037,969 445,675 1,025 473
Others —_8,859.921 __ . 7464914 ___ 7330113 .. £920040

20,742,663 30,082740 - 37,746,044 39,238,446

Allowance for impaitment 14 (. 7,298,975) { (956,386 ( 9,585,960) (___10,064,727)

I3.1 Recefvables fromn SPVs

Receivables from SPVs represent the amount due from sale of certain non-performing
assets to the SPVs. In 2005, the former EPCIB sold certain nonperforming assets
having book value of P15,068,639 to Philippine Investment One, Philippine Investment
Two and Cameron Granville Asset Management, Inc. (CGAM) for a consideration of
P4,134,472, Cash received from the SPVs amounted to P98,416 in 2005 and the
balance of P3,336,056, through issuance of SPV Notes, shall be paid based on a cash
flow waterfall arrangement and interest rate of 20% and 50% per annum on the
P2,776,056 and P560,000, respectively. Also, in 2005, the former Equitable Savings
Bank, Inc. (ESB) entered into sale and purchase agreements with CGAM and LNC
(SPV-AMC) Cotporation (LNC) for the sale of the former ESB’s loans to CGAM for
P620,982 and for the sale of its investment properties to LNC for P93,031. The former
ESB received SPV Notes amounting to P60,000 for loans from CGAM and P39,200
for investment properties from LNC, in addition to cash received amounting to
P23,155 from CGAM and P4,196 from LNC.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, allowance for impairment losses on receivables
from SPVs amounted to P2,991,212,

13.2 Deposits Under Escrow

- Deposits under escrow pertain to the portion of the cash received by the Group in
consideration fot its assumption of First e-Bank Corporation’s deposits and other
fiabilities in October 2002. This amount is held in escrow pending compliance by the
Group with cettain terms and conditions as stipulated in the MOA. Deposits under
escrow earn an annual effective interest of 4.7% and 3.4% in 2008 and 2007,

' respectively.
13.3 Deferred Charges

Deferted charges mainly pettain to computer software licenses. Amortization expense
on defetred charges amounted to P114,698, P94,402, and P36,922 in 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively, in the Group financial statements and P114,628, 93,309, and
P36,540 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, tespectively, in the Parent Bank financial statements.

These ate included as part of Other Operating Expenses in the income statement
(SE‘.C Note 2.2.) ' LT - DOCTTArNT FROCLISING |
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134 Non-current Assets Held-for-sale

Non-curtent assets held-for-sale consist of real and other properties acquired through
repossession or foreclosure that the Group intends to sell within one year from the date

of classification as held for sale.
13.5 Equity Investments

Equity investments consist of the following:

Group Parent Bank . .

. % Interest .
. __Hefd  ....2008 2007 2008 2007
BDO Private Bank, Inc. (BDO Private) 100% P - P - P 2,579,460 D 2579460
B Leasing Finance, Inc. 85% - - 1,854,073 1,854,073
EBC Strategic Holdings Corporation (BEHG) 0% - - 1,420,850 1,420,850
EBC Tnvestments, Inc. (EBCT 100% - - 1,003,225 1,003,225
PCIB Properties, inc. 100% - - 801,692 891,692
BDO Blite Savings Bank, inc. (BDO Elite) 100% - - ' - 677,084
BDO Capital Investment Corporation (BDO Capital)  100% - - 300,000 00,000
BDO Finaneial Services, Inc. 100% - - 200,600 200600
BDO Technology Center, Tnc. (BDO Technology) 100% - - 47,443 47,443
Equimark.- NFC Development Corp. 60% - - 44,997 44,997
BDC Realty Corporation 100% - - 40,000 40,060
PCIB Securites, Inc. 100% - - 35,177 39,177
PCI Realty Corporation . 100% - - 33,510 33510
BDO Insurance Brokers, Inc. (BDOI) 100% - . 11,249 11,249
- PCI Insurance Brokers, Inc. (PCI Insurance) 100% - ) - ) 7,800 7800
Foreign Subsidiaries:
PCI Express Padala (HK) Ltd. 100% - - 215,282 215,282
PCIB Europe, 5.2.8. 100%% - - 32,971 32021
[Ixpress Padala HK Ltd. 100% - - 27,956 - 279506
BDO Remittance (USA), Inc 1004% - - 26,494 26,494
Iixpress Padala Frankfust GmbH 100% - - ) 1,247 1,247
Equitable PCT Bxpress Padala (Nederland) B.V. 100% - - 823 823
Associates:
SM Keppet Land, Inc. 50% 1,294,044 1,294 044 1,294,044 1,294,044
Generali Difipings Meldings, Ine. 40% 446,192 446,162 378,000 378,000
Northpine Land Incorporated 20% 232,000 o 232,000 232,000 232,000
Taai Land : 33% 170,382 170,382 170,382 170,382
Others 9,084 0,084 2,084 _ 9084

2181702 2151702

Accurnulated equity in net [osses: . _
Balance at baginning of year ’ (

506,657) (  434,725) -
46,737 ( 71,032) -

10,861,708 ___1L538:793

Equity in net income {losses) during the year

Baiance at end of yeat (. 459.920) (506.657) - :
At.cost — 12231 5083 .. 1223 21638
Gross . -1,70'4,_013 1695881 10,873,939 11,560,433
Allowanee for impairment (see Note 14) (o 5.824) .._..,,:.'_ (__3.201,197) (___ 3.559.541)
Net ‘ Pi67J5 D LGSEY P.ISR20 B B000S02

The Parent Bank’s percentage of interest held in each subsidiary and associate is the

same as that of the Group, except for Generali Pilipinas Holdings, Inc. which is at:30%

at the Parent Bank and 40% at the Group level.
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The Group’s subsidiaties and associates are all incorporated in the Philippines, ekcept_
for the following:

idiarige f ration
PCI Express Padala (HK) Lid. Hong Kong
Express Padala HK Ltd. : Hong Kong
BDO Remnittance (JSA)}, Inc. United States of America
Express Padala Frankfurt GmbH Gertany
Equitable PCI Express Padala (Nederland} BV~ Netherlands
PCIB Burope, 5.P.A Ttaly

The following table presents financial information on the Group’s associates as of and
for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007:

Net Income

2008 __Assete . _ Liasbilives . . Bevenues = (Loss)
SM Keppel Land, Inc. P 1,765,085 P 233,723 P 254,040 P ' 63,010
Generzli Pilipinas Holdings, Inc. ( 252,760) 347,182 (  455,766) ( 468,171)
Northpine Land Incorporated 1,660,500 464,260 81,700 36,108
Taal Land 140,599 "1 979 965

2007
SM Keppel Lund, Inc. P 1724387 P 25603 P 250913 P 59,756
Generali Pilipinas Holdings, Inc. | - 729,931 336,197 7,560 { 514,439}
Notthpine Land Incorporated 1,422,700 500,300 161,700 57,100
Tasl Land 158,718 200,125 577 35

13.5.1 Dividend Declarations

In 2008 and 2007, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries declared and paid cash
dividends amounting to P108,500 and P2,384,054, respectively, and are presented as
Dividend Income under Other Operating Income in the Parent Bank income
statements.

13.5.2 Mergers Among Subsidiaries
In 2008, the following mergets among subsidiaries of the Group have taken place:

(a) On Aptil 23, 2008, the respective Board of Directors of EBCII, Jardine Equitable
Finance Corporation, EBC Capital Cotporation, Equitable Exchange, Inc. and
Espress Padala International, Inc., approved the plan of Merger with EBCII as the
surviving entity. 'The merger was approved by the SEC on October 6, 2008.

() On Aprl 7, 2008, the respective Board of Ditectots of BDO Technology (formerly
Equitable Data Center, Inc)) and PCY Automation Center, Inc, approved the Plan of
Merger with BDO Technology as the surviving entity. The merger was approved by
the SEC on September 5, 2008.
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(¢ On April 7, 2008, the respective Board of Directors of BDOI and EBC Insurance
Broketage, Inc. approved a Plan of Merger with BDOL as the surviving entity. The
merger was approved by the SEC on August 21, 2008, ‘

The above metgers wese accounted for using the pooling-of-interests method since the
merging entities are under the common control of the Group.

13.5.3 Decrease in Authorized Capital Stock

On July 30, 2007, the Board of Directors and stockholders of ECN approved the
dectease in authotized capital stock of ECN from P2,000,000 divided into 20.0 million
shares to P675,000 divided into 6.75 million shares. The Board also approved the
return to stockholders of P1,336,250 to be soutced from the funds of ECN
tepresenting surplus capital; On September 28, 2007, the SEC approved the decrease in
anthorized capital stock and P1,300,000 was retutned by ECN on the same day. The
remaining P36,250 was returned to stockholders on October 1, 2007.

13.5.4 Acquisitions/Disposals

On 1 special meeting détéd'August 17, 2007, the Board of Directors approved the
purchase of BDO Elite Savings Bank, Inc. (see Note 26) and the Ametican Express
Philippine Dollar Chatge Card Portfolio in the amount of P762,587. '

- On May 30, 2007, the then EPCIB entered into 2 MOA with ECN to putchase its
outstanding credit card receivables and related liabilities as-of March 31, 2007 for the
amount of P3,650,000. ECN has also agreed to continue to provide the technical,
marketing, collection and other credit card services with respect to the receivables and
liabilities. On December 1, 2007, an addendum to the above-mentioned MOA was
entéred into with the Parent Bank for the assignment and transfer of ECN’s assets and
assumption of ECN’s liabilities amounting to P402,505 and P490,102, tespectively. The
parties understand and agree that the liabilities assumed by the Parent Bank ate more.
than the assets assigned and transferred to the Parent Bank. BECN undertakes and

agtees to pay the net Hability to the Patent Bank.

On February 22, 2007, the Group granted the management the authority and discretion
to determine the manner and time of the implementation of the following corporate
actions, taking into consideration the best interest of the Group and subject to
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements:

(4} The sale or disposal of the Group’s equity investments in certain publicly listed and
non-listed cotporations; the engagement of the services of a broker to handle the
equity placement of the listed shares, and the engagement of the services of an
investment/portfolio manager to implement the sale and disposition of the non-

listed shares; and,

(b) The sale or dissolution of certain non-operating non-stock companies. As of
December 31, 2008, one of the subsidiaries is planned for dissolution, two
subsidiaries are undergoing merger or planned to be merged with another subsidiaty
and two other subsidiaries were dissolved awaiting clearance from the Bureau of

Internal Revenue or approval of license cance fal N Y PR A TR AL
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ALLOWANCE FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Changes in the allowance fot impairment losses are summarized as follows:

Group
2008 2007 2008 2007

Balance at beginaing of year: o ’

Available-for-sale securities P 607,869 P 1,145892 P 258,183 P 102,117 .

Held-to-matutity ivestments 843,826 1,124,978 " 843,826 1,127,743

T.oans and other receivables 18,544,507 16,653,957 18,164,846 16,261,944

Investment properties . 1,079,860 365,534 1,051,154 359,872

Other resoutces 6,956,386 3,136,597 10,064,927 71.552,38%
Provisians duting the yeat - net 5231942 4118147 __ BJI70.957 3802373
Reclassification/write-off L E1L61E 1487043 (. TI2E2) 1176203
Balance at end of year:

Available-foe-sale securities. 5,645,223 607,869 4,714,212 258,183

. Held-to-maturity investments 672,633 845,826 672,633 843,826

Loans and other receivables 19,130,648 18,544,507 18,858,466 18,164.846

Investment properties 1,028,226 1,079,560 1,009,360 1,051,154

Other resources’ — 6,950,380 9,585,960 10:.064.727

Parent Bagk

"T'otal provisions for impairment losses on financial assets amounted to P4,737,204,
P3,291,982 and P1,259,202 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, in the Group financial
statements and P4,574,719, P3,117,441 and P1,082,532 in 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively in the Parent Bank financial statements.

Total provision for impairment losses on non-financial assets amourted to P494,738,
P826,165 and P753,525 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, in the Group financial
statements and P596,037, P684,932 and P908,731 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively,
in the Parent Bank financial statements.

In 2008, the Group reversed excess allowance on Loans amounting to P1,505,834
reported as part of Impairment Losses account in the Group and Parent Bank income

© statements,
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15. DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

The breakdown of this accountias to type follows:

Group : Parent Bank
2008 2007 2008 L2007
Demand P 36321331 P 25164584 P 22813738 P 23,201,539
Savings 263,247,504 418,649,697 264,803,455 319,864,349
Titme 337,184,731 101,562,619 _ 325349894 91229539
P_636,753,566 D 445396900 P 612,967,087 P 434203427
"This account is composed of the following:
Group " Parent Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Due to banks: .
Demand P §78,817 P . 571,131 P - 909,861 P 571,129
Savings 3,156,539 1,768,442 3,156,539 1,749,779 .
Time : 3,439,584 408,604 1,753,235 408:604
7,474,940 2,748,177 5,819,635 2739.512
Due to customers:
Demand 35,442,514 24,595.453 . 21,903,876 22,630,410
Savings 260,090,965 316,901,255 261,646,916 318,114,570
Time . 333,745.047 . 101154015 90,820,935
__ 629.278,626 __ 442,648,723 __ 607,047,452 _ 431565915
P 636,753,566 P 445306900 P 612,967,087 P 434205427
The breakdown of this account, as to curtency, follows:
_Group Parent Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007

P 172,667,256 P 116,933,054
___ 464,086,310 __ 328.463,84G

P 636753566 P _445.306.000

Foreign currency
Peso

P 163,338,147 P 105,360,617
449,628,940 328934810

P_612,967,087 P 434295427
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- The maturity profile of this account is presented below:

Less than one year
. One to five yeats
Beyond five years

Groyp ‘ __Parent Bank .

2008 2007 - 2008 2007

P 567,026,223 P 400,090,642 P 553,154,995 P 293,130,843
39,936,742 36,322,607 31,751,068 32,180,931
2,983,651 28,061,024 8,983,651

P_636753,566 D 445396900 P 612967.087 P.434205427

The Group’s deposit_liabilities are in the form of demand, savings and time deposit
accounts beating annual interest rates of 0% to 10% in 2008 and 2007. Demand and
savings deposits usually have both fixed and variable intetest rates while time deposit
has fixed interest tate except for the peso-dénominated long-term negotiable certificates
of deposits which are repriced evety quarter.

On December 23, 2004, the BSP approved the Parent Bank’s application to issue in two
ot more tranches of up to P5,000,000 worth of peso-denominated long-term negotiable
certificates of deposits (LTNCDs) within one year from date of approval. The first
tranche amounting to P2,100,000 was issued on June 1, 2005 and will mature on

June 2, 2010 and the second tranche amounting to P2,900,000 was issued on
November 23, 2005 and will mature on November 24, 2010. The first tranche beats a
variable interest based on MART 1 plus 0.3% spread while the second tranche pays a
fixed rate of 9.7%. Also, on September 25, 2006, the BSP approved the Parent Bank’s
application to issue another P5,000,000 LTNCDs in one tranche. The'P5,000,000
LTNCDs bear a fixed interest rate of 8.3% per annum. These are preseated as part of
the Time Deposit under Deposit Liabilities account in the statement of condition. '

Also on April 26, 2007, the Monetary Board (MB) of the BSP authorized BDO Private

" to issue up to P5,000,000 worth of fized rate or zeto coupon LTNCDs in one or more
tranches. The first tranche, consisting of P2,191,400 in zero coupon LTNCDs, was
issued on June 18, 2007 and will mature on December 18, 2012. These LTNCDs are
presented, net of discount and including P16,700 in capitalized transaction costs, as part
of the Time Deposit Liabilitles account in the statement of condition.’

Under existing BSP regulations, non-FCDU deposit Kabilities of the Group are subject

. to liquidity reserve equivalent to' 11% starting July 15, 2005 (under BSP Circular 491)
and statutory reserve equivalent to 10%. As of December 31, 2008, the Group isin
compliance with these regulations.
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16. BILLS PAYABLE

This account is composed of the following:

3Gr(m,p Parent Bank
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007

Foreign banks P 13,304,878 P 18520,192 P 13,304,878 P 14,222,654
Deposit substitutes 12,378,514 6,715,602 11,797,770 6,715,602
BSP 6,786,817 3,072,407 6,786,817 257,584
PRIC 4,437,717 443TTIT 0 4,430,717 4,437,717
Local banks 3,083,149 4,846,908 1,437,197 4,403,051
SMPHI {preferred shates) 2,407,317 2,158,285 2,407,317 2,158,285
Senior notes - 8,997,403 n 8,997,493
Others 9037246 3725645 __ 3,070,555 -

B_51435638 P_.32.483240

The breakdown of this account as to currency follows:

Group Parent Bank .

2008 2007 2008 2007
Foreign curtency P 34,556,768 P 27,578,701 P 16,878,870 P 25,909,086
Peso — 16878870 ___ 24904548 _ 26363381 . 15283300

P_51435,638 I 52483240

The matuzity profile of this account is -presented below:

Group

P_43242251 P 41192386

- Parent Bank

2008 2007

2608 2007

Less than one year P 42,996,125 P 38814367

P 34,809,489 P 31053790

One to five years 6,425,455 12,920,192 6,425;455 8,080,449
Beyond five years 2,014,058 2,748,690 2.0072.307 2,058,147

Bills payable bear annual intetest rates of 0.6% to 12% in 2008 and 3.6% to 12.2% in
2007. Certain bills payable to local banks and the BSP ate collateralized by certain

receivables from customers.
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The following comprise the interest expense on bills payable in the income statements
(see Note 21): '

. Qﬂ}up Parent Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007
Deposit substitutes . P 889822 P 430,913 P 661,193 P 429,991
Foreign banks : 558,503 213,015 485,236 213,015
Senior notes 290,127 637485 290,127 637,485
Loca! banks 288,808 400,103 208,012 383,527
BSP C . 271,123 27,785 69,546 27,785
PDIC. : 175,253 174,774 175,253 174,774
SMPHL 145,738 164,842 145,735 164;842
Amortization on deferred charges : 9,106 . 30,883 © 9,106 39,88%
. 1,332 -

Others . — 1,332
- P 2620809 P 2088800 P P2,045540 B 2071302

Senior Notes

On November 23, 2004, the Board of Directors approved the issuance of senior bonds.
Relative to this, on February 18, 2005 the Parent Bank issued US$100 million,

6.5% senior notes due in 2008 {the “Senior Note”), The issuance of the bonds under
the terms approved by the Boatd of Disectots was approved by the BSP on

January 31, 2005. Among the significant terms and conditions of the issuance of the
senior notes ate

(a) Issue price at 99.3% of the pincipal amount;

(5) The senior notes bear interest at the rate of 6.5% per annum from and including
February 18, 2005 to but excluding February 19, 2008. Interest will be payable
semi-annually in arrears on February 19 and August 19 of each year, commencing
August 19, 2005, except that the first payment of imterest will be in respect of the
period from and including February 18, 2005 but excluding August 19, 2005;

(;) 'The senior notes will constitute direct, seniot, unconditional, and unsecured
obligations of the Bank and claims in tespect of the notes shall at all times rank paré
passu and without any preference among themselves, The payment obligations of
the Bank under the senior notes shall at all times rank at least equally with all other
present and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Parent Bank,

including liabilities in respect of deposits;

(d) The Bank may redeem the senior notes in whole but not in part at redemption ptice
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Senior Notes together with accrued
and unpaid interest to the date fixed for redemption upon the occurrence of certain
changes affecting taxation in the Philippines, as more particularly specified in the
covering offering circular; and,

‘(2) 'The 2008 seniox notes are not guaranteed or insured by the PDIC and are not
deposit habilities of the Parent Bank. '

On February 15, 2008, the GGroup settled in foll the oyTER BT rouat
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On October 16, 2003, the Group listed 6.5% US$150,000 senior notes in the Singapore
Stock Exchange with matuzity on October 16, 2008. The net proceeds from the
issuance of the senior notes amounted to US$146,621 or about P8,890,000. Interest
expense incutred by the Group on these seniot notes amounted to P290,127.in 2008,
P637,485 in 2007 and P478,088 in 2006 (shown as part of Interest Expense on Bills
Payable and Others under Interest Expense account in the income statement). On
October 16, 2006, $35,740 worth of senfor notes was redeemed by various noteholders.
The Group settled in full the outstanding senior notes of P5,536,091 on

October 15, 2008 inclusive of accrued interest of P160,158. -

SMPHI (Preferred Shares)

As required under PAS 32, Financial Instraments: Disclosures and Presentation, the Group
recognized as financial liability 25,000,000 shates of redeemable, cumulative and non-
participating preferred shates with 2 par value of P10 per share issued to SMPHI on
Octobet 18, 2004. The preferred shates were issued at US§2 per shate or an aggtegate
subsctiption price of US$50,000. The preferred shates entifle SMPHI to cumulative
dividends, payable in US dollars semi-annually in artears, equal to'6.5% of the issue
price per annum, The Group is also required to redeem the prefetred shares from
SMPHI at the oginal issue price five years from the date of issue. As required by BSP,
the Bank set up a sinking fund on October 17, 2005 for the redemption of the
Pxefe::ted shares. The balance of the sinking fund as of December 31, 2008 and 2007
amounted to P2,109,709 and P1,357,083, respectively, and is invested in debt securities,
shown as part of HTM investments (see Note 9.3). Dividends in arrears (recognized as
interest expense) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to P31,317 and P94,285,
tespectively, computed using the exchange rate at year end and are presented as part of
Bills Payable account in the statements of condition.

SUBORDINATED NOTES PAYABLE

The components of this account are shown below:

_Group Parent Bank

2008 2007 2008 0 ..2007
Unsecured subordinated notes
— P20 hillion . P 20145977 P 10073782 P 20,145,977 P 10,073,782
Unsecured subordinated notes
— 1J5%$200 million = BBSTSIC - 8:557.516

P 20145977 P__ 18631206 B 2045077 L 18631298

Total interest expense ofl subordinated notes payable amounted to P1,687,131,
P970,586 and P276,523 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, both in the Group and

Parent Bank financial statements (see Note 21).

LT- DOCUMENT FhOY ,,
AL'TV ASSURANTF gﬁ%&: 1

’ APR | ;Eéuﬂp
Ium;x:{w il

BURF AU OF INTERNAL REvr




P20 Billion Unsecured Subordinated Notes

On November 21, 2007, the Group issued P10 billion unsecured subordinated notes
eligible as Lower Tier 2 Capital due on 2017, callable with step-up in 2012 (the “notes”)

- pursuant to the authority granted by the BSP to the Group on October 8, 2007 and BSP
Circular No. 280 Series of 2001, as amended. The issuance was approved by the Board
of Directors, in its special meeting held on June 1, 2007. '

" On May 20, 2008, the Group issued anothet tranche of P10 billion unsecured
subordinated notes eligible as Lower Tier 2 Capital due on 2018, callable with step-up i
2013 pursuant to the authority granted by the BSP to the Group on Apdl 3, 2008 and
BSP Circular No. 280 Series of 2001, as amended. This issuance was approved by the
Board of Directots, in its special meeting held on February 23, 2008. '

The Notes represent direct, unconditional unsecured and subordinated peso-
denominated obligations of the Group, issued in accordance with the Terms and
Conditions under the Master Note. ‘The Notes, like other subordinated indebtedness of
the Group, ate subordinated to the claims of depositors and ordinary creditors, are not
2 deposit, and are not guaranteed nor insured by the Group ot any party related to the
Group, such as its subsidiaries and affiliates, ot the PDIC, ot any other persbn. The
Notes shall not be used as collateral for any loan made by the Group or any of its
subsidiaries or affiliates. The Notes carty interest rates based on prevailing market rates,
with a step-up provision if not called on the fifth year from issue date. The Group has
the option to call the Notes on the fifth year, subject to prior notice to Noteholders.
The Notes will be used further to expand BDO Unibank’s consumer loan portfolio and
to refinance its existing issue of Lower Tier 2 debt. The Notes will also increase-and
strengthen BDO Uanibank’s capital base, in anticipation of continued growth in the

coming years.

As of December 31, 2008, the outstanding balance of the Notes amounted to
P20,145,977. - ‘ ‘

LI58200 MHII’&H Unsecured Subordinated Nores'

On October 15, 2002, the Board of Directors of former FPCIB approved the raising of.
Lower Tier 2 capital through the issuance in the international capital market of
subordinated bonds maturing in ten years but with a call aption exercisable after five
years subject to the provisions of BSP Circular No. 280. The bonds bear a coupon rate

of 9.4% per annum with provision for step-up after five years.

The issuance of the foregoing subordinated notes under the terms approved by the
Boatd of Directors was approved by the BSP under MB Resolution No. 1660 dated
November 12, 2002, as amended by MB Resolution No. 753 dated May 29, 2003,
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Relative to this, on May 16, 2003 and June 5, 2003, the former EPCIB issued US$L30
million and US$70 million, respectively, 9.4% subordinated notes due 2013, Among the
significant termns and conditions of the issuance of the subordinated notes ate:

(@) Issue price at 98.7% and 101.5% of their principal amount;

(b) The subordinated notes bear interest at the rate of 9.4% per annum from and
including May 23, 2003 to but excluding July 1, 2008. Unless the call option is
exercised, the interest rate from and including July 1, 2008 to but excluding July 1,
2013 will be reset at the US Treasury rate plus 10.8% per annum. Interest will be
payable semi-annually in arreats on January 1 and July 1 of cach year, commencing
Tuly 1, 2003; ' '

{:) The subotdinated notes will constitute direct, unconditional, unsecured and _
subordinated obligations of the Parent Bank and will at all times tank par? pasin and
without any preference among themselves but in priority to the rights and claims of

_ holders of all classes of equity securities of the Parent Bank including holders of

. preference shares (if any);

(4) The Group may redeem the subordinated notes in whole but niot in part at
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the subordinated notes
together with accrued and unpaid interest on July 1, 2008, subject to the pdor
consent of the BSP and the compliance by the Group with the prevailing
requirements fot. the granting by the BSP of its consent thereof;

fe) Each noteholder by accepting a 2013 subotdinated note will irrevocably agree and ‘

" acknowledge that: (i) it may not exercise or claim any right of set-off in respect of
any amount owed to it by the Group adsing under or in connection with the
subordinated notes; and, (i) it shall, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law,
waive and be deemed to have waived all such rights of set-off; and,

() The subordinated notes are not deposits of the Group and are not guaranteed or
insured by the Group or any party related to the Group ot the PDIC and they may
not be used as collateral for any loan made by the Group orany of its subsidiaries
or affiliates. Also, the subordinated notes may not be redeemed at the option of the

noteholders.

On June 30, 2008, the Group settled the outstanding balance of the notes amounting to
9,160,156, inclusive of interest expense of P410,156. .
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18.

International Finance Cotporation (IFC)

On June 27, 2002, the Group enteted into a US$20,000 convertible loan agreement with

IFC. IFC has the option to convert 2 portion of the loan into coinmon shares of the

Group commencing two years after the date of the agreement for P16.70 per share.
Total proceeds of the loan amounted to P1,111,720. In compHance with PAS 32,
Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Prosentation and PAS 39, Financial Instruments. Recognition
and Measurement, the Group sepatated the equity component of the conversion option
and unsecured loan with IEC. The Joan bears interest at a rate of 5.4% per annum and
will mature in 2008, ‘ '

Upon apptoval by the Board of Directors on F ebroary 11, 2005, the Group converted
17S$10,000 convertible loan from [FC, qualified as Tier 2 capital, and issued 31,403,592
common shares of the Group based on the conversion price of P16.70 per share and
exchange tate of P52.44 to a dollaz. ‘The BSP subsequently approved the convetsion on
May 3, 2005. ' S '

" On Apil 18, 2007, the Group received notice of exercise from IFC to convert the |

remaining US$10,000 of its convertible loan to BDO Unibank, which convetsion the
BSP approved in a letter to the Group dated July 17, 2007 Subsequently, the Board of
Directors, in its special meetirig dated july'26,‘2007, approved the conversion of the
remaining 1$$10,000 of the convertible loan from IFC, qualified as Tier 2 capital..
Thereafter, on August 23, 2007, the Group issued to IFC 31,4013,592 common shares
based on the pre-agreed conversion ptice of P16.70 per share and exchange rate of

P5244 to a dollar.

OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities consist of the following:

Group ParentBank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Bills purchased-contra : P 13,389,109 P 16564232 P 13,389,109 P 16,597,974
Accounts payable 3,979,268 4,332,326 3,776,826 4,078,468
Detivative lishilites 3,874,305 3,844,030 ' 2,694,846 3,211,054
Manager’s checks 3,381,536 4,167,663 3,370,886 4,139,022
Accrued taxes, licenses and other expenses 2,280,700 2,065,258 2,103,269 1,828,695
Qutstanding scceptances payable 1,308,064 1,697,054 1,308,064 1,697,054
Capitalized interest and other charges 809,116 192,675 891,927 192,675
Due to BSP and Treasurer of the Philippines 792,185 566,051 ‘781,365 555,270
" Withiholding taxes payable 689,708 289154 642,466 274,434
Income tax payable 182,511 . 206,424 40,688 : 46,522
Orthers §.536.171 6,444,534 3,011,372 4,300,073

P_35922673 P__40369401 E..32010.818 P 30921241
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19.

EQUITY
19.1 Capital Management and Regulatory Capital

The Group’s lead regulator, the BSP, sets and monitors capital fequi.tements for the
Group. In implementing current capital requirements, the BSP requites the Group to
maintain a prescribed ratio of qualifying capital to risk-weighted assets. ‘

Under current banking regulations, the combined capital accounts of each bank should
not be less than an amount equal to ten percent of its risk assets. The qualifying capital
of the Group for purposes of determining the capital-to-tisk assets tafio is total equity
excluding: ‘ :

(a} Unbooked valuation reserves and other capital adjustments as may be required by
the BSP; : E
{6} Total outstanding unsecured credit accommodations to directors, officers,
. stockholders and related interests (DOSRI);
(¢} Deferred tax asset or liability;
(@ Goodwill; .
(¢) Sinking fund for redemption of redeemable preferred shares; and,
{f Other regulatory deductions. '

Risk assets consist of total assets after exclusion of cash on hand, due from BSP, loans
covered by hold-out on ot assignment of deposits, loans ot acceptances under letters of

 credit to the extent covered by margin deposits, and other non-risk items as determined

by the MB of the BSP.

The amount of surplus funds available for dividend declaration is determined also on
the basis of regulatory net worth after considering certain adjustments.

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base as to maintain investor, creditor

and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The impact

of the level of capital on shareholdet’s return is also recognized and the Group
recognizes the need to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be
possible with greater gearing and the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position. & :

The Group’s regulatory capital is analyzed into two tiets, which are Tjer 1 Capital plus
Tier 2 Capital less deductions from the total of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital for the
following: :

(a) Investments in equity of unconsolidated subsidiaty banks and other financial allied
undertakings; but excluding insurance companies;

(3) Investments in debt capital instruments of unconsolidated subsidiary banks;

() Investments in equity of subsidiary insurance companies and non-financial allied
undertakings;

(d) Reciprocal investments in equity of other banks/enterptses; and,
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(¢) Reciprocal investments in unsecured subordinated term debt instruments of other
banks/quasi-banks qualifying as Hybd Tier 1, Upper Tier 2 and Lower Tier 2, in
excess of the lower of: (i} an aggregate ceiling of 5% of total Tier 1 capital of the
bank excluding Hybrid Tier 1; oz, (i) 10% of the total outstanding unsecured
subordinated term debt issuance of the other bank/quasi-banks.

Provided that any asset deducted from the qualifying capital in computing tile
numerator of the risk-based capital ratio shall not be included in the dsk-weighted
assets in computing the denominator of the ratio.

As of the dates of the statements of condition, the Group has complied with the
‘requirement on the ratio of combined capital accounts against the risk assets.

Under an existing BSP circular, expanded commereial banks are required fp comply
with the minimum capital requitement of P4,950,000. As of the dates of the statements
of condition, the Group has complied with the above capitalization requirement.

_ Thete have been no material changes in the Group’s management of capital during the.
period. '

19.2 Capitaf Allocation

The allocation of capital between specific operations and activities is, to a2 large extent
driven by optimization of the return achieved on the capital allocated. The amount of
capital allocated to each operation of activity is based primarily upon the regulatory
capital, but in some cases the regulatory requirements do not zeflect fully the varying
degree of risk associated with different activities. In such cases the capital zequirements
may be flexed to reflect differing risk profiles subject to the overall level of capital to
suppott a particular operation or activity not falling below the minimum required for
regulatoty putposes. The process of allocating capital to specific operations and
activities is undertaken independeatly of those responsible of the operation and is
subject to teview by the ALCO. ’

Although maximization of the return on tisk-adjusted capital is the principal basis used
in determining how capital is allocated within the Group to particular operations ot
activities, it is not the sole basis used for decision making. Account also is taken of
synergies with other opetations and activities, the availability of management and other
resources and the fit of the activity with the Group’s longer term steategic objectives.
The Group’s policies in respect of capital management and allocation are reviewed

regulady by its Board of Directors.
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'19.3 Capital Stock

Capital stock consists of the following:

Nupmber of Shares

2008 2007 2006
Common shares — P10 par value .
Authorized — 5,500,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding — 2,302,032,661 shares )
in 2008 and 2007; and 2,270,629,069 shares in 2006 : .
Balance at beginning of yea: 2,302,032,661  2,270,629,069 939,503,142
Issued during the year = 31403592 1331036927

2302032661 _2.302032661 _2.270.630.069

Preferred shares — P10 par value
Authotized — 1,000,000,000 shares
Issucd and outstanding - 500,000,000 shares

in 2008; none in 2007 and 2006 500,000,000 . :
Amount
2008 2007 2006
Common shares — P10 par value
Authorized — 5,500,000,000 shares
Tssued and outstanding — 2,302,032,661 shares
in 2008 and 2007; and 2,270,629,069 shates in 2006
Balance at beglaning of year P 23,020,327 P 22706290 P 9,395,930
Issued duting the year - 314,037 13,310,360
23,020,327 23,020,327 22,706,200

Preferted shares - P10 par value
Authorzed — 1,000,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding — 500,000,000 shares

in 2008; rone in 2007 and 2006 — 5000000 -
P_2020.327 P 23020307 P 22706290

On August 30, 2008, the Board of Ditectots apptoved the issuance of up to’
500,000,000 perpetual, voting, non-cumulative, convertible, fion-participating,
peso-denominated Series A preferred shares qualifying as Tier 1 capital of the Group.
The conversion right is at the option of the holder after three years from the issue

date ot at the option of the Group at any time after issue date upon the occurrence.of
certain trgger events such as: (7) a change in ‘tax status of the preferred shares; or,

(¢7) the preferred shares do not qualify as Tier 1 capital of the Group 2s determined by
the BSP or other applicable laws and regulations. Dividend rateis at 6.5% pet annum
of the par value. Subsequently, on September 30, 2008, the Bank issued 500,000,000
preferred shates at P10 per share or a total value of P5,000,000. _
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19.:4 Increase in Authortized Capital Stock.

On November 6, 2006 and December 27, 2006, the Board of Directors and
stockholders, respectively, approved the increase in the Group’s authorized capital stock.
from P15,000,000 divided into 1,015,000,000 common shares with a par value of
P10 per share and 485,000,000 preferred shares with a par value of P10 per shate to
P65,000,000 divided into 5,500,000,000 common shates with a parvalue of P10 per
_share and 1,000,000,000 preferred shares with a par value of P10 pert share, subject to
the approval of the BSP and the SEC. The increase in the Group’s authorized capital
stock was filed with the BSP and SEC on January 8, 2007. Subsequently, this was
approved by the BSP and the SEC on Match 29, 2007 and May 25, 2007, respectively.

As indicated in Note 2.13, mandatory redeemable preferred shares are classified as-
financial liabilities as part of bills payable. '

19.5 Issuance of Global Depositaty Receipts by Primebridge.

On various dates in 2006, Primebridge Holdings, Inc. (“Primebridge™), a stockholder
owning 22.1% of the Group’s total cutstanding shares as of December 31, 2005,
offered and sold in aggregate 9,399,700 global depositary receipts (GDRs) with each
GDR representing 20 shares of the Group’s commeon stock.

The GDRs constitute an offering in the United States only to qualified institutional
buyers in reliance on Rule 144A under the US Securities Act of 1993 (the “Securities
Act”) and an offering outside the United States in reliancé on Regulation under the
Securities Act. The offered price for each GDR was US$12.70 on January 25, 2006 and -
February 14, 2006; and US§14.55 on May 15, 2006. The GDRs are listed and are bein

traded at the London Stock Exchange. -

As part of the offering, Primebridge, while remaining as the registered holder of the -
Group shates undetlying the GDRs, transferred all rights and interests in the Baok’s
shates underlying the GDRs to the depository on behalf of the holders of the GDRs
and the latter are entitled to receive dividends paid on the shares. However, GDR
holders have no voting rights or other direct rights of a shareholder with respect to the

Group’s shares.

As of December 31, 2006, 4,724,214 GDRs issued, covering shares originally held by
Primebridge, wete converted into 94,484,280 shares of the Group. As of
December 31, 2008, 1,246,375 GDRs equivalent to 24,927,500 shares of the Bank

" remained unconverted.
19.6- Surplus Free

On April 30, 2008 and July 26, 2007, the Board of Directots approved the declaration
of cash dividends amounting to P0.80 per common shate or a total of 1,841,626 and
P1,841,626, respectively, payable to stockholders of record as of August 18, 2008 and.
March 11, 2008, respectively. The cash dividends were approved by the BSP on

July 18, 2008 and February 14, 2008, respectively, and wete paid by the Bank on
September 11, 2008 and April 8, 2008, respectively.

LT -ROCIUMERT FROCT SN |,
QUALITY ASSURs \*  HVISION i :
|

ﬁ! APRHIZW?

¥ [
r'"l’ ‘mi l@,_;f 5 ;':4 j‘x

N

ey



On May 6, 2006, the Board of Directors approved the declaration of cash dividend
amounting to P0.80 per share or a total of P769,618 payable to stockholders of
record as of January 22, 2007. The cash dividend was approved by the BSP on
December 28, 2006 and was paid on Febma:y 8, 2007. ,

Dividends also include the portion of interest expense paid by the Group to IFC
attributable to the eqmty component (see Note 17). Total amount of dividends
allocated to the equity component amounted to P430 in 2007.

20. INTEREST INCOME

Interestincome consists of the following:

Loans and other receivables
Investment and trading secutities
Due from other banks

Others

Loans and othet teceivables

" Investment and trading securities
Due from othet banks
Othets

21, INTEREST EXPENSE

" Deposit liabilities
Bills payable 20d othet Labilities

Deposit ligbilities
Bills payable and other linbilities

L,M

GEOQE
MNotes ____2008 2007 2006
10 P 27036524 P 21414488 P .12,508324
9 11,136,264 11,743,428 10,563,883
7.8 2,619,912 2,338,609 570,841
664,777 2,106,781 566,008
P__42,359.477 P 37603306 P_. 24200146
Parent Bank,
2008 2007 2006
10 P 26,862,430 P 20639394 P 12,181,558
9 9,800,369 10,572;420 9.163.739
7,8 2,505,727 2,132,055 471683 -
564,179 1,801 247 595,039
P..39732,705 P 35235116 P 22342019
Group
Notes 2008 2007 - 2006
15 P 14996649 P 12374722 P 9,862,104,
16, 18 4,326,431 3,793,852 3,272,024
Parent Bank
2008 2007 _ 2006
15 P 14300864 P 11809057 P 9,577,969
16, 18 ; 3,169.001 2550874
P 14978058 P 12128843
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22,

Service charges, fees and commissions
Foteign exchange gain — net

Trading gain (loss) — net

Trust fees

Rental income

Iacome from assets acquired
Dividend income

Miscellanecus - net

Service charges, fees and commissions
Foreign exchange gaio — net

Trading pain (loss) —~ fet

Trust fees

Dividend income

Miscellancous - net

Employee benefits

Occupancy

‘Taxes and licenses

Security, cletical, messengerial and jasitorial
Advertising

Insurance

Documentary stamp tax used

Repairs and maintenance

‘ Travelling

Miscellanedus

OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

Other operating income is composed of the following:

Other operating expenises consist of the following:

Group

Noges 2008 2007 2006
P 749158 P BTIB060 P 3,196,685
4,605,738 798,441 316,541
9  2,868,347) 3,854,605 3,346,213
26 1,152,530 852,468 600,246
12 180,867 259,717 38,057
103,173 380,724 252,066
13 . 57,526 53,840 355,654
o 3.080,596 1,880,024 171,200
P__ 13731241 P__16858779 P B277.542

Parent Bank

2008 2007 2006
P 6200343 P 6841,203 P 2,117,089
4,168,222 . 628,674 - 204,798
9 2,710,516) - 3,634,182 3,068,423
26 1,093,848 806,135 600,246,
13 132,499 2,426,086 360,373
2,926.162 2,622,000 441,697
P__11,310558 P_16758280 P __ 6821621

Group

Notes 2008 2007 2006
93 P 10,095967 P 8362962 P 3,957,072
31 3,501,404 3,392,853 1,639,742
© 2,587,118 2,646,252 1,335,138
1,599,047 1,108,813 529,234
1,074,347 784,178 500,308
1,044,335 997,096 381,773
785,998 50,528 429,968
783,306 826,019 353,961
604,803 381,174 196,524
13 5,776,718 5610536 _ 2756511
P_27.831,043 P 24760411 P_.12070.651
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Employee benefits

Occupancy

Taxes and licenses
 Security, clerical, messengerial and janitorial
Advertising

Insurance

Repairs and maintenanee
Documentary stamp tax used
Travelling

Reptesentation and entertainment
Power, light and water
Miscellanecus

23. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Parent Bank

Expenses recognized for employee benefits are presented below:

Salaries and wages

Bonuses

Retirement — defined benefit plan
Social secutity costs .
Other benefits

Salaries and wages

Bonuses .
Retirement — defined benefit plan
Social securdty costs

Other benefits

Noteg, .__..2008 2007 2006
23 P 9378235 P TS9L759 P 3,553,057
21 . 3,157,407 3,069,862 1,494,159
2,327,262 2,378,720 1,131,538
1,570,082 1,058,646 515,436
1,027,720 640,799 260,956
1,009,668 989,481 481,146
775,080 779,193 328,273
766,846 576,572 428,504
' 552',1'?0 336,464 172,277
534,224 612,613 256,826
. 515,963 487,040 213,741 -
4277076 4386917 1,931,917
P__25,892,433 I .22 908,066 P___iD 7%&;&

Group

2008 2007 2006
P 6,193,994 P 4,879,140 P 2,395,214
1,684,665 1,315,152 633,967
946,890 778,546 426,114
284,223 220,821 104,494
986,195 1,160,303 397,303
P__10095967 P___8362962 P 395709

P;ugn:-ﬁan‘k

2008 2007 2006
P E6RI28 P 4360314 P 2142395
1,582,563 1,236,526 611,775
899,620 708,613 391,130
265,605 213,086 47,089
947,149 1073220 309,759
7501759 P__ 3553057

P 9378235 E

The Group maintains a tax-qualified noncontributory retirement plan that is being
administered by the Bank’s trust department covering all regular full-time employees.

The amounts of retirement benefit asset recognized are determined as follows:

* Present value of the obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Deficiency of plan assets
Unrecognized actuerial losses
Unrecognized net transition obligation

‘Retitement benefit asset

T Al
2008 2007 2008 2007
(P 7,085,620) (P 6283268) (P 6,683,632) (P 5896:563)
3,459,870 2,988,860 ; 690,2(
( 3625750) {  3204408)(  3406,672) ( 3,206360)
3,778,348 3,627,117 3,603,468 3,552,697
¢ 138820y (- 277.640) ( 138,820) ( 277.640)
P 13,778 B 55,062 P 52,976 P (8,697
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"The movements in the present value of the retirement benefit obhganon recognized in
the books follows:

Group ) Parent Bank I
2008 2007, 2008 2007
Balance at beginning of year P 6,283,268 P 4567463 P 5,896,563 P 4,231,442
‘Cutrent setvice cost and intefest cost © De7,398 797,186 907,418 710,517
Actuaal Josses 161,639 1,134,704 172,300 1,158,008
Benefits paid by the plan ( 326,688) {___ 216085) ( 202,649) (_  203.404)
Balance at end of year P__ 7,085,620 P 62R306R P 6,683,632 P 5890563

The movement in fair value of plan assets is presented below:

Groop, Paren ]
2008 2007 2008 2007
Balance at beginning of year P 2988860 P 2,388,333 P 2,690,203 P 2,078,788
Conttibutions paid'into the plzn 95,599 706,333 888,895 679,885
Benefits paid by the plan ( 326,685) 216,085} ( 292,649) ( 203,404)
Actuarial losses - q 356,522) 100,002) (. 241,939) ( 60;657)
Expected retutn on plan assets 248618 219,301 232,446 95,591
Balance at end of yes P__ 3459870 P 2088860 P 3206960 P 2690203

Actual return on plan assets were P969,220 and P422,573 and P76,559 and P61,971 in
2008 and in 2007 in the Group and the Patent Bank financial statements, respectively.

The amounts of retirement benefits reconged in f.hc income statements are as follows:

Group
2008 2007 2006
Current setvice costs r 454,698 P 445982 P 206,556
Intetest costs 512,700 . 347,204 263,260
Expected tetutn on plan assets ( 248,334) ( 219,301) ( 187025
Net actuatial losses recognized 89,006 200,270 4,503
Net transition obligation (asset} recognized 138,828 8.609) 138.820

P 946,800 P 7IB846 B 426,114

— 2008 __ 2007 2006,
Current service costs P 419,801 P 392387 P 177,708
Interest costs 487,617 313,193 235,722
Expected retutn on plan assets ( 232,446) { 192,807} ( 161,203}
Net actuarial gain recognized. 85,828 214,157 92
Net transition obligadion (asset) fecognized 138820 (. 8,609) 138,820

P 899,620 P 718321 P 391,139
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24,

The movements in the retirement benefit asset recognized in the books follow:

Group Parepr Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Balance at beginning of year P 85,069 P 127,282 P 68,697 P 107,133
Expense recognized ( 946,890) ( 778,546) ( 899,620) ( 718,321y
Contributions paid 905,539 706,333 888,599 (79,885
Balance at end of yeat P 13778 P 55065 PB_. 51976 P 68,697

As at December 31, 2008, the Group’s plan assets wete composed of 77.7% placements
in debt instruments, 10.5% loans and other receivables, 6.7% deposits in other banks,
and 5.1% other propertes, and the Parent Bank’s plan assets were composed of 77.5%
placements in debt instruments, 11.0% loans and other receivables, 6.8% deposit in
other banks, and 4.7% other properties, -

For determination of the retirement benefits, the following actuarial assumptions were
used:

Groyp Parent Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007
Discount rates 8.1% - 11.4% 8.3% 8.4% 8.4%
Expected zate of return on plan assets C7.0% - 10.0% B1% 10.0% 2%
Expected rate of salary increases 8.0% - 10.0% 93% 8.0% 10%

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary coutse of business, the Group has loans, deposits and other transactions
with its related parties and with certain DOSRIL ‘

(a) Loans to Related Paities

Under existing policies of the Group, these loans are made on substantially the
same terms as loans granted to other individuals and businesses of comparable
sisks. The General Banking Act and BSP regulations limit the amount of the loans
oranted by a Group to a single borrower to 25% of equity. The amount of
individual loans to DOSRY, of which 70% must be secuted, should not exceed the
amount of the deposit and bool value of their investment in the Group. In the
aggregate, loans to DOSRI generally should not exceed the total equity or 15% of
the total loan portfolio of the Group, whichever is lowet.
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The following additional information relates to tthOSRi loans:

Group.___ Pagent Bank :
2008 2007 2008 2007

"T'otal DOSRI loans : P 30,845,011 P 12404587 P 30,845,01 P 12,383,881
Unsecuted DOSRI loans : P - P 5729 P - P 3837
Past due DOSRI Joans P - P 4437 P - P 4437
&, of DOSRI loans to total

loan portfolio 7.9% ~4.2% 8.0% T 4%
¢4 of unsecured DNOSRI leans to

tota] DOSRI loans ‘ 0.0% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0%
% of past due DOSRI loans to ' o

total DOSRI loans 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%:

DOSRI loans bear interest rates of 0% to 11% per annum in 2008, 4.5% to 9.8%
per annum in 2007, and 5.5% to 18.2% per annum in 2006 both in the Group and
Parent Bank financial statemnents. ’ :

(5) Deposits from Related Parties

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, total deposits made by the zelated parties to the
Group amounted to P230,930,587 and P107,079,533, respectively. The related
interest expense from deposits amounted to P6,381, P2,346 and P9,909 in 2008,
2007 and 2006,_respecti{re1y. .

(¢) Other Transactions with Related Parties

A sutnmary of other transactions of the Parent Bank with subsidiaries and
associates is shown below: '

" (&) Income 1o the Parent Bank

i EBC Management, Inc. engaged the Parent Bank on August 29, 2005 to
provide support services in connection with its general and .
administrative operations. The Parent Bank charges EBC Management,
Inc. a setvice fee equivalent to P50 per quarter excluding actual costs
and expenditures. The service fee shall. contine to be in force unless
terminated through written notice by either party at least 60 days prior
to the intended date of termination.

i,  ESHC engaged the Parent Bank to provide support services, such as
‘human resoutce, audit, comptrollership, central adininistration and legal-
services in copnection with its general and administrative operations.
The Parent Bank charges ESHC P50 per quarter or P200 annually. The
service fee shall continue to be in force unless terminated through
written notice by either party at least 60 days priot to intended date of

termination.

On Japuary 1, 2006, ESHC engaged BDO Technology to provide such
services as systems development and maintenance, computer operations,
technical support and networlk servi i f} P500 annually
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iv.

'EBCII engaged the Parent Bank to provide various support such

as human resources management, audif, preparation and issuance

of checks for and in behalf of EBCI!, documentation and
safekeeping/custodianship of securities and collateral documents,
accounting functions and review of financial statements for EBCII. The
Parent Bank chatges EBCII a service fee equivalent to P11 per month-
excluding actual costs and expenditures. The agreement is renewable
every yeat. In 2008 and 2007, total service fees amounted to P132 for
each year. ‘

Strategic Property Holdings, Inc. (SPHI) engaged the Parent Bask to
provide support services in connection with its general and
administrative operations. SPHI pays the Patent Bank an anqual service
fee equivalent to P360. The setvice agreeent shall continue to be in
force unless terminated by cither party through a written notice of cither
party at least 60 days priox to date intended for termination. SPHI also
leases its office space from the Patent Bank at P1,560 per year.

Generali has an existing Investment Mapagement Agreement with the
Group. For services rendered, Generali shall pay the Group
management fees equivalent to 0.25% of managed funds and 0.10% of
directed investments and custodianship which shall be based on the
average daily balance of the fund type and shall be deducted quarterly
from the fund. : ‘

There ate no outstanding balances atising from these transactions as of
Decetber 31, 2008 and 2007,

(i) Expenses of the Parent Bank

i

iv.

On May 30, 2007, ECN entered into a service agreement with BDO
Unibank. Under this agreement, ECN agteed to provide martketing,
central operations, systems credit and collection support and finance
services to BDO Unibank in connection with the operations of the
credit card business. This agreement is pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the MOA where ECN agreed to sell its rights, interests
and obligations on its receivables and liabilities to BDO Unibank.

BDO Technology renders technical services and/or management
consultation to the Parent Bank and affiliates at substantially the same
terms as transactions with third parties. In 2008 and 2007, total amount
of transactions were P21,787 and P24,015, respectively. - '

The Group leases from related parties space for its branch operations.
For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, total rent
expense paid to related parties amounted to P259,358, P298,104, and

P186,685, respectively, and is included as part of Occupancy account in

the income statements.

Service fees of Propetty Care, Inc. from propetty management are billed
to the Parent Bank un‘d‘er a service ot Sﬁﬂe‘!ﬁwﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ'% 4
comparable to terms with other indif —ﬂéﬂsﬁj e
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(it3) Others

The Parent Bank has cost sharing agreement with its certain subsidiaries as

follows:

i BDO Capital has a service agreement with BDO Unibank whereby
BDO Unibank shall provide BDO Capital with varous support services
consisting of the following: ' o

3!‘

R

Traditional bank transaction processing functions;

Preparation and maintenance of the BDO Capital’s books of
accounts; o

Generation of tequired external regulatory reports and internal

. management information;

General and petiodic examination of the books of the BDO
Capital’s accounts;

Advertising and matketing services;

Information technology support services;

Recruitment and selection of personnel;

Preparation of payroll and benefit administration; and,
Other administrative and general services.

ii.  On January 31, 2008, BDO Securities entered into a setvice agreement
with BDO Unijbank. Under this agreement, BDO Unibank shall
provide various support services such as general accounting, internal
audit, human resources management, advertising and marketing services,
information technology systems/processing, legal support and
administrative and general services.

Outstanding balances arising from these transactions as of December 31, 2008
and 2007 amounted to P40,773 and 23,531, respectively.

(i) The salaries and other compensatioﬁ given to the Group’s key management

‘personne] follow:

Group
2008 2007 2006
Salaries and wages P 431,296 P 407,729 P 190,850
Bonuses 208,277 166,916 §1,203
Social security costs 173 184 50
Other benefits 32,474 17,360 8,211
p___&78200 P 592180 P 280,414
_Parent Bank
T ap08 2007 2006
Salaties and wages P 269,787 P 274,338 P 123,176
Bosuses 134,993 116,657 53,003
Social secutity costs 58 21 2|
QOthet benefits N o 6033

f)'U;\f:i'i: £.30%
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TRUST OPERATIONS

“The following securities and other propetties held by the Group in fiduciaty ot agency
capacity (for a fee) for its customers ate not included in the accompanying Group '
statements of condition since these are not propetties of the Group (see Note 31).

Group. Parent Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Investments ‘ P 188,553,666 P 183694477 P 188,563,666 P 182,114,671
Others 149,619,805 90413728 __122,488.425 73384654
P_33R173471 2. 274108205 P 311042091 P 235400337

In compliance with the requirements of the Genetal Banking Act relative to the Bank's
trust functions: . '

 (a) Investment in government sccurties (shown as part of Held-to-maturity
Investments) with a total face value of P3,057,001, as of December 31, 2008 and
P2,263,079 as of Decembet 31, 2007 are deposited with BSP as security for the
Bank's faithful compliance with its fiduciary obligations (see Note 9); and,

(6) A certain percentage of the Bank's trust income is transferred to surplus resetve.
This yearly transfer is required until the surplus resetve for trust function is
" equivalent to 20% of the Bank’s authorized capital stock. Asof @
* December 31, 2008, the reserve for trust functions amounted to P626,746 and is
included as part of Sutplus Reserves in the Group statements of changes in

equity.

Income from trust operations is reported gross of the related expenses and amounted to
P11 52,530, P852,468, and PG00,246, for the year ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively, and shown as Trust Fees under Other Operating Income in the

Group income statements.

MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS
26,1 Merger with Equitable PCI Bank, Inc.

On August 29, 2006, BDO Unibank, together with SMIC, 2 major stockholder and
other members of the SM Group, filed 2 Tender Offer with the SEC to acquire up to
around 401.1 million shates representing 55.2% of the total outstanding shares of
- common stock of the then EPCIB at P92 per share. The payment terms of the offer
were as follows: 10% on Octobet 2, 2006; 10% on June 2, 2007; 10% on
February 2, 2008; and the remaining balance to be paid on October 2, 2008. On
Octoher 2, 2006, a total of 377.7 million shates equivalent to 52% of the EPCIB’s total
shares.outstanding wete putchased by SMIC fot a total consideration of P34.8 billion.
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Consequently, on November 6, 2006, the respective Board of Directors of BDO
Unibank and EPCIB approved a Plan of Metget of BDO Unibank and EPCIB

with BDO Unibank as the surviving entity. The Plan of Merger was subsequently
approved by BDO Unibank and EPCIB shateholders in separate meetings on
December 27, 2006. The Plan of Merger and Articles of Merger wete approved by the
BSP and the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on March 29, 2007 and

May 25, 2007, respectively, with May 31, 2007 as the effectivity date of the merger.

Since the merger is between two entities which are both under common control by
SMIC, the Group has decided to account for the merger under the pooling-of-interests
method of accounting. In applying the pooling-of-interests method, the financial
statement items of BDO Unibank and EPCIB were combined at the beginning of the
period in which the metger occurred, that is, Januaty 1, 2007. The comparative
financial data presented for 2006 have been restated to include the accounts of EPCIB
from October 2, 2006, the date the two metging entities became under common control
by SMIC.

Simultaneous and pursuant to the merget, BDO Unibank increased its authorized
capital stock from P15 billion to P65 billion to provide for the issuance of the BDO
Unibank common shates necessaty to effect the exchange ratio (see Note 19),

The use of the pooling-of-interests method requires the restatement of all comparative
financial data to be presented from the beginning of the earliest petiod presented, or
if later, the date the two merging entities became undet common control, which is
Octobet 2, 2006. BDO Unibank opted for the latter. Accordingly, the statement

of condition as of December 31, 2006 have been restated to include all the resoutces,
liabilities and equity accounts of both BDO Unibank and EPCIB as of

December 31, 2006, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash’
flow statement, for the year ended December 31, 2006 has been restated from the
previously reported amounts to include all profit and loss accounts, changes in equity
and cash flows of the former BDO Unibank for the whole yeat of 2006 and those of
the former EPCIB from October 2, 2006 (the date both BDO Unibank and EPCIB
became under common control by SMIC) to December 31, 2006.
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Proforma Incoine Sratements for 2006

Assuming BDO Unibank and EPCIB were already uader common control at the
beginning of 2006, instead of October 2, 2006, the proforma income statemetits for .
2006 for both Group and Parent Bank would be as presented below:

©_Income Statements for 2006
Group Par¢nt Bank
' Interest Income 7 b 4SS P 348N

‘Interest Expense. 19,641,370 18,056,735
Net Interest Income 19,297,116 16,781,194
Impairment Losses 5,108,218 5,078,539
Net Interest Income after Impairment Losses . 14,188,898 11,702,655
Other Operating Income 17,644,756 13,436,372
Other Operating Expenses . 22821789 _ 18224453
Income Before Tax A _ 9,011,865 _' 6,241,574
2,437,240 1.818,612

Tax Expense

P 6574625 B 4,395,962

Net Income

Attributable to:

Shatcholders of the Parent Baok P 6,393,472
Minordty Interest — 181153
B 6574625

The proforma income statements for 2006 do not represent what the results of
operations would have been for 2006 had the merger of the two entities actually taken
place at the beginning of 2006. The proforma income statements are being presented

solely for analytical purposes.

26.2 Mecger with Equitable Saviags Bank, Inc., BDO Elite 5a viags Bank, Inc.
and PCI Capital Corporation :

The respective Board of Directots of BDO Unibank, Equitable Savings Bank, Inc.
(ESB), BDO Elite Savings Bank, Inc. (BDO Elite) and PCI Capital Corporation

(PCI Capital) approved on Aptil 5, 2008, April 9, 2008, Apxil 30, 2008 and

April 30, 2008, respectively, the Plan of Merger and the Articles of Merger with BDO
Unibank as the surviving entity. :
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The Plan of Merger was approved by stockholders of BDO Unibank, ESB, BDO Elite
and PCI Capital on May 9, 2008, Apxl 30, 2008, May 2, 2008 and May 2, 2008,
respectively. The Plan of Merger and the Articles of Mezger were approved by the BSP
and the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC} on October 2, 2008 and

October 30, 2008, respectively, with October 30, 2008 as the effective date of the
merger. Undet the merger, the entire asscts of ESB, B Elite and PCI Capital with
carrying value of P14,790,479 and Liabilities with carrying value of P9,249,125 as of
October 30, 2008 were transferred to and absotbed by BDO Unibank. Since the .
merged entities were all formee subsidiades of BDO Unibank, the Group decided 1o
account for the merger under the pooling-of-interest method of accounting. The
fnancial statement items of BDO Unibank, ESB, BDO Elite and PCI Capital were
combined at the beginning of the period in which the merger occutred, that is,

January 1, 2008. The compatative financial data presented for 2007 and 2006 have been
restated to include the accounts of ESB and PCI Capital from October 2, 2006, the date
these entities becarne entities under common control (see Note 26.1).

26.3 BDO Elite Savings Bank, Inc.

© On August 17, 2007, the Parent Bank entered into a stock purchase agreement with
BDO Elite (formerly American Express Bank, Ltd) wherein the Parént Bank acquired
100% of the total issued capital stock of BDO Elite fot a consideration of P762,587.
The fair value of the net assets of BDO Elite as of the closing date amounted to
P677,087 (see Note 13). As such, the Bank recognized goodwill amounting to P85,500
representing excess of purchase price over the fair value of BDO Elite’s net assets. The
goodwill is included as part of Other Resources account in the Group statements of
condition (see Note 13). ‘The Parent Bank’s acquisition of BDO Elite was approved by
the BSP on October 30, 2007, In 2007, BDO Elite was merged with the Parent Bank

(see Note 26.2).
26.4 United Overseas Bank Philippines

On May 6, 2005, BDO Unibank, UOBP and United Overseas Bank Limited {UOBL)
signed a MOA whereby BDO acquired the 66 branches of UOBP {or a total cash
considetration of P600,000. As part of the MOA, BDO Unibank assumed the deposit .
Labilities of UOBP in consideration of an equivalent amount of related zssets of UOQBP, .
including cash payment in case the asscts would be lower than the assumed liabilities.
Also under the MOA, the P600,000 payment of BDQ Unibank will be used by UOBL
to subscribe for the Bank’s shates of comtnon stock valued at P26.75 per share, or
equivalent to 22,429,906 shares. On December 19, 2005, the transfer of the assets
including cash payment made by UOBP to fully offset the assumed Labilities by BDO
Unibank was carried out. The goodwill amounting to P600,000 is presented as patt of
Othet Resoutces in the statements of condition {see Note 13). The UOBP acquisition
was approved by the BSP on September 8, 2005 while the shares to be subscribed by
UOBL were subsequently issued in February 2006.
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27.

Also as part of the MOA, the Bank received financial assistance from PDIC amopunting
to P4,420,000 (see Note 16). The financial assistance, which 1s recorded as part of Bills
Payable in the statements of condition will mature on Decermber 19, 2012 and bears
annual interest rate of 3.90%. The related interest expense amounting to P175,253,
P174,774 and P174,774 i 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, is shown as part of
Intetest Expense in the income statements. As of June 30, 2007, the proceeds of the
financial assistance from PDIC are invested in government secutities 4s provided for in
the MOA. The Bank accounted for the financial assistance from PDIC under PAS 20,

Accounting for Government Grants, wherein the loan received is initially recorded at the
amount borrowed with no re-measutement to fair value or imputation of market

interest.

TAXES

27.1 Current and Deferred Taxes

The major components of tax expense for the years ended Decembet 31 are as follows:

Gro_uﬁ
2008 2007 2006
Income statements:
Cutrent tax expense: :
Regulat corporate income tax {RCIT} at 35% P 297,7Q8 P 277944 P 283,116
Minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) 2t 2% : 82,539 148,617 22,105
Final taxes at 20%, 15%, 10% and 7.5% 4,077,997 1,702,827 807,381
1,458,244 2,129,388 1,112,602
Deferred tax cxpense (income) relating to origination
and revetsal of tempotary differences (13,560} 717.235 157,724
Tax expense seported in the income statements . E.140668¢ P 284663 P 1270320
Stetements of changes in equity:
Deferred tax relating to fair valye gain on AFS financial assets P 2,358 P 187 P 3,724
Deferted tax relating to changes in revaluation increment 21,526 97 -
Tax income reported in the statements
of changes in equity P____238R4 D 284 P 3724
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Income statements:
Current tzx expense — MCIT at 2%
Final taxes at 20%, 15%, 10% and 7.5%

Deferred tax expense (income) telating to origination
and teversal of temporary differences
Tax expense reported in the income statements

Statemment of changes in equity:

Deferred tax telating to fair value gain on AFS fnapcial assets P

Deferred tax relating to changes in revaluation increment

"T'ax income teported in the statements of changes in equity

Parent Bank

2006

2008 2067
P 81,326 P 146721 P 161,842
983,485 1,388.714 730,768
1,064,811 1,535,435 92,610
( 106,452) 1,098 444 141,865
P___958 350 P 261379 P___1034475

4260 P - P -
21.526 N -
P 2578 P .- P -

The reconciliation of the tax on pretax incomne computed at the statutory tax rates to tax

expense is shown below:

Tax on pretax income at 35%
Adjustment for income subjected to lower income tax rates
Tax effects of:
NOLCO not tecognized
Deferted tax on allowance recognized during the yeat
Income exempt from tax
Deductible temporary differences not recognized
Tax-exempt loss (income) of FCDU
Effects of change in tax rates
Non-deductible expenses
Others

"Tax expense reported in the income statements

Tax on pretax incoms at 35%
Adjustment for income subjected to lower incame tax rates
Tax effects of: :
NOLCCO not secognized,
Deductible temporacy differences not recognized
Income exempt from tax
Deferred tax on allowance recognized duting the yeat
Tax-exempt loss (income) of FCDU
Effects of change in tax tates
Non-deductible expenses
Others

Tax expense reported in the income statements

Group
2008 2007 2006
P 1,288,920 P 3295934 P 1,841,070
( 401,963) 1,338,873 ( 607,526)
1,495,887 75,910 886,165
( 1,429,741) - -
( 1,182,832) ( 2,766,620 ( 988,201}
( 1,063,219) 1,154,962 353,527
914,156 ( 1,688,315) ( 1,472,025}
860,779 - S
7,764 1,270,747 1,037,940

—~

N [ .1 165,132 219,376

P 1444684 P 2846673 P 1270306

Parent Bank
2008 2007 2006
P 832,984 P 3,606,715 P 1,497,547
( 478,078) 1,372,822 519:576)
1,498,073 ( 13,0493 B13, 777
1,414;192) 1,138,338 331,351
1,139,027) ( 2,522,607 ( 999,864)
1,165,022) - .
914,156 ( 1,662,807)( 1,420,478)
860,779 - -
693,182 813,988 1,086,619
338,504 ( 99.521) 245,099
P 958,350 P 2633879 P 1034475
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The components
follows:. -

Defetrred tax assets:
Allowance for impairment losses
Unamoztized past service cost
NOLCO
Lesse income/ expense differential
Accrual (reversal) of expenses
Upnrealized loss on asset conversion
Unrealized loss on trading securities
Orthers

Dreferted tax Habilities:
Revaluation increment in property
Capitalized interest .
Changes in fair values
of AFS finandial assets
Retirement expease
Othets

Net Deferred Tax Assets

Allowance fot impaitment losses
NOLCO

Eease income differential
Capitalized interest

Unsmottized past service cost
Unrealized loss on asset conversion
Others

. Deferted Tax Bxpense (Income)

Allowance fot ptobable losses
NOLCO

Capitalized interest
Unamortized past service cost
Investment propertics

Net pension assets

QOthets

Deferzed Tax Expense (Income)

of the deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as

Statements of Conditon

Group Parent Bank
L2008 2007 2008 2007
P .5,903,49‘9 P 5799780 P 5,939,405 P 5,799,780
380,455 386,603 374,91 386,603
183,257 44971 11,185 48,784
97,589 . 73,930 74,581 73,930
74,009) ( 110;358) 3,912 4,564
( - 2,107) 10,341 - -
472 10,448 - .
56,360 222416 25,953 29,035
6,545,516 6,438,131 6,429,967 6,342,696
( 563,587) ( 585,113) ( ' 557,559) ( 579,085}
( 61,658) { T4,404) ( 61,658) { 74,404}
( 25,999) { 32,357) ( '25,559) ( 29;819)
( 10,943) ( 5682) ( 7,470) ¢ 8,716)
( 99,408) . ( 31,140) ¢ 36:331)
P__5779921 P__5740575 P 5J46581 E_.5.0614.341
Group Income Statements .
2008 2007 2006
(P 44,994) P 520,815 (P 153,969)
38,953 874,528 201,549
22,114 - 33327
{ 12,746) ( 25,730) 693
10,129 ¢( 10,378} 4,073
( 2,052) 3,151 180
( 24,964)( 645.151) ¢ 16520
(0 13,560) B 717,235 P 157924
Ba nco, t: e
__ 2008 2007 2006
® 139,626) P 358,754 (P 132,437)
37,898 794,022 272276
{ 12,746) ( 25,7300 ( o 692)
11,672 ( 9.787) 4,334
( 3,004) 3987 ( 81,363}
( 1,245) 3978 1,585
899 ( 26,780) 7862

S (P___106452) B__109844d4 P 141868
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nts of esi

Group Par nk
2008 2007 2008 2007
Change in fait value of AFS financial assets P 2,358 P 157 P 4,260 P
Revaluation increment 21,526 97 21,526
Deferred Tax Expense (Income) P 23884 P 254 P 25786 P - ..

The breakdown of NOLCO with the corresponding validity periods follow:

_ Year  _ Groyp  ParentBank  ValidUgdl
2008 P 4332626 P 4330154 2011
2007 1,720,129 1,665,954 2010
2006 3,923,488 3,640,655 2009
2005 4,067 - 2008

In 2008, NOLCO amounting to P4,067 was applied in the GGroup financial statements.
The breakdown of MCIT with the corresponding validity periods follow:

_ Xear  __ Group  PaentBank  Valid Undl

2008 P 84382 P 84,357 2011
2007 150,604 150,482 2010
2006 104,493 104,'293 2009

The amounts of unxecogmzed deferred tax assets arising from NOLCO and othet
tempotary differences as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 follow:

NOLCO , P 9976243 P 2992873 P 15783868 P 482435
MCIT 3394719 339,479 457,817 457,817
Allowance for probable losses 4,944,668 1,483,400 2,024,974 708,741
Othets - - 3471 1215
15,260,390 P%:ﬁ&éﬂ P__16270130 P . 5902107
‘ Parent Bank
2008 2007

. _TaxBase . _TaxBffect  TagPase __Tax Effect |
NOLCO P 9,636,763 P 2,891,029 P 13438247 P 4703386
MCIT 339,132 339,132 371,757 371,757

Allowance for prabable losses 606234 1804870 - -

P 15992125 P 503503 D 13810004 P S5075143
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27.2 Relevant Tax Regulations
Republic Act 9504

Effective July 2008, Republic Act 9504 was approved giving corpotate tax payers an - -

~ option to claim itemized deduction or optional standard deduction (OSD) equivalent-to
40% of gross sales. Once the option to use OSD is made, it shall be itrevocable for the
taxable yeat for which the option was made. In 2008, the Group opted to continue
claiming itemized standard deductions. o

Revenue Regulation 12-2007

" On October 19, 2007, the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) issued Revenue Regulation
(RR) 12-2007 which requires the quarterly computation and payment of the MCTT
beginning on the income tax return for fiscal quarter ending September 30, 2007. This
RR amended certain provisions of RR 9-98 which specifically provides for the
computation of the MCIT at the end of each taxable year.

Thus, in the computation of the tax due for the taxable quarter, if the computed
quarterly MCIT is higher than the quarterly regular corporate income fax, the tax due to
be paid for such taxable quarter at the time of filing the quarterly corporate income. tax
return shall be the MCIT which is 2% of the gross income as of the end of the taxzable

quarter.

Republic Act 9337

On May 24, 2005, Republic Act No. 9337 (RA 9337), amending certain sections of the

_ National Tnternal Revenue Code of 1997, was signed into law and became effective
beginning on November 1, 2005. The following were the major changes brought about
by RA 9337 that are relevant to the Group: '

(a) RCIT rate was increased from 32% to 35% starting on November 1, 2005 until
December 31, 2008 and will be reduced to 30% beginning on January 1,2009;

(6) 10% value-added tax (VAT} rate was increased to 12% effective on
February 1, 2006;

(¢) 12% VAT rate was now imposed on certain goods and services that were previously
zeto-rated or subject to percentage tax;

(d) Input tax on capital goods shall be 6}Med on z staggered basis over 60 months ot
the useful Life of 'thf; related assets, whichever is shorter; and, . :

. (¢ Creditable input VAT was capped ata maximum of 70% of output VAT per quartet
which was effective until the third quarter of 2006 (this cap was removed effective
for quarters ending on December 31, 2006 and onwards).
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27.3 Gross Receipis Tax (GRT)/ VAT

Beginning January 1, 2003, the imposition of VAT on banks and financial institutions
became effective putsuant to the provisions of Republic Act 9010. The Bank and BDO
Private became subject to VAT based on their gross receipts, in lieu of the GRT under
Sections 121 and 122 of the Tax Code which was imposed on banks, non-banks
financial intermediaries and finance companies in prior years.

On January 29, 2004, Republic Act 9238 reverts the imposition of GRT on banks and
financial institutions. This law s retroactive to January 1, 2004. The Bank and BDO
Private complied with the transitional guidelines provided by the BIR on the fimal
disposition of the uncollected Output VAT as of December 31, 2004.

On May 24, 2005, the amendments on RA 9337 was approved amending, among others,
the gross receipts tax on royalties, rentals of propesty, real or personal, profits from
exchange and on net trading gains within the taxable year on foreign currency, debt
securities, detivatives and other similar financial instruments from E% to 7% effective

Novembet 1, 2005.
274 Documentary Stamp Tax (DST)
Documentary stamp taxes (at varying rates) atre imposed on the following:

(a) Bank checks, drafts, ot certificate of deposit not beating interest, and other
instruments;

() Bonds, loan agreements, promissozy notes, bills of exchange, drafts, instrutnents
and securities issued by the Government or any of its instrumentalities, deposit
substitute debt instruments, certificates of deposits bearing interest and other not

payable on sight or demand;

() Acceptance of bills of exchange and lettets of credit; and,
(4) Bills of lading or réceipt.

On February 7, 2004, RA 9243 was passed amending the rates of DST, the significant
provisions of which ate summarized below: , _

(a) On every issue of debt instruments, there shall be collected 2 DST of P1.00 on
ecach P200 ot fractional part thereof of the issue price of any such debt instrument.
Provided, that for-such debt instruments with terms of less than one year, the DST
to be collected shall be of a proportional amount in accordance with the ratio of its
term in number of days to 365 days. Provided further that only one DST shall'be
imposed on either loan agreement or promissory notes to secure such loan. '

(6) On all sales or transfer of shares ot certificates of stock in any corporation, there
shall be collected a DST of P{.75 on each P200, or fractional part thereof, of the.

pat value of such stock.

(2 On.all bills of exchange ot drafts, there shall be coli cgyﬁgwrdfl)?‘ﬁ[ﬂ‘oa@y: \
P200, or fractional part thereof, of the face value of h:_.l_ﬁggu Y
draft.
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(4} The following instruments, documents and papers shall be exempt from DST:

¢  Borrowings and lending of secutities executed under the Securities Borrowing -
and Lending Program of 2 registered exchange, or in accordance with '
regulations presctibed by the appropriate regulatory authority;

e  Loan agreements ot promissory notes, the aggregate of which does not
exceed P250,000 or any such amount as may be determined by the Secretary

of Finance, executed by an individual for his purchase on installment for his
personal use; )

e Sale, barter ar exchange of shares of stock listed and traded through the local
stock exchange for a period of five years from the effectivity of RA 9243;

e Fixed income and othet securities traded in the secondary market or through
an exchange; ‘

e  Derivatives including repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase
agreements;

»  Bank deposit accounts without a fizxed term or maturity; and,
s  Interbank call loans with matuﬁty of not mote than seven days to covet
deficiency in resetve against deposit labilities. : '
EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share were computed as follows:

Group
2008 2007 .. 2006
Net income attributable to shareholders
of the Patent Bank P 2,182,402 P 6518656 P 3,969,623
Dividends in atrears ( 83.958) ) -
Total basic net income : P_2098444 P 6518656 P 390962 3
Divided by the weighted average number ) 1 ‘ ‘
of outstanding common sharés (in thousands) 2,302,032 2,281,211 1,287,071
' E 091 P 28 P 308

Basic earnings pet share
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Diluted earnings per share were computed as follows:

Netincome attributable to shal.:eholders
of the Patent Bank

Interest expense on convertible loan, net of tax -
Total diluted net income

Divided by the weighted average number

of outstanding common shares (in thousands):

Qutstanding common shates

Potesitizl common shares from assumed
conversion of convertible foans
Paotential common shares from assumed
conversion of preferred shares

Potential cothmon shares from assumed
conversion of stock option plan

"Total weighted average number of common shares

aftet conversion

Diluted earnings pet share )

Busic earnings per share were computed as follows:

Net income
Dividends in arrears
Total basic net income

Divided by the weighted average number
of outstanding common shates (ia thousands)

Basic earnings per share

Group

2008 2007 2006

P 2,182,402 P 6518656 T - 3,969,623

- - 21,291

P_2182402 p 6518656 I 0,91

2,302,032 2,281,211 1,287,071

. . : 20,159
125,000 § -
2,557 2722 2,447

2429589 __ 2083933 __ 1318677

P09 P 285 P 303

Parent Bank

2008 2007 20006

P 1478737 P 7,671,020 P 3244229

(83958} = =

2,302,032 2281211 287,07

b 0.6 P 336 B 252
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Diluted eatnings per share were computed as follows:

Parent Bank
2008 2067 2006
Net income : ' P 1478737 P 7,671,020 P 3,244,229
Interest expense on convettible loan, net of tax . - - ‘ 21,291
Total diluted net income _ 1,478,737 __ 7.671,020 3265520
Divided by the weighted average numbet -
of outstanding commaon shares (in thousands):
Outstanding common shares 2,302,032 . 2,281,211 1,287,071
Potential common shares from assumed
conversion of convertible loans - - ‘ 29,159
Potential common shares from agsumed
conversion of convertible preferred shares 125,000 - -
‘Potential common shares from assumed
conversion of stock option plan 2,557 2,722 2,447
Total weighted average common shares ‘
after conversion . 2429589 283,933 318,677
Diluted eatnings per shate B 261 P 356 P 2:48
29, SELECTED FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
(a) The following are sotme measures of the Group’s financial performance:
Group
2008 2007 - 2006
Return on average equity:
Net income, 38% 11.7% 10.9%
Avetage total capital accounts
Retuen on average resoutces:
Net income 0.3% 11% 0%
Avetage total resousces
Net interest margin:
__ MNetinterestincome 3.7% 40%  30%
Average interest carning resoutces
Capital to risk assets tatio: . CFTRTTEACET FEATTSAIE
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Parent Bank

e 208 2067 2006
Return on average equity:
Netincome 21% 15.0% 9.9%
Average total capital accounts
Return on average resources:
Net income _ 0.2% 1% 0.8%
Average total resources
Net interest miargin:
Net interest income, _ . : 3% 41% 29%
Avetage interest earning resoutces '
Capital to sk assets ratic
Combined ctedit and market tisk 11.2% 12.1% 11.8%

(4) Secured liabilities and resources pledged as security are shown below:

Group Parcnt Banlk

2008 2007 2008 2007

Apggregate amount of secured Habilities P 16,645,292 P... 453080 P_ 16645292 ‘B 420170

Apgrepate amount of resources pledged

as security P__12150,684 P__ 600,584 B _12150.684 P 6190584

EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENT OF CONDITION DATE

On January 31, 2009, the Board of Directors approved the issuance of the third tranche
of unsecured subordinated debt qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank, with face
amount of up to P5,000,000. The Board of Ditectors also approved a rights offering of
common shates to existing shareholders of the Bank. The Group expects to complete
the rights offering within six months and projects to raise ptoceeds of between

- P7,000,000 to P8,000,000. The net proceeds of the rights offering shall be used for

general corporate purposes, projects ot investments as may be approved by the Board
of Directors and initiatives for expansion. Management was authorized by the Board to
fix the final fssue size and other terms of both issuances. '

On February 28, 2009, the Board of Ditectors approved the declaration of semi-annual
dividend on peso denominated and US dollar denominated preferred shares at the rate
of 6.5% per annum each for a total dividend of P83,958 payable on May 14, 2009 for
the peso denominated preferred shares and US §1,625 payable on April 18, 2009 for the

US dollar denominated preferred shares.
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31. COMMITMENTS AND CONTING
J1.1 Litigations

The Group has pending claims and/or is
from the ordinary course of business ope
Management believes that no such legal |
adverse effect on the Group’s financial

. The Parent Bank is a respondent itz two
 Chamber of Commetce {ICC) atlsing fro
equity investments.

Sale of Bankard

The case involves the sale of the Group’s
then EPCIB. Dispute on the said sale is
~ ruled in favor of the claimant (the Partial
“others that the claimant is entitled to dan
filed a motion for reconsidetation to vac
level. On January 8, 2008, the RTC issug
Subsequently, the Group filed a Petition
Court (Second Division) to vacate the tul
(Second Division) issued a decision deny,
ruling of the RTC. On January 27, 2009,

ENCIES

a defendant in various legal actions arising

sration or its nonnal business activities.
proceedings ate expected to have material
ondition. :

L hitration proceedings under the International

m isolated transactions, ie., the sale of its

ownership in Bankard, a former subsidiary of
under arbitration with the ICC, which recently
Award of September 27, 2007), stating among
hages, subject to proof of loss, The Group has
ate the ruling at the Regional Trial Court (RTC)
d a decision affirming the ruling of the ICC,
for Review on Certiorari with the Supreme
ling issued by the RTC. The Supreme Court
ing the Group’s petition and upholding the
the Group filed an Omnibus Motion: (i) to
Jevate the case to the Supreme Coutt ¢# banc in

utge the Honorable Second Division to ¢

view of the novelty of the legal issues and the resolution thereof demands for the
Honotable Coutt én bane’s exercise of its constitutional power in respect to the
promulgation of rules and regulations concerning coutt procedure, and/ot (#) to move
for the reconsideration of the Decision on grounds of being contrary to law and
established jurisprudence; and, () to clatify cettain portions of the Decision, which
have caused confusion in the application|of the pertinent laws governing atbitration.

The Partial Award sustained by the Second Division of the Supreme Court concluded
that the Group is liable to the claimant biit did not adjudicate the amount of damages

for which the Group is liable to the claim
claimant in the second phase of the arbitz
has been tentatively set by the Tribunal (]
view of the Decision and the Omnibus M
‘Group raised against the procedure being
requested for the suspension of the arbits
are resolved.

As of December 31, 2008, management }
or that the resulting liability if any, resulty

adverse effect on the Group’s financial p

taken up if and when a final resolution by

lant as the same shall still be proven by the
ation (quantum phase); the heating of which
hairman on Octaber 26, 2009. However, in
lotion, as well as the continuing objection the
followed by the Tribunal, the Group has

ation proceeding until the matters and issues

selieves that the above claim is without merit
ng from such claim, will not have material
Lsition and financial pecformance and will be
the courts is made on the claim.
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Sale of Maxicare

The Group'is a defendant/respondent in legal proceedings arising from the sale of its
60% stake in Maxicare in 2007. Claimants have filed an Intra-Corporate Dispute with
the Regional Trial Coutt of Makati (RTC), The claimants filed a Petition for Issuance:
‘of Writ of Preliminary Injunction in Suppott of Arbitration proceedings with Prayer for
Temporaty Restraining Otder (IRO) and Writ of Replevin to enjoin the conduct of
business of Maxicare, and if already executed, for annulment of sale of the Maxicare
shares. The RTC has since denied the TRO and Writ of Replevin on the ground that
the petitionets have no clear and unmistakable right over the shares, as there was no
petfected contract of sale between the Bank and the claimants. Moreover, the RTC also
ruled that the Bank’s sale of the shares to Pin-An Holdings is valid. The Petitioners
filed 2 Motion for Reconsideration (MR) which was denied since an MR is 2 prohibited
pleading under the Interim Rules on Intra-Corporate Dispute. The RTC ruled further
that its order declaring the validity of the sale of the Maxicare shares has become final
under said Interim Rules. The claimants have since filed a Petition for Certiorari with
the Court of Appeals, where the case is pending.

The claimants have also filed 2 Request for Arbitration with the International Chamber
of Commerce (ICC) — Intetnational Court of Arbitration, whete arbitration is currently
ongoing on the same issue of the petitionets’ right to buy the shares.

As of December 31, 2008, management believes that the above claim is bascless and
without merit or that the resulting liability if any, resulting from such a claim, will not
have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial position and financial
performance. = '

Others

The Group is also a defendant in vatious cases pending in courts for alleged claims
against the Group, the outcome of which are not fully determinable at present. As of -
December 31, 2008, management believes that, liabilities or losses, if any, atising from
these claims would not have a material effect on the financial position and results of
operations of the Group and will be taken up if and when a final resolution by the
courts is made on each claim.

312 Leases

_ The Group leases the premises of its head office and most of its branch offices for
periods ranging from 1 to 15 years from the date of the contracts; terms are renewable’
upon the mutual agreement of the parties. Rent expense, repotted as part of ‘
QOccupancy under Other Operating Expense accountin the income statement,
“amounted to P1.462,996 in 2008, P1,390,711 in 2007 and P866,867 in 2006 in the
Group financial statements and P1,386,351 in 2008, P1,253,088 in 2007 and P697,984
in the Parent Bank financial statements.
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The gstimated minimum future annual rentals for the next five years follow:

Year Group Parent Bank

2009 P 1,009,392 P . 1,003,379
2010 1,130,745 1,124,431
2011 1249682 1,243,053
2012 . ‘ 1,374,361 - 1,367,411
2013 1,511,476 1,504,167

313 Others

In the normal course of the Group’s operat:ons thete are various outstanding
commitments and contingent liahilities such as guarantees, commitments to-extend
credit, ete., which ate not reflected in the accompanying Group financial statements.
The Group recognizes in its books any losses and Habilities incurred in the course of its
operations as svon as these become determinable and quantifiable. Management
‘believes that, as of December 31, 2008, no additional matetial losses or liabilities are
required to be recognized in the accompanying Group financial statements as a result of
the above commitments and transactions.

Following is a summary of the Group’s commitments and contingent accounts:

Group Parent Banl .

Mote 2008 2007 2008 2007
"Trust department accounts ) 25 P 338,173,471 P 274108205 P 314,042,091 P 255499325
Forwatd exchange sold 91,710,780 90,875,358 71,206,985 82,406,815
Forwatd exchange bought 67,647,414 62,964,257 53,063,361 54,606,637
Other eontingent accounts 78,767,999 51:015,361 77,889,698 47915455
Unused commetcial letters of credit 17,998,121 25,253,893 17,998,121 25,251,893
Intetest rate swap payable 15,837,774 7,065,007 4,082,600 1,670,600
Interest rate swap teceivable 14,782,995 6,207,145 2,997,100 - B68500
Bills for collection ) 10,641,072 9,064,716 10,641,072 - 9,064,575
Spot exchange bought 6,644,832 3,260,919 6,240,782 3,260,919
Late deposits/payments received 5,341,041 1,941,799 5,341,041 1,931,621
Spot exchange sold 3,325,926 1,864,901 2,921,916 1,864,901
Outstanding guarantees issued 724,094 1,409,499 724,094 1,409,499
Export letters of credit confirmed 48,708 75,151 48,708 75,131
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The Board of Directors

Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc.
Benguet Center, 12 ADB Avenue
Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City

We have audited the financial staternents of Banco de Oto Unibank; Inc, and
subsidiaties (together hereifafrer refetred to as the Group) and Banco de Oro Unibank,
Inc. (the Parent Bank) for the year eaded December 31, 2008, on which we have
tendered the attached report dated March 2, 2009, Ouz audit was made for the purpose
of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as 2 whole. The
applicable supplementary schedules (see table of contents) of the Group and Parent
Bank as of Decembet 31, 2008 and for the year then ended, required by the Securities
and Fxchange Comnission, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required pact of the basic financial statements. The information in such
supplementary schedules has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, it our opinion, is fairly stated in all materal
respects in selation to the basic financial staternents taken as a whole.

PUMNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

e,

By: Benjamin P, Valdez
Paginer
CPA Reg ' No.. 0028485
TIN 136-619-880 ‘
PTR No. 1566055, January 5, 2009, Makati City
© SEC Accreditation No. 009-AR-2
BIR AN 08-002511-11-2008 (Nov. 25, 2008 to 2011)

March 2, 2009

Carlifled Pubfle Aceal
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Index to Supplementary Schediles
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Statement of Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Fina acial Statements

Independent Auditors’ Report on the SEC Supplementary Schedules
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Shont-term Cash Investments)
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Schedule A - Maihetable Scoutites «

Banco de Ora Unibank, Inc, and Subsidiades
{Cument Marketable Equity Secunitics and Other Short Term Cash Investments)
Deceinber 31, 2008 )

Mumber of slases or

P . . . A Amtounit show on the Vikucd based an the I cefved and
Nanze of issuing eetity and association of eack irspel} principalamount of ¥ il saarket quatation at ncome eI An
' bands ornotes Balaice sheat? balince sheet dated acerued
ity Viznures (BEV) sostoos B 0215400 P 5215400 P 4,125,000
5 _:G]obnl Ciroug Ine 16,000 27,840 27,840
Anchor Land {ALHT) 7000 41,300 41300 a
Ancherand Hotdings, Toc. 3769,000 22237,100 22237,100
Al Corp {AQ 384,129 192,081,831 192,081,831
Ayala Land {ALT) 1,045,040 11,550,146 11,550,146
Belle Corporation 997,000 707,870 707,87¢ 0
Benpres Holdings Carporaton 10,000 9,700 5,700 :
BPI 9,220 354,270 354,970
CADP Groop Comporlion 128,685 353,884 353,854 Q
Canlibang Goif & Counery Clib Shares 2 900,000 908,060
Cluls Filipine ] 120000 120,000
The] Monte Pacific 2,311,941 2311941
Digiral Telecams Phils, Tne. 11,704,000 11,232,000 11,232,000 0
T necgy Developrent Carp. 103,500 196,650 196,650
Expart and Trdusiry Bank 3 903,600 903,600 Q
Pilivese Land Tnt, 7,191,300 ) 2804766 2,804,766
Figst Gen Corp 6,100 59,780 59780
Globe Talecoms Ine. 410 311,600 311,600
¢Gxin Nerwork Ine, (PDRS) 15,300 51,135 51,135
Goresco Land, Ine. 15,466,500 1,546,650 1,546,650 [}
Govarmnment 19,480,874 £8,964,339 48,964,332 1,021,338
Heidelberg, 5,080,000 - u [y ]
Trt) Container 4000 ' 51,000 51,000
IPVG Corp 95000 114,000 114,060
Tvary Homes, Ine. 1,299,630 53;446,182 53,446,187 0
]G Summit Finkdings, Inc. 20,500,000 100,000,000 100,000,600 11,750,000
Keppel Phils Prap (EP) 1 .2 2
¥anih Electde Company -B 12,210 726,495 726,455
Atanila Southwonds Golf & Country Club Shates 1 630,600 £30,000
Megavaorld Corp. (MEG) 2,160,052 1 LI8G 146 1,385,146 Q
Mewro Pacilie Investment Coep .40 108 108
Metrobank(MBT) ) 3,900 204,700 204,700
Pacifie Oxline Sysrems Corp 113,000 847,500 847,500 0
Paclfickt Land Heldings, Inc. 1,299,000 149,609,603 39,609,605 o
Peroenergy Resources (o 215 1013 1,013 Q
Tt Maziomal Reingeovance 21,060 26,460 26,460
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Presage Comporation 82,108,067 £2.108,067
Private 13,500,000 33,500,000 13,500,000 -
Redford Asses Ltd. 0 29,199,500 29,199,500 q
Robipsen's Land 13,260 4,680 64,680
Roxas Holdings, Ine. 1,455,480 . 3,929,796 1,929,796 Q
30 Development Corg (SMDC) 6,600 14,914 14,916 o
SM Investment Corp[SM) 38222 119,255,983 119,255,983
Shi Prisas [ uklings (SMPF) 67814 508605 508,605
Subkic Bay Yach: Club 10,600 100,000
Tagapuy Splendido 1 350,000 350,000 0
Tover Clb (chiss A& shares) i 142,500 142,500
Trans-Asla O and MNR]L Dev Corp o1 1 1
Unvessal Robiza (URC) o . 67280 §.:289 :
r 112933950 P 1112933951 B 16896318

(Pudpz: Gevvid Fovsams)
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Banco de O Unibank Toe, and Subeldiuries .
bl fons Dinectors, Officers, Emplayees, Teedated Panics and Paincigial Sockhaldets {Cubier than Affiliares}
Dacermber 31, 2008
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Schedule G - Nop- Cune

Panco de Om Unibard, Tnc. and Subsidiaries

faskeeabls Touity Secuitdes, Otiter Long- Ters Tavastarsas in Stock, and Other Investments

Trcembsr 31, 2008
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Banco de Cte Unibank, Inc and Subsidiaries

Schedule T - Indebtedaess of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries and Related parties
Decetnber 31, 2008 ’ }

{Other than Affiliates)

Name of Refated Pastfes] Balrace ;z;f:fwmng of . Bakance atend of yearl

z

" N/A

Qe G The infornurion caled for shall be shown

L The affilistes pamed shallbe grouped as in Sche
Ywn separately i such relamed schedule.

separately for each relared pany whose investment was §

2 Tor cach affilie pamed in e first colmmrs, explain in 2 note heteto the naure andt purpose of any

marerial increase.
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Pance de O Uniliank, Tnc. and Subsidiaries
Sehedule E - Lotangible Assets - Other Assets

Dreember 31, 2008
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ciibe e narure of the changes and the o

5 Cleardy

iong, abandonments, ar revenEnt, ar any signific
b iray v

2 aquisitin, clearly state the axure of the change and the ath

ceumed dusing the peced.

wsipment ahandened i carred al ctherthan a nominad ameunt,
frems may be shoon endder 3 miscellanzo aption.

s acconns affected.
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it s wnusual changes In

cate, if prasticable, the anount

1e general chameter and location,

cof and

e accouncs affected. Descrbe cost of addinons



Banco de Om Unibank, Inc, and Subsidiaries
Schedule F - Long-Term Debit
December 3, 2008

Tithe of issue and type of obligation!

Amount avthorized by

Amount shovn under

caption” Cumrent
portion of long-term

Amoune shown under
caption"”Losng- Tern Debt”

indentur debtin refated batance) i related balince sheetd
sheet2
Unsecured Suberdinated Debt
Tier2 P 20,145,977,172 P 20,445,877,172
Long Term Negotiate Certificate of : ‘
Deposit (LTNCD} 10,105,886,500 10,105,886,500
Bills Payable-Other Foreign Reg
{Preferied Shares 2,407,317,000 2,407,317,000
Bills Payable- Others Domestic (PDIC) .
4,437,716,833 4437716833
Bills Payable-BIDO Private P 5,000,000,000 i 1,700,586,825

A o aonprn long oz egptralde contificae of clprsit e 2002 with i aggegate priveipl avanag of P2,191,400,000.00.
Vil il stceree from 18 Jrone 2007 to bnt cxcedig Domarder 16, 2012 ar a wiee & 6. 50%,

- Unsecured Subordimared Debt

LINCD
Series. |
Series 2
Series 3

BP-Crhers FX Reg

BP-Others Domestic

1 yclude in this column cach rype of obligation awhorized (

: Mntu;riry Dute
11/21/17
05/30/18

66/04/ 10
11/24/10
10/05/10

42/15/09
02/25/09

12/19/12

Taterest Rate
7.0600%
8.5000%

67404%
9.7300%
8.2500%

£7000%
3.6200%

3.9000%

i.¢, Joans, bands, warrants, eic)

2 'This cokumn is to be totalled to comespond to the relsed balance sheet caption.

3 Tnclude details as to interest mtés, amowats or fmiber of

Page §

peradiz insealimenrs, and maturity dates.




Banco de Oro L_'u'lbnnlc, Inc. arnd Subsidiaries
Schedule G. Indebtedness to Related Parties {Long-Tenn Loans from Related Companies)
December 31, 2008

Bt at beginning of

Balance at end of year?
year

Nazne of related partyl

Uncon;_ni}duwd Subsidiary N/A

Other Related Partiess ‘ N/A

1 The alfiliates nnmcd__slmll be grouped as in Seledule D, The faformation called for shall be
stated sepantely for amy pasons wwhose investmenty were slicwn separaely in such related

ichedule.
,  For each affiliares named in the St column, explain In a note hereto the pature and purpose

of any marerial increase diuing the perod diat is in excess of 10 percent of the related balance
at ither the beginning or erd of he perfod. .
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Bance de Oro Unibank, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Scfiedule H - Guarantees of Secusities of Other Issuerst

December 31, 2008
Name of fssutng entity of .y
securtties guatinteed by the Tﬂf of {;.czre Of.e.ﬂd’ To&zlangzm; An_;ounr;_mniq”fy Nature of
" company for which this cliss of secunties granneea .?Ii . person forwhich guasaitced
stitement Is filed guastteed outstanding? statement is filed
N/A

Tndicar 2 note any significant clanges since the date of the last balance sheet filed. TF this schedule is filed in suppart
of comolidared Financial statements, there shall be set Farthy guarantegs by any person included in the consclidadoin

except such guarantees of securities which are inciuded in the consolidated Balance sheec.

There need be made only a brief

srarement of the nacure of the guaraneee, such as "Guarantee of principal and interest”,

wGuarantee of Inrerest’, or "Guapanree of dividends”, 1f the guarantee is of imrerest, dividends, or hoth, state the

annual aggregate amount of interest o7 dividends so guaranteed.
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PBanco de Ove Unthiart, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule - Capital Swock!
December 31, 2008

Nuznbee of shares beld by

Numberof shares fusved Numberol shanes

Dircetors, officers

" Conxman shares - G par wlue

o Numberof shares | and eutstading as shovws | eeerd foroptions, -
e ! |0 Rt .
T of fssu5 authorzed wiidler ghe elated batance | marmants, conervion and & d".“ dpartivid 7 emgloyees Crhess
shest cappon othesights :

Authorzed [Rautraders)

Issued wnd cutstanding 2,362,032,661 956,634,390 1,125,143 1,344,271,922
Preferred Shares - P16 par value

Authorized

fied as ourstanding 500,000,000 S05.000000

Indicate It 2 note 4oy significan changes since the &

of the dasr balaee shest fled,

3 Tuchue b7 s soluena tach gpe of issuz mahodeed,

3 Alfiliares seferred to jochele affiiates for which sepamte financia] sutemeats are

securty.

Page 12
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Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Benguet Center, 12 ADD Avenue, Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City

Reconeillion of Retained Eamings for Dividend Declaration
December 31, 2008
(Amounw in Thousands of Philippine Pesos}

UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION .
AT'BEGINNING OF YEAR ’ ' P 11,395,829

‘Net Income Realized for the Year
Met income per andited financial starements ’ 1,478,737
Less unrealized income, ner of tac '
Unrenlized foreign exchange gain - net
{excepe those arcributable to cash and cash equivalenss) P - 4,300,655
Umrealized actuarid gains on defined beneflr plan : 85,828 4,386,483

Add unrealized loss, net of rax:

Depreciation on revaluation inerements ’ 6,528
" Adjuerment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAT 24,292
Fair value Josses arising from murl-to-marker measurcment ' 567,812 628,632

( 2279,114)

Add {Less) Changes in Retained Earmnings for the Year

Diividend declarations during the periad { 3,683,252)

UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS ) L
FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION AT END OF YEAR ) P _ 8,633,463




